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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020




COMPOSITION OF THE PARENT'S MANAGEMENT BODIES

Board of Directors

Chairperson Ms. Luitgard Spogler!

Deputy Chairperson Mr. Giovanni Puglisi (Independent)

CEO and General Manager Mr. Gianluca Garbi

Directors Mr. Daniele Pittatore (Independent)
Ms. Carlotta De Franceschi (Independent)
Ms. Laura Ciambellotti (/Independent)
Mr. Federico Ferro Luzzi (Independent)
Mr. Francesco Galietti (/ndependent)
Mr. Marco Giovannini (Independent)

Board of Statutory Auditors

Chairperson Mr. Massimo Conigliaro
Standing Auditors Ms. Lucia Abati
Mr. Marziano Viozzi?
Alternate Auditors Mr. Marco Armarolli
Ms. Daniela D'lgnazio

Independent Auditors

BDO ltalia S.p.A.

Manager in charge of financial reporting

Mr. Alexander Muz

! Meets the independence requirement pursuant to art. 147-ter, paragraph 4, and art. 148, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 24 February
1998, but it also does not meet the provisions of art. 3, application criteria 3.c.1.b and 3.c.2 of the Code of Conduct issued by Borsa Italiana.

2 The Shareholders’ Meeting of 23 April 2020 has renewed the entire Board of Statutory Auditors for three financial years, reappointing Mr. Massimo
Conigliaro, Chairperson, Ms. Lucia Abati, Standing Auditor, Mr. Marco Armarolli, Alternate Auditor and Ms. Daniela D’lgnazio, Alternate Auditor, and
Mr. Marziano Viozzi as third Standing Auditor.



COMPOSITION OF THE INTERNAL COMMITTEES

Internal Control and Risk Management Committee

Chairperson Ms. Laura Ciambellotti

Members Ms. Carlotta De Franceschi
Mr. Federico Ferro Luzzi
Mr. Daniele Pittatore

Appointments Committee

Chairperson Mr. Federico Ferro Luzzi
Members Mr. Marco Giovannini
Ms. Luitgard Spogler

Remuneration Committee

Chairperson Mr. Giovanni Puglisi
Members Mr. Francesco Galietti
Mr. Marco Giovannini

Ethics Committee

Chairperson Mr. Giovanni Puglisi
Members Ms. Carlotta De Franceschi
Mr. Federico Ferro Luzzi
Supervisory Body
Chairperson Mr. Massimo Conigliaro
Members Mr. Daniele Pittatore
Mr. Franco Pozzi



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

I 3,671,371

Total Assets

Securities Portfolio

Loans - Factoring

Loans - Salary-backed loans
and SME

Funding - Banks and REPOs

Funding - Term Deposits

Funding - Current Accounts

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Total Income

Personnel Expenses

Other administrative expenses

Group profit for the year

Income statement data (€,000)

— 3,730,081

878,830
991,560
1,474,532
1,714,661
1,008,282
829,227
1,104,878
845,429
1,216,523
1,325,794
633,548
681,577

74,271
80,694
17,428
16,068

I 101,494
I 100,913

(25,532)
(23,166)
(25,534)
(22,939)
25,777
29,719

-1.6% [ 31 pec 2020
11.4% |31 Dec 2019
-14.0%

21.6%

30.7%

-8.2%

-7.0%

-8.0%
8.5%
0.6%

10.2%

11.3%

-13.3%

Performance Indicators

Cost/income

ROTE



SIGNIFICANT EVENTS FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2020

The dramatic spread of the coronavirus in Italy and the
rest of the world is an unprecedented emergency with
systemic implications in terms of health, as well as social,
political, economic and geopolitical consequences. The
spread of Covid-19 and the ensuing lockdown of many
economic activities led to a downward revision in the
estimates of economic growth rates worldwide compared
to what was expected in pre-Covid times. In ltaly, the
measures restricting movement, which included different
types of lockdowns based on the trend in infection rates,
significantly changed national GDP growth estimates.
Restrictions and strict safety and precautionary protocols
such as the prohibition of gatherings, maintaining safe
social distances and the use of masks even outdoors
remain in force.

In Italy, several law decrees were enacted to support the
non-financial companies most affected by the lockdown
and by the pandemic in general. These decrees aim
to provide companies with support to meet temporary
liquidity needs through ad hoc fiscal measures and direct
support from the banking system through moratoriums
and/or guaranteed loans. Among the various forms of
support provided for under the decrees, banks may grant
loans to businesses, subject to certain conditions, with a
duration of no more than 6 years (including the possibility
of deferring the repayment of the principal for up to 24
months). These loans are guaranteed by either the National
Guarantee Fund for SMEs or by SACE, depending on the
size of the beneficiary business.

In this respect, the Bank has launched the loan product
guaranteed by SACE and/or the National Guarantee Fund
for SMEs starting from the third quarter. The product is a
guaranteed unsecured loan, or rather an instalment loan
in which the initial instalments for up to a maximum of
24 months consist solely of interest (deferred payment
or “pre-ammortamento”, which includes deferral of the
amount needed to align the due date of the instalments
with the first calendar quarter following the date of
disbursement). This product is exclusively for the Bank’s

existing factoring customers or new customers who also

enter into a factoring agreement with the Bank. At 31

December the Bank granted 28 state-guaranteed loans for

a total of € 68.7 million. As at the same date, other loans

of the same type were being evaluated.

With reference to the moratoriums on existing loans, the

Bank has carefully considered measures for suspending

payment terms. As at 31 December 2020, 50 requests

for a moratorium had been received, 47 of which have

been accepted for a total amount of € 14.5 million. All

moratoriums granted, except two for which the customers

have given a formal waiver, have been extended, as

required by law, to 30 June 2021.

This is however a rather minor matter for the Bank, given

the sector in which it operates.

The initiatives launched by the ECB relating to the banking

sector are set out below:

= an additional longer-term refinancing operation auction
(additional LTROs) to guarantee fixed-rate liquidity.
The rate in these operations will be fixed at the average
of the deposit facility rate. The operations, which were
conducted on a weekly basis, all matured on the spot
settlement date of the fourth TLTRO-III operation (24
June 2020). Government bonds are once again eligible
to be pledged as collateral in LTRO operations;

= more favourable conditions for TLTRO-III between June
2020 and June 2021. The initial interest rate of 25
bps lower than the average rate on the main refinancing
operations (therefore, -25 bps) was then further
reduced to 50 basis points below the average interest
rate on the Eurosystem’s main refinancing operations
prevailing over the same period. In fact, banks are
being remunerated for receiving liquidity from the ECB
and investing it in the real economy. Furthermore, the
maximum amount that banks can borrow (borrowing
allowance) has been increased to 50% of their stock
of eligible loans as at 28 February 2019. The bid limit
per operation (10% of outstanding loans as at 28
February 2019) has been eliminated, which will match
the overall limit of the TLTRO [Il loan less the loans

already obtained;
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= the launch of a new asset purchase programme (PEPP
- Pandemic Emergency Purchase Programme) worth
at least € 750 billion. The programme will terminate
when the pandemic crisis is deemed to be over, but in
any case not before the end of June 2021. The PEPP,
compared to the current APP, also allows the purchase
of Greek government bonds and provides greater
flexibility allowing for fluctuations in the distribution
of purchase flows over time, across asset classes and
among jurisdictions. Purchases of government bonds
must continue to be in line with the national central
banks’ subscriptions to the ECB capital key;

= net asset purchase programme (APP) of € 120 billion
by the end of the year. This programme involves the
direct purchase by the ECB of corporate securities,
government bonds, asset-backed securities, and third
covered bonds;

= expansion of the scope of Additional Credit Claims
(ACC) to include claims related to the financing of the
corporate sector;

= expansion of the Corporate Sector Purchase Programme
(CSPP) to include non-financial commercial papers of
sufficient quality;

= introduction of PELTROs (Pandemic Emergency

Longer-Term Refinancing Operations) to provide
liquidity support to the Euro Area financial system
and contribute to preserving the smooth functioning of
money markets by providing effective liquidity support.
The PELTROs consist of seven additional refinancing
operations commencing in May 2020 and maturing
in a staggered sequence between July and September
2021 in line with the duration of the collateral easing
measures. They will be carried out as fixed-rate tender
procedures with full allotment, with an interest rate
that is 25 basis points below the average rate on the
main refinancing operations prevailing over the life of
each PELTRO.

Other measures were adopted by the Governing Council of

the ECB on 10 December 2020:

= For TLTRO - IlI, the total amount that counterparties
will be able to borrow in OMRLT-III was increased
from 50% to 55% of the respective stock of eligible

loans and the period during which considerably

favourable rate conditions will apply was extended by
12 months to June 2022. Three additional operations
will be completed between June and December 2021
in addition to the seventh TLTRO-III scheduled for 18
March 2021;

* Regarding PELTRO, the Governing Council also decided
to offer four additional one-year fixed-rate refinancing
operations between March and December 2021. The
interest rate will be 25 basis points below the average
rate applied in the main Eurosystem refinancing
operations for the entire duration of the respective
PELTRO.

The new measures adopted by the Governing Council of

the ECB on 10 December 2020 will take effect over the

course of 2021.

The Bank participated in the fourth TLTRO IIl operation

for an amount of € 382.99 million, benefiting from the

reduced rate of -50 bps between June 2020 and June

2021.

Existing TLTRO Il operations at 31 December 2020

totalled € 491.24 million.

The Bank currently has € 200 million of the PELTRO loan

at a refinancing rate equal to the interest rate that is 25

basis points below the average rate on the main refinancing

operations prevailing over the life of each PELTRO.

The Bank participated in the additional LTRO auction for

a total amount of € 650 million at the average rate of

-50 bps which was repaid on 24 June 2020 (the spot

settlement date of the fourth TLTRO |l operation).

From a regulatory perspective, the Bank of Italy,

capitalising on the flexibility of the regulation and in

line with the ECB’s decision regarding significant banks,
decided that even less significant banks and non-bank
intermediaries may also operate temporarily below the
level of the Target Component, assigned following the

SREP (Pillar 2 Guidance - P2G) process, as well as the

Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) and the Liquidity

Coverage Ratio (LCR).

Moreover, in its communication published on 27 March

2020, the Bank of Italy had recommended, among

other things, that banks “not pay dividends, including

the distribution of reserves, and make no irrevocable

commitments to pay dividends for the financial years
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2019 and 2020" at least until 1 October 2020, in order
to maximise their capital reserves. This recommendation
was later reaffirmed by the Bank of Italy in a subsequent
communication dated 28 July 2020 in which the
Supervisory Authority also made it clear that “the
limitations on dividend payments refer to cash pay-outs
which have the effect of reducing the quantity and quality
of Common Equity Tier 1 capital”.

In view of the above, upon the proposal of the Bank’s
Board of Directors, the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of
27 November 2020 resolved (i) to confirm the resolution
previously adopted by the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
on 23 April 2020 regarding the allocation of the profit
for the year 2019, namely to allocate the profit for
2019, amounting to € 29,955,723.45, to dividends
for € 7,479,157.84 and to retained earnings, for the
remaining amount of € 22,476,565.61, and (ii) to defer
the decision on the payment of the dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 of € 7,479,157.84, and the
resulting commitment to pay the dividend to be resolved
in a new Shareholders’ Meeting to be convened by the
Board of Directors as soon as possible - no earlier than 1
January 2021, and before 31 March 2021 - in accordance
with the supervisory provisions.

On 16 December 2020, the Bank of Italy then issued
a new recommendation on dividend distributions and
variable remuneration policies of banks in which it
reiterated to less significant banks: i) to refrain from
recognising or paying dividends or limit their amount to
no more than 15% of the cumulative profits of 2019-
2020 or 20 basis points of the CET1 ratio (in any case the
lesser of the two); ii) to refrain from recognising or paying
interim dividends out of 2021 profits; and iii) to exercise
extreme prudence in recognising variable remuneration.
This recommendation also points out that “the term
‘dividend’ used in the recommendation refers only to cash
pay-outs which have the effect of reducing the quantity
and quality of Common Equity Tier 1 capital”.

In its meeting of 10 February 2021, the Board of Directors
resolved to initiate discussions with the Bank of Italy on
this issue.

Considering the state of emergency, the European

Commission has proposed the following amendments to

the European prudential framework to maximise the ability

of banks to lend and absorb losses. These amendments

have also been approved by the European Parliament and

the European Council:

= |FRS 9 transitional arrangements, i.e. changes to
the method of calculating the adjustment in order
to capture the impacts of the health emergency,
extending the transitional period and increasing the
applicable factors, possibility of opting in also for
banks that had not initially adopted the transitional
measures. Given the specific business sector in
which it operates, the Bank will not need to use these
temporary arrangements;

= calendar provisioning: favourable treatment of
government guarantees and counter-guarantees, which
are treated similar to guarantees granted by an official
export credit agency (e.g. SACE) for the purposes of
Calendar Provisioning, and extension of this favourable
treatment to unsecured exposures to which a zero risk
weight would be associated under the standardised
approach;

= Leverage ratio: postponement of the date of application
of the leverage ratio capital buffer for G-SII banks to
1 January 2023, modification of the methods for
calculating the adjusted leverage ratio, introduction of
an ad hoc framework to exclude exposures to central
banks from the leverage ratio until 27 June 2021 and
finally, the possibility of temporarily considering the
benefit of netting between standardised cash flows,
pending settlement;

= early introduction of some CRR Il measures, i.e. the
possibility of not deducting software assets from CET1,
reduction of the weighting of salary- and pension-
backed loan (CQS/CQP) products from 75% to 35%,
changes to the scope and calculation of the SME
supporting factor and introduction of the infrastructure
supporting factor;

= other additional measures, such as the temporary
treatment of government debt issued in the currency
of another Member State, the temporary reduction
of Market Risk add-ons and the restoration of the
temporary treatment of unrealised gains and losses

measured at fair value through OCI.
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The Bank, in order to counter the effects of COVID-19 and
to comply with the regulations issued by the Government,
has adopted the measures described in the Memorandums
of Understanding on workplace safety detailed below
(“Shared Memorandum regulating measures to counter
and contain the spread of the Covid-19 virus in the
workplace”, signed on 14 March between the social
partners, and the “Shared Memorandum for measures to
prevent, counter and contain the spread of the Covid-19
virus in the banking sector” signed on 16 March 2020
between ABI and the trade unions of the sector, as
amended).
The Crisis Committee has met 9 times since 23 February
2020 to review the situation and the relevant legislation,
to apply precautionary and protective measures and to
ensure business continuity. Also, starting on 19 March,
special update meetings were held on an almost weekly
basis between the Chairperson of the Board of Directors,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Chairperson of the
Internal Control and Risk Management Committee, the
Chairperson of the Board of Statutory Auditors, the Head
of the Risk Department and the Head of ICT/Organisation.
With regard to labour law, the steps taken by the Bank
to comply with the measures issued by the government
and the indications from the various authorities are
summarised below:
= adequate and proportionate introduction of remote
working within the framework of a specific ad hoc
Regulation communicated to all employees pursuant
to the provisions on remote working (Law no. 81/2017)
set out in the Prime Minister's Decree of 4 March
2020, as amended;
= Facilitating the use of holidays (unused or not) and
leaves from the bank of hours as a support measure
for employees;
= |mplementation of the procedures for extraordinary
leave set out in the Prime Minister’s Decree of 4 March
2020 and those that followed;
= The procedures for taking paid leave once the unused
holidays and the 2020 holiday leave entitlement have
been taken have been defined.
In terms of safety, the Bank has implemented the

following:

* emergency sanitisation of all locations throughout the
country;

= scheduled maintenance to sanitise the air conditioning
systems and working environments throughout the
country has been increased from every six months to
every three months;

= supply of dispensers for hand sanitiser;

= supply of PPE for employees of the Banking,
ProntoPegno and Management branches and offices
(surgical masks, disposable gloves, sanitiser, protective
plexiglass partitions);

= renovation of offices to ensure a minimum distance of
1 metre;

= preparation of suitable communications on the use of
lifts, break areas and rules on hygiene;

= placement of waste bins specifically for the disposal of
masks and gloves;

= provision of digital body temperature sensors at the
entrance to the buildings;

= update of the Risk Assessment Document (DVR) -
Assessment of Biological Risk annex (Coronavirus
Emergency);

= an air ionisation system and an air purification system
for lifts have been installed at the Milan office;

= epidemiological tests for all employees, members
of the Board of Directors and the Board of Statutory
Auditors after the summer leave period and in any case
after being absent for more than a week;

= periodic epidemiological tests for shift employees;

= efforts to procure flu vaccines for employees;

= a safety package that requires both employees and
customers/suppliers with access to the Bank’s premises
for extended periods of time to install and activate the
Immuni app.

With regard to business continuity, the Bank’s Business

Continuity Plan was revised in mid-2019 and in November

2020. Since the start of the emergency and the period

during which the employees began working remotely, the

Bank and Divisions have been continuously implementing

communication initiatives with employees to ensure

continuity in the flow of information, the level of listening,

and the sharing of corporate objectives and strategies.

A special section of the Bank's website has been created to
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provide customers with operational guidelines and useful
information on the support measures made available by
the Government, as well as a special “Questions and
Answers” section. The telephone support service has also
been enhanced.

The impacts on the three lines of business in which the
Bank operates that can currently be estimated and the

actions taken are set out below:

Factoring

The Factoring Division closed 2020 with € 3.1 billion
in acquired receivables (+2% yoy): receivables acquired
from suppliers to the healthcare system and the football
sector grew sharply, while receivables from the public
administration remained relatively stable while tax
receivables decreased.

Given the ongoing emergency situation and its impact
on ltaly’s GDP and economic system, in 2020 Factoring
performed well, further demonstrating its resilience and
addressing the unexpected situation with remarkable
teamwork both internally and in terms of customer
relations, providing a specialised and timely service
throughout the country.

Factoring has proven to be the ideal tool both for small and
medium-sized enterprises to finance their working capital
and thus trade receivables, and for large companies, to

improve their net financial position and receive solid

support in servicing and collection activities.

Salary- and Pension-Backed Loans

The market for salary- and pension-backed loans ended
2020 at € 5.3 billion, down 8.7% over last year despite
a significant acceleration in November and December
(+19% vs 2019). The Bank reported higher total volumes
for the year which came in at € 934 million in terms
of outstanding capital at the end of the year (+14% vs
2019). This amount, which is roughly in line with the
previous quarter despite stable volumes compared to
that period, reflects the impact of increasing portfolio
attrition owing to the loan maturities and their exposure
to early repayment typical of the market, and the sale of a
loans and receivables portfolio to another intermediary in

December. The latter forms part of the Bank’s positioning

strategy which aims to represent all possible assets in
the salary- and pension-backed loan market as well as
managing an important tool for rebalancing the Division’s
portfolio and net profit. Covid has therefore not had a

negative impact on the CQ Division either.

Collateralised lending

With the Coronavirus pandemic, the search for alternative
channels to find liquidity has increased and an increasing
number of Italians have turned to collateralised lending.
ProntoPegno branches have seen their outstanding loans
grow by 32% and their customer base by 16% (to which
the contribution of the collateralised lending business unit
acquired from Intesa Sanpaolo should be added). With
the spread of the health emergency, ProntoPegno, with
the support of the Parent, established and implemented
measures in line with the provisions of the competent
authorities and focused on ensuring the utmost prudence
in safeguarding the health of everyone without ever
suspending its operations (branches have always remained
open to the public).

Against this backdrop, on 10 July 2020, the Company
completed the important acquisition of Intesa Sanpaolo’s
(or “ISP”) collateralised lending business unit. As at the
transaction date, the business unit reported the following:
= outstanding loans of € 53.2 million;

= 58 employees;

= 6 branches located throughout Italy.

The acquisition involved a reorganisation of the Company’s
structure, which will, among other things, be disclosed to
the Supervisory Authority in 2021.

The ISP business unit saw an increase in outstanding
loans to € 59 million, while the existing ProntoPegno
branches saw their outstanding loans increase from
€ 11.2 million at the end of 2019 to € 14.9 million (€ 74
million in total at 31 December 2020).

There were 26 auctions in 2020 (compared to 9 in the
previous year) with the value of the loans whose items
were auctioned amounting to € 1.4 million (+357% over
2019).

At their extraordinary meeting held on 23 April 2020,
the shareholders of Banca Sistema resolved on the

amendments to the Articles of Association proposed by
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the Board of Directors, namely:

- the amendment to article 5 of Banca Sistema’s Articles
of Association to introduce increased voting rights
pursuant to article 127-quinquies of the Consolidated
Law on Finance, which grants increased voting rights "up
to a maximum of two votes for each share held by the
same shareholder for a continuous period of no less than
twenty-four months from the date of entry” in a specific
list which must be held by the issuer;

- the amendment to articles 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14 (13 with
new numbering), 18 (17 with new numbering), and 20
(19 with new numbering) of the Articles of Association;
repeal of article 13 of the Articles of Association and
consequent new numbering of articles 14 to 24 of
the Articles of Association; introduction of new article
25 to the Articles of Association. These regulatory
interventions concern: (i) the elimination of clauses that
are attributable to the changed shareholding structure of
the Bank following its listing; (ii) the amendments to the
composition of the Board of Directors and to the slate
voting procedure governing the election of the members of
the Bank’s Board of Directors and the Board of Statutory
Auditors; (iii) the alignment to the new provisions
governing “gender balance”; (iv) the removal of clauses
that constitute a mere literal repetition of the Supervisory
Provisions for Banks; (v) the introduction of amendments
made purely for coordination purposes, to rectify errors
and/or incorrect references/cross-references and to
streamline the text; (vi) the introduction of a transitional
provision in the Articles of Association for the composition
of the Board of Directors.

As described previously, on 24 June 2020, the Banca
Sistema Group received authorisation from the Bank of
Italy to acquire the collateralised lending business unit of
the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

The acquisition was carried out by ProntoPegno, a
subsidiary 75% owned by Banca Sistema and 25% by
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Cuneo, Fondazione
Pisa and Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Alessandria
which acquired different amounts of the above-mentioned
share capital from the Parent, Banca Sistema, on 26 June
2020. The transaction generated a net profit for the Parent

of € 1.1 million at 30 June 2020. The aforementioned

foundations subsequently subscribed, together with
Banca Sistema, to the ProntoPegno capital increase on
a pro-rata basis, which was used to acquire the business
unit, for a total of € 34 million. The acquisition price,
initially amounting to € 34 million, was subject to an
adjustment in favour of the Bank of € 1 million to reflect
the difference in the business unit's imbalance between
the closing date, as verified by the Bank, and the signing
date of the transaction. The allocation as at 31 December
2020, made on the basis of the provisional consideration
paid in July, led to the recognition of goodwill of € 28.4
million.

On 22 June 2020, the European Parliament approved
the amendments to Regulation (EU) 876/2019 (“CRR
2") which include bringing forward the entry into force of
the provisions relating to the reduction of the risk capital
weighting for salary- and pension-backed loans (CQS and
CQP) from the current 75% to 35%.

The reduction in weighting, which enables the Group to
further strengthen its capital structure, came into effect
on 27 June 2020.

On 29 June 2020 Banca Sistema announced that the
shareholders Societa di Gestione delle Partecipazioni
in Banca Sistema S.r.l. (SGBS), Fondazione Cassa di
Risparmio di Alessandria and Fondazione Sicilia renewed
the Shareholders’ Agreement signed on 29 June 2018,
amended on 22 February 2019, and expiring on 1
July 2020. The Shareholders’ Agreement reflects a
shareholding of 38.41% in Banca Sistema’s share capital.
The new Shareholders’ Agreement came into effect on 2
July 2020 and expires on 1 July 2022. An abstract of the
new Shareholders’ Agreement, which was drafted pursuant
to article 129 of the Issuers’ Regulation, and essential
information pursuant to article 130 of the Issuers’
Regulation have been made available on the Parent’s
website www.bancasistema.it and on the website of the
storage mechanism authorised by Consob www.linfo.it.
A full version of the abovementioned agreement has also
been deposited at the Milan Companies’ Register.

At their extraordinary meeting held on 27 November
2020, the shareholders of Banca Sistema approved the
additional amendments to the Articles of Association

proposed by the Board of Directors, namely:
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— amendment to article 5.7, eliminating the part where
acquisition of the shareholder’s increased voting right is
subject to the issuance of a second communication, by
the intermediary with which the shares are deposited,
certifying the uninterrupted holding of the shares in
question for a period of 24 months;

— amendment to article 10.2, amending the part that
imposes quantitative and qualitative conditions with
regard to the composition of the lists of candidates for the
position of Director, with the introduction of the possibility,
in certain circumstances, of electing two directors instead
of one from the minority list;

— amendment to article 10.3, introducing an additional
method for resolving on the appointment of independent
Directors, should those already in place fail to provide the

number envisaged by the regulations;

— introduction of the new article 12.3 that indicates,
pursuant to article 150, paragraph 1, of the Consolidated
Law on Finance, the procedures whereby the Directors
and more particularly, the delegated bodies report to the
Board of Statutory Auditors on the activities carried out,
and the consequent changes to the numbering of current
articles 12.3 and 12.4 as 12.4 and 12.5.

On 29 December 2020, Banca Sistema subscribed to
50% of the capital of the Spanish company EBNSISTEMA
Finance S.L. for € 1 million, in a transaction to increase
the capital of the Spanish investee. The other shareholder,
holding an equal 50% stake, is the Spanish bank EBN
Banco de Negocios S.A. The aim of the joint venture is
to develop the Public Administration factoring business
on the Iberian peninsula, specialising in the purchase of

healthcare receivables.
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THE MACROECONOMIC SCENARIO

2020 was dominated by the Coronavirus outbreak, the
effects of which weighed on productive activity and
aggregate demand in all economies. After unexpectedly
recovering during the summer months, activity slowed
as the new wave of the pandemic hit, especially in
developed countries. In the third quarter, GDP was
still below previous levels in the US, Japan, and the
UK, while it exceeded pre-pandemic levels in China,
where growth strengthened. In December, the situation
worsened due to new infections. In the manufacturing
sector, purchasing managers’ indices remained above
the expansion threshold in the US, the Euro Area, and
the UK. The services sector was the most affected,
especially leisure services and tourism. The only country
seeing an expansion in all sectors is China, which has
seen a reduction in the number of infections since
last spring. Overall, global trade contracted by 9%.

With large-scale vaccination and continued support

for expansionary economic policies around the world,
global GDP is expected to increase by 4.2% in 2021
according to the Bank of Italy’s Bulletin no. 1/2021.

Economic activity in the Euro Area also weakened as
the pandemic unfolded and containment measures were
tightened. In the third quarter of 2020, GDP rose to
12.5% and grew in all major economies, but in no area
did it reach pre-pandemic levels. As services weakened
due to increasing numbers of infections, GDP fell again
in the fourth quarter. The €-coin indicator prepared
by the Bank of ltaly, which estimates the underlying
performance of the area’s GDP, increased, highlighting
the solidity in manufacturing activity and the positive
outlook for households and businesses. In December
2020, the Governing Council of the ECB met to adopt
new measures aimed at preserving favourable lending
conditions, supporting bank lending, and countering the

impact of the pandemic on the economy and inflation.

Global macroeconomic scenario (GDP % change)
(Source: OECD Economic Outlook, December 2020)

W 2019

W 2020

M 2021
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ITALY

In ltaly, growth in the summer months of 2020

was higher than expected, indicating considerable
resilience of the Italian economy. In the third quarter,
GDP increased by 15.9% (Source: Bank of ltaly’s
Economic Bulletin 1/2021), driven by an increase in
both domestic demand and exports, with the hotel and
restaurant sectors experiencing a partial recovery. At the
end of 2020, like in the rest of Europe, the increase in
the number of infections led to a decline in economic
activity, with GDP falling by 3.5% from the previous
quarter. Investment is expected to pick up because of
the stimulus packages introduced by the government
and a recovery in exports is also expected.

Household spending mirrored the trend in other
economies: after a sharp contraction in the first half of
the year, it began to rise in the third quarter by 12.4%,
especially in the durable goods market, with disposable
income also recovering by 6.6% over the previous quarter.

By contrast, the propensity to save fell significantly,

although it remained fairly high at 14.6%, due to both

precautionary economic factors and the decision not to
spend to avoid infection. Consumption weakened in the
last quarter of 2020.

Banks continued to meet the demand for funds from
businesses in 2020. Lending to the non-financial private
sector increased by 6.1%. Annualised Return on Equity
(ROE) declined by more than two-thirds due to the effect
of impairment losses on loans and receivables. The level
of capitalisation (ratio of the highest quality capital to
risk-weighted assets - common equity tier 1 ratio, CET1
ratio), increased to 15.1%, driven by the repositioning
of some banking books towards less risky assets and the
effect of government guarantees. Conditions in the Italian
financial market were buoyed by optimism triggered by the
effectiveness of vaccines and monetary and fiscal support.
As highlighted in the Bank of Italy’s Economic Bulletin
1/2021, the outlook for the Italian economy is closely
correlated to the development of the epidemic and the
measures adopted, both to contain the infections and to

mitigate the impact on the economy.
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FACTORING

The Italian factoring market

According to data released by Assifact, the Italian
association of factoring providers, in 2020, the factoring
market declined for the first time since 2009. The long
lockdown caused by the health emergency meant that
Italian businesses (especially small and medium-sized
ones which are the backbone of the country) experienced
a loss in turnover of over € 420 billion (source: CGIA -
[talian association of artisans and small-sized businesses
of Mestre), equal to 13.5% of total turnover recorded in
2019. The Bank of Italy estimated that GDP declined by
9.2% in 2020.

These trends inevitably led to a drop in turnover, which
fell to € 227.8 billion (-10.83%) from € 255 billion in
2019, a year that had seen growth of 6.44%. In the first
quarter of the year, before the start of the pandemic,
turnover was on a par with 2019. The downturn began
in April (coinciding with the closure of many businesses
due to lockdown rules) and continued in the following
months, albeit at lower levels. In the second quarter, the
reduction in turnover was rather significant (-24.5%),
while in the third and the fourth quarters (which closed
down by 13.53% and 4.34%, respectively) flows
gradually recovered.

Without recourse factoring is by far the most common
form of factoring used by the market, accounting for
over 79% of total turnover versus 21% for recourse
factoring transactions. In terms of amounts outstanding,
these percentages do not vary much (75% versus 25%),
thereby confirming that the assigning customers prefer
completing assignments by hedging the risk associated
with the assigned debtors.

The receivables turnover rate is lower than last year
because of an increase in average collection times,
attributable to the difficulties companies are experiencing
in dealing with the significant impact the Covid-19
pandemic is having on businesses. The outstanding
amounts (loans and receivables to be collected as at 31
December 2020) totalling € 62 billion were down 5.67%

compared to 2019. Advance payments/consideration

on assignments dropped by 7.69%. The proportion of
advances to outstanding receivables (80.93% compared
to 82.44% in 2019) allows banks/intermediaries to
maintain a conservative margin for any possible credit
dilution risks.

Unlike traditional bank loans, the sector has not been
able to benefit (if only marginally) from the extraordinary
measures taken by the government (mentioned elsewhere
in this report) to support businesses in this difficult
moment for the economy. Nevertheless, Factors have
continued to support businesses, taking on the relative
risks, without any state guarantees. The particular
attention paid to the management of purchased or
financed receivables and the constant monitoring of
collections have, in any case, made it possible to keep
risk at much lower levels than those of bank loans.

The sector’s low level of risk is also confirmed by the
figures provided by Assifact: at the end of December2020,
gross non-performing loans of financial intermediaries
amounted to 4.06% of outstanding receivables of
which 0.67% related to past due exposures, 1.60%
were unlikely to pay, and 1.79% were bad exposures,
percentages that are considerably lower than those
recorded in traditional bank lending.

Factoring represents an important instrument - especially
small and medium-sized enterprises - that provides
access to essential sources of financing necessary for
ensuring financial support for business continuity and
growth.

The range of services offered (credit management, risk
hedging and credit collection, just to name a few) and
the excellent level of expertise attained over the years by
factoring companies permit considerable simplification
of supply relationships between the participants in the
system despite the lack of structural changes in Italy.
Even large companies benefit considerably from
factoring services: through without recourse factoring
they are able to reduce working capital and improve their

net financial position. They can also optimise the supply
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chain relationship with the various suppliers through
Supply Chain Finance and reduce internal costs through
the use of advanced technological platforms that banks/
intermediaries can make available to them.

Through servicing, they also receive full support in
managing relations with debtors, including the Public
Administration, thanks to the specific expertise and
thorough monitoring the specialised operators can
provide.

SMEs represent 60% of assignor companies and, with
regard to economic sectors, 30% are manufacturers,
11% are commercial enterprises and 8% are construction
companies.

In the Italian market, one of the most developed not only
in Europe, but in the world, a significant share of turnover
is made up of factored receivables due from the Public
Administration with extremely long payment terms and
complex bureaucratic procedures for recognising and
reconciling the receivable.

According to data provided by Assifact, in 2020,
factors acquired over € 27 billion in receivables
from suppliers to the Public Administration, equal to
12.2% of total turnover. At 31 December 2020, € 9.2
billion of outstanding receivables are due from Public
Administration debtors, which represents 15% of all
outstanding receivables. A total of 32% of receivables
are due from entities of the National Health Service,
43% are due from the Central Authorities, and 22%
are due from Territorial Entities, with the remainder due
from other Public Sector Entities.

The efforts made by the Government in recent years

through the establishment of ad hoc funds aimed at

rectifying the payment of certain, liquid and collectable

debt, and the

transposition of the EU regulation on late payments

pre-existing Public Administration

which exacerbated the amount of default interest for
late payments beyond 60 days, have led to only a slight
reduction in payment times by the Public Administration.
In fact, on 28 January 2020, the European Court of
Justice delivered a judgement against Italy for violating
the directive. At the end of December 2020 about 36%
of the receivables due from the Public Administration
were past due more than 90 days (in 2019, the past due
amount was 32%), of which 82% past due more than
one year.

To support businesses hit hard by the pandemic and forced
to slow down or suspend operations, the Government
issued three separate decrees last year (“Cura ltalia”,
“Liquidity” and “Relaunch”) so that businesses could
benefit from moratoriums and government-backed
loans through the National Guarantee Fund and SACE.
Factoring, however, was excluded from the measures
and it was not until July when the “Relaunch” Decree
was converted into law that the SACE guarantee was
expanded to include factoring with recourse. The impact
of the measure on the sector was marginal both in terms
of the relative proportion of factoring with recourse
compared to total transactions (25%) and in terms of
the form and structure of the transactions (more similar
to instalment loans than to advances with repayments
linked to invoice collections).

In the 2021 Budget Law, the SACE guarantee was
eventually extended to include without recourse
factoring, with considerable benefit for the businesses
that will use it, although the measure is valid only until
30 June 2021.
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Banca Sistema and factoring activities
Total volumes at 31 December 2020 of the Banca Sistema Group were € 3,101 million, up 2% on 2019 despite

the difficult market conditions in Italy.

Factoring Volumes
(Data in € M)

3,055 3,101

2%
2.066 /__
% 48%
Sy

26

2018 2019 2020

I Trade receivables I Tax receivables

Total

Loans at 31 December 2020 amounted to € 1,717  collection activities (also due to the system’s adaptation
million, down 7% from € 1,839 million at 31 December  to the new operating conditions introduced by the
2019. This decrease was mainly due to higher government measures adopted to manage the Covid-19
collections in the last quarter, particularly in December,  pandemic) and the injection of liquidity from the State

deriving from a combination of two factors: more incisive  to local and regional entities to reduce debt positions.

Factoring Loans
(Data in € M)
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The chart below shows the ratio of debtors to the total =~ December 2020 and 2019. The Group’s core factoring

exposure in the loans and receivables portfolio at 31 business remains the Public Administration entities segment.

Dec 2019 Dec 2020

I Health system entities I Other public entities I Corporate customers/Public Sector Entities
Volumes were generated through both its own internal In December 2020, existing distribution agreements
commercial network and through banks with which  accounted for 26% of total volumes. The following table

the Group has entered into distribution agreements. shows the factoring volumes by product type:

PRODUCT
(amounts in millions 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
of Euro)
Trade receivables 2,760 2,516 243 10%
of which, without recourse 2,175 2,163 12 1%
of which, with recourse 584 353 231 65%
Tax receivables 342 539 (197) -37%
of which, without recourse 333 535 (202) -38%
of which, with recourse 9 4 5 >100%
TOTAL 3,101 3,055 46 2%

In absolute terms, the growth in volumes derives mainly  factoring volumes had grown by 9% yoy. Excluding only
from the purchase of trade receivables. tax receivables, volume growth was 10%.

Volumes in December 2020 were € 3,101 million, Volumes related to the management of third-party
an increase of 2% over December 2019. Excluding  portfolios amounted to € 438 million (in line with the

football and tax receivables, at December 2020 previous year).
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SALARY- AND PENSION-BACKED LOANS AND QUINTOPUOI

At 31 December 2020, the Group continues to operate
in the salary- and pension-backed loans segment mainly
through the purchase of receivables generated by other
specialist operators. Starting from the second quarter of
2019 following the acquisition of Atlantide, the Banca
Sistema Group has expanded its retail offering with
the direct origination of salary- and pension-backed
loans through a new product, QuintoPuoi. QuintoPuoi
is distributed through a network of 41 single-company

agents and 14 specialised brokers located throughout

Italy and is supported by a dedicated structure within the
Bank.

The volumes of acquired portfolios and directly originated
receivables from the beginning of the year until December
2020 amounted to € 308 million (€ 37 million of which
directly originated), including private-sector employees
(17%), pensioners (46%) and public-sector employees
(37%). Therefore, over 83% of the volumes refer to

pensioners and employees of Public Administration,

which remains the Bank’s main debtor.

31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
No. of applications (#) 15,727 14,087 1,640 12%
of which originated 1,723 1,047 676 65%
Volumes disbursed (millions of Euro) 308 266 43 16%
of which originated 37 22 15 71%

As shown in the table, the amount disbursed at December 2020 is up significantly compared to the amount disbursed

at December 2019.

CQ disbursed volumes - Breakdown

46%

Public-sector employees

Pensioners

37%
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The following chart shows the performance of outstanding loans in the salary-/pension-backed loans (CQS/CQP)

portfolio:
Salary-/pension-backed loans

(Data in € M)

14%
25%

2018 2019 2020
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COLLATERALISED LENDING AND PRONTOPEGNO

The Banca Sistema Group began working in the

collateralised lending business at the beginning of
2017, combining the credentials of a solid bank with the
advantages of a specialist that is continuously willing to
innovate and grow to offer greater value to customers, in
terms of professionalism and timeliness. To take advantage
of the growth prospects that have emerged since starting
this business, the Bank has decided to transfer its

collateralised lending business to a dedicated company.

As described above, ProntoPegno, in line with its growth

strategy within this business, acquired the collateralised
lending business unit of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group. The
assets of the business unit, which was transferred with
effect from 13 July 2020, consisted mainly of loans and
receivables amounting to € 55.3 million.

Following the acquisition, the Pawnbroker of the Banca
Sistema Group now has 12 branches located across the
country.

The following chart shows the performance of outstanding

loans:

Collateralised loans
(Data in € M)

6 12
>100%
==

2018 2019

As mentioned previously, the growth in volumes was
impacted in March by the Covid-19 crisis because of

the restrictions put in place that prevented people from

>100%

2020

going to the branches, whereas the significant increase
in the third quarter is attributed to the acquisition of the

collateralised lending business unit.
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The statement of financial position of the consolidated company ProntoPegno as at 31 December 2020 is provided

below.

ASSETS (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
Cash and cash equivalents 1,822 499 1,323 >100%
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 81,988 12,869 69,119 >100%

a) loans and receivables with banks 4,304 1,112 3,192 >100%

b1) loans and receivables with customers - loans 77,684 11,757 65,927 >100%
Property and equipment 2,869 489 2,380 >100%
Intangible assets 28,793 - 28,793 n.a.
of which: goodwill 28,436 - 28,436 n.a.
Tax assets 1,200 176 1,024 >100%
Other assets 97 36 61 >100%
Total assets 116,769 14,069 102,700 >100%

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 74,305 8,502 65,803 >100%
a) due to banks 70,394 8,243 62,151 >100%
b) due to customers 3,911 259 3,652 >100%
Tax liabilities 258 - 258 n.a.
Other liabilities 3,877 690 3,187 >100%
Post-employment benefits 1,054 95 959 >100%
Provisions for risks and charges 738 222 516 >100%
Valuation reserves (99) (12) (87) >100%
Reserves 15,410 - 15,410 n.a.
Share capital 23,162 5,000 18,162 >100%
Loss for the year (1,936) (428) (1,508) >100%
Total liabilities and equity 116,769 14,069 102,700 >100%

On 24 June 2020, ProntoPegno received authorisation
from the Bank of Italy to acquire the collateralised lending
business unit of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group. The acquisition
was completed on 10 July with effect from 13 July 2020,
consequently increasing assets with the entry of the
collateralised lending business unit.

To prepare for the transaction, in June, the Parent allowed new
institutional shareholders to join ProntoPegno by selling 25%
of the ordinary shares to Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di
Cuneo, Fondazione Pisa and Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio

di Alessandria, each of which acquired different amounts of

the above-mentioned share capital of ProntoPegno. Later in
June, in order to provide the Company with sufficient funds
to acquire the former Banca Intesa Sanpaolo collateralised
lending business unit, Banca Sistema, together with the
above-mentioned foundations, subscribed to the ProntoPegno
capital increase on a pro-rata basis for a total of € 34 million,
€ 18.2 million of which to share capital and € 15.8 million
to the share premium reserve.

The assets consist mainly of loans to customers for the
collateralised lending business and goodwill of € 28.4

million.
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Liabilities, on the other hand, in addition to the capital and
reserves, at 31 December 2020 consisted of the loan of
€ 48.7 million requested and granted by Intesa Sanpaolo
with the transfer of the collateralised lending business unit,
along with the loan of € 18.7 million from the Parent.

The other “financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost” include the auction buyer’s premium of € 3.9 million
of which € 2.6 million resulting from the acquisition of
the collateralised lending business unit. For 5 years, this

amount is recognised in the financial statements as due

to customers.

The provision for risks includes the estimated liability for
bonuses and non-compete agreements.

The income statement of the consolidated company
ProntoPegno as at 31 December 2020 is provided below.
In order to provide a better representation of the company’s
performance, an income statement has been prepared that
has been normalised for acquisition-related costs and non-
recurring items of € 1.6 million related to the acquisition of
the collateralised lending business unit. Since the company

commenced operations on 1 August 2019, the comparative

figures are not meaningful.

2020 PERIOD FROM

INCOME STATEMENT (€,000) NORMALISATION NORMALISED 01.08 TO

31.12.2019
Net interest income 2,836 333 3,169 301
Net fee and commission income 2,691 2,691 228
Total income 5,527 333 5,860 529
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables (1) (1) (2)
Net financial income 5,526 333 5,859 527
Personnel expense (3,779) 450 (3,329) (680)
Other administrative expenses (4,089) 1,561 (2,528) (468)
Net impairment losses on property and (574) (574) (44)
equipment/intangible assets
Other operating income 252 252 65
Operating costs (8,190) 2,011 (6,179) (1,127)
Pre-tax loss from continuing operations (2,664) 2,344 (320) (599)
Income taxes for the year 728 (641) 87 171
Loss for the year/period (1,936) 1,703 (233) (428)

The company closed the 2020 financial year with a
normalised loss for the year of € 233 thousand, reporting
a significant increase in total income as a result of the
contribution, starting from the second half of the year,
of the acquired collateralised lending business unit. With
the positive contribution of the acquired collateralised
lending business unit for an entire financial year and
without the initial charge represented by acquisition-
related costs, the company is expected to be profitable
from 2021 onwards. When excluding non-recurring costs,
the company already closed the fourth quarter with a pre-
tax profit of € 138 thousand.

Personnel expenses mostly include the cost of the 71

employees (of which 17 transferred from the Bank and 58

from the business unit), as well as the pro-rata allocation
of the estimated variable incentive for the year.

Other administrative expenses mainly consist of
advertising costs, rent of space paid to the Group and
costs for support activities carried out by the Parent.

The income statement was normalised by excluding the
lower interest recognised as a result of allocating part
of the acquisition price to the higher value of loans and
receivables, acquisition-related operating costs, which
comprise the registration tax of € 1 million paid for the
acquisition of the business unit and other non-recurring
costs incurred for IT and logistics integration and variable
remuneration related to the acquisition, for a total of

approximately € 2 million.
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FUNDING AND TREASURY ACTIVITIES

Treasury portfolio

A treasury portfolio has been established in order to
support the Bank’s liquidity commitments solely through
short-term investment in Italian government bonds.

The balance at 31 December 2020 was equal to a
nominal € 873 million compared to € 985 million at 31
December 2019.

The treasury portfolio allowed for optimal management

of the Treasury commitments which are increasingly

Wholesale funding

At 31 December, wholesale funding was about 41% of the
total, mainly comprising refinancing transactions with the
ECB, as well as bonds and interbank deposits (39% at 31
December 2019).

The € 175 million bond maturing in October was intentionally
not refinanced with a similar instrument, as it was deemed
less advantageous than other forms of funding. As a result,
the total amount of securities issued in December 2020 is
significantly lower than in the same period in 2019.
Securitisations with salary- and pension-backed loans as

collateral completed with a partly-paid securities structure

Retail funding

The funding policy of the banking division is strictly linked
to changes in trade loans and market conditions.

Retail funding accounts for 59% of the total and is
composed of the account SI Conto! Corrente and the
product SI Conto! Deposito.

Total term deposits as at 31 December 2020 amounted

to € 1,217 million, a decrease of 8% compared to 31

characterised by a concentration of transactions in very
specific periods, but not predictable.

At 31 December, the nominal amount of securities in the
HTCS (formerly AFS) portfolio amounted to € 423 million
(compared to € 550 million as at 31 December 2019) with
a duration of 14.8 months (20.1 months at 31 December
2019). At 31 December, the HTC portfolio amounted to
€ 450 million with a duration of 11.2 months.

continue to allow Banca Sistema to efficiently refinance its
CQS/CQP portfolio and to continue to grow its salary- and
pension-backed loan business, whose funding structure
is optimised by the securitisation. The Bank also adhered
to the ABACO procedure introduced by the Bank of Italy
which was expanded to include consumer credit during the
Covid-19 emergency.

For its short-term liquidity needs, the Group used the
interbank deposit market. Existing bank deposits at 31
December 2020 totalled € 125 million, an increase over the

€ 30 million reported a year earlier.

December 2019. The above-mentioned amount also
includes total term deposits of € 612 million (obtained with
the help of partner platforms) held with entities resident in
Germany, Austria and Spain (accounting for 50% of total
deposit funding), a decrease of € 186 million over the same
period of the previous year as a result of the policy to reduce

interest rates being implemented by the Bank.
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The breakdown of funding by term is shown below. The average residual life of the portfolio is 11 months.

Breakdown of deposit accounts as at 31 December

120 months

2%
60 1rnlr;o,zths " less than 12 months

%

42 - 54 months
O,

'o
36 months
5%

18 - 30 months

21% 12 months

53%

Current accounts increased from 6,902 (as at 31  while the current account balance at 31 December 2020
December 2019) to 7,342 as at 31 December 2020, decreased by 7% on 2019 to € 634 million.
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COMPOSITION AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

Scope of the banking group

At 31 December 2020, the Banca Sistema Group comprised the Parent, Banca Sistema S.p.A., the subsidiaries

ProntoPegno S.p.A., Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.l., and Specialty Finance Trust Holdings Limited, a company

incorporated under UK Law, and the Spanish joint venture EBNSistema Finance S.I.

The scope of consolidation also includes the following special purpose securitisation vehicles whose receivables are
not subject to derecognition: Quinto Sistema Sec. 2019 S.r.l., Quinto Sistema Sec. 2017 S.r.I. and BS IVA SPV S.r.1.

Organisational chart

The organisational structure has undergone significant
changes, moving from a functional organisational model
to a divisional organisational model. During the second
half of the year, this organisational structure was refined
and consolidated, allowing for continuity of operations and
results even during the months in which the Bank was
operating remotely.

This reorganisation is the result of a comprehensive project,
carried out with the support of qualified external consultants,
intended to update and focus the Group’s organisational
structure, responsibilities and mandates, human capital
and information system on the increasing diversification and
specialisation of its business.

As of 1 February 2020, two business divisions, one of which

is responsible for supervising and developing the Factoring

business and the other for developing salary- and pension-
backed

loans (CQ), became operational and separate

Compliance and
Anti-Money Laundering

Institutional Relations

Corporate Strategy

Legal Affairs

Board of Directors

CEO/General Manager 5,

Factoring Division

from the other “central” departments (besides the control
departments of Internal Audit, Risks, and Compliance
& AML, also Finance, Banking Services, Legal Affairs,
Corporate Strategy, Chief of Staff, Institutional Relations,
Human Capital, which together form the “Corporate Centre”).
Each of these two Divisions is equipped with structures in
charge of managing commercial, credit and operational
activities, as well as a direct staff responsible for managing
the main business processes (planning and monitoring,
pricing, operational marketing, human resource management
and recruiting). By operating within the guidelines, processes
and tools developed by the “Corporate Centre” departments,
the Business Divisions were able to concentrate, with
even greater speed and focus, on growing their respective
customer segments and innovating products and processes.
The organisational chart in force since 1 February 2020 is

as follows:

Internal Audit

Chief of Staff

_______ Administrative
reporting

Human Capital

Banking Services

Prontopegno SPA
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a staff of 269, broken down by category as follows:

FTES 31.12.2020 30.06.2020 31.12.2019
Senior managers 27 26 24
Middle managers (QD3 and QD4) 52 50 45
Other personnel 190 140 146
Total 269 216 215

Over the course of the year the Bank realigned the
organisational structure based on market changes and
performance in order to support the achievement of
its strategic objectives, as more fully detailed below.
In summary, the Bank, in keeping with the operational
objectives set out in the 2018 - 2020 business plan, has
implemented a new organisational model focused on the
Factoring, CQ and Collateralised Lending businesses.
Each of these businesses, consisting of a divisional
structure and point of convergence for their respective
operating margins, is divided into Operations, Credit
and Commercial departments, and has specific Planning
& Monitoring, Pricing, Operational Marketing, and HR
Management, Recruiting and Training functions. The
objective is to enable those responsible for managing
the businesses to achieve results, streamline and speed
up decision-making processes and bring the entire
organisational structure closer to customers.

In July, the Bank, as part of its strategy of increasing
business specialisation, completed the acquisition and
merger of the collateralised lending business unit of the
Intesa Sanpaolo Group. This merger resulted in 58 new
operating employees in Turin, Parma, Mestre, Florence,
Civitavecchia and Naples, thus increasing the Group’s
geographical presence in ltaly.

During the year, a total of eleven new resources were
recruited in the Chief of Staff, ICT, Corporate Strategy,
CQ Commercial, Human Capital, and Credit departments
and in the Collateralised lending branches.

Starting from the end of February, the Group, in

response to the health emergency, promptly adapted
its operational model to ensure business continuity by
allowing employees to work remotely. Excluded from this
new operational model were employees of the Banking
and Collateralised lending branches and those working in
the departments having the greatest impact on managing
the emergency, namely ICT and Logistics. Along with all
safety and precautionary measures, all activities were
reorganised and managed remotely with a total of over
77% of workdays performed outside the Bank’s premises.
Even during the second half of the year, depending on
the evolution of the health emergency and the resulting
measures to counter the spread of the virus, including by
restricting movement, operations continued to be carried
out remotely for an average of around 75% of workdays.
Several internal communication initiatives were carried
out on the health emergency and its management by the
Group’s Crisis Committee, and on business performance
and strategies between management and all employees.
In addition, frequent exchanges between teams and
between employees have been encouraged and the
right to disconnect has been guaranteed based on the
hours the central access tools are available. In April,
a workplace climate survey was conducted specifically
to verify the overall effectiveness of the actions taken.
Survey participation was high, and the results revealed
a high degree of satisfaction with the initiatives in place
and with the feeling of safety and closeness ensured by
the Group. During the emergency, an agreement was

signed to guarantee qualified and immediate health
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and medical advice remotely through digital channels to
employees and their families, even for matters unrelated
to the coronavirus.

Starting in July with the acquisition of the collateralised
lending business unit by the ProntoPegno S.p.A. subsidiary,
communication and onboarding activities were defined and
implemented for the 58 newly hired employees. During the
last quarter of the year, additional steps to integrate the
welfare systems of the new staff were defined.

During the first half of the year, various professional
training courses were organised covering regulatory
topics affecting the Bank, both with internal and external
instructors. Some of these courses were rescheduled
for the second half of the year because of the health
emergency. Specific training courses and coaching
programmes were also developed and launched focusing
on managerial and professional topics mainly for the

Commercial Department and new managers. With the

implementation of the new divisional structure and
the ensuing appointments of the top-level managers
of the new structures, targeted coaching programmes
were developed and implemented to accelerate the
onboarding of the new heads of division. During 2020,
there was a shift from in-person classroom training in the
early months of the year to distance learning as a way of
continuing training programmes despite the continuing
pandemic and the associated restrictions on movements
and social contact. In the second half of the year,
individual coaching, training on the regulatory and legal
framework, as well as technical and language training
for all Group staff also continued. In 2020, 325 training
days were provided to Group employees, an increase of
about 4.5% over 2019.

The average age of Group employees is 47 for men and
44 for women. The breakdown by gender is essentially

balanced with men accounting for 56% of the total.
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INCOME STATEMENT RESULTS

INCOME STATEMENT (€,000) 2019 € Change % Change
Net interest income 74,271 80,694 (6,423) -8.0%
Net fee and commission income 17,428 16,068 1,360 8.5%
Dividends and similar income 227 227 - 0.0%
Net trading income 37 208 (171) -82.2%
Gain from sales or repurchases of financial assets/liabilities 9,531 3,716 5,815 >100%
Total income 101,494 100,913 581 0.6%
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables (11,000) (9,055) (1,945) 21.5%
Net financial income 90,494 91,858 (1,364) -1.5%
Personnel expense (25,532) (23,166) (2,366) 10.2%
Other administrative expenses (25,534) (22,939) (2,595) 11.3%
Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges (2,520) (1,996) (524) 26.3%
Net impairment losses on property and equipment/intangible assets (1,956) (1,632) (324) 19.9%
Other operating income (expense) 260 (768) 1,028 <100%
Operating costs (55,282) (50,501) (4,781) 9.5%
Gains (losses) on sales of investments 1,090 (8) 1,098 <100%
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations 36,302 41,349 (5,047) -12.2%
Income taxes for the year (11,009) (12,192) 1,183 -9.7%
Post-tax profit for the year 25,293 29,157 (3,864) -13.3%
Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - 562 (562) -100.0%
Profit for the year 25,293 29,719 (4,426) -14.9%
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 484 - 484 n.a.
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the parent 25,777 29,719 (3,942) -13.3%

Profit for 2020 amounted to € 25.8 million, down on the
previous year mainly due to higher costs in connection
with the acquisition of the collateralised lending business
unit, which were not offset by an equal increase in net
interest income as a result of the lower contribution from
the loans and receivables factoring portfolio.

In the third quarter of 2020, the expected rates of recovery
of default interest on factoring and the related collection
times used for the estimate as at 30 September 2020
were updated in the light of the progressive consolidation
of the historical data series; the adjustment of these
estimates led to the recognition of higher total interest
income of € 1.0 million. The results for the same period

in the previous year also benefited from the change in

the estimate for the probability of collection of default
interest which led to the recognition of higher interest
income of € 5.1 million.

Unlike the 2020 financial year, the figures for 2019 did not
include the full year’s operating costs of Atlantide, which
entered the scope of consolidation in the second quarter
of 2019 following the acquisition of the company which
was completed on 3 April 2019. Furthermore, to correctly
interpret the operating costs, one must bear in mind that the
amount due to the Resolution Fund is € 0.9 million higher
than the first half of 2019 (the unexpected increase in the
contribution was 75%) and that non-recurring operating
costs of € 2.1 million were incurred during the second half

attributable to the collateralised lending business unit.
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NET INTEREST INCOME (€,000) € Change % Change
Interest and similar income
Loans and receivables portfolios 90,674 105,005 (14,331) -13.6%
Factoring 64,528 81,335 (16,807) -20.7%
cQ 22,415 23,006 (591) -2.6%
Collateralised lending (interest income) 3,054 664 2,390 >100%
Government-backed loans to SMEs 677 - 677 n.a.
Securities portfolio 1,867 750 1,117 >100%
Other 1,304 1,899 (595) -30.9%
Financial liabilities 4,223 2,682 1,541 57.5%
Total interest income 98,068 110,336 (12,268) -11.1%
Interest and similar expense
Due to banks (5629) (576) 47 -8.2%
Due to customers (15,434) (21,010) 5,576 -26.5%
Securities issued (7,646) (7,930) 284 -3.6%
Financial assets (188) (126) (62) 48.0%
Total interest expense (23,797) (29,642) 5,845 -19.7%
Net interest income 74,271 80,694 (6,410) -7.9%

Net interest income decreased compared to the previous
year. This was due to the lower contribution of the Factoring
Division as a result of the reduction in default interest from
both legal and out-of-court actions, and tax receivables. On
the other hand, the current funding policies had a positive
impact on net interest income.
The total contribution of the Factoring Division to interest
income was € 65.2 million, equal to 71% of the entire
loans and receivables portfolio (compared to 77% at 31
December 2019), to which the commission component
associated with the factoring business and the revenue
generated by the assignment of receivables from the
factoring portfolio need to be added. The component linked
to default interest from legal action at 31 December 2020
was € 21.6 million (€ 29 million at 31 December 2019):
= of which € 1 million resulting from the updated recovery
estimates and expected collection times (€ 5.1 million
in 2019);
= of which € 9.0 million resulting from the current
recovery estimates (€ 12.0 million in 2019);
= of which € 11.6 million (€ 11.9 million in 2019)

coming from net collections during the year, i.e. the

difference between the amount collected during the
period, equal to € 21.5 million (€ 21.6 million in 2019)
and that recognised on an accruals basis in previous
years. This item includes gross collections of € 6.5
million from transfers to third parties (equal to € 7.0
million in 2019).
The decrease in the effect resulting from the updated
recovery estimates is a consequence of the fact that the
historical series over the last few years have settled nearer
to the average collection percentages and have stabilised in
terms of the number of positions. As a result, the expected
recovery percentage calculated by the statistical model is
now quite stable and does not fluctuate significantly.
The amount of the stock of default interest from legal
actions accrued at 31 December 2020, relevant for the
allocation model, was € 98 million (€ 107 million at
the end of 2019), which would become € 155 million
including troubled local authorities, a component for
which default interest is not allocated in the financial
statements, whereas the loans and receivables recognised
in the financial statements amount to € 50.1 million. The

amount of default interest accrued but not recognised in
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the income statement is € 105 million.

During the year, factoring portfolios were sold that
generated a total net profit of € 2.4 million recognised in
the item Gain from sales or repurchases of financial assets/
liabilities.

The positive impact on income was also driven by growth
in interest on the salary- and pension-backed portfolios
which is down slightly on the previous year at € 16.9
million as a result of the early redemption of several
positions.

The contribution of the Collateralised Lending Division
grew significantly to € 3.1 million, compared to € 0.7
million in the previous year. The increase is mostly due

to the recent acquisition of the collateralised lending

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

business unit starting from 13 July 2020.

The item “financial liabilities” mainly includes income
arising from the financing activity of the securities
portfolio in repurchase agreements and ECB loans at
negative rates, which account for € 4.2 million.

Despite the increase in average lending, interest expense
decreased compared to the previous year thanks to the
funding strategies put in place which aimed to carefully
contain the cost of funding. In particular, interest on term
deposits from customers decreased as a result of the
reduction in the interest rate applied to deposit accounts.
This has led to a decrease in funding from this channel,

while the various forms of funding from the ECB, at

negative rates, have increased significantly.

€ Change % Change
(€,000)

Fee and commission income

Factoring activities 17,726 18,420 (694) -3.8%
Fee and commission income - off-premises CQ 2,388 1,859 529 28.5%
Collateralised loans (fee and commission income) 2,721 456 2,265 >100%
Collection activities 1,138 1,247 (109) -8.7%
Other 355 508 (153) -30.1%
Total fee and commission income 24,328 22,490 1,838 8.2%
Fee and commission expense

Factoring portfolio placement (1,279) (1,204) (75) 6.2%
Placement of other financial products (1,767) (2,721) 954 -35.1%
Fees - off-premises CQ (3,013) (1,936) (1,077) 55.6%
Other (841) (561) (280) 49.9%
Total fee and commission expense (6,900) (6,422) (478) 7.4%
Net fee and commission income 17,428 16,068 1,360 8.5%

Net fee and commission income of € 17.5 million increased
by 8.5% thanks to the contribution of commissions from
the Collateralised Lending Division.

Fee and commission income from factoring should be
considered together with interest income, since it makes
no difference from a management point of view whether
profit is recognised in the commissions and fees item or in
interest in the without recourse factoring business.

Fee and commission income from the collateral-backed

loans business grew by € 2.3 million compared to the

previous year thanks to the acquisition of the business unit
in the third quarter.

Commissions on collection activities, related to the service
of reconciliation of third-party invoices collected from
Public Administration are down slightly on the previous
year.

Other fee and commission income includes commissions
and fees from collection and payment services, and the
keeping and management of current accounts.

Fee and commission income - off-premises CQ refers to
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the commissions on the salary- and pension-backed loan
(CQ) origination business of € 2.4 million, which should be
considered together with the item Fees - off-premises CQ,
amounting to € 3.0 million, which are composed of the
commissions paid to financial advisers for the off-premises
placement of the salary- and pension-backed loan product,
including the estimated year-end bonuses payable to them.
Fees and commissions for the placement of financial

products paid to third parties are attributable to returns

GAIN FROM SALES OR REPURCHASES

to third party intermediaries for the placement of the SlI
Conto! Deposito product under the passporting regime,
whereas the fee and commission expense of placing the
factoring portfolios are linked to the origination costs of
factoring receivables, which remained in line with those
reported the previous year.

Other fee and commission expense includes commissions

interbank

for trading third-party securities and for

collections and payment services.

2020 € Change % Change
(€,000)
Gains from HTCS portfolio debt instruments 5,301 2,610 2,691 >100%
Gains from HTC portfolio debt instruments 340 - 340 n.a.
Gains from financial liabilities 16 - 16 n.a.
Gains from receivables (Factoring portfolio) 2,425 1,106 1,319 >100%
Gains from receivables (CQ portfolio) 1,449 - 1,449 n.a.
Total 9,531 3,716 5,815 >100%
The item Gain (loss) from sales or repurchases includes  Impairment losses on loans and receivables at 31

gains generated by the proprietary HTCS and HTC securities
portfolio of € 5.6 million, and net realised gains from
factoring receivables of € 2.4 million, the revenue from
which derives mainly from the sale of factoring portfolios
to private-sector assignors. During the second half of the
year, loans and receivables from the internally originated

CQ portfolio were sold, generating a gain of € 1.4 million.

December 2020 amounted to € 11 million and include
a model update of the collective provision due to the
deterioration of the macroeconomic scenario caused by the
ongoing health emergency. Impairment losses are mainly

attributable to exposures to businesses and some factoring

loans. The loss rate increased from 0.36% at 31 December
2019 10 0.42%.

PERSONNEL EXPENSE (€,000) € Change % Change
Wages and salaries (23,889) (21,682) (2,209) 10.2%
Social security contributions and other costs (394) (339) (55) 16.2%
Directors' and statutory auditors' remuneration  (1,249) (1,145) (104) 9.1%
Total (25,532) (23,166) (2,368) 10.2%

The increase in personnel expense is mainly due to the
increase in the average number of employees from 202
to 241. Contributing to this increase was the addition

of 58 employees from the business unit incorporated

into ProntoPegno who joined the company’s personnel
in the second half of the year.

The item includes redundancy charges of € 0.5 million
(€ 0.6 million at 31 December 2019).
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OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

€ Change % Change
(€,000)
Consultancy (4,872) (4,200) (672) 16.0%
IT expenses (5,382) (5,765) 383 -6.6%
Servicing and collection activities (2,951) (2,992) 41 -1.4%
Indirect taxes and duties (2,174) (2,355) 181 -7.7%
Insurance (707) (487) (220) 45.2%
Other (576) (463) (113) 24.4%
Expenses related to management of the SPVs (669) (530) (139) 26.2%
Car hire and related fees (633) (651) 18 -2.8%
Advertising (594) (586) (8) 1.4%
Rent and related fees (948) (627) (321) 51.2%
Expense reimbursement and entertainment (387) (838) 451 -53.8%
Infoprovider expenses (514) (638) 124 -19.4%
Membership fees (299) (310) 11 -3.5%
Property management expenses (453) (343) (110) 32.1%
Audit fees (294) (368) 74 -20.1%
Telephone and postage expenses (158) (139) (19) 13.7%
Logistics expenses (143) (75) (68) 90.7%
Stationery and printing (74) (61) (13) 21.3%
Total operating expenses (21,828) (21,428) (400) 1.9%
Resolution Fund (2,007) (1,146) (861) 75.1%
Merger-related costs (1,699) (365) (1,334) 365.5%
Total (25,534) (22,939) (2,595) 11.3%

Administrative expenses increased mainly due to the
contribution to the Resolution Fund which accounts
for € 0.9 million of the increase in costs and the non-
recurring acquisition-related costs from the acquisition
of the business unit. These costs primarily comprise the
registration tax of € 1 million, and IT and logistics costs.
Excluding these items, costs increased by 5.6% over the
previous year. Excluding these items, the increase in other
administrative expenses is immaterial.

The increase in consulting expenses is mainly due to
the costs incurred for legal expenses related to pending
lawsuits and enforceable injunctions for the recovery of
receivables and default interest from debtors of the Public
Administration.

The 2020 merger-related costs refer to costs incurred
in connection with the acquisition of the collateralised

lending business unit completed in July. The 2019

merger-related costs include the costs for the integration
and merger of Atlantide into the Bank.

The impairment losses on property and equipment/
intangible assets are the result of higher provisions
for property used for business purposes, as well as the
depreciation of the “right-of-use” asset following the
application of IFRS 16.

The item accruals to provisions for risks is mainly
attributable to the measurement and review of contingent
liabilities for ongoing lawsuits, and the assessment and
quantification of possible future risks.

The item Gains (losses) on sales of investments includes
the € 1.1 million gain on the sale of 25% of the share
capital of the ProntoPegno subsidiary by the Parent to its
current minority shareholders.

The Group’s tax rate improved as it benefited from the

reintroduction by the legislator of “ACE” (Aid to Economic
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Growth), which is aimed at strengthening the capital
structure of companies, a measure that was introduced in
2011, abolished by the previous 2019 Budget Law and
then reintroduced with the 2020 Budget Law. The gain on

the sale of 25% of the equity investment in ProntoPegno
held by the Parent benefits from the participation
exemption (PEX), which means that 95% of it is exempt

from taxation.

THE MAIN STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AGGREGATES

The comments on the main aggregates on the asset side of the statement of financial position are shown below.

ASSETS (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
Cash and cash equivalents 1,930 652 1,278 >100%
Financial assets measured at fair value 430,966 556,383 (125,417) -22.5%
through other comprehensive income
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,142,791 3,112,387 30,404 1.0%
a) loans and receivables with banks 92,481 81,510 10,971 13.5%
b1) loans and receivables with customers - loans 2,602,446 2,595,700 6,746 0.3%
b2) loans and receivables with customers 447,864 435,177 12,687 2.9%
- debt instruments
Equity investments 1,000 - 1,000 n.a.
Property and equipment 32,607 29,002 3,605 12.4%
Intangible assets 32,725 3,921 28,804 >100%
Tax assets 10,313 8,476 1,837 21.7%
Other assets 19,039 19,260 (221) -1.1%
Total assets 3,671,371 3,730,081 (58,710) -1.6%

The year ended 31 December 2020 closed with total
assets down by 1.6% on the end of 2019 and equal to
€ 3.7 billion.

The securities portfolio relating to Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“HTCS” or “Held to collect and Sell”) of the
Group was down slightly compared to 31 December
2019 and continues to be mainly comprised of Italian
government bonds with an average duration of about
14.8 months (the average remaining duration at the

end of 2019 was 20.1 months). This is consistent

with the Group investment policy. The HTCS portfolio
amounted to € 425 million at 31 December 2020 (€
550 million at 31 December 2019). The associated
valuation reserve was positive at the end of the year,
amounting to € 2.6 million before the tax effect. In
addition to government securities, the HTCS portfolio
also includes 200 shares of the Bank of Italy, amounting
to € 5 million, and the Axactor Norway shares, which
at 31 December 2020 had a negative fair value reserve
of € 0.5 million, resulting in a year-end amount of
€ 0.6 million.
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LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH

31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change

CUSTOMERS (€,000)

Factoring 1,474,532 1,714,661 (240,129) -14.0%
Salary-/pension-backed loans (CQS/CQP) 933,873 817,229 116,644 14.3%
Collateralised loans 77,694 11,757 65,937 >100%
Loans to SMEs 74,399 11,998 62,401 >100%
Current accounts 16,855 18,213 (1,358) -7.5%
Compensation and Guarantee Fund 12,639 20,676 (8,037) -38.9%
Other loans and receivables 12,454 1,166 11,288 >100%
Total loans 2,602,446 2,595,700 6,746 0.3%
Securities 447,864 435,177 12,687 2.9%
Total loans and receivables with customers 3,050,310 3,030,877 19,433 0.6%

The item loans and receivables with customers
under Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(hereinafter HTC, or “Held to Collect”), is composed
of loan receivables with customers and the “held-to-
maturity securities” portfolio.

Outstanding loans for factoring receivables compared
to Total loans, therefore excluding the amounts of
the securities portfolio, were 57% (66% at the end
of 2019). The volumes generated during the year
amounted to € 3,101 million (€ 3,055 million at 31
December 2019).

Salary- and pension-backed loans grew thanks to
new loans from acquired portfolios and originated
receivables, which increased by 14% compared to

the previous year (the new volumes acquired in 2020

amounted to € 308 million), while government-backed
loans to SMEs increased following new disbursements
made under SACE and SME Fund guarantees.

The collateralised loan business, carried out through
the ProntoPegno subsidiary, grew significantly to € 78
million at 31 December 2020, which are the result
of loans granted during the first half of the year and
renewals with existing customers despite the limitations
caused by the lockdown, but especially of the acquisition
of the Collateralised Lending Business Unit.
HTC Securities are composed entirely of Italian
government securities with an average duration of 11.2
months for an amount of € 447 million. The mark-
to-market valuation of the securities at 31 December

2020 was a positive fair value of € 4.9 million.
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The following table shows the quality of receivables in the loans and receivables with customers item, excluding the

securities positions.

STATUS (€,000) 31.12.2019 31.03.2020 30.06.2020 | 30.09.2020 31.12.2020
Bad exposures 50,622 48,564 48,714 49,759 52,354
Unlikely to pay 139,349 141,127 140,422 144,848 148,433
Past due 55,647 68,747 84,134 60,966 50,377
Non-performing 245,618 258,438 273,270 255,573 251,164
Performing 2,392,985 | 2,352,389 | 2,380,051 2,477,606 | 2,404,623

Stage 2 124,252 155,374 165,148 169,719 134,194

Stage 1 2,268,733 | 2,197,015 | 2,214,903 2,307,887 | 2,270,429
Total loans and receivables with customers 2,638,603 2,610,827 | 2,653,321 2,733,179 | 2,655,787
Individual impairment losses 37,217 38,194 38,495 39,997 46,027
Bad exposures 20,078 19,819 19,920 21,212 25,240
Unlikely to pay 16,042 17,106 17,707 18,265 20,352
Past due 1,097 1,269 868 520 435
Collective impairment losses 5,686 6,335 8,284 9,781 7,315

Stage 2 667 865 943 982 781

Stage 1 5,019 5,470 7,341 8,799 6,534
Total impairment losses 42,903 44,529 46,779 49,778 53,342
Net exposure 2,595,700 | 2,566,298 | 2,606,542 2,683,401 | 2,602,445

The ratio of gross non-performing loans to the total
portfolio increased slightly to 9.5% from 9.3% at 31
December 2019. Non-performing loans increased
slightly compared to 31 December 2019. The amount of
past due loans and local authorities in financial difficulty
is attributed to factoring receivables without recourse
from Public Administration and is considered normal for
the sector and does not represent an issue in terms of
credit quality and probability of collection.

Net bad exposures remained at moderate levels and
amounted to 1.0% of total loans and receivables with
customers, while the coverage ratio of non-performing
loans was equal to 18.3%.

Property and equipment includes the property located in
Milan which is also being used as Banca Sistema's new
offices. Its carrying amount, including capitalised items,
is € 27.5 million after the accumulated depreciation

of the building. It should be noted that at the end

of the year the property was appraised and revalued

by € 1.3 million. As a result of the revaluation of the

property, undistributable equity reserves increased, net

of the substitute tax. The other capitalised costs include

furniture, fittings and IT devices and equipment, as well

as the right of use relating to the lease payments for

branches and company cars.

Intangible assets refer to goodwill of € 33.4 million,

broken down as follows:

= the goodwill originating from the merger of the former
subsidiary Solvi S.r.l. which took place in 2013
amounting to € 1.8 million;

= the goodwill generated by the acquisition of Atlantide
S.p.A. on 3 April 2019 amounting to € 2.1 million;

= the goodwill amounting to € 28.4 million arising
from the acquisition of the former Intesa Sanpaolo
collateralised lending business unit completed on 13
July 2020.
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The allocation of the purchase price for the former Intesa Sanpaolo collateralised lending business unit is provided

below:

PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION
In thousands of Euro

Purchase price 34,000
Price adjustment (991)
Final price (A) 33,009
Adjusted Business Unit “Equity” (B) 3,209
Residual value to be allocated (A+B) 29,800
Loans and receivables with customers (1,224)
Post-employment benefits (166)
Property and equipment 25
Allocation to goodwill 28,435

Thefinal price amounted to€ 33 million following the change
in the business unit’s imbalance (excess value) between the
closing date and the signing date of the transaction, and
an adjustment recognised by the counterparty in relation
to the valuation of the loans and receivables. As required
by IFRS 3, this excess value was allocated to the financial
statements items that had a difference in fair value with
respect to their carrying amount and, in particular, to the
item “Loans and receivables with customers”, leaving the
unallocated balance under goodwill, which is subject to an
annual impairment test.

At the end of 2020, Banca Sistema entered into an equal

partnership with EBN Banco de Negocios S.A., taking a
stake in the capital of EBNSISTEMA Finance S.L., and
thereby entering the Spanish factoring market. Banca
Sistema acquired an equity investment in EBNSISTEMA
through a capital increase of € 1 million which gave
Banca Sistema a 50% stake in the Madrid-based
company. The aim of the joint venture is to develop the
Public Administration factoring business on the Iberian
peninsula, specialising in the purchase of healthcare
receivables.

Other assets mainly include amounts being processed

after the end of the year and advance tax payments.
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Comments on the main aggregates on the liability side of the statement of financial position are shown below.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
Financial liabilities measured at 3,282,230 3,416,486 (134,256) -3.9%
amortised cost

a) due to banks 869,648 388,359 481,289 >100%

b) due to customers 2,164,244 2,551,600 (387,356) -15.2%

c) securities issued 248,338 476,527 (228,189) -47.9%
Tax liabilities 16,903 16,433 470 2.9%
Other liabilities 136,894 94,662 42,232 44.6%
Post-employment benefits 4,428 3,051 1,377 45.1%
Provisions for risks and charges 23,430 22,297 1,133 5.1%
Valuation reserves 1,287 267 1,020 >100%
Reserves 161,708 137,717 23,991 17.4%
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 9,297 32 9,265 >100%
Share capital 9,661 9,651 - 0.0%
Treasury shares (-) (234) (234) - 0.0%
Profit for the year 25,777 29,719 (3,942) -13.3%
Total liabilities and equity 3,671,371 3,730,113 (58,742) -1.6%

Wholesale funding, which represents about 41% of
the total (39% at 31 December 2019), increased
in both relative and absolute terms from the end

of 2019 following the increase in funding from the

ECB and the decrease in funding through deposit

accounts. The contribution of bond funding to total
wholesale funding was 23% (56% at the end of
2019).

DUE TO BANKS (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
Due to Central banks 689,686 358,250 331,436 92.50%
Due to banks 179,962 30,109 149,853 >100%
Current accounts and demand deposits 127,088 20 127,068 >100%
Term deposits with banks - 30,089 30,089 -100,00%
Financing from banks 48,737 - 48,737 n.a.
Other amounts due to banks 4,137 - 4,137 n.a.
Total 869,648 388,359 481,289 >100%
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The item “Due to banks” increased compared to 31
December 2019 due to the increase in interbank funding
and especially refinancing with the ECB backed by ABS
from the salary- and pension-backed loans (CQS/CQP)
securitisation, government bonds, CQS/CQP receivables
and some factoring receivables. As a result of the decisions
taken by the ECB in response to the effects of the COVID-19

pandemic, the amount available to the Bank under TLTRO

Il (starting in June 2020) increased to a maximum of
€ 491 million from the previous amount of € 295 million.
From March to June, the Bank could benefit from the LTRO
bridge loan for a total amount of 650 million at an average
rate of -0.50% that was repaid on 24 June 2020. From
May, the Bank could also benefit from PELTROs, Pandemic

Emergency Longer-Term Refinancing Operations (200
million as at 31 December 2020) at a fixed rate of -0.25%.

DUE TO CUSTOMERS (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change

Term deposits 1,216,523 1,325,794 (109,271) -8.2%
Financing (repurchase agreements) 235,230 457,070 (221,840) -48.5%
Current accounts 633,548 681,577 (48,029) -7.0%
Due to assignors 71,654 83,783 (12,129) -14.5%
Other payables 7,289 3,376 3,913 >100%
Total 2,164,244 2,551,600 (387,356) -15.2%

The item “Due to customers” decreased compared to
the end of the previous year, mainly due to a decrease
in funding from term deposits and from repurchase
agreements. The year-end amount of term deposits
decreased by 8.2% compared to the end of 2019,

reflecting net negative deposits (net of accrued interest) of

€ -108 million due to the reduction in interest rates in the
international channel; gross deposits from the beginning
of the year were € 1,091 million, against withdrawals
totalling € 1,199 million.

Due to assignors includes payables related to the unfunded

portion of acquired receivables.

SECURITIES ISSUED (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change

Bond - AT1 8,018 8,016 2 0.0%
Bond - Tier Il 37,570 37,547 23 0.1%
Bonds - other 202,750 430,964 (228,214) -53.0%
Total 248,338 476,527 (228,189) -47.9%

The item Securities issued (248 million) decreased
compared to 31 December 2019 and 30 September
2020 mainly due to the repayment of the senior bond
maturing in October amounting to 175 million.

The nominal amount of securities issued at 31 December
2020 is broken down as follows:

= Tier 1 subordinated loan of € 8 million, with no

maturity (perpetual basis) and a fixed coupon until 18

December 2022 at 7% issued on 18 December 2012;

= Tier 2 subordinated loan of € 19.5 million, 2017-
2027 with a variable coupon equal to 6-month
Euribor + 4.5%;

= Tier 2 subordinated loan of € 18 million, 2019-2029
with a fixed coupon of 7%;

= Senior bonds (private placement) of € 91.9 million,

2018-2021 with a fixed coupon of 2%.
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Other bonds include the senior shares of the ABS in the
Quinto Sistema Sec. 2019 and BS IVA securitisation
subscribed by third-party institutional investors.

The provision for risks and charges of € 23.4 million
includes the provision for possible liabilities attributable
to past acquisitions of € 3.1 million, the estimated
amount of personnel-related charges such as the portion
of the bonus for the year, the deferred portion of the
bonus accrued in previous years, the estimate related
to the non-compete agreement and ongoing labour-
related lawsuits, totalling € 8.7 million. The provision
also includes an estimate of charges related to possible
liabilities to assignors that have yet to be settled of €
4.7 million and other estimated charges for ongoing
lawsuits and legal disputes amounting to € 1.2 million.
Following the acquisition of Atlantide, the provision
increased as a result of the estimated earn-out to be paid

to the sellers linked to the achievement of production

volume targets for the next three years (the liability is
currently estimated to be € 1.3 million and is offset
against goodwill), and the provision for supplementary
customer allowances. Also included is the provision for
claims and the provision to cover the estimated adverse
effect of possible early repayments (also known as pre-
payments) on CQS portfolios purchased from third-party
intermediaries and on the assigned portfolio, for an
amount of € 3.4 million.

Other liabilities mainly include payments received after
the end of the year from the assigned debtors and which
were still being allocated and items being processed
during the days following year-end, as well as trade
payables and tax liabilities.

The item also includes the 2019 dividend of € 7.5
million, which has been approved but not distributed.
This amount is excluded from the calculation of CET1

insofar as it is excluded from the Bank’s equity.

The reconciliation between the profit for the year and equity of the parent and the figures from the consolidated financial

statements is shown below.

(€,000) PROFIT (LOSS) EQUITY

Profit/equity of the parent 25,746 199,448
Assumption of value of investments - (42,731)
Consolidated loss/equity (1,953) 50,770
Adjustment to impairment losses on intra-group loans and receivables 1,500 -
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 25,293 207,487
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 484 (9,297)
Group equity 25,777 198,189
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Provisional information concerning the regulatory capital and capital adequacy of the Banca Sistema Group is shown

below.

OWN FUNDS (€,000) AND CAPITAL RATIOS 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 163,797 165,119
TIER1 8,000 8,000
Tier 1 capital (AT1) 171,797 173,119
TIER2 37,655 37,500
Total Own Funds (TC) 209,452 210,619
Total risk-weighted assets 1,297,255 1,405,890
of which, credit risk 1,120,412 1,236,603
of which, operational risk 176,843 169,252
of which, CVA (credit value adj. on derivatives) - 35
Ratio - CET1 12.6% 11.7%
Ratio - AT1 13.2% 12.3%
Ratio - TCR 16.1% 15.0%

Total own funds were € 209 million at 31 December
2020 and included the profit for the year, net of
dividends estimated on the profit for the year which were
equal to a pay-out of 25% of the Parent’s profit.

Total own funds decreased compared to 31 December
2019 following the recognition of goodwill arising from
the acquisition of the collateralised lending business
unit from Intesa Sanpaolo. As previously reported, on
30 June 2020 the Group began benefitting from the
reduction in the weighting of the CQS/CQP assets set
out in Regulation 876/2019 that came into effect on

27 June 2020.

The Group’s consolidated capitalisation requirements,
according to the transitory criteria, are as follows:

= CET1 ratio of 7.75%;

= TIER1 ratio of 9.55%;

= Total Capital Ratio of 11.90%.

The additional ratio for the CET1 ratio is unchanged
from that expected for 2019, while for the T1 ratio and
the Total Capital Ratio, the OCR were increased by 5
basis points. The new SREP decision does not include

any quantitative liquidity requirements.
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CAPITAL AND SHARES

Capital and ownership structure

The share capital of Banca Sistema is composed of
80,421,052 ordinary shares, for a total paid-in share
capital of € 9,650,526.24. All outstanding shares have
regular dividend entitlement from 1 January.

Based on evidence from the Shareholders' Register and

more recent information available, as at 18 February
2021 the shareholders with stakes of more than 5%,
the threshold above which Italian law (art. 120 of the
Consolidated Law on Finance) requires disclosure to the

investee and Consob, were as follows:

SHAREHOLDERS % HELD
SGBS S.r.l. 23.10%
Garbifin S.r.1. 0.54%
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Alessandria 7.91%
Chandler SARL 7.48%
Fondazione Sicilia 7.40%
Moneta Micro Entreprises 5.12%
Market* 48.45%

(*) Includes treasury shares held by the Bank.

Treasury shares

At 31 December 2020, the bank held 168,669 treasury shares (equal to 0.21% of the share capital) as a stock of

securities to be used for the incentive plan for the Group’s key personnel.

Stock performance

The shares of Banca Sistema are traded on the Mercato Telematico Azionario - Italian Equities Market (MTA) of the Italian

Stock Exchange, STAR segment. The Banca Sistema stock is included in the following Italian Stock Exchange indices:

= FTSE ltalia All-Share Capped;
= FTSE ltalia All-Share;

= FTSE ltalia STAR;

= FTSE ltalia Banche;

= FTSE ltalia Finanza;

= FTSE Italia Small Cap.
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In 2020, a year marked by high volatility in the markets
not least because of extraordinary events such as the
pandemic (Covid-19), the share price of the stock
fluctuated in a range between a minimum closing price
of € 1.00 and a maximum closing price of € 2.14.

The share price on 31 December 2020 was down 8.2%

compared to the same day a year earlier. This was still

better than the performance of most other Italian bank
stocks or the indices that the bank is part of, such as the
FTSE lItalia Finanza and the FTSE Italia Banche, which
were down 19.5% and 21.1% respectively.

Average daily volumes exceeded 900,000 shares during
2020, an increase over 2019. For much of the year, the

stock was among the most liquid in the STAR segment.
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Investor Relations

Over the course of 2020, the bank, in addition to
the information communicated via press releases
and conference calls regarding quarterly results,
updated the market (investment companies, financial
analysis firms and individual investors/shareholders)

on business performance almost exclusively via

— Price

conference calls or video calls due to the restrictions
imposed by the Covid-19 pandemic. In an effort to
further diversify the shareholder base, over 150
investors were met “virtually” in 2020, including
through the bank’s involvement in 18 events, 16 of

which were “virtual”.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT CONTROL METHODS

With reference to the functioning of the “Risk
Management System”, the Group has adopted a system
based on four leading principles:
= suitable supervision by relevant bank bodies and
departments;
= suitable policies and procedures to manage risks
(both in terms of credit risk and the granting of loans);
= suitable methods and instruments to identify,
monitor and manage risks, with suitable measuring
techniques;
= thorough internal controls and independent audit.
The “Risk Management System” is monitored by the
Risk Department, which ensures that capital adequacy
and the degree of solvency with respect to its business
are kept under constant control.
The Risk Department continuously analyses the Group's
operations to fully identify the risks the Group is exposed
to (risk map).
To reinforce its ability to manage corporate risks, the
Group has set up a Risk and ALM Committee, whose
mission is to help the Group define strategies, risk
policies, and profitability and liquidity targets.
The Risk and ALM Committee continuously monitors
relevant risks and any new or potential risks arising from
changes in the working environment or Group forward-
looking operations.
Pursuant to the eleventh amendment of Bank of Italy
Circular no. 285/13, within the framework of the
Internal Control System (Part |, Section 1V, Chapter
3, Subsection Il, Paragraph 5) the Parent entrusted
the Internal Control and Risk Management Committee
with the task of coordinating the second and third
level Control Departments; to that end, the Committee
allows the integration and interaction between these
Departments, encouraging cooperation, reducing
overlaps and supervising operations.
With reference to the risk management framework, the
Group adopts an integrated reference framework both to
identify its own risk appetite and for the internal process

of determining capital adequacy. This system is the

Risk Appetite Framework (RAF), designed to make sure
that the growth and development aims of the Group are
compatible with capital and financial solidity.

The RAF comprises monitoring and alert mechanisms
and related processes to take action in order to promptly
intervene in the event of discrepancies with defined
targets. The framework is subject to annual review based
on the strategic guidelines and regulatory changes.

The ICAAP (the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process) and [ILAAP (Internal Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment Process) allow the Group to conduct ongoing
tests of its structure for determining risks and to update
the related safeguards included in its RAF.

With regard to protecting against credit risk, along
with the well-established second level controls and the
periodic monitoring put in place by the Risk Department,
functional requirements were implemented to allow the
Group to be compliant with the new definition of default
that is being introduced starting on 1 January 2021,
after which no significant impact is being estimated.
Regarding the monitoring of credit risk, in February 2020
the Group, with the goal of attaining greater operating
synergies, moved from a functional organisational
structure to a divisional structure which aims to maximise
the value of each individual line of business, making it
easily comparable with its respective specialist peers.

It should also be noted that, in accordance with the
obligations imposed by the applicable regulations, each
year the Group publishes its report (Pillar 3) on capital
adequacy, risk exposure and the general characteristics
of the systems for identifying, measuring and managing
risks. The report is available on the website www.
bancasistema.it in the Investor Relations section.

In order to measure “Pillar 1 risks”, the Group has adopted
standard methods to calculate the capital requirements
for Prudential Regulatory purposes. In order to evaluate
“Pillar 2 risks”, the Group adopts - where possible - the
methods set out in the Regulatory framework or those

established by trade associations. If there are no such

indications, standard market practices by operators
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working at a level of complexity and with operations
comparable to those of the Group are assessed.

During the Covid-19 pandemic and in line with the
indications provided by the EBA, ECB, Consob and
ESMA, the Banca Sistema Group decided not to apply
automated classifications for moratoriums introduced
in connection with the related support programmes
provided for by law, agreements with trade associations
or similar voluntary initiatives adopted by individual
companies.

The Group has developed and quickly planned suitable
procedures, within the specific sector of activity and the
related product portfolio, to respond to the provisions set
forth in the decrees to support households and businesses
by implementing the provisions of the “Cura Italia” and
“Liquidity” decrees. The Group has also revised its

risk objectives within the RAF, which was prepared in

a manner consistent with the annual budgeting process
for the 2020 financial year and includes the economic
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic crisis.

Regarding the factoring business, a cap was set for the
granting of medium-term loans guaranteed by SACE
and the National Guarantee Fund to support business
customers during this period.

Other interventions concerned credit strategies and
policies that considered the change in the macroeconomic
environment and the results of sector analyses for identifying
the most vulnerable sectors which were then grouped into
clusters. For those sectors deemed to be most impacted by
the pandemic, a more stringent underwriting process for
factoring was introduced. For salary- and pension-backed
loans (CQ), monitoring of employers (ATCs) within the

cluster most affected by Covid-19 was strengthened.

OTHER INFORMATION

Report on corporate governance and ownership structure

Pursuant to art. 123-bis, paragraph 3 of Legislative
Decree no. 58 dated 24 February 1998, a “Report
on corporate governance and ownership structure”

has been drawn up; the document - published jointly

Remuneration Report

Pursuant to section 84-quater, paragraph 1 of the
Issuers’ Regulation implementing Legislative Decree
No. 58 dated 24 February 1998, a “Remuneration

Report” has been drawn up; the document - published

Research and Development Activities

with the draft financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2020 - is available in the
“Governance” section of the Banca Sistema website

(www.bancasistema.it).

jointly with the draft financial statements as at and for
the year ended 31 December 2020 - is available in
the “Governance” section of the Banca Sistema website

(www.bancasistema.it).

No research and development activities were carried out in 2020.

Future activities and new initiatives

In line with the Bank's values and corporate culture and
with the activities already in place in terms of sustainability,
the Banca Sistema Group intends to pursue, on a voluntary

basis, a structured approach for defining its positioning

on ESG issues, a sustainability reporting process aligned
with industry best practices and leading international
guidelines, as well as an action plan aimed at identifying

ways of improving its sustainability profile.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions including the relevant
authorisation and disclosure procedures, are governed
by the “Procedure governing related party transactions”
approved by the Board of Directors and published on
the internet site of the Parent, Banca Sistema S.p.A.

Transactions between Group companies and related

parties were carried out in the interests of the Bank,
including within the scope of ordinary operations;
these transactions were carried out in accordance
with market conditions and, in any event, based on
mutual financial advantage and in compliance with all

procedures.

ATYPICAL OR UNUSUAL TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not carry out any atypical or unusual transactions, as defined in Consob Communication

no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

With regard to the recent epidemic emergency caused
by Covid-19, the Banca Sistema Group took immediate
action to monitor the situation and adopt appropriate
measures to protect the health of its employees,
customers and contacts. In this context, the Group
ensured that all its offices and branches, including
those of ProntoPegno, are fully operational. The increase
in operating costs to ensure that employees can work
remotely is not significant.

On 29 March 2021, the Board of Directors of Banca

Sistema resolved on a technical-formal reclassification of

the draft financial statements as at 31 December 2020

already approved in the meeting held on 11 March, that
has no effect on the profit for the year and on the capital
ratios reported to the market on 10 February.

The reclassification is aimed exclusively at accounting
for loans under disposal — totalling € 5.6 million out of
total assets of € 3.7 billion — that cannot be derecognised
from an accounting point of view. This leads to an
increase by an equal amount in the line-item “Financial
assets measured at amortised cost” and in the line-item
“Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost”. The
above disposals had been recognised for the same amounts

as off-statement of financial position commitments.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND MAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The 2020 financial year ended with continuing growth  that was mainly attributable to lower default interest
in volumes in all three lines of business. income in the factoring segment, a trend that could
In 2021, the Group will continue to evaluate options  continue throughout 2021.

for non-organic growth in its core business areas. The situation is being continuously monitored and any
The Group’s new business plan is also expected to be  impacts not yet evident will be reflected, if necessary,
presented during 2021. in the estimated recoverable value of the financial

The Group experienced a slight decline in profitability — assets.

Milan, 29 March 2021
On behalf of the Board of Directors

The Chairperson The CEO

Luitgard Spogler Gianluca Garbi

el A
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amounts in thousands of Euro)

Assets 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

10. | Cash and cash equivalents 1,930 652
30. | Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 430,966 556,383
40. | Financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,142,791 3,112,387
a) loans and receivables with banks 92,481 81,510

b) loans and receivables with customers 3,050,310 3,030,877

70. | Equity investments 1,000 -
90. | Property and equipment 32,607 29,002
100. | Intangible assets 32,725 3,921
of which: - -

gooawill 32,355 3,920

110. | Tax assets 10,313 8,476
a) current 62 1

b) deferred 10,251 8,475

130. | Other assets 19,039 19,260
Total Assets 3,671,371 3,730,081
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Liabilities and equity

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

10. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 3,282,230 3,416,486
a) due to banks 869,648 388,359

b) due to customers 2,164,244 2,551,600

c) securities issued 248,338 476,527

60. | Tax liabilities 16,903 16,433
a) current 1,995 2,213

b) deferred 14,908 14,220

80. | Other liabilities 136,894 94,662
90. Post-employment benefits 4,428 3,051
100. | Provisions for risks and charges: 23,430 22,297
a) commitments and guarantees issued 26 44

c¢) other provisions for risks and charges 23,404 22,253

120. | Valuation reserves 1,287 267
150. | Reserves 122,608 98,617
160. | Share premium 39,100 39,100
170. | Share capital 9,651 9,651
180. | Treasury shares (-) (234) (234)
190. | Equity attributable to non-controlling interests (+/-) 9,297 32
200. | Profit for the year 25,777 29,719
Total liabilities and equity 3,671,371 3,730,081
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INCOME STATEMENT

(Amounts in thousands of Euro)

2020 2019

10. | Interest and similar income 98,067 110,336
of which: interest income calculated with the effective interest method 93,208 107,644

20. | Interest and similar expense (23,796) (29,642)
30. | Net interest income 74,271 80,694
40. | Fee and commission income 24,328 22,490
50. | Fee and commission expense (6,900) (6,422)
60. | Net fee and commission income 17,428 16,068
70. | Dividends and similar income 227 227
80. | Net trading income 37 208
100. | Gain from sales or repurchases of: 9,531 3,716
a) financial assets measured at amortised cost 4,214 1,106

b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 5,301 2,610

c) financial liabilities 16 -

120. | Total income 101,494 100,913
130. | Net impairment losses on: (11,000) (9,055)
a) financial assets measured at amortised cost (10,948) (8,950)

b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (52) (105)

150. | Net financial income 90,494 91,858
190. | Administrative expenses (51,066) (46,105)
a) personnel expense (25,532) (23,166)

b) other administrative expenses (25,534) (22,939)

200. | Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges (2,520) (1,996)
a) commitments and guarantees issued 18 (36)

b) other net accruals (2,538) (1,960)

210. | Net impairment losses on property and equipment (1,875) (1,499)
220. | Net impairment losses on intangible assets (81) (133)
230. | Other operating income (expense) 260 (768)
240. | Operating costs (55,282) (50,501)
280. | Gains (losses) on sales of investments 1,090 (8)
290. | Pre-tax profit from continuing operations 36,302 41,349
300. | Income taxes (11,009) (12,192)
310. | Post-tax profit from continuing operations 25,293 29,157
320. | Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - 562
330. | Profit for the year 25,293 29,719
340. | Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests 484 -
350. [ Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the parent 25,777 29,719
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounts in thousands of Euro)

2020 2019

10. | Profit for the year 25,777 29,719
Items, net of tax, that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -
70. | Defined benefit plans (124) (32)

Items, net of tax, that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -

140. | Financial assets (other than equity instruments) measured at fair value through 1,144 1,430

other comprehensive income

170. | Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax 1,020 1,398
180. | Comprehensive income (ltems 10+170) 26,797 31,117

190. | Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests - -

200. | Comprehensive income attributable to the owners of the parent 26,797 31,117
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (indirect method)
Amounts in thousands of Euro
2020 2019
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1. Operations 50,839 49,577

= Profit for the year (+/-) 25,777 29,719

= Gains/losses on financial assets held for trading and other financial assets/liabilities - -
measured at fair value through profit or loss (-/+)

= Gains/losses on hedging activities (-/+) - -
= Net impairment losses due to credit risk (+/-) 10,948 8,950

= Net impairment losses on property and equipment and intangible assets (+/-) 1,956 1,632
= Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges and other costs/income (+/-) 2,520 1,996
= Taxes, duties and tax assets not yet paid (+/-) (1,018) 1,868
= Other adjustments (+/-) 10,656 5,412
2. Cash flows generated by (used for) financial assets 97,837 (566,474)

= Financial assets held for trading - -
= Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss - -
= Other assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss

= Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 126,815 (250,516)
= Financial assets measured at amortised cost (30,625) (313,636)
= Other assets 1,647 (2,322)
3. Cash flows generated by (used for) financial liabilities (112,033) 527,062
= Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (149,921) 501,242

* Financial liabilities held for trading - -
= Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss - -

= Other liabilities 37,888 25,820
Net cash flows generated by operating activities 36,643 10,165
B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Cash flows generated by 0 786
= Sales of equity investments - 786

= Dividends from equity investments - -
= Sales of property and equipment - -
= Sales of intangible assets - -
= Sales of business units - -
2. Cash flows used in (35,365) (3,556)

* Purchases of equity investments (1,000) -
= Purchases of property and equipment (5,480) (2,591)
= Purchases of intangible assets (28,885) (965)
= Purchases of business units - -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (35,365) (2,770)
C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES
= |ssues/repurchases of treasury shares - (35)
= |ssues/repurchases of equity instruments - -
= Dividend and other distributions - (6,997)
Net cash flows generated by (used in) financing activities - (7,032)
NET CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR 1,278 363
KEY:
(+) generated
(-) used

Reconciliation

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 652 289
Total net cash flows for the year 1,278 363
Cash and cash equivalents: effect of change in exchange rates i ;
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,930 652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



PART A - ACCOUNTING POLICIES

[ A.1 - GENERAL PART j

SECTION 1 - Statement of compliance with International

Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Banca Sistema
Group at 31 December 2020 were drawn up in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards - called
IFRS - issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and interpretations of the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and
endorsed by the European Commission, as established by
EU Regulation no. 1606 of 19 July 2002, adopted in Italy
by art. 1 of Legislative Decree no. 38 of 28 February 2005
and considering the Bank of Italy Circular no. 262 of 22
December 2005 as subsequently updated, regarding the
forms and rules for drafting the Financial Statements of
banks.
The International Financial Reporting Standards are
applied by referring to the “Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements” (Framework).
If there is no standard or interpretation that applies
specifically to a transaction, other event or circumstance,
the Board of Directors uses its judgement to develop and
apply an accounting standard in order to provide disclosure
that:
= s relevant to the economic decision-making needs of

users;
= jsreliable, in that the financial statements:

- represent faithfully the financial position, financial

performance and cash flows of the Bank;
- reflect the economic substance of transactions, other
events and conditions, and not merely the legal form;

- are neutral, i.e. free from bias;

- are prudent;

- are complete in all material respects.
When exercising the aforementioned judgement, the
Board of Directors of the Bank has made reference to

and considered the applicability of the following sources,

described in descending order of importance:
= the provisions and application guidelines contained in
the Standards and Interpretations governing similar or
related cases;
= the definitions, recognition criteria and measuring
concepts for accounting for the assets, liabilities,
revenue, and costs contained in the “Framework”.
When expressing an opinion, the Board of Directors
may also consider the most recent provisions issued
by other bodies that rule on accounting standards that
use a similar "Framework" in concept for developing
accounting standards, other accounting literature and
consolidated practices in the sector.
In accordance with art. 5 of Legislative Decree no.
38 of 28 February 2005, if, in exceptional cases, the
application of a provision imposed by the IFRS were
incompatible with the true and fair representation of the
financial position or results of operations, the provision
would not apply. The justifications for any exceptions
and their influence on the presentation of the financial
position and results of operations would be explained in
the Notes to the financial statements.
Any profits resulting from the exception would be
recognised in a non-distributable reserve if they did
not correspond to the recovered amount in the financial
statements. However, no exceptions to the IFRS were
applied.
The financial statements were audited by BDO Italia

S.p.A.

SECTION 2 - General basis of preparation

The financial statements are drawn up with clarity and
give a true and fair view of the financial position, profit
or loss, cash flows, and changes in equity and comprise
the statement of financial position, the income
statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows and the notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements are accompanied by the
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Directors' Report on the Bank’s performance.

If the information required by the IFRS and provisions

contained in Circular no. 262 of 22 December 2005

and/or the subsequent updates issued by the Bank of

Italy are not sufficient to give a true and fair view that is

relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable, the

notes to the financial statements provide the additional

information required. For the sake of completeness,

please note that this financial report also considers the

interpretation and supporting documents regarding the

application of accounting standards, including those

issued in connection with the Covid-19 pandemic,

as well as those issued by European regulatory and

supervisory bodies and standard setters.

The general principles that underlie the drafting of the

financial statements are set out below:

= the measurements are made considering that the bank
will continue as a going concern, where it is stated that
the Directors have not identified any uncertainties that
could cast doubt in this respect;

= costs and income are accounted for on an accruals
basis;

= toensure the comparability of the data and information
in the financial statements and the notes to the
financial statements, the methods of presentation and
classification are kept constant over time unless they
are changed to present the data more appropriately;

= each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the statement of financial position and
income statement; items of a dissimilar nature or
function are presented separately unless they are
considered immaterial;

= jtems that have nil balances at year end or for the
financial year or for the previous year are not indicated
in the statement of financial position or the income
statement;

= if an asset or liability comes under several items in
the statement of financial position, the notes to the
financial statements make reference to the other items
under which it is recognised if it is necessary for a
better understanding of the financial statements;

= the items are not offset against one another unless

it is expressly requested or allowed by an IFRS or an

interpretation or the provisions of the aforementioned
Circular no. 262 of 22 December 2005 as amended by
the Bank of Italy;
= the financial statements are drafted by favouring
substance over form and in accordance with the
principle of materiality and significance of the
information;
= comparative data for the previous financial year are
presented for each statement of financial position and
income statement item; if the items are not comparable
to those of the previous year, they are adapted and the
non-comparability and adjustment/or impossibility
thereof are indicated and commented on in the notes
to the financial statements;
= the layout recommended by the Bank of Italy was used
with reference to the information reported in the notes
to the financial statements; the tables included in this
layout were not presented if they were not applicable to
the Group's business.
Within the scope of drawing up the financial statements in
accordance with the IFRS, bank management must make
assessments, estimates and assumptions that influence
the amounts of the assets, liabilities, costs and income
recognised during the year.
The use of estimates is essential to preparing the financial
statements. In particular, the most significant use of
estimates and assumptions in the financial statements can
be attributed to:
= thevaluation of loans and receivables with customers:
the acquisition of performing receivables from
companies that supply goods and services represents
the Bank’s main activity. Estimating the value of
these receivables is a complex activity with a high
degree of uncertainty and subjectivity. Their value
is estimated by using models that include numerous
quantitative and qualitative elements. These include
the historical data for collections, expected cash
flows and the related expected recovery times, the
existence of indicators of possible impairment, the
valuation of any guarantees, and the impact of risks
associated with the sectors in which the Bank’s
customers operate;

= the valuation of default interest pursuant to

_63_



Legislative Decree no. 231 of 9 October 2002 on
performing receivables acquired without recourse:
estimating the expected recovery percentages of
default interest is complex, with a high degree of
uncertainty and subjectivity. Internally developed
valuation models are used to determine these
percentages, which take numerous qualitative and
quantitative elements into consideration;

the estimate related to the possible impairment
losses on goodwill and equity investments recognised
in the financial statements;

the quantification and estimate made for recognising
liabilities in the provision for risks and charges, the

amount or timing of which are uncertain;

= the recoverability of deferred tax assets.

It should be noted that an estimate may be adjusted
following a change in the circumstances upon which
it was formed, or if there is new information or more
experience. Any changes in estimates are applied
prospectively and therefore will have an impact on the
income statement for the year in which the change
takes place.

Pursuant to the provisions of art. 5 of Legislative Decree
no. 38 of 28 February 2005, the financial statements
use the Euro as the currency for accounting purposes.
The financial statements are expressed in thousands of
Euro. Unless otherwise stated, the notes to the financial

statements are expressed in thousands of Euro.
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The following should be noted regarding the regulatory developments in the IAS/IFRS:

REGULATION (EU) TITLE
2020/34 of 15 January 2020 Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
2020/1434 of 9 October 2020 Amendment to IFRS 16 - Covid-19-related rent concessions
2020/551 of 21 April 2020 Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business

The introduction of the amendments to the Regulations listed above had no significant impact.
The following table summarises the new international financial reporting standards that will be effective from
1 January 2021.

REGULATION (EU) TITLE
2020/2097 of 15 December 2020 [ Amendments to IFRS 4 - Extension of the Temporary Exemption from

Applying IFRS 9
2021/25 of 13 January 2021 Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 -

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
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SECTION 3 - Scope and methods of consolidation

The consolidated financial

Parent, Banca Sistema S.p.A., and the companies

statements

include

the

directly or indirectly controlled by or connected with it.

The following statement shows the

investments

included within the scope of consolidation.

ST

( Y
. Type of . %

Reg;;tceered Relat(li))nshlp Investing company % held av/aicl);t;II%t?Z)
Companies
Subject to full consolidation
S.F. Trust Holdings Ltd UK 1 Banca Sistema 100% 100%
Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.l. | ltaly 1 Banca Sistema 100% 100%
ProntoPegno S.p.A. Italy 1 Banca Sistema 75% 75%
EBNSISTEMA Finance S.L. L Spain 7 A Banca Sistema 50% 50%

Key:
(1) Type of relationship.

1. = majority of voting rights at the ordinary Shareholders' Meeting
2. = a dominant influence in the ordinary Shareholders' Meeting

3. = agreements with other shareholders
4. = other forms of control

5. = unitary management as defined in Art. 26, paragraph 1 of ‘Legislative Decree 87/92'
6. = unitary management as defined in Art. 26, paragraph 2 of ‘Legislative Decree 87/92'

7. = joint control (2) Available voting rights at the ordinary Shareholders' Meeting, with separate indication of effective and potential rights

The scope of consolidation also includes the following special purpose securitisation vehicles whose receivables are

not subject to derecognition:

= Quinto Sistema Sec. 2019 S.r.l.
= Quinto Sistema Sec. 2017 S.r.l.
= BSIVASPVS.rl
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Changes in the scope of consolidation

Compared to the situation as at 31 December 2019, the
scope of consolidation changed as a result of EBNSISTEMA
Finance S.L., a joint venture, entering the scope of

consolidation.

Full consolidation method

The investments in subsidiaries are consolidated using
the full consolidation method. The concept of control goes
beyond owning a majority of the percentage of stakes in the
share capital of the subsidiary and is defined as the power
of determining the management and financial policies of
said subsidiary to obtain benefits from its business.
Full consolidation provides for line-by-line aggregation of
the statement of financial position and income statement
aggregates from the accounts of the subsidiaries. To this
end, the following adjustments were made:
= the carrying amount of the investments held by the
Parent and the corresponding part of the equity are
eliminated;
= the portion of equity and profit or loss for the year is
shown in a specific caption.
The results of the above adjustments, if positive, are shown
- after allocation to the assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
- as goodwill in item "100 Intangible Assets" on the date of
initial consolidation. The resulting differences, if negative,
are recognised in the income statement. Intra-group
balances and transactions, including income, costs and
dividends, are entirely eliminated. The financial results of
a subsidiary acquired during the financial year are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date of
acquisition. At the same time, the financial results of a
transferred subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements up to the date on which the subsidiary
is transferred. The accounts used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are drafted on the
same date. The consolidated financial statements were
drafted using consistent accounting standards for similar
transactions and events. If a subsidiary uses accounting
standards different from those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for similar transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made to the

financial position for consolidation purposes. Detailed

information with reference to art. 89 of Directive 2013/36/
EU of the European Parliament and Council (CRD 1V) is

published at the link www.bancasistema.it/pillar3.

Consolidation at equity

Associates and joint ventures are consolidated at equity.
The equity method provides for the initial recognition of the
investment at cost and subsequent adjustment based on
the relevant share of the investee’s equity.

The differences between the value of the equity investment
and the equity of the relevant investee are included in the
carrying amount of the investee.

In the valuation of the relevant share, any potential voting
rights are not taken into consideration.

The relevant share of the annual results of the investee
is shown in a specific item of the consolidated income
statement.

If there is evidence that an equity investment may be
impaired, the recoverable value of said equity investment is
estimated by considering the present value of future cash
flows that the investment could generate, including the final
disposal value of the investment. Should the recoverable
value prove lower than the carrying amount, the difference

is recognised in the income statement.

SECTION 4 - Subsequent events

With regard to IAS 10, after 31 December 2020, the
reporting date of the financial statements, and up to 29
March 2021, no events occurred that would require any
adjustments to the figures in the financial statements.

On 29 March 2021, the Board of Directors of Banca
Sistema resolved on a technical-formal reclassification of
the draft financial statements as at 31 December 2020
already approved in the meeting held on 11 March, that
has no effect on the profit for the year and on the capital
ratios reported to the market on 10 February.

The reclassification is aimed exclusively at accounting for
loans under disposal — totalling € 5.6 million out of total
assets of € 3.7 billion — that cannot be derecognised from
an accounting point of view. This leads to an increase by an
equal amount in the line-item “Financial assets measured
at amortised cost” and in the line-item “Financial liabilities

measured at amortised cost”. The above disposals had
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been recognised for the same amounts as off-statement of

financial position commitments.

SECTION 5 - Other aspects

With reference to the risks, uncertainties and effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic, given the type of activities
carried out by the Group, for the moment no significant
impacts have been identified, particularly with regard
to the valuations and items subject to estimates, where
consideration has been given, insofar as can currently
be estimated, to the impact of the pandemic on future
forward-looking scenarios. However, the situation is being
continuously monitored and any impacts not yet evident
will be reflected, if necessary, in the estimated recoverable
value of the financial assets.

There are no other significant aspects to note.

A.2 - INFORMATION ON THE MAIN ITEMS
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit

or loss

Classification criteria

Financial assets other than those classified as Financial

assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income and Financial assets measured at amortised cost

are classified in this category. In particular, this item

includes:

= financial assets held for trading;

= equity instruments, except for the possibility of their
being classified in the new category Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, excluding the possibility of subsequent
reclassification to profit or loss;

= financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value, and
which have not met the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost;

= financial assets that are not held under a Held to
Collect (or “HTC"”) business model or as part of a mixed
business model, whose aim is achieved by collecting
the contractual cash flows of financial assets held in

the Bank’s portfolio or also through their sale, when

this is an integral part of the strategy (“Held to Collect
and Sell” business model);
= financial assets designated at fair value, i.e. financial
assets that are defined as such upon initial recognition
and when the conditions apply. For this type of
financial assets, upon recognition an entity may
irrevocably recognise a financial asset as measured at
fair value through profit or loss only if this eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement inconsistency;
= derivative instruments, which shall be recognised as
financial assets held for trading if their fair value is
positive and as liabilities if their fair value is negative.
Positive and negative values may be offset only for
transactions executed with the same counterparty if the
holder currently holds the right to offset the amounts
recognised in the books and it is decided to settle the
offset positions on a net basis. Derivatives also include
those embedded in complex financial contracts — where
the host contract is a financial liability which has been
recognised separately.
Except for the equity instruments which cannot be
reclassified, financial assets may be reclassified to other
categories of financial assets only if the entity changes
its own business model for management of the financial
assets. In such cases, which are expected to be absolutely
infrequent, the financial assets may be reclassified from
those measured at fair value through profit or loss to one of
the other two categories established by IFRS 9 (Financial
assets measured at amortised cost or Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income). The transfer value is the fair value at the time of
the reclassification and the effects of the reclassification
apply prospectively from the reclassification date. In
this case, the effective interest rate of the reclassified
financial asset is determined based on its fair value at the
reclassification date and that date is considered as the
initial recognition date for the credit risk stage assignment

for impairment purposes.

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of financial assets occurs at the settlement
date for debt instruments and equity instruments, at the

disbursement date for loans and at the subscription date for
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derivative contracts.

On initial recognition, financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised at fair value, without
considering transaction costs or income directly attributable
to the instrument.

income

Measurement and recognition criteria for

components

After initial recognition, the financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at fair
value. The effects of the application of this measurement
criterion are recognised in the income statement. For the
determination of the fair value of financial instruments
quoted on active markets, market quotations are used.
If the market for a financial instrument is not active,
standard practice estimation methods and measurement
techniques are used which consider all the risk factors
correlated to the instruments and that are based on market
elements such as: measurement of quoted instruments
with the same characteristics, calculation of discounted
cash flows, option pricing models, recent comparable
transactions, etc.. For equity and derivative instruments
that have equity instruments as underlying assets, which
are not quoted on an active market, the cost approach
is used as the estimate of fair value only on a residual
basis and in a small number of circumstances, i.e., when
all the measurement methods referred to above cannot
be applied, or when there are a wide range of possible
measurements of fair value, in which cost represents the
most significant estimate.

In particular, this item includes:

= debt instruments held for trading;

= equity instruments held for trading.

For more details on the methods of calculating the fair
value please refer to the paragraph below "Criteria for

determining the fair value of financial instruments".

Derecognition criteria

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
on the cash flows deriving from the assets expire, or in the
case of a transfer, when the same entails the substantial

transfer of all risks and rewards related to the financial assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Classification criteria

This category includes the financial assets that meet both

the following conditions:

= financial assets that are held under a business model
whose aim is achieved both through the collection
of contractual cash flows and through sale (“Held to
Collect and Sell” business model);

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (“SPPI Test” passed).

This item also includes equity instruments, not held for

trading, for which the option was exercised upon initial

recognition of their designation at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

In particular, this item includes:

= debt instruments that can be attributed to a Held to
Collect and Sell business model and that have passed
the SPPI test;

= equity interests, that do not qualify as investments
in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and are
not held for trading, for which the option has been
exercised of their designation at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Except for the equity instruments which cannot be

reclassified, financial assets may be reclassified to other

categories of financial assets only if the entity changes

its own business model for management of the financial

assets.

In such cases, which are expected to be absolutely

infrequent, the financial assets may be reclassified from

those measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income to one of the other two categories established by

IFRS 9 (Financial assets measured at amortised cost or

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or

loss). The transfer value is the fair value at the time of the

reclassification and the effects of the reclassification apply

prospectively from the reclassification date. In the event

of reclassification from this category to the amortised cost
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category, the cumulative gain (loss) recognised in the
valuation reserve is allocated as an adjustment to the fair
value of the financial asset at the reclassification date. In
the event of reclassification to the fair value through profit
or loss category, the cumulative gain (loss) previously
recognised in the valuation reserve is reclassified from

equity to profit (loss).

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of the financial assets is at the date
of disbursement, based on their fair value including the
transaction costs/income directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial instrument. Costs/income
having the previously mentioned characteristics that will be
repaid by the debtor or that can be considered as standard
internal administrative costs are excluded.

The initial fair value of a financial instrument is usually the
cost incurred for its acquisition.

income

Measurement and recognition criteria for

components

Following initial recognition, financial assets are measured
at their fair value with any gains or losses resulting from
a change in the fair value compared to the amortised
cost recognised in a specific equity reserve recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income up until said
financial asset is derecognised or an impairment loss is
recognised.

For more details on the methods of calculating the fair
value please refer to paragraph 17.3 below "Criteria for
determining the fair value of financial instruments".
Equity instruments, for which the choice has been made
to classify them in this category, are measured at fair
value and the amounts recognised in other comprehensive
income cannot be subsequently transferred to profit
or loss, not even if they are sold (the so-called OCI
exemption). The only component related to these equity
instruments that is recognised through profit or loss is
their dividends. Fair value is determined on the basis
of the criteria already described for Financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

For the equity instruments included in this category, which

are not quoted on an active market, the cost approach

is used as the estimate of fair value only on a residual
basis and in a small number of circumstances, i.e., when
all the measurement methods referred to above cannot
be applied, or when there are a wide range of possible
measurements of fair value, in which cost represents the
most significant estimate.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subject to the verification of the
significant increase in credit risk (impairment) required by
IFRS 9, with the consequent recognition through profit or

loss of an impairment loss to cover the expected losses.

Derecognition criteria

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights on the cash flows deriving from the assets expire,
or in the case of a transfer, when the same entails the
substantial transfer of all risks and rewards related to the

financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Classification criteria

This category includes the financial assets that meet both

the following conditions:

= the financial asset is held under a business model
whose objective is achieved through the collection
of expected contractual cash flows (Held to Collect
business model);

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (“SPPI Test” passed).

In particular, this item includes:

* loans and receivables with banks;

= loans and receivables with customers;

= debt instruments.

Except for the equity instruments which cannot be

reclassified, financial assets may be reclassified to

other categories of financial assets only if the entity

changes its own business model for management of

the financial assets. In such cases, which are expected

to be absolutely infrequent, the financial assets may

be reclassified from the amortised cost category to
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one of the other two categories established by IFRS 9
(Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income or Financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss). The transfer value is
the fair value at the time of the reclassification and the
effects of the reclassification apply prospectively from the
reclassification date. Gains and losses resulting from the
difference between the amortised cost of a financial asset
and its fair value are recognised through profit or loss in
the event of reclassification to Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss and under equity, in the
specific valuation reserve, in the event of reclassification
to Financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of a receivable is at the date of
disbursement based on its fair value including the costs/
income of the transaction directly attributable to the
acquisition of the receivable.

Costs/income  having the previously mentioned
characteristics that will be repaid by the debtor or that
can be considered as standard internal administrative
costs are excluded.

The initial fair value of a financial instrument is usually
equivalent to the amount granted or the cost incurred by

the acquisition.

Measurement and recognition criteria for income
components
Following initial recognition, loans and receivables

with customers are stated at amortised cost, equal to
the initial recognition amount reduced/increased by
principal repayments, by impairment losses/gains and
the amortisation - calculated on the basis of the effective
interest rate - of the difference between the amount
provided and that repayable at maturity, usually the cost/
income directly attributed to the individual loan.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts future
payments estimated for the expected duration of the loan,
in order to obtain the exact carrying amount at the time

of initial recognition, which includes both the directly

attributable transaction costs/income and all of the fees

paid or received between the parties. This accounting
method, based on financial logic, enables the economic
effect of costs/income to be spread over the expected
residual life of the receivable.

The measurement criteria are strictly connected with
the stage to which the receivable is assigned, where
stage 1 contains performing loans, stage 2 consists of
under-performing loans, i.e. loans that have undergone
increase in credit risk

a significant (“significant

deterioration”) since the initial recognition of the
instrument, and stage 3 consists of non-performing
loans, i.e. the loans that show objective evidence of
impairment.

The impairment losses recognised through profit or loss for
the performing loans classified in stage 1 are calculated
by considering an expected loss at one year, while for
the performing loans in stage 2 they are calculated by
considering the expected losses over the entire residual
contractual lifetime of the asset (Lifetime Expected
Loss). The performing financial assets are measured
according to probability of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD) and exposure at default (EAD) parameters, derived
from internal historical series. For impaired assets, the
amount of the loss, to be recognised through profit or
loss, is established based on individual measurement or
determined according to uniform categories and, then,
individually allocated to each position, and takes account
of forward-looking information and possible alternative
recovery scenarios. Impaired assets include financial
instruments classified as bad exposures, unlikely-to-pay
or past due/overdrawn by over ninety days according to
the rules issued by the Bank of Italy, in line with the
IFRS and EU Supervisory Regulations. The expected
cash flows take into account the expected recovery times
and the estimated realisable value of any guarantees.
The original effective rate of each asset remains
unchanged over time even if the relationship has been
restructured with a variation of the contractual interest
rate and even if the relationship, in practice, no longer
bears contractual interest. If the reasons for impairment
are no longer applicable following an event subsequent
to the recognition of impairment, impairment gains are

recognised in the income statement. The impairment

gains may not in any case exceed the amortised cost that
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the financial instrument would have had in the absence
of previous impairment losses. Impairment gains with

time value effects are recognised in net interest income.

Derecognition criteria

Loans and receivables are derecognised from the
financial statements when they are deemed totally
unrecoverable or if transferred, when this entails the

substantial transfer of all loan-related risks and rewards.

Hedging transactions
At the reporting date, the Bank had not made any

“Hedging transactions”.

Equity investments

Classification criteria

This category includes equity investments in subsidiaries,

associates, and joint ventures by Banca Sistema.

Recognition criteria

Equity investments are recognised in the financial

statements at purchase cost plus any related charges.

Measurement criteria

In  the consolidated financial statements, equity
investments in subsidiaries are consolidated using the full
line-by-line method. Equity investments in associates and
joint ventures are both measured at equity. At the end of
each financial year or interim report date, an assessment
is performed to determine if any objective evidence exists
that an investment has been impaired. The recoverable
value is then calculated taking into account the present
value of the future cash flows that the investment will
be able to generate, including the final disposal value of
the investment. Any lower value, compared to the carrying
amount, resulting from this calculation is charged to
the income statement under “250 Gains (losses) on
equity investments”. The item also includes any future
impairment gains where the reasons for the previous

impairment losses no longer apply.

Derecognition criteria

Equity investments are derecognised from the financial
statements when the contractual rights to cash flows
deriving from the investment are lost or when the
investment is transferred, with the substantial transfer
of all related risks and rewards. Gains and losses on the
sale of equity investments are charged to the income
statement under the item “240 Gains (losses) on equity
investments”; gains and losses on the sale of investments
other than those measured at equity are charged to the
income statement under the item “280 Gains (losses) on

sales of investments”.

Property and equipment

Classification criteria

This item includes assets for permanent use, held to
generate income, to be leased, or for administrative
purposes, such as land, operating property, investment
property, technical installations, furniture and fittings
and equipment of any nature and works of art.

They also include leasehold improvements to third
party assets if they can be separated from the assets in
question. If the above costs do not display functional
or usefulness-related autonomy, but future economic
benefits are expected from them, they are recognised
under “other assets” and are depreciated over the
shorter period between that of expected usefulness of
the improvements in question and the residual duration
of the lease. Depreciation is recognised under “Other
operating income (expense)”.

Property and equipment also include payments on
account for the purchase and renovation of assets not
yet part of the production process and therefore not yet
subject to depreciation.

“Operating” property and equipment are represented
by assets held for the provision of services or for
administrative purposes, while property and equipment
held for “investment purposes” are those held to collect
lease instalments and/or held for capital appreciation.
The item also includes rights of use associated with

leased assets and fees for use.
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Recognition criteria

Property and equipment are initially recognised at cost,
including all costs directly attributable to installation of
the asset.

Extraordinary maintenance costs and costs for
improvements leading to actual improvement of the
asset, or an increase in the future benefits generated by
the asset, are attributed to the reference assets, and are
depreciated based on their residual useful life.

Under IFRS 16, leasesare accounted for in accordance with
the right-of-use model, whereby, at the commencement
date, the lessee incurs an obligation to make payments to
the lessor for the right to use the underlying asset for the
term of the lease. When the asset is made available for
use by the lessee, the lessee recognises both the liability

and the right-of-use asset.

Measurement criteria

Following initial recognition, “operating” property and

equipment are recognised at cost, less accumulated

depreciation, and any impairment losses, in line with the

“cost model” illustrated in paragraph 30 of IAS 16. More

specifically, property and equipment are systematically

depreciated each year based on their estimated useful

life, using the straight-line basis method apart from:

= land, regardless of whether this was purchased
separately or was incorporated into the value of the
building, which, insofar as it has an indefinite useful
life, is not depreciated;

= works of art, which are not depreciated as their useful
life cannot be estimated and their value typically
appreciates over time;

= investment property which is recognised at fair value in
accordance with IAS 40.

For assets acquired during the financial year, depreciation

is calculated on a daily basis from the date of entry into

use of the asset. For assets transferred and/or disposed of

during the financial year, depreciation is calculated on a

daily basis until the date of transfer and/or disposal.

At the end of each year, if there is any evidence that

property or equipment that is not held for investment

purposes may have suffered an impairment loss, a

comparison is made between its carrying amount and its

recoverable value, equal to the higher between the fair
value, net of any costs to sell, and the related value in
use of the asset, intended as the present value of future
cash flows expected from the asset. Any impairment
losses are recognised in the income statement under “net
impairment losses on property and equipment”.

If the reasons that led to recognition of the impairment
loss cease to apply, an impairment gain is recognised that
may not exceed the value that the asset would have had,
net of depreciation calculated in the absence of previous
impairment losses.

For investment property, which comes within the scope of
application of IAS 40, the measurement is made at the
market value determined using independent surveys and
the changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement under the item “fair value gains (losses) on
property, equipment and intangible assets”.

The right-of-use asset, recognised in accordance with
IFRS 16, is measured using the cost model under IAS
16 Property, plant and equipment. In this case, the asset
is subsequently depreciated and tested for impairment if

impairment indicators are present.

Derecognition criteria

Property and equipment is derecognised from the
statement of financial position upon disposal thereof or
when the asset is permanently withdrawn from use and

no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

Intangible assets

Classification criteria

This item includes non-monetary assets without physical
substance that satisfy the following requirements:

= they can be identified;

= they can be monitored;

= they generate future economic benefits.

In the absence of one of the above characteristics, the
expense of acquiring or generating the asset internally is
recognised as a cost in the year in which it was incurred.
Intangible assets include software to be used over several
years and other identifiable assets generated by legal or

contractual rights.
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Goodwill is also included under this item, representing
the positive difference between the acquisition cost and
fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired as part of
a business combination. Specifically, an intangible asset
is recognised as goodwill when the positive difference
between the fair value of the assets and liabilities
acquired and the acquisition cost represents the future
capacity of the equity investment to generate profit
(goodwill). If this difference proves negative (badwill),
or if the goodwill offers no justification of the capacity
to generate future profit from the assets and liabilities
income

acquired, it is recognised directly in the

statement.

Measurement criteria

Intangible assets are systematically amortised from the
time of their input into the production process.

With reference to goodwill, on an annual basis (or when
impairment is detected), an assessment test is carried
out on the adequacy of its carrying amount. For this
purpose, the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
is attributed, is identified. The amount of any impairment
is determined by the difference between the goodwill
carrying amount and its recoverable value, if lower. This
recoverable value is equal to the higher amount between
the fair value of the cash-generating unit, net of any
costs to sell, and its value in use. As stated above, any
consequent impairment losses are recognised in the

income statement.

Derecognition criteria

An intangible asset is derecognised from the statement of
financial position at the time of its disposal and if there

are no expected future economic benefits.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

Non-current assets or groups of assets for which a disposal
process has been initiated and whose sale is considered
highly probable are classified under "Non-current assets
held for sale and disposal groups". These assets are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their
fair value, net of disposal costs, with the exception of

certain types of assets (e.g. financial assets falling within

the scope of IFRS 9) for which IFRS 5 specifically requires
that the measurement criteria of the relevant accounting
standard be applied. Income and expenses (net of the
tax effect) relating to groups of assets being disposed of
or recognised as such during the year, are shown in the

income statement as a separate item.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification criteria

This item includes Due to banks, Due to customers and

Securities issued.

Recognition criteria

These financial liabilities are initially recognised when
the deposits are received or when the debt instruments
are issued. Initial recognition is based on the fair value
of the liabilities, increased by the costs/income of the
transaction directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial instrument.

Costs/income  having the  previously mentioned
characteristics that will be repaid by the creditor or that
can be considered as standard internal administrative
costs are excluded.

The initial fair value of a financial liability is usually

equivalent to the amount collected.

Measurement and recognition criteria for income

components

After the initial recognition, the previously mentioned
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost with

the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition criteria

The above financial liabilities are derecognised from the
statement of financial position when they expire or when
they are extinguished. They are derecognised also in the
event of repurchase, even temporary, of the previously-
issued securities. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the extinguished liability and the amount paid
is recognised in the income statement, under “Gain (loss)
from sales or repurchases of: financial liabilities”. If the

Group, subsequent to the repurchase, re-places its own
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securities on the market, said transaction is considered
a new issue and the liability is recognised at the new

placement price.

Financial liabilities held for trading

Classification and recognition criteria

In particular, this category of liabilities includes the
liabilities originating from technical exposures deriving
from security trading activities.

Financial instruments are recognised at the date of their
subscription or issue at a value equal to their fair value,
without including any transaction costs or income directly

attributable to the instruments themselves.

Measurement and recognition criteria for income

components

The financial instruments are measured at fair value with
recognition of the measurement results in the income

statement.

Derecognition criteria

Financial liabilities held for trading are derecognised when
the contractual rights on the related cash flows expire
or when the financial liability is sold with a substantial

transfer of all risks and rewards related to the liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through

profit or loss
At the reporting date, the Bank did not hold any “Financial

liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

Current and deferred taxes

Income taxes, calculated in compliance with prevailing
tax regulations, are recognised in the income statement
on an accruals basis, in accordance with the recognition
in the financial statements of the costs and income that
generated them, apart from those referring to the items
recognised directly in equity, where the recognition of the
tax is made to equity in order to be consistent.

Income taxes are provided for on the basis of a prudential
More

estimate of the current and deferred taxes.

specifically, deferred taxes are determined on the basis

of the temporary differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets are recognised in the financial statements to the
extent that it is probable that they will be recovered based
on the Group's ability to continue to generate positive
taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are accounted for in the
statement of financial position with open balances and
without offsetting entries, recognising the former under
“Tax assets” and the latter under “Tax liabilities”.

With respect to current taxes, at the level of individual
taxes, advances paid are offset against the relevant tax
charge, indicating the net balance under “current tax
assets” or “current tax liabilities” depending on whether

it is positive or negative.

Provisions for risks and charges

In line with the requirements of IAS 37, provisions for
risks and charges cover liabilities, the amount or timing of
which is uncertain, related to current obligations (legal or
implicit), owing to a past event for which it is likely that
financial resources will be used to fulfil the obligation,
on condition that an estimate of the amount required to
fulfil said obligation can be made at the reporting date.
Where the temporary deferral in sustaining the charge is
significant, and therefore the extent of the discounting
will be significant, provisions are discounted at current
market rates.

The provisions are reviewed at the reporting date of the
annual financial statements and the interim financial
statements and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. These are recognised under their own items
in the income statement in accordance with a cost
classification approach based on the “nature” of the
cost. Provisions related to future charges for employed
personnel relating to the bonus system appear under
“personnel expense”. The provisions that refer to risks

‘

and charges of a tax nature are reported as “income
taxes”, whereas the provisions connected to the risk of
potential losses not directly chargeable to specific items
in the income statement are recognised as “net accruals

to provisions for risks and charges”.
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Other information
Post-employment benefits

According to the IFRIC, the post-employment benefits
can be equated with a post-employment benefit of the
“defined-benefit plan” type which, based on IAS 19, is
to be calculated via actuarial methods. Consequentially,
the end of the year measurement of the item in question
is made based on the accrued benefits method using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

This method calls for the projection of the future payments
based on historical, statistical, and probabilistic analysis, as
well as in virtue of the adoption of appropriate demographic
fundamentals. It allows the post-employment benefits
vested at a certain date to be calculated actuarially,
distributing the expense for all the years of estimated
remaining employment of the existing workers, and no
longer as an expense to be paid if the company ceases its
activity on the reporting date.

The actuarial gains and losses, defined as the difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the present
value of the obligation at year end, are recognised in equity.
An independent actuary assesses the post-employment

benefits in compliance with the method indicated above.

Repurchase agreements

“Repurchase agreements” that oblige the party selling
the relevant assets (for example securities) to repurchase
them in the future and the “securities lending”
transactions where the guarantee is represented by cash,
are considered equivalent to swap transactions and,
therefore, the amounts received and disbursed appear
in the financial statements as payables and receivables.
In particular, the previously mentioned “repurchase
agreements” and “securities lending” transactions are
recognised in the financial statements as payables for
the spot price received, while those for investments are
recognised as receivables for the spot price paid. Such
transactions do not result in changes in the securities
portfolio. Consistently, the cost of funds and the income
from the investments, consisting of accrued dividends
on the securities and of the difference between the spot
price and the forward price thereof, are recognised for the

accrual period under interest in the income statement.

Criteria for determining the fair value of financial

instruments

Fair value is defined as “the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants”, at a specific
measurement date, excluding forced transactions.
Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumption
that a company is a going concern without any intention
or need to liquidate, to curtail materially the scale of its
operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.
In the case of financial instruments quoted in active
markets, the fair value is determined based on the deal
pricing (official price or other equivalent price on the last
stock market trading day of the financial year of reference)
of the most advantageous market to which the Group
has access. For this purpose, a financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
In the absence of an active market, the fair value is
determined using measurement techniques generally
accepted in financial practice, aimed at establishing what
price the financial instrument would have had, on the
valuation date, in a free exchange between knowledgeable
and willing parties. Such measurement techniques
require, in the hierarchical order in which they are
presented, the use:

1. of the most recent NAV (Net Asset Value) published
by the management investment company for the
harmonised funds (UCITS - Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities), the
Hedge Funds and the SICAVs;

2. of the recent transaction prices observable in the
markets;

3. of the price indications deducible from infoproviders
(e.g., Bloomberg, Reuters);

4. of the fair value obtained from measurement models
(for example, Discounting Cash Flow Analysis, Option
Pricing Models) that estimate all the possible factors
that influence the fair value of a financial instrument
(cost of money, credit exposure, liquidity risk, volatility,

foreign exchange rates, prepayment rates, etc.) based
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on data observable in the market, also with regards
to similar instruments on the measurement date. If
market data cannot be referenced for one or more risk
factors, metrics internally determined on a historical-
statistical basis are used. The measurement models
are subject to periodic review to guarantee complete
and constant reliability;

5. of the price indications provided by the counterparty
issuer adjusted if necessary to take into account the
counterparty and/or liquidity risk (for example, the
price resolved on by the Board of Directors and/or the
Shareholders for the shares of unlisted cooperative
banks, the unit value communicated by the
management investment company for the closed-end
funds reserved to institutional investors or for other
types of OEICs other than those cited in paragraph 1,
the redemption value calculated in compliance with
the issue regulation for the insurance contracts);

6. for the equity-linked instruments, where the
measurement techniques pursuant to the previous
paragraphs are not applicable: i) the value resulting
from independent surveys if available; ii) the value
corresponding to the portion of equity held resulting
from the company's most recently approved financial
statements; iii) the cost, adjusted if necessary to take
into account significant reductions in value, where
the fair value cannot be reliably determined.

Based on the foregoing considerations and in compliance

with the IFRS, the Group classifies the measurements at

fair value based on a hierarchy of levels that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in the measurements. The
following levels are noted:
= Level 1 - prices (without adjustments) reported on
an active market: the measurements of the financial
instruments quoted on an active market based on
quotations that can be understood from the market;

= Level 2 -the measurement is not based on prices of the
same financial instrument subject to measurement,
but on prices or credit spreads obtained from the
official prices of essentially similar instruments in
terms of risk factors, by using a given calculation
method (pricing model).

The use of this approach translates to the search for

transactions present on active markets, relating to
instruments that, in terms of risk factors, are comparable
with the instrument subject to measurement.
The calculation methods (pricing models) used in the
comparable approach make it possible to reproduce the
prices of financial instruments quoted on active markets
(model calibration) without including discretionary
parameters - i.e. parameters whose value cannot be
obtained from the prices of financial instruments
present on active markets or cannot be fixed at levels
as such to replicate prices present on active markets
- which may influence the final valuation price in a
decisive manner.
= Level 3 - inputs that are not based on observable market
data: the measurements of financial instruments not
quoted on an active market, based on measurement
techniques that use significant inputs that are not
observable on the market, involving the adoption of
estimates and assumptions by management (prices
supplied by the issuing counterparty, taken from
independent surveys, prices corresponding to the
fraction of the equity held in the company or obtained
using measurement models that do not use market data
to estimate significant factors that condition the fair
value of the financial instrument). This level includes

measurements of financial instruments at cost price.

Business combinations

A business combination is the bringing together of separate
entities or businesses into one reporting entity. A business
combination may give rise to an investment relationship
between the parent (acquirer) and the subsidiary (acquiree).
A business combination may also involve the purchase of
the net assets, including any goodwill, of another entity
rather than the purchase of the equity of the other entity
(mergers and contributions). Based on the provisions of IFRS
3, business combinations must be accounted for by applying
the purchase method, which comprises the following phases:
= identification of the acquirer;
= measurement of the cost of the business combination;
= allocation, at the acquisition date, of the cost of the
business combination to the assets acquired and

liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed.
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More specifically, the cost of a business combination

must be determined as the total fair value, at the date

of exchange, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or

assumed, and equity instruments issued, in exchange

for control of the acquiree, and all costs directly

attributable to the business combination.

The acquisition date is the date on which control of the

acquiree is effectively obtained. When this is achieved

through a single exchange transaction, the date of

exchange coincides with the acquisition date.

If the business combination is carried out through

several exchange transactions:

= the cost of the combination is the aggregate cost of
the individual transactions

= the date of exchange is the date of each exchange
transaction (i.e. the date that each individual
investment is recognised in the financial statements
of the acquirer), whereas the acquisition date is the
date on which control of the acquiree is obtained.

The cost of a business combination is allocated by

recognising the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities at their fair values at the

acquisition date.

acquisition date only if they satisfy the following criteria

at that date:

= inthe case of an asset other than an intangible asset,
it is probable that any associated future economic
benefits will flow to the acquirer, and its fair value
can be measured reliably;

* in the case of a liability other than a contingent
liability, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and its fair value can be
measured reliably;

* in the case of an intangible asset or a contingent
liability, its fair value can be measured reliably.

The positive difference between the cost of the

business combination and the acquirer's interest in the

net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities must be accounted for as goodwill.

After the initial recognition, the goodwill acquired in a

business combination is measured at the relevant cost

and is submitted to an impairment test at least once a

year.

If the difference is negative, a new measurement

is made. This negative difference, if confirmed, is

The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and recognised immediately as income in the income
contingent liabilities are recognised separately at the  statement.
( A.3 - DISCLOSURE ON TRANSFERS BETWEEN PORTFOLIOS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS )

A.3.1 Reclassified financial assets: change in business model, carrying amount and interest income

No financial instruments were transferred between portfolios.

A.3.2 Reclassified financial assets: change in business model, fair value and effects on comprehensive income

No financial assets were reclassified.

A.3.3 Reclassified financial assets: change in business model and effective interest rate

No financial assets held for trading were transferred.
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[ A.4 - FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE ]

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A.4.1 Fair value levels 2 and 3: valuation techniques and inputs used

Please refer to the accounting policies.

A.4.2 Processes and sensitivity of measurements

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities due within one year has been assumed to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value, while for those due beyond one year, the fair value is calculated taking into account both

interest rate risk and credit risk.

A.4.3 Fair value hierarchy

The following fair value hierarchy was used in order to prepare the financial statements:

= Level 1- Effective market quotes

The valuation is the market price of said financial instrument subject to valuation, obtained on the basis of

quotes expressed by an active market.
= Level 2 - Comparable Approach
= Level 3 - Mark-to-Model Approach

A.4.4 Other Information

The item is not applicable for the Group.

A.4.5 Fair value hierarchy

A.4.5.1 Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: breakdown by fair value level.

Financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value

L1

L2

L3

L1

L2

L3

. Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

a) financial assets held for trading

b) financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

c) other financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss

. Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

425,966

5,000

551,383

5,000

3. Hedging derivatives

4. Property and equipment

5. Intangible assets

TOTAL

425,966

551,383

1. Financial liabilities held for trading

. Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

. Hedging derivatives

TOTAL
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3
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A.4.5.4 Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value or measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis:

breakdown by fair value level

Assets and liabilities not measured

at fair value or measurgd at fair value CA L1 L2 L3 CA L1 L2 L3
on a non-recurring basis
1. Financial assets measured at 3,142,790(452,969 -12,664,963| 3,112,388 |435,177 -12,677,211
amortised cost
2. Investment property - - - - - - - -
3. Non-current assets held for sale and - - - - - - - -
disposal groups
TOTAL 3,142,790 (452,969 -12,664,963| 3,112,388 |435,177 -12,677,211
1. Financial liabilities measured at 3,282,229 - -13,210,491] 3,416,485 - -13,416,485
amortised cost
2. Liabilities associated with disposal - - - - - - - -
groups
TOTAL 3,282,229 ) °13,210,491| 3,416,485 ) " 13,416,485
\ \. AL I\ J\ AN \. AL J
Key:
CA = carrying amount
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3

A.5 DISCLOSURE CONCERNING “DAY ONE PROFIT/LOSS”

Nothing to report.
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PART B - INFORMATION ON THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

(SECTION 1 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ITEM 10 )

1.1 Cash and cash equivalents: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

a. Cash 1,930 652

b. Demand deposits with Central Banks - -

TOTAL 1,930 652

SECTION 3 - FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -
ITEM 30

L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3
1. Debt instruments 425,348 - -1 550,219 - -
1.1 Structured instruments - - - - - -
1.2 Other debt instruments 425,348 - -1 550,219 - -
2. Equity instruments 618 - 5,000 1,164 - 5,000
3. Financing - - - - - -
Total 425,966 | -1 5,000) 551,383 )| - . 5,000)
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3
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3.2 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: breakdown by debtor/issuer

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Debt instruments 425,348 550,219

a. Central Banks - -

425,348 550,219

b. Public administrations

c. Banks _ -

d. Other financial companies - -

of which: insurance companies - -

e. Non-financial companies - -
5,618 6,164
5,000 5,000
618 1,164
618 1,164

2. Equity instruments

a. Banks

b. Other issuers:

- other financial companies

of which: insurance companies - -

- non-financial companies - -

- other - -

4. Financing - -

a. Central Banks - -

b. Public administrations - -

c. Banks - -

d. Other financial companies - -

of which: insurance companies - -

e. Non-financial companies - -

f. Households - -

430,966 556,383

Total

3.3 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: gross amount and total impairment

losses
Total |Ic:25:!ment Overall
fwhich partial
of whic ;
First instruments |Second| Third | First | Second | Third W”t(i*))ﬁs
stage with low stage | stage | stage stage stage
credit risk
Debt instruments 425,554 425,554 - 206 - - -
Financing - - - - - - -
Total at 31.12.2020 425,554 425,554 - 206 - - -
Total at 31.12.2019 550,373 550,373 - 154 - - -
of which: purchased ororiginated X X - X - - -
credit-impaired financial assets  {_ A A L L L
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(SECTION 4 - FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST - ITEM 40 )

4.1 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of the loans and receivables with banks

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value
) of which: ) of which:
First and | 11,4 | Purchased First and | 1iq | Purchased
second | oo5e [OF Originated| L1 | L2 L3 second | go5e [OF Originated| L1 | L2 L3
stage g _credit- stage g _credit-
impaired impaired
A. Loans and receivables with
Central Banks 40,275 - - 40,275 19,966 - - 19,966
1. Term deposits - - - X| X X - - - X[ X X
2. Minimum reserve 40,269 - - X[ X X 19,912 - - X| X X
3. Reverse repurchase i . ) x| x X ) ) ) x| x X
agreements
4. Other 6 - - X X X 54 - - X X X
B. Lo_ans and receivables 52.206 _ . 52,206 61,544 - - 61,544
with banks
1. Financing 52,206 - - 52,206 61,544 - - 61,544
1.1 Current accounts and 41,957 ) ) x| x X 53,011 ) ) x| x X
demand deposits
1.2. Term deposits 3,129 - - X[ X 3,129 - - - X| X X
1.3. Other financing: 7,120 - - X[ X X 8,533 - - X| X X
- Reverse repurchase i . ) x| x X ) ) ) x| x X
agreements
- Finance leases - - - X[ X X - - - X[ X X
- Other 7,120 - - X X X 8,533 - - X X X
2. Debt instruments - - -1 X| X X - - - -
2.1 Structured instruments - - -1 X[ X X - - - -
2.2 Other debt instruments - - -1 X[ X X - - - -
Total 92,481 - - 92,481 81,510 - - 81,510
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3
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4.2 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of the loans and receivables with customers

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Financing mainly includes the loans and receivables of
companies that supply goods and services mainly to the
Public Administration (ASL — local health authorities —
and Territorial Entities) and receivables related to the
pension and salary-backed loans segment.

Factoring receivables include default interest recognised
on an accruals basis for € 50.1 million.

For classification purposes analyses are performed, some
of which are complex, aimed at identifying positions
which, subsequent to disbursement/acquisition, show
evidence of possible impairment based on both internal
information, associated with the performance of credit
positions, and external information, associated with the
specific sector in question.

Measuring loans and receivables with customers is an
activity with a high degree of uncertainty and subjectivity

involving the use of measurement models that take into

account numerous quantitative and qualitative elements.
These include the historical data for collections, expected
cash flows and the related expected recovery times,
the existence of indicators of possible impairment, the
valuation of any guarantees, and the impact of risks
associated with the sectors in which the Bank’s customers
operate.

Subsequent to their recognition, factoring receivables are
measured at amortised cost, based on the present value
of the estimated cash flows of the principal, or for all
receivables whose recovery strategy involves legal action,
based on the present value of the cash flows, in addition to
the principal, of the default interest component that will
accrue up to the expected date of collection on amounts
considered recoverable.

As a matter of prudence, given the limited amount of

historical data available, the recovery percentages used
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Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value
of which: of which:
: purchsed . purchsed
ovond. | Third or L | L2 L3 ovons | Third or L1 2| L3
Stage stage |originated Stage stage | originated
g credit- g credit-
impaired impaired
1. Financing 2,397,310 | 205,136 31,699 - -| 2,646,322 | 2,387,301 208,399 27,527 2,595,700
1.1 Current accounts 15,296 239 - Xl X X 30,106 56 - X| X X
1.2 Reverse repurchase agreements 5,546 - - X X X - - - X| X X
1.3 Loans 70,553 1,290 - X[ X X 6,753 1,970 - X[ X X
1.4 Credit cards, personal
loans and salary- and 913,311 7,880 - Xl X X 796,368 6,012 - X[ X X
pension-backed loans
1.5. Finance leases - - - X X X - - - X| X X
1.6 Factoring 949,547 | 179,445 31,699 X[ X X 963,352 | 188,869 27,527 X X X
1.7 Other financing 443,057 16,282 - Xl X X 590,722 11,492 - X[ X X
2. Debt instruments 447,864 - 452969 | X X 435,177 -| 436,634
2.1 Structured instruments - - - -1 X X - - -
2.2 Other debt instruments 447,864 - -] 452969 X X 435,177 -| 436,634
Total | 2,845,174 | 205,136 31,699 | 452969 X 2,646,322 | 2,822,478 208,399 27,527 | 436,634 2,595,700
Key:
L1 = Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3



for territorial entities and the public sector (statistical
series starting from 2008) are based on a confidence
interval of the twentieth percentile, while for ASL - local
health authorities (statistical series starting from 2005)
a confidence interval of the fifth percentile is used. The
estimated recovery percentages and expected collection
dates are updated based on annual analyses in light of
the progressive consolidation of the historical data series,
which provide increasingly solid and robust estimates. In
the fourth quarter of 2020, the expected rates of recovery
of default interest on factoring, in light of the statistical
evidence that benefits from the progressive consolidation
of the historical data series, have increased, as have
the related collection times used. The update of these
estimates led to the recognition of higher total interest
income of € 1.0 million (€ 4.8 million at 31 December
2019). The decrease in the effect resulting from the
updated recovery estimates is a consequence of the fact
that the historical series over the last few years have
settled nearer to the average collection percentages and
have stabilised in terms of the number of positions. As
a result, the expected recovery percentage calculated by

the statistical model is now quite stable and does not

fluctuate significantly. The amount of the stock of default
interest from legal actions accrued at 31 December 2020,
relevant for the allocation model, was € 101 million (€
104 million at the end of the fourth quarter of 2020), €
155 million when including troubled local authorities, a
component for which default interest is not allocated in the
financial statements, whereas the loans and receivables
recognised in the financial statements amount to € 50.1
million. Therefore, the amount of default interest accrued
but not yet recognised in the income statement is € 105
million.

Securities are composed primarily of Italian government
securities with an average duration of approximately 14.8
months. The HTCS portfolio amounted to € 425 million
at 31 December 2020 (€ 550 million at 31 December
2019). The associated valuation reserve was positive at
the end of the year, amounting to € 2.6 million before the
tax effect. In addition to government securities, the HTCS
portfolio also includes 200 shares of the Bank of Italy,
amounting to € 5 million, and the Axactor Norway shares,
which at 31 December 2020 had a negative fair value
reserve of € 0.5 million, resulting in a year-end amount

of € 0.6 million.
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4.3 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown by debtor/issuer of the loans and receivables with

customers

First and Third p%fr(\:l\lhhaligga First and Third p%frg’hggga

second or originated second or originated
stage stage  |credit-impaired stage stage  credit-impaired

assets assets

1. Debt instruments 447,864 - - 435,177 - -
a) Public administrations 447,864 - - 435,177 - -
b) Other financial companies - - - - - -
of which: insurance companies - - - - - -
c) Non-financial companies - - - - - -
2. Financing to: 2,397,310 | 205,136 31,699 | 2,387,301| 208,399 27,527
a) Public administrations 1,031,084 | 142,283 31,699 | 1,281,129 142,646 27,527
b) Other financial companies 52,316 7 - 60,481 4 -
of which: insurance companies 9 5 - 9 3 -
c) Non-financial companies 285,716 | 52,334 - 210,459| 56,872 -
d) Households 1,028,194 10,512 - 835,232 8,877 -
Total | 2,845,174 | 205,136 31,699 | 2,822,478| 208,399 27,527
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4.4 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: gross amount and total impairment losses

Total impairment
losses

First stage
Overall
~ of which Second | Third First | Second | Third partial
instruments stage stage stage stage stage | write-offs
with low *)

credit risk
Debt instruments 448,083 448,083 - - 219 - - -
Financing 2,362,910 976,673 |134,194|251,164| 6,534 781 | 46,027 -
Total at 31.12.2020 2,810,993 | 1,424,756 |134,194|251,164| 6,752 781 | 46,027 -
Total at 31.12.2019 2,785,568 | 1,248,699 |124,252|245,618| 5,167 667 | 37,217 -
of which: purchased or originated X X | 20,294| 12,109 X 171 533 -
credit-impaired financial assets

4.4a Loans measured at amortised cost subject to Covid-19 support measures: gross amount and total impairment

losses
Total impairment
losses
First stage
) —
of which Overall
instruments Second Third First Second Third partial
with low stage stage stage stage stage write-offs
credit risk (*)
1. Forborne loans in compliance 3,797 -| 2,507 5,896 99 9 851 -
with the EBA Guidelines
2. Loans subject to other - - - - - - - -
forbearance measures
3. New loans 65,492 - - - 216 - - -
Total at 31.12.2020 69,289 -| 2,507 5,896 315 9 851 -
Total at 31.12.2019 L - - - A -) - ) N - A -)
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(SECTION 7 - EQUITY INVESTMENTS - ITEM 70 )

7.1 Equity investments: information on investment relationships

4 Y Y \
Reg|§tered Interest % % of votes available
office
A. Fully-controlled companies
1. S.F. Trust Holdings Ltd London 100% 100%
2. Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.l. Milan 100% 100%
3. ProntoPegno S.p.A. L Milan A 75% A 75% )
4 Y Y \
Reglstered Interest % % of votes available
office
A. Joint ventures
1. EBNSISTEMA FINANCE S.L. Madrid 50% 50%
. N \. J

7.3 Significant equity investments: accounting information

4 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \
Q
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A. Fully-
controlled
companies
1. S.F. Trust
) - 4 536 | 1926 65 - 79 (118) (117) - (117) - (117)
Holdings Ltd -
2. Largo
Augusto Servizi - -| 28631 | 12718 305 | 1455 (130) 611) 69 98 - 98 - 98
e Sviluppo S.r.l.
3. ProntoPegno
S.p.A. 1822 | 81983 | 32959 | 74305 | 5927 | 6027 | 2836 (620) | (2664)| (1,936) -| (1936) -1 2023
| I\, AN \ \ \ \ AN N\ N\ N\ N\ I\, \ J
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7.5 Equity investments: changes

. Opening balance

31.12.2020

31.12.2019

786

B. Increases

1,000

B.1 Purchases

1,000

B.2 Impairment gains

B.3 Revaluations

B.4 Other increases

. Decreases

786

C.1 Sales

786

C.2 Impairment losses

C.3 Write-offs

C.4 Other decreases

D.

Closing balance

E.

Total revaluations

F. Total impairment losses

At the end of 2020, Banca Sistema entered into
an equal partnership with EBN Banco de Negocios
S.A., taking a stake in the capital of EBNSISTEMA

Finance S.L., allowing it to enter the Spanish factoring

Madrid-based company.
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market. Banca Sistema acquired an equity investment
in EBNSISTEMA through a capital increase of € 1

million which gave Banca Sistema a 50% stake in the



(SECTION 9 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - ITEM 90 )

9.1 Operating property and equipment: breakdown of the assets measured at cost

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

1. Owned 28,673 27,373
a) land 8,529 8,416
b) buildings 18,966 18,211
c) furniture 345 329
d) electronic equipment 833 417
e) other -

2. Under finance lease 3,934 1,629
a) land -

b) buildings 3,136 905
c) furniture -
d) electronic equipment -
e) other 798 724

TOTAL 32,607 29,002

of which: obtained from the enforcement of guarantees received -

Property and equipment are recognised in the financial statements in accordance with the general acquisition cost
criteria, including the related charges and any other expenses incurred to place the assets in conditions useful for the
Bank, in addition to indirect costs for the portion reasonably attributable to assets that refer to the costs incurred,

as at the end of the year.
Depreciation rates:

= Office furniture: 12%
= Furnishings: 15%
= Electronic machinery and miscellaneous equipment: 20%

= Assets less than Euro 516: 100%
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9.6 Operating assets: changes

- 2 2\ 2 R \
Land Buildings | Furniture elfquicp}rr:])QrIﬁ Other Total
A. Gross opening balances 8,416 20,542 1,384 2,215 1,194 33,751
A.1 Total net impairment losses - 1,426 1,055 1,798 470 4,749
A.2 Net opening balances 8,416 19,116 329 417 724 29,002
B. Increases 113 4,281 72 573 450 5,489
B.1 Purchases - 2,963 37 533 424 3,957
B.2 Capitalised improvement costs - 91 - - - 91
B.3 Impairment gains - - - - - -
B.4 Fair value gains recognised in - - - - - -
a. equity - - - - - -
b. profit or loss - - - - - -
B.5 Exchange rate gains - - - - - -
B.6 Transfers from investment property - - - - - -
B.7 Other increases 113 1,227 - 3 26 1,369
B.8 Business combination transactions - - 35 37 - 72
B.9 First-time adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - - -
C. Decreases - 1,295 68 145 376 1,884
C.1 Sales - - - - - -
C.2 Depreciation - 1,295 66 145 371 1,877
C.3 Impairment losses recognised in - - - - - -
a. equity - - - - - R
b. profit or loss
C.4 Fair value losses recognised in - - - - - -
a. equity - - - - - -
b. profit or loss - - - - - -
C.5 Exchange rate losses - - - - - -
C.6 Transfers to: - - - - - -
a. investment property - - - - - -
b. non-current assets held for - - - - - -
sale and disposal groups
C.7 Other decreases - - 2 - 5 7
C.8 Business combination transactions - - - - - -
D. Net closing balance 8,529 22,102 333 845 798 32,607
D.1 Total net impairment losses - 2,721 1,123 1,943 846 6,633
D.2 Gross closing balance 8,529 24,823 1,456 2,788 1,644 39,240
E. Measurement at cost L 8,529 A 22,102 A 333 A 845 ) 798 32,607 )
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[SECTION 10 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS - ITEM 100

10.1 Intangible assets: breakdown by type of asset

Finite Indefinite Finite Indefinite
useful life | useful life | useful life | useful life
A.1 Goodwill X 32,355 X 3,920
A.1.1 attributable to the owners of the Parent X 32,355 X 3,920
A.1.2 attributable to non-controlling interests X - X -
A.2 Other intangible assets 370 - 1 -
A.2.1 Assets measured at cost: 370 - 1 -
a. Internally developed assets - - - -
b. Other 370 - 1 -
A.2.2 Assets measured at fair value: - - - -
a. Internally developed assets - - - -
b. Other - - - -

TOTAL L 370 | 32,355 | 1] 3,920 |

The other intangible assets are recognised at purchase cost
including related costs, and are systematically amortised
over a period of 5 years. The item mainly refers to software.
Intangible assets refer to goodwill of € 32.4 million, broken
down as follows:
= the goodwill originating from the merger of the
former subsidiary Solvi S.r.l. which took place in
2013 amounting to € 1.8 million;
= the goodwill generated by the acquisition of Atlantide
S.p.A. on 3 April 2019 amounting to € 2.1 million;

= the goodwill amounting to € 28.4 million arising
from the acquisition of the former Intesa Sanpaolo
collateralised lending business unit completed on 13

July 2020.
Goodwill impairment tests were conducted using the “Value
in use” method which is based on an estimate of expected
cash flows for the period 2021-2024. The CGU identified
for the goodwill of the former Solvi and Atlantide is the
Bank, while ProntoPegno as a whole has been identified for

the goodwill of the former Intesa Sanpaolo business unit.

The main parameters used for estimation purposes were as follows:

Risk Free Rate 1.1%
Equity Risk Premium 5.5%
Beta 1.4
Cost of equity 8.7%
Growth rate “g” 1.4%
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The estimated value in use obtained based on the
parameters used and the growth assumptions is,
for all goodwill amounts, higher than the respective
equity amounts at 31 December 2020. Furthermore,
considering that the value in use was determined via
estimates and assumptions that may introduce elements
of uncertainty, sensitivity analyses - as required by
IFRS - were performed with the purpose of verifying
the variations of the results previously obtained as a
function of the basic assumptions and parameters.

In particular, the quantitative exercise was completed

by a stress test of the parameters related to the

growth rate and the discount rate of the expected
cash flows (quantified in an isolated or simultaneous
movement of 50 bps), that confirmed the absence of
impairment indicators, confirming a value in use once
again significantly greater than the carrying amount of
goodwill in the financial statements.

Considering all the above, with no qualitative trigger
events that suggest a need for impairment having been
identified, the conditions necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on the goodwill carrying amounts in
the financial statements at 31 December 2020 do not

exist.

The allocation of the purchase price for the former Intesa Sanpaolo collateralised lending business unit is provided

below:

PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

In thousands of Euro

Purchase price 34,000
Price adjustment (991)
Final price (A) 33,009
Adjusted Business Unit “Equity” (B) 3,209
Residual value to be allocated (A+B) 29,800
Loans and receivables with customers (1,224)
Post-employment benefits (166)
Property and equipment 25
Allocation to goodwill 28,435

The final price amounted to € 33 million following the
change in the business unit's imbalance (excess value)
between the closing date and the signing date of the
transaction, and an adjustment recognised by the
counterparty in relation to the valuation of the loans

and receivables. As required by IFRS 3, this excess

value was allocated to the financial statements items
that had a difference in fair value with respect to their
carrying amount and, in particular, to the item “Loans
and receivables with customers”, leaving the unallocated
balance under goodwill, which is subject to an annual

impairment test.
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10.2 Intangible assets: changes

Other intangible Other intangible
assets: internally assets: Other
developed
EEE—
Goodwill FIN INDEF FIN INDEF Total

A. Opening balance 3,920 - -| 3,104 - 7,024

A.1 Total net impairment losses - - -1 3,103 - 3,103

A.2 Net opening balances 3,920 - - 1 - 3,921

B. Increases 28,435 - - 424 - 28,859

B.1 Purchases - - - 22 - 22

B.2 Increases in internally developed assets - - - - - -

B.3 Impairment gains - - - - - ;

B.4 Fair value gains recognised in: - - - - - -

- equity - - - - - ,

- profit or loss - - - - - -

B.5 Exchange rate gains - - - - - i

B.6 Other increases - - - - - .

B.7 Business combination transactions 28,435 - - 402 - 28,837

C. Decreases - - - 55 - 55

C.1 Sales - - - - - -

C.2 Impairment losses - - - 55 - 55

- Amortisation - - - 55 - 55

- Impairment losses - - - - - _

- equity - - - - - ;

- profit or loss - - - - - -

C.3 Fair value losses recognised in: - - - - - -

- equity - - - - - ,

- profit or loss - - -

C.4 Transfers to disposal groups - - - - - -

C.5 Exchange rate losses - - - - - -

C.6 Other decreases - - - - - -

D. Net closing balance 32,355 - - 370 - 32,725

D.1 Total net impairment losses - - -1 3,158 - 3,158

E. Gross closing balance 32,355 - -1 3,528 - 35,883
F. Measurement at cost L 32,355 | - L - 370 | - A 32,725

Key - Fin: finite useful life | Indef: indefinite useful life
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[SECTION 11 - TAX ASSETS AND TAX LIABILITIES - ITEM 110 OF ASSETS AND ITEM 60 OF LIABILITIES j

Below is the breakdown of the current tax assets and current tax liabilities.

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Current tax assets 12,124 10,995
IRES prepayments 8,863 8,249
IRAP prepayments 3,149 2,609
Other 112 137
Current tax liabilities (14,057) (13,208)
Provision for IRES (10,827) (9,658)
Provision for IRAP (2,970) (3,523)
Provision for substitute tax (260) (27)
Total (1,933) (2,213)

11.1 Deferred tax assets: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Deferred tax assets through profit or loss: 9,712 8,143
Impairment losses on loans 2,376 2,756
Non-recurring transactions 414 427
Other 6,922 4,960
Deferred tax assets through equity: 539 333
Non-recurring transactions 239 247
HTCS securities 176 -
Other 124 86
Total 10,251 8,476

11.2 Deferred tax liabilities: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Deferred tax liabilities through profit or loss: 14,033 14,060
Uncollected default interest income 13,775 14,000
Other 258 60
Deferred tax liabilities through equity: 875 160
HTCS securities 875 160
Total 14,908 14,220
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11.3 Changes in deferred tax assets (through profit or loss)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 8,143 6,907
2. Increases 4,615 2,068
2.1 Deferred tax assets recognised in the year - 2,068

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. impairment gains - -

d. other 4,615 2,068

e. business combination transactions - -

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -
2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 3,046 832
3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised in the year - 195

a. reversals - -

b. impairment due to non-recoverability - -

c. changes in accounting policies - -

d. other 3,046 195

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -
3.3 Other decreases - 637

a. conversion into tax assets pursuant to Law 214/2011 - -

b. other - 637

4. Closing balance 9,712 8,143

11.4 Change in deferred tax assets pursuant to Law 214/2011

1. Opening balance

3,429

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

3,376

2. Increases

53

3. Decreases

400

3.1 Reversals

3.2 Conversions into tax assets

a) arising on loss for the year

b) arising on tax losses

3.3 Other decreases

400

4. Closing balance
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11.5 Changes in deferred tax liabilities (through profit or loss)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 14,060 12,222
2. Increases 299 2,049
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the year 299 2,049

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 299 2,049

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -
2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 326 211
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities derecognised in the year 54 68

a. reversals - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 54 68

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -
3.3 Other decreases 272 143

4. Closing balance 14,033 14,060

11.6 Change in deferred tax assets (through equity)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 333 910
2. Increases 222 21
2.1 Deferred tax assets recognised in the year 222 21

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 222 21

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -
2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 16 598
3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised in the year 16 598

a. reversals - -

b. impairment due to non-recoverability - -

c. due to changes in accounting policies - -

d. other 16 588

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -
3.3 Other decreases - 10

4. Closing balance 539 333
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11.7 Change in deferred tax liabilities (through equity)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 160 9
2. Increases 875 160
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the year 875 160

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 875 160

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -

2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 160 9
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities derecognised in the year 160 9
a. reversals - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 160 9

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -

3.3 Other decreases - -

4. Closing balance 875 160
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[ SECTION 13 - OTHER ASSETS - ITEM 130 J

13.1 Other assets: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Tax advances 9,447 7,584
Other 3,380 4,172
Prepayments not related to a specific item 2,225 1,962
Work in progress 2,144 2,944
Trade receivables 1,491 2,335
Security deposits 181 76
Leasehold improvements 141 187
Total 19,039 19,260

Tax advances, which account for almost half of this item, are mainly composed of advances relative to virtual stamp

duties and withholding taxes on interest expense, and substitute tax on gains from securities trading.
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LIABILITIES

(SECTION 1 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST - ITEM 10 j

1.1 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of due to banks

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Fair value Fair value
Carrying Carrying
amount L1 L2 L3 amount L1 L2 L3
1. Due to Central banks 689,686 X| 358,250
2. Due to banks 179,962 X 30,109
2.1 Currer_1t accounts and demand X X X 20 X X X
deposits
2.2 Term deposits 125,178 X X X 30,089 X X X
2.3 Financing 52,510 X X X X X X
2.3.1 Repurchase agreements X X X X X X
2.3.2 Other 52,510 X X X X X X
2.4 Commitments to repurchase own X X X i X X X
equity instruments
2.5 Lease liabilities
2.6 Other payables 2,274 X X X - X X X
TOTAL 869,648 869,648 388,359 388,359
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3

1.2 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of due to customers

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Fair value Fair value
Carrying Carrying
amount || 1 L2 L3 | @mount | L2 L3
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 633,461 X X X| 681,500 X X X
2. Term deposits 1,216,417 X X X|1,325,741 X X X
3. Financing 306,884 X X X| 544,200 X X X
3.1 Repurchase agreements 235,230 X X X| 457,070 X X X
3.2 Other 71,654 X X X 87,130 X X X
4. Commitments to repurchase own
o X X X - X X X
equity instruments
5. Lease liabilities - -
6. Other payables 7,482 X X X 159 X X X
TOTAL 2,164,244 2,164,244 | 2,551,600 2,551,600
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3
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1.3 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of the securities issued

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Fair value Fair value
Carrying Carrying
amount L1 L2 L3 amount L1 L2 L3
A. Securities X X - X
1. bonds 248,338 X X 248,338 | 476,527 | 176,657 X 300,642
1.1 structured - X X - - X
1.2 other 248,338 X X 248,338 | 476,527 | 176,657 X 300,642
2. other securities X X - X
1.1 structured - X X - - X
1.2 other - X X - - X
TOTAL 248,338 X X 248,338 | 476,527 | 176,657 X 300,642
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 =Level 3

This item includes the subordinated securities detailed below, the senior bond 2018-2021 (private placement)

of € 91.9 million and the senior shares of the ABS in the Quinto Sistema Sec. 2019 and BS IVA securitisations

subscribed by third-party institutional investors.

1.4 Breakdown of subordinated loans/securities

Y N\ Y Y \
Issuer Type of issue Coupon Maturity Nominal IFRS
yp P date amount | amount
Until 17 June 2023,
fixed rate at 7%
) . Banca Sistema | Tier 1 subordinated
Tier 1 Capital S.p.A loans with mixed rate Perpetual 8,000 8,016
el From 18 June 2023,
6-month Euribor +5%
variable rate
Banca Sistema i i
Tier 2 Capital - S”b‘;;‘;'r:‘:t(‘#efrzd)'”ary 6-month Euribor + 4.5% | 30/03/2027 | 19,500 | 19,506
.p.A.
Banca Sistema i i
Tier 2 Capital - S”bﬁgi'::t;?efg’)'”ary Fixed rate at 7% | 20/06/2029 | 18,000 | 18,041
.p.A.
TOTAL 45,500 | 45,563
AN J N AN J
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(SECTION 6 - TAX LIABILITIES - ITEM 60 J

The breakdown as well as the change in the deferred tax liabilities were illustrated in Part B Section 11 of assets in

these notes to the financial statements.

(SECTION 8 - OTHER LIABILITIES - ITEM 80 )

8.1 Other liabilities: breakdown

31.12.2020 31.12.2020

Payments received in the reconciliation phase 73,626 54,893
Accrued expenses 11,440 10,820
Tax liabilities with the Tax Authority and other tax authorities 5,243 9,471
Work in progress 26,993 9,365
Trade payables 6,203 6,660
2019 dividends due to shareholders 7,479 -
Finance lease liabilities 3,976 1,710
Due to employees 943 903
Pension repayments 908 699
Other 83 141
TOTAL 136,894 94,662

(SECTION 9 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - ITEM 90 j

9.1 Post-employment benefits: changes

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

A. Opening balance 3,051 2,402
B. Increases 1,786 1,057
B.1 Accruals 610 537
B.2 Other increases 236 302
B.3 Business combination transactions 940 218

C. Decreases 409 408
C.1 Payments 343 273
C.2 Other decreases 66 135

D. Closing balance 4,428 3,051
TOTAL 4,428 3,051
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9.2 Other Information
The actuarial amount of post-employment benefits was calculated by an external actuary, who issued an appraisal.

The other decreases refer to the actuarial gain accounted for during the year. The payments made refer to post-

employment benefits paid during the year.

The technical valuations were conducted on the basis of the assumptions described in the following table:

Annual discount rate 0.34%
Annual inflation rate 0.80%
Annual post-employment benefits increase rate 2.100%
Annual salary increase rate 1.00%

The discount rate used for determining the present value  during the valuation month. To this end, a choice was
of the obligation was calculated, pursuant to IAS 19.83, made to select the yield with a duration comparable to

from the Iboxx Corporate AA index with 10+ duration  the duration of the set of workers subject to valuation.

(SECTION 10 - PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES - ITEM 100 j

10.1 Provisions for risks and charges: breakdown

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

. Provisions for credit risk related to commitments and financial guarantees issued 26 44

. Provisions for other commitments and other guarantees issued -

1
2
3. Internal pension funds -
4

. Other provisions for risks and charges 23,404 22,253
4.1 legal and tax disputes 4,264 4,481
4.2 personnel expense 8,726 7,726
4.3 other 10,414 10,046

TOTAL 23,430 22,297
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10.2 Provisions for risks and charges: changes

Provisions | Y A

for other Other

commitments Pension provisions Total
and other funds for risks and
guarantees charges
issued

A. Opening balance 44 22,253 22,297
B. Increases - 12,719 12,719
B.1 Accruals - 11,270 11,270
B.2 Discounting - - -
B.3 Changes due to discount rate changes - - -
B.4 Other increases - 1,424 1,424
B.5 Business combination transactions - 25 25
C. Decreases 18 11,568 11,586
C.1 Utilisations - 3,252 3,252
C.2 Changes due to discount rate changes - - -
C.3 Other decreases 18 8,316 8,334
D. Closing balance 26 23,404 23,430
. | J\. J

10.3 Provisions for credit risk related to commitments and financial guarantees issued

Provisions for credit risk related to commitments
and financial guarantees issued

St e | T o
Commitments to disburse funds - - - .
Financial guarantees issued 26 - - 26
Total L 26 | - - A 26

10.5 Internal defined benefit pension funds

Nothing to report.
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10.6 Provisions for risks and charges - other provisions

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Legal and tax disputes 4,264 4,481
Personnel expense 8,726 7,726
Other 10,414 10,046

TOTAL 23,404 22,253

Legal and tax disputes include a provision for possible

liabilities arising from past acquisitions and therefore

recognised in accordance with IFRS 3 for an amount of €

3.1 million and, for the remainder, provisions for lawsuits

where the risk of losing the case is considered probable.

“Personnel expense” includes:

= the provisions made for variable remuneration to be
paid to employees in subsequent years, for which the
due date and/or amount are uncertain;

= an estimate of labour-related disputes;

= the amount resulting from the actuarial valuation
of the non-compete agreement under IAS 19, as
described below.

The calculation method can be summarised in the

following steps:

= projection for each employee in service at the valuation
date of the NCA that has already been accrued, and the
future obligations up to an uncertain payment date;

= determination for each employee of the NCA

payments that the Group will have to make in the

event of employment termination due to dismissal

and retirement in case of fulfilment of the NCA

commitments;

= discounting, at the valuation date, of each probable
payment.

In particular, the annual discount rate used for determining
the present value of the obligation was calculated,
pursuant to IAS 19.83, from the Iboxx Corporate AA
index with 10+ duration during the valuation month. To
this end, a choice was made to select the yield with a
duration comparable to the duration of the set of workers
subject to valuation.

The item “Other” includes an estimate of charges
related to possible liabilities to assignors that have yet
to be settled for € 4.7 million, the estimated earn-out
to be paid to the sellers linked to the achievement of
production volume targets for the next three years (the
liability is currently estimated to be € 1.3 million and is
offset against goodwill), and an estimate for amounts due
to agents of € 1 million. Also included is the provision for
claims and the provision to cover the estimated adverse
effect of possible early repayments (also known as
pre-payments) on CQS portfolios purchased from third-
party intermediaries and on the assigned portfolio, for an

amount of € 3.4 million.
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SECTION 13 - EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE PARENT - ITEMS 120, 130, 140, 150,

160, 170 AND 180

13.1 “Share capital” and “Treasury shares”: breakdown

The share capital of Banca Sistema is composed of
80,421,052 ordinary shares with a nominal amount of
€ 0.12 for a total paid-in share capital of € 9,651
thousand. All outstanding shares have regular dividend

entitlement from 1 January. Based on evidence from

the Shareholders' Register and more recent information

available, as at 18 February 2021 the shareholders with

stakes of more than 5%, the threshold above which Italian

law (art. 120 of the Consolidated Law on Finance) requires

disclosure to the investee and Consob, were as follows:

SHAREHOLDERS % HELD
SGBS S.r.l. 23.10%
Garbifin S.r.l. 0.54%
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Alessandria 7.91%
Chandler SARL 7.48%
Fondazione Sicilia 7.40%
Moneta Micro Entreprises 5.12%
Market* 48.45%

(*) Includes treasury shares held by the Bank.

At 31 December 2020, after the launch in 2019 of a plan for the repurchase of treasury shares designed to create

a stock of securities to be used for the incentive plan for the Group's key personnel, the Bank held 168,669 shares

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

(equal to 0.21% of the share capital).

For changes in reserves, please refer to the statement of changes in equity.
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1. Share capital 9,651 9,651
2. Share premium 39,100 39,100
3. Reserves 122,608 98,617
4. (Treasury shares) (234) (234)
5. Valuation reserves 1,287 267
6. Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 9,297 32
7. Profit for the year 25,777 29,719

TOTAL 207,486 177,152



13.2 Share capital - Parent's number of shares: changes

Ordinary

Other

A. Opening balance

80,421,052

- fully paid-in

80,421,052

- not fully paid-in

A.1 Treasury shares (-)

168,669

A.2 Outstanding shares: opening balance

80,252,383

B. Increases

B.1 New issues

against consideration:

- business combination transactions

- conversion of bonds

- exercise of warrants

- other

bond issues:

- to employees

- to directors

- other

B.2 Sale of treasury shares

B.3 Other increases

C. Decreases

C.1 Cancellation

C.2 Repurchase of treasury shares

C.3 Disposal of equity investments

C.4 Other decreases

D. Outstanding shares: closing balance

80,252,383

D.1 Treasury shares (+)

168,669

D.2 Closing balance

80,421,052

- fully paid-in

80,421,052

- not fully paid-in
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13.4 Income-related reserves: other information

In compliance with art. 2427(7 bis) of the Italian Civil Code, below is the detail of the equity items revealing the

origin and possibility of use and distributability.

~

Vs

N\

I;T?lu;_tzzszzt Possible use Available portion

A. Share capital 9,651 - -

B. Equity-related reserves: - - -

Share premium reserve 39,100 A,B,C -

Reserve to provide for losses - - -

C. Income-related reserves: - - -

Legal reserve 1,930 B -

Valuation reserve 1,287 - -
Revaluation reserve under art. 110 Law Decree 104/20 1,300 A

Negative goodwill 1,774 A,B,C -

Retained earnings 117,996 A,B,C -

Reserve for treasury shares 200 - -

Reserve for future capital increase - -

D. Other reserves (5692) - -

E. Treasury shares (234) - -

TOTAL 172,412 - -

Profit for the year 25,777 - -

TOTAL EQUITY 198,189 - -

Undistributable portion - - -

Distributable portion - - -

\ A A J

Key

A: for share capital increase

B: to cover losses

C: for distribution to shareholders

(SECTION 14 - EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - ITEM 190

14.1 Breakdown of item 210 “Equity attributable to non-controlling interests”

31.12.2020

Equity investments in consolidated companies with significant non-controlling interests

31.12.2019

TOTAL 9,297
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( OTHER INFORMATION

1. Commitments and financial guarantees issued

Nominal amount of commitments
and financial guarantees issued

4 \

SFt'aréte Sft;‘égd Iggg 31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019
Commitments to disburse funds 421,159 24,765 10,389 456,313 246,489
a) Central Banks - - - - -
b) Public administrations 220,610 - 3,250 223,860 -
c) Banks - - - - -
d) Other financial companies 109,919 - - 109,919 121,035
e) Non-financial companies 88,342 24,536 7,139 120,017 120,372
f) Households 2,288 229 - 2,517 5,082
Financial guarantees issued 6,724 - - 6,724 3,119
a) Central Banks - - - - -
b) Public administrations 20 - - 20 -
c) Banks 2,446 - - 2,446 2,446
d) Other financial companies - - - - -
e) Non-financial companies 4,161 - - 4,161 627
f) Households 97 - - 97 45

The item “financial guarantees issued - banks” includes the commitments taken on with the interbank guarantee

systems; the item “lrrevocable commitments to disburse funds” is related to the equivalent value of the securities to

receive for transactions to be settled.

3. Assets pledged as collateral for liabilities and commitments

1. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

2. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

71,350

192,101

3. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

285,987

469,875

4. Property and equipment

of which: Property and equipment included among inventories
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6. Management and trading on behalf of third parties

|III|HHHHHIIII|

1. Execution of orders on behalf of customers -

a) purchases -
1. settled N
2. unsettled -

b) sales -
1. settled N
2. unsettled -

2. Individual asset management -

3. Securities custody and administration 1,262,864

a) third-party securities held as part of depositary bank services (excluding asset management)

1. securities issued by the reporting entity -

2. other securities -

b) third-party securities on deposit (excluding asset management): other 32,207
1. securities issued by the reporting entity 4,063
2. other securities 28,144
c) third-party securities deposited with third parties 32,207
d) securities owned by the bank deposited with third parties 1,230,658

4. Other transactions -
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PART C - INFORMATION ON THE INCOME STATEMENT

(SECTION 1 - INTEREST - ITEMS 10 AND 20

1.1. Interest and similar income: breakdown

Ve

Debt
instruments

Y Y ' Y 2

Other 2020 | 2019

Financin .
g transactions

1. Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss:

1.1 Financial assets held for trading

1.2 Financial assets designated at fair value

through profit or loss

1.3 Other financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or loss

2. Financial assets measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income

3. Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

1,868

91,977 93,845| 107,646

3.1 Loans and receivables with banks

- 167 167 146

3.2 Loans and receivables with customers

1,868

91,810 93,678 107,500

4. Hedging derivatives

X . _ _

5. Other assets

X X - - -

6. Financial liabilities

4,222 2,690

TOTAL

98,067 | 110,336

of which: interest income on impaired assets

of which: interest income on finance leases

/\ /\ /\. /\ J/

The total contribution of the Factoring Division to interest
income was € 65.2 million, equal to 71% of the entire
loans and receivables portfolio (compared to 77% at 31
December 2019), to which the commission component
associated with the factoring business and the revenue
generated by the assignment of receivables from the
factoring portfolio need to be added.

Subsequent to their recognition, factoring receivables
are measured at amortised cost, based on the present
value of the estimated cash flows of the principal, or
for all receivables whose recovery strategy involves
legal action, based on the present value of the cash
flows,

in addition to the principal, of the default

interest component that will accrue up to the expected

date of collection on amounts considered recoverable.
As a matter of prudence, given the limited amount of
historical data available, the recovery percentages used
for territorial entities and the public sector (statistical
series starting from 2008) are based on a confidence
interval of the twentieth percentile, while for ASL - local
health authorities (statistical series starting from 2005)
a confidence interval of the fifth percentile is used. The
estimated recovery percentages and expected collection
dates are updated based on annual analyses in light of
the progressive consolidation of the historical data series,
which provide increasingly solid and robust estimates. In
the third quarter of 2020, the expected rates of recovery

of default interest on factoring, in light of the statistical
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evidence that benefits from the progressive consolidation
of the historical data series, have increased, as have
the related collection times used. The update of these
estimates led to the recognition of higher total interest
income of € 1.0 million (€ 4.8 million in December
2019). The decrease in the effect resulting from the
updated recovery estimates is a consequence of the fact
that the historical series over the last few years have
settled nearer to the average collection percentages and
have stabilised in terms of the number of positions. As

a result, the expected recovery percentage calculated by

1.3 Interest and similar expense: breakdown

the statistical model is now quite stable and does not
fluctuate significantly. The amount of the stock of default
interest from legal actions accrued at 31 December 2020,
relevant for the allocation model, was € 98 million (€ 107
million at the end of the previous year), € 155 million
when including troubled local authorities, a component
for which default interest is not allocated in the financial
statements, whereas the loans and receivables recognised
in the financial statements amount to € 50.1 million.
Therefore, the amount of default interest accrued but not

yet recognised in the income statement is € 105 million.

- Y Y e Y \
Liabilties | Securities | 9" | 2020 2019
1. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 15,962 7,646 - 23,608 29,516
1.1 Due to Central banks - X X - -
1.2 Due to banks 528 X X 528 579
1.3 Due to customers 15,434 X X 15,434 21,007
1.4 Securities issued X 7,646 X 7,646 7,930
2. Financial liabilities held for trading - - - - -
3. Financial liabilities designated at fair value . ) ) ) )
through profit or loss
4. Other liabilities and provisions X X - - -
5. Hedging derivatives X X - - -
6. Financial assets X X X 188 126
TOTAL 15,962 7,646 - 23,796 29,642
of which: interest expense related to lease liabilities 35 - - - 21
. J\ I\, I\ I\, J
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(SECTION 2 - NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME - ITEMS 40 AND 50

2.1 Fee and commission income: breakdown

2020 2019

a. guarantees issued 36 13
b. credit derivatives - -
c. management, brokerage and consultancy services: 152 124
1. trading in financial instruments - -

2. foreign currency transactions - -

3. individual asset management 10 10

4. securities custody and administration 1 2

5. depositary services - -

6. placement of securities 100 72

7. order collection and transmission 41 40

8. consultancy services - -
8.1. on investments - -

8.2. on financial structure - -

9. distribution of third party services - -
9.1. asset management - -
9.1.1. individual - -

9.1.2. collective - -

9.2. insurance products - -

9.3. other products - -

d. collection and payment services 54 63
e. services for securitisations - -
f. services for factoring 17,715 18,409
g. tax collection services - -
h. management of multilateral trading facilities - -
i. keeping and management of current accounts 96 91
j. other services 6,275 3,790
TOTAL 24,328 22,490

Fee and commission income of € 24.3 million increased
by 8.2% thanks to the contribution of commissions from
the Collateralised Lending Division. Fee and commission
income from factoring should be considered together
with interest income, since it makes no difference from
a management point of view whether profit is recognised
in the commissions and fees item or in interest in the
without recourse factoring business.

Commissions on collection activities, related to the

service of reconciliation of third-party invoices collected
from Public Administration are down slightly on the
previous year.

Item j) Other services is detailed in the following table,
and consists mainly of the fees and commissions of the
Collateralised Lending Division mentioned above, fees
and commissions arising from the origination of salary-
and pension-backed loan (CQS/CQP) products, as well as

servicing for third-party factoring transactions.
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2020 AONR)

Fees and commissions from servicing of third-party factoring transactions 1,138 1,247
CQ origination fees and commissions 2,353 1,797
Collateralised lending fees and commissions 2,719 -
Other fees and commissions (residual) 65 746

TOTAL 6,275 3,790

2.2 Fee and commission expense: breakdown

2020 2019

a) guarantees received 41 -
b) credit derivatives - -
¢) management and brokerage services: 6,122 4,719
1. trading in financial instruments b2 70

2. foreign currency transactions - -

3. asset management - -
3.1 own portfolio - -

3.2 third party portfolios - -

4. securities custody and administration - -

5. placement of financial instruments - -

6. off-premises distribution of securities, products and services 6,070 4,649

d) collection and payment services 199 222
e) other services 538 1,481
TOTAL 6,900 6,422

Fees and commissions from “off-premises distribution of securities, products and services” consist mainly of fees

paid to agents who place salary- and pension-backed loan (CQ) products.
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[SECTION 3 - DIVIDENDS AND SIMILAR INCOME - ITEM 70

3.1 Dividends and similar income: breakdown

2020

Y

2019

dividends

similar
income

dividends

similar
income

A. Financial assets held for trading

Other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

227 -

227

D. Equity investments

TOTAL

227 -

227

(SECTION 4 - NET TRADING INCOME - ITEM 80

4.1 Net trading income: breakdown

Gains
(A)

Trading
income
(B)

Losses
(C)

Trading
losses
(D)

Y . \
Net trading

income
[(A+B) -
(C+D)]

1. Financial assets held for trading -

57

(1)

56

1.1 Debt instruments -

57

57

1.2 Equity instruments -

1.3 OEIC units -

1.4 Financing -

1.5 Other -

(1)

(1)

2. Financial liabilities held for trading -

2.1 Debt instruments -

2.2 Payables -

2.3 Other -

Financial assets and liabilities:
exchange rate losses

3. Derivatives -

3.1 Financial derivatives: -

On debt instruments and interest rates -

On equity instruments and equity indexes -

On currencies and gold X

Other -

3.2 Credit derivatives -

of which: natural hedges connected
to the fair value option

TOTAL -

(1)

37




(SECTION 6 - GAIN FROM SALES OR REPURCHASES - ITEM 100

6.1 Gain from sales or repurchases: breakdown

Gain Loss Net gain Gain Loss Net gain
A. Financial assets - - - - - -
1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 5,351 | (1,137) 4,214 1,106 - 1,106
1.1 Loans and receivables with banks - - - - - -
1.2 Loans and receivables with customers 5,351 (1,137) 4,214 1,106 - 1,106

2. Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income 5,327 (26) 5,301 4,140 | (1,530) 2,610
2.1 Debt instruments 5,327 (26) 5,301 4,140 (1,530) 2,610
2.2 Financing - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS (A)| 10,678 | (1,163) 9,515 5,246 | (1,530) 3,716
B. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - - - - - -
1. Due to banks - - - - - -
2. Due to customers - - - - - -
3. Securities issued 16 - 16 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES (B) | 16 | A 16 | A e )

(SECTION 8 - NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES/GAINS DUE TO CREDIT RISK - ITEM 130

8.1 Net impairment losses due to credit risk related to financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown

Impairment losses (1) Impairment gains (2) ( Y )
First and Third stage First and Third | 2020 | 2019
second ———— second t
stage write-offs| Other stage stage
A. Loans and receivables with banks 2 - - (8) - (6) 17
- financing 2 - - (8) - (6) 17
- debt instruments - - - - - - -
of which: purchased or originated
credit-impaired loans and receivables - - - - - - -
B. Loans and receivables with customers: 1,959 - 19,034 (34) (5) | 10,954 | 8,933
- financing 1,862 - | 9,034 (34) (5) | 10,857 | 8,882
- debt instruments 97 - - - - 97 51
of which: purchased or originated
credit-impaired loans and receivables - - - - - - -
Total 1,961 - 19,034 42) (5) | 10,948 | 8,950
. AN N\ I\, I\, /\ \ J
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8.1a Net impairment losses due to credit risk related to loans measured at amortised cost subject to Covid-19

support measures: breakdown

First and ,ﬂiftag; 31.T(1)tza.|2%t20 31.T§)t2a.|26(13tl9
stage write-offs| Other
1. Forborne loans in compliance with (27) - 483 456 -
the EBA Guidelines
2. Loans subject to other forbearance measures - - - - -
3. New loans 216 - - 216 -
Total L 189 | - )| 483 | 672 | -

8.2 Net impairment losses due to credit risk related to financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income: breakdown

Impairment losses (1) Impairment gains (2) Y
First and Third stage First and Third 2020 2019
second " second t
stage write-offs| Other stage stage
A. Debt instruments 52 - - - - 52 105
B. Financing - - - - - - -
- To customers - - - - - - -
- To banks - ) ) ) ) - )
Of which: purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets - - - - - - -
Total L 52 | - A - A - A - A 52 L 105
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(SECTION 12 - ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - ITEM 190

12.1 Personnel expense: breakdown

1) Employees 23,837 21,563
a) wages and salaries 13,764 11,926

b) social security charges 3,791 3,142

¢) post-employment benefits - R

d) pension costs - -

e) accrual for post-employment benefits 903 884

f) accrual for pension and similar provisions: - 884

- defined contribution plans - -

- defined benefit plans - ;

g) payments to external supplementary pension funds: 394 339

- defined contribution plans 394 339

- defined benefit plans - ;

h) costs of share-based payment plans - -

i) other employee benefits 4,985 5,272

2) Other personnel 444 458
3) Directors and statutory auditors 1,249 1,145
4) Retired personnel - -
5) Recovery of costs for employees of the Bank seconded to other entities - -
6) Reimbursement of costs for employees of other entities seconded to the Bank 2 -
TOTAL 25,532 23,166

12.2 Average number of employees by category

Employees
a) Senior managers 24
b) Managers 43
¢) Remaining employees 135
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12.5 Other administrative expenses: breakdown

Other administrative expenses (€,000)

2020 2019

Consultancy (4,872) (4,200)
IT expenses (5,382) (5,765)
Servicing and collection activities (2,951) (2,992)
Indirect taxes and duties (2,174) (2,355)
Insurance (707) (487)
Other (5676) (463)
Expenses related to management of the SPVs (669) (530)
Car hire and related fees (633) (651)
Advertising (594) (586)
Rent and related fees (948) (627)
Expense reimbursement and entertainment (387) (838)
Infoprovider expenses (514) (638)
Membership fees (299) (310)
Property management expenses (453) (343)
Audit fees (294) (368)
Telephone and postage expenses (158) (139)
Logistics expenses (143) (75)
Stationery and printing (74) (61)
Total operating expenses (21,828) (21,428)
Resolution Fund (2,007) (1,1406)
Merger-related costs (1,699) (365)

TOTAL (25,534) (22,939)

Administrative expenses of € 25.5 million increased mainly
due to the contribution to the Resolution Fund which
accounts for € 0.9 million of the increase in costs and the
non-recurring acquisition-related costs from the acquisition
of the business unit. These costs primarily comprise the
registration tax of € 1 million, and IT and logistics costs.

The increase in consulting expenses is mainly due to

the costs incurred for legal expenses related to pending

lawsuits and enforceable injunctions for the recovery of
receivables and default interest from debtors of the Public
Administration.

The 2020 merger-related costs refer to costs incurred in
connection with the acquisition of the collateralised lending
business unit completed in July. The 2019 merger-related
costs include the costs for the integration and merger of
Atlantide into the Bank.
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[SECTION 13 - NET ACCRUALS TO PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES - ITEM 200 j

13.2 Net accruals for other commitments and other guarantees issued: breakdown

2020

Net accruals for other commitments and other guarantees 18 (36)
TOTAL 18 | (36)

13.3 Net accruals to other provisions for risks and charges: breakdown

2020 2019

Provisions for risks and charges - other provisions and risks (2,538) (1,960)

Release of provisions for risks and charges - -
TOTAL (2,538) (1,960)

The item accruals to provisions for risks is mainly attributable to the measurement and review of contingent liabilities

for ongoing lawsuits, and the assessment and quantification of possible future risks.

(SECTION 14 - NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - ITEM 210 )

14.1 Net impairment losses on property and equipment: breakdown

( Y Y Y A
Depreciation Im;laalrment Impairment gains| Carrying amount
0sses
(a) (c) (@+b-c)
(b)
A. Property and equipment

1. Operating assets 1,875 - - 1,875
= Owned 823 - - 823
= Right-of-use assets acquired under a lease 1,052 - - 1,052
2. Investment property - - - -
= Owned - - - -
= Right-of-use assets acquired under a lease - - - -
3. Inventories - - - -
TOTAL 1,875 - - 1,875

. J\ I\, AN J
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[SECTION 15 - NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON INTANGIBLE ASSETS - ITEM 220

15.1 Net impairment losses on intangible assets: breakdown

e Y A" ] Y ™
Amortisation | Impairment losses Impal.rment Carrying amount
gains
(a) (b) (@+b-c)
(c)
A. Intangible assets

A.1 Owned 81 - - 81

= Developed internally - - - -

= Other 81 - - 81

A.2 Right-of-use assets acquired under a lease - - - -

TOTAL 81 - - 81
. AN I\, /\ J

(SECTION 16 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSE - ITEM 230

16.1 Other operating expense: breakdown

2020 2019

Amortisation of leasehold improvements 27 42
Other operating expense 1,729 2,071
TOTAL 1,756 2,113

16.2 Other operating income: breakdown

2020 2019

Recoveries of expenses on current accounts and deposits for sundry taxes 518 333
Recoveries of sundry expenses 157 106
Other income 1,341 906

TOTAL 2,016 1,345

“Recoveries of expenses on current accounts and deposits for sundry taxes” include the amounts recovered from

customers for the substitute tax on medium and long-term loans and for the stamp duty on current account and

security statements of account.
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[SECTION 20 - GAINS ON SALES OF INVESTMENTS - ITEM 280

20.1 Gains on sales of investments: breakdown

A. Property

- Gains on sale

- Losses on sale

B. Other assets 1,090 (8)
- Gains on sale 1,090 (13)
- Losses on sale - 5
Net gain 1,090 (8)
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(SECTION 21 - INCOME TAXES - ITEM 300 )

21.1 Income taxes: breakdown

2020 2019

1. Current taxes (-) (12,745) (12,442)

2. Changes in current taxes of previous years (+/-) 139 852

3. Decrease in current taxes for the year (+) - -

3.bis Decrease in current taxes for the year due to tax assets pursuant - -

to Law no. 214/2011 (+)

4. Changes in deferred tax assets (+/-) 1,569 1,236
5. Changes in deferred tax liabilities (+/-) 28 (1,838)
6.  Tax expense for the year (-) (-1+/-2+3+3.bis+/-4+/-5) (11,009) (12,192)

21.2 Reconciliation between theoretical and effective tax expense

( Y Y 3\
IRES (CORPORATE INCOME TAX) Taxable (Céfp%fate %
income income tax)
Theoretical IRES expense 37,511 (10,316) 27.50%
Permanent increases 1,788 (492) 1.31%
Temporary increases 10,923 (3,004) 8.01%
Permanent decreases (13,178) 3,625 -9.66%
Temporary decreases (149) 41 -0.11%
Effective IRES expense 36,895 (10,146) 27.05%
IRAP (REGIONAL BUSINESS TAX) Taxable | I3A" ) %
Income | hysiness tax)
Theoretical IRAP expense 37,511 (2,089) 5.57%
Permanent increases 61,180 (3,408) 9.08%
Temporary increases 7,164 (399) 1.06%
Permanent decreases (59,305) 3,303 -8.81%
Temporary decreases - - -0.00%
Effective IRAP expense 46,550 (2,593) 6.91%
= Other tax expense - - -
Total effective IRES and IRAP expense L 83,445 A (12,739) )& 33.96% )
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(SECTION 22 - POST-TAX PROFIT (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - ITEM 320

—

22.1 Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations: breakdown

2020 2019

Gains (losses) on sales - 565
Taxes and duties - (3)
Profit (loss) - 562

22.2 Breakdown of income taxes from discontinued operations

1. Current taxes (-) - (3)

2. Changes in deferred tax assets (+/-) - -

3. Changes in deferred tax liabilities (-/+) - -

4. Income taxes for the year (-1+/-2+/-3) - (3)
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(SECTION 24 - OTHER INFORMATION ]

Nothing to report.

(SECTION 25 - EARNINGS PER SHARE )
Earnings per share (EPS) 2020 2019
Profit for the year (thousands of Euro) 25,746 29,956
Average number of outstanding shares 80,421,052 80,279,993
Basic earnings per share (basic EPS) (in Euro) 0.321 0.373
Diluted earnings per share (diluted EPS) (in Euro) 0.321 0.373

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares of Banca Sistema (numerator) by

the weighted average number of ordinary shares (denominator) outstanding during the year.
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PART D - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Breakdown of comprehensive income

2020 2019

10. Profit for the year 25,777 29,719
Items, net of tax, that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -

20. Equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

a) fair value gains (losses) - _

b) transfers to other equity items - -

30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(changes in own credit rating):

a) fair value gains (losses) - -

b) transfers to other equity items - -

40. Hedging of equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

a) fair value gains (losses) - hedged item - -

b) fair value gains (losses) - hedging instrument - -

50. Property and equipment - -

60. Intangible assets - -
70. Defined benefit plans (124) (32)
80. Non-current assets held for sale - -

90. Share of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investments: - -

100. Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Items, net of tax, that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -

110. Hedges of foreign investments: - -

a) fair value gains (losses) - _

b) reclassification to profit or loss - -

c) other changes - -

120. Exchange rate gains (losses): - -

a) fair value gains (losses) - -

b) reclassification to profit or loss - -

c) other changes - -
130. Cash flow hedges: - -
a) fair value gains (losses) - -

b) reclassification to profit or loss - -

c) other changes - -

of which: net position gains (losses) - -

140. Hedging instruments (non-designated elements): - -

a) fair value gains (losses) - -

b) reclassification to profit or loss - -

c) other changes - -
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150. Financial assets (other than equity instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income: 1,430

1,144

a) fair value gains 1,092 325

b) reclassification to profit or loss - -

- impairment losses due to credit risk 52 104

- gains/losses on sales - 1,001

c) other changes - -

160. Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups: - -

a) fair value gains (losses) - -

b) reclassification to profit or loss - -

c) other changes - -

170. Share of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investments: - -

a) fair value gains (losses) - _

b) reclassification to profit or loss

- impairment losses - -

- gains/losses on sales - -

c) other changes - -

180. Income taxes on items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

190. Total other comprehensive income 1,020 1,398

200. Comprehensive income (10+190) 26,797 31,117

210. Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests - -

220. Comprehensive income attributable to the owners of the parent 26,797 31,117
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PART E - INFORMATION CONCERNING RISKS AND RELATED HEDGING POLICIES

(SECTION 1 - CONSOLIDATION RISKS

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A. CREDIT QUALITY

A.1 Impaired and unimpaired loans: carrying amounts, impairment losses, performance and business breakdown

A. 1.1 Breakdown of financial assets by portfolio and by credit quality (carrying amounts)

4 Y Y Y \ ) \
g
8 S 3 3
2 o 28 | g8 £¢
8 > | 53 | E3 2 3 g
S g 28 | -8 Eg °
e = | 885 | 25| 5%
o - = 5
1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost 27,1141 128,080 | 49,942 | 546,227 | 2,391,428 | 3,142,791
2. Financial assets m_eas_ured at fair value through ) i i i 425,348 425,348
other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets designated at fair value ) i i i i i
through profit or loss
4. Other financial assets mandatorily measured ) i i i i i
at fair value through profit or loss
5. Financial assets held for sale - - - - - -
Total at 31.12.2020 | 27,114 | 128,080 | 49,942 | 546,227 | 2,816,776 | 3,568,139
Total at 31.12.2019 | 30,544 | 123,306 | 54,549 | 709,093 | 2,745,115| 3,662,607
. N\ \ AN J J/ J/
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B. Disclosure of structured entities (other than

securitisation companies)

B.1 Consolidated structured entities

At 31 December 2020 there were no such cases.

B.2. Unconsolidated structured entities

At 31 December 2020 there were no such cases.

B.2.1. Prudentially consolidated structured entities

At 31 December 2020 there were no such cases.

B.2.2. Other structured entities

At 31 December 2020 there were no such cases.

(SECTION 2 - PRUDENTIAL CONSOLIDATION RISKS)

1.1 Credit risk

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. General aspects

In order to manage the significant risks to which it is or

could be exposed, the Banca Sistema Group has set up a

risk management system that reflects the characteristics,

size and complexity of its operations.

In particular, this system hinges on four core principles:

= suitable supervision by relevant bank bodies and
departments;

= satisfactory risk management policies and procedures;

= suitable methods and instruments to identify, monitor
and manage risks, with suitable measuring techniques;
thorough internal controls and independent reviews.

In order to reinforce its ability to manage corporate risks,

the Bank established the Risk and ALM Committee - a

committee independent of the Board of Directors, which

supports the CEO in defining strategies, risk policies and

profitability targets.

The Risk Committee continuously monitors the relevant

risks and any new or potential risks arising from changes

in the working environment or forward-looking operations.

With reference to the new regulation in matters of the

operation of the internal control system, in accordance
with the principle of collaboration between the control
functions, the Internal Control and Risk Management
Committee (a Board committee) was assigned the role of
coordinating all the control functions.

The Risk Department of the Parent is responsible for the
guidance, coordination and management of the Group’s
risks.

The methods used to measure, assess and aggregate
risks are approved by the Board of Directors, based on
proposals from the Risk Department, subject to approval
by the Risk Committee. In order to measure "Pillar 1 risks",
the Group has adopted standard methods to calculate the
capital requirements for Prudential Regulatory purposes.
In order to evaluate non-measurable “Pillar 2 risks”, the
Group adopts - where possible - the methods stipulated
under Supervisory regulations or those established by
trade associations. If there are no such indications,
standard market practices by operators working at a level
of complexity and with operations comparable to those of
the Bank are assessed.

With reference to the new provisions in matters of
regulatory supervision (15th update of circular no. 263 -
New prudential supervisory provisions for banks), a series
of obligations on risk management and control, including
the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) and the regulatory
instructions defined by the Basel Committee were
introduced. The Bank has tied the strategic objectives
to the RAF. The key ratios and the respective levels were
assessed and any revisions needed were made while
defining the bank's annual objectives.

In particular, the RAF was designed with key objectives
to verify that over time, the business grows and develops
observing capital strength and liquidity obligations,
implementing monitoring and alert mechanisms and
related series of actions that allow prompt intervention in
case of significant discrepancies.

The structure of the RAF is based on specific indicators
so-called Key Risk Indicators (KRI) which measure the
Group's solvency in the following areas:

= Share capital;

= Liquidity;

Quality of the loans and receivables portfolio;
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= Profitability;

= QOther specific risks the Group is exposed to.

Target levels, which are adjusted according to the expected
development of the business in the Plan and/or the Budget
reviews, the level | thresholds, defined as “warning”
thresholds, that trigger discussion at Risk Committee level
and subsequent communication to the Board of Directors
and the level Il thresholds, that require direct discussion
in the Board of Directors’ meeting to determine the actions
to be taken are associated with the various key indicators.
The level | and Il thresholds are defined with scenarios of
potential stress with respect to the plan's objectives and
on dimensions having a clear impact for the Group.
Starting from 1 January 2014, the Group used an
integrated reference framework both to identify its own
risk appetite and for the internal process entailing the
determination of the capital adequacy (Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process - ICAAP). Starting in 2017,
it also implemented the Internal Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment Process (ILAAP).

As concerns this matter, the Bank fulfils the public
disclosure requirements with the issuing of Circular
no. 285 of 17 December 2013 “Prudential supervisory
provisions for banks” in which the Bank of Italy transposed
Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD 1V) of 26 June 2013. This
regulation, together with that contained in Regulation
(EU) no. 575/2013 (the so-called “CRR") incorporates
the standards defined by the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision (the so-called “Basel I11”).

The prudential supervisory provisions provide for the banks
the possibility to determine the weighting coefficients for
the calculation of the capital requirement with respect to
credit exposure within the standardised approach based
on the creditworthiness ratings issued by External Credit
Assessment Institutions (ECAI) of the Bank of Italy.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group uses the appraisal
issued by the ECAI “DBRS”, for the exposures to
Central Authorities, Territorial Entities and Public Sector
Institutions, whereas, as concerns the valuations related to
the regulatory business segment, it uses the agency “Fitch
Ratings Ltd".

The identification of a reference ECAI does not represent

in any way, in subject matter or in purposes, an assessment

on the merit of the opinions made by the ECAI or a support
of the methodologies used, for which the External Credit
Assessment Institutions remain solely responsible.
The assessments issued by the rating agencies do not
exhaust the creditworthiness assessment process that the
Group performs with regard to its customers; rather they
represent a further contribution to define the information
framework regarding the credit quality of the customer.
The  satisfactory appraisal of the  borrower’s
creditworthiness, with regards to capital and income, and
of the correct remuneration of the risk, are made based
on documentation acquired by the Group; the information
acquired from the Bank of Italy Central Credit Register and
from other infoproviders, both when decisions are made
and during the subsequent monitoring, complete the
informational framework.
For Banca Sistema, credit risk is one of the Group’s main
components of overall exposure; the loans and receivables
portfolio predominantly consists of National Institutions of
the Public Administration, such as local health authorities/
Hospitals, Territorial entities (Regions, Provinces and
Municipalities) and Ministries that, by definition, entail a
very limited default risk.
The main components of Banca Sistema Group’s operations
that generate credit risk are:
= Factoring activities (with and without recourse);
= Medium-term corporate loans (with guarantee from
SACE or the National Guarantee Fund - FNG);
= Acquisition without recourse of salary-/pension-backed
loans;

= Collateralised Lending (mainly secured by gold).

2. Credit Risk Management Policies

2.1 Organisational aspects

The Group’s organisational model provides that the
preliminary credit assessment procedure be performed
carefully in accordance with the decision-making powers
reserved to the decision-making bodies.

In order to maintain the high credit quality of its loans
and receivables portfolio, the Bank, following the
divisionalisation process, has set up separate Credit

Committees for the two Factoring and CQ Divisions, within
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which decisions may be taken up to pre-defined credit
mandates, while a CEO Credit Committee has been set up
for transactions that exceed the powers of the individual
Divisions. At the same time, the Credit Coordination
Committee was introduced, which makes it possible to
ensure consistency in the granting of credit and close
monitoring of individual positions. Level Il activities
relating to risk control are centralised in the Parent’s Risk
Department which also coordinates with the Compliance,
Anti-Money Laundering and Risk Department of the
ProntoPegno subsidiary for risk-related activities.
In light of the above, the analyses conducted for the
granting of credit are carried out by the Bank’s Underwriting
Departments, which report to their respective Divisions.
For the Factoring Division, the Department performs
assessments focused on the separate analysis and
extension of credit to counterparties (assignor and debtor)
and on managing the related financial transactions. This
takes place in all normal phases of the credit process,
summarised as follows:
= “analysis and assessment”: the gathering of
quantitative and qualitative information from the
counterparties under examination and within the
system allows an opinion of the party’s reliability to
be obtained and is helpful in quantifying the proposed
line of credit;
= ‘“deliberation and formalisation”: once the proposal has
been deliberated upon, the contractual documentation
to be signed by the counterparty is prepared;
= “monitoring the relationship”: the continuous control
of the counterparties benefiting from the credit allows
any anomalies to be identified and consequentially
prompt intervention.
Credit risk is mainly generated as a direct result of the
definitive acquisition of credit from the customer company
versus the insolvency of the assigned debtor. In particular,
the credit risk generated by the factoring portfolio
essentially consists of public entities.
With regard to each credit acquired, Banca Sistema
performs, via the Out-of-Court Collection and Legal
Collection Departments, both of which report to the Credit
Department of the Factoring Division, activities described

further on in order to verify the credit status, and whether

or not there are any impediments to the payment of the

invoices to be assigned, and the date scheduled for the

payment thereof.

Specifically, the structure endeavours:

= to verify that each credit is certain, liquid and
collectable, i.e. there are no disputes or complaints
and that there is no further request for clarification or
information with regard to said credit and should there
be any, that said requests are promptly satisfied;

= to verify that the debtor has received and recognised
in its system the related deed of assignment, i.e. it
is aware that the credit has been assigned to Banca
Sistema;

= to verify that the debtor, where provided for by the
assignment agreement and by the purchase offer, has
formalised its acceptance of the assignment of the
related credit or has not rejected it in accordance with
law;

= to verify that the debtor has received all the
documentation required to proceed with the payment
(copy of invoice, orders, bills, transportation documents,
etc.) and that it has recognised the corresponding debt
in its system (existence of the credit);

= to verify c/o the local and/or regional institutions: the
existence of specific allocations, available cash;

= to verify the payment status of the credits via meetings
c/o the Public Administrations and/or debtor agencies,
telephone contacts, emails, etc. in order to facilitate
the ascertainment and the removal of any obstacles
that could delay and/or impede payment.

With regard to the SME Loans product, beginning in

February 2017, it was decided to exit this segment of

the market as well as the run-off of prior exposures in the

portfolio. On this basis, credit risk is associated with the

inability of the two counterparties involved in the loan to

honour their financial commitments, i.e.:

= the debtor (SME);

= the Guarantee Fund (the Government of Italy).

The type of loan follows the usual operating process

concerning the preliminary assessment, the disbursement

and the monitoring of the credit.

In particular, two separate due-diligence procedures are

performed on this type of loan (one by the Bank and the
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other by Mediocredito Centrale, so-called MCC) on the

borrower of funds.

The debtor's insolvency risk is mitigated by direct (i.e. that

referring to an individual exposure), explicit, unconditional

and irrevocable guarantee by the Guarantee Fund, the sole

Manager of which is MCC.

As regards the CQ Division, this activity is carried out

through the direct origination of loans mainly through

agents/brokers or through the acquisition of salary-/pension-

backed loan portfolios. The credit risk is associated with

the inability of the three counterparties involved in the

loan process to honour their financial commitments, i.e.:

= the employer (ATC);

= the financial assigning company;

= the insurance company.

The insolvency risk of the employer (ATC) / debtor is

generated in the following cases:

= default of employer (e.g.: bankruptcy);

= the debtor losing his job (e.g.: resignation/ dismissal
of the debtor) or reduction of remuneration (e.g.:
redundancy fund);

= death of the debtor.

The risks described above are mitigated by the mandatory

subscription of life and employment insurance policies.

In detail:

= the employment risk policy fully covers any insolvency
deriving from the reduction of the debtor’s remuneration
whereas, in case of default by the employer or debtor’s
loss of job, the coverage is limited to the portion of
the residual debt in excess of the post-employment
benefits accrued;

= the life risk policy provides that the insurance company
will intervene to cover the portion of the residual
debt expiring subsequent to death; any instalments
previously not settled remain instead incumbent upon
by the heirs.

The Bank is subject to the insolvency risk of the insurance

company in the event that a claim is made upon a loan.

In order to mitigate this risk, the Bank requires that the

outstanding loans and receivables portfolio be insured

by several insurance companies observing the following

terms:

= an individual company with no rating or with rating

lower than Investment Grade may insure a maximum
of 30% of the cases;
= an individual company of Investment Grade may insure
a maximum of 40% of the cases.
The employer insolvency risk is generated in the event that
a case is retroceded back to the employee, which must
therefore, repay the credit to the Bank. The Framework
Agreement signed with the employer provides for the
possibility of returning the credit in the cases of fraud on
the part of the employer/debtor or in any case, of non-
observance, on the part of the employer, of the criteria
underwritten in the Framework Agreement.
As concerns the financial instruments held on its own
account, the Bank performs security purchase transactions
regarding ltalian government debt, which are allocated
based on the investment strategy, to the HTC, HTCS and
HTS portfolios.
With reference to the aforementioned transactions the
Bank identified and selected specific IT applications to
manage and monitor the treasury limits on the securities
portfolio and to set up the second level controls.
The Treasury Department, operating within the limits
allowed by the Board of Directors, conducts said

transactions.

Effects of the Covid-19 pandemic
Regarding credit risk, Banca Sistema responded positively
to all initiatives aimed at supporting the real economy
implemented by the EU Government. All forbearance
measures are established to respond as quickly as possible
to the adverse impact caused by the temporary slowdown
in the economic cycle and the related potential impact on
liquidity. The potential impact on the Bank’s risk profile is
mitigated:

* by obtaining government guarantees that are consistent
with the mechanisms put in place by the various
governments;

= through an ex-ante and ongoing assessment of the

customer’s risk profile.

2.2 Management, measurement and control systems
The Group sets effective Credit Risk Management as

a strategic objective via instruments and processes
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integrated to ensure a correct credit management in
all phases (processing, disbursement, monitoring and
management, intervening on loans with credit quality
problems).

By involving the various central structures of Banca
Sistema and through the specialisation of the resources
and the segregation of duties at each decision-making
level, it seeks to guarantee a high degree of efficiency and
standardisation in overseeing credit risk and monitoring
the individual positions.

With specific reference to the monitoring of credit
activities, the Bank, via the collection meetings, assesses
and inspects the loans and receivables portfolio based
upon the guidelines defined within the “collection
policy”. The framework related to the above credit risk ex-
post monitoring sets the objective of promptly identifying
any anomalies and/or discontinuities and evaluating the
persistence of risk profiles, in line with the strategic
indications provided.

The purchase activities of government securities
classified among HTCS financial assets (formerly
classified as available-for-sale) continued during 2020
in relation to the credit risk associated with the bond
securities portfolios. Said financial assets, which in
virtue of their classification fall within the perimeter
of the “banking book” although outside of the bank’s
traditional investment activity, are sources of credit risk.
This risk consists in the issuer’s inability to redeem, upon
maturity, all or part of the bonds subscribed.

The securities held by Banca Sistema consist exclusively
of Italian government securities, with an average duration
of less than two years for the overall portfolio.
Furthermore, the formation of a portfolio of highly liquid
assets is also expedient for anticipating the trend of the
prudential regulations in relation to the governance and
management of liquidity risk.

As concerns counterparty risk, Banca Sistema’s
operations call for extremely prudent reverse repurchase
and repurchase agreements being that Italian government
securities are the predominant underlying instrument
and the Compensation and Guarantee Fund is the

predominant counterparty.

Effects of the Covid-19 pandemic

Regarding credit risk, Banca Sistema responded positively

to all initiatives aimed at supporting the real economy

implemented by the EU Government. All forbearance

measures are established to respond as quickly as possible

to the adverse impact caused by the temporary slowdown

in the economic cycle and the related potential impact on

liquidity. The potential impact on the Bank’s risk profile is

mitigated:

= by obtaining government guarantees that are consistent
with the mechanisms put in place by the various
governments;

= through an ex-ante and ongoing assessment of the

customer’s risk profile.

2.3 Methods of measuring expected losses
The general approach defined by IFRS 9 for estimating
impairment is based on a process aimed at giving
evidence of the deterioration of a financial instrument’s
credit quality from the date of initial recognition to the
reporting date. The regulatory guidance on assigning loans
and receivables to the various stages under the Standard
("staging" or "stage allocation") calls for the identification of
significant changes in credit risk based on the changes in
a counterparty's creditworthiness since initial recognition,
the expected life of the financial asset and other forward-
looking information that may affect credit risk.
Consistently with the provisions of IFRS 9, performing
loans are therefore divided into two categories:
= Stage 1: this bucket contains assets that do not show
signs of significant deterioration in credit quality.
For this stage the expected one-year credit loss is
calculated on a collective basis;
= Stage 2: this bucket contains assets that show signs
of significant deterioration in credit quality from the
date of initial recognition to the reporting date. The
expected loss for this bucket must be calculated on
a lifetime basis, i.e. over the entire duration of the

instrument, on a collective basis.

2.4 Credit Risk mitigation techniques
It should be noted that, at the reporting date, the Bank did
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not implement any hedging of the loans and receivables
portfolio.

As concerns credit and counterparty risk on the securities
portfolio and on the repurchase agreements, risk
mitigation is pursued by a careful management of the
operational autonomy, establishing limits in terms of both
responsibility and consistency and composition of the

portfolio by type of securities.

3. Impaired loans
The Banca Sistema Group defined its credit quality policy
based on the provisions in the Bank of Italy Circular no.
272 (Accounts matrix), the main definitions of which are
provided on the following pages.

Banks

The Supervisory Provisions for assign to

intermediaries  specific obligations concerning the
monitoring and classification of loans: “The obligations of
the operating units in the monitoring phase of the loan
granted must be deducible from the internal regulation. In
particular, the terms and methods of action must be set
in the event of anomalies. The criteria for measurement,
management and classification of irregular loans, as well
as the related responsible units, must be set through a
resolution by the Board of Directors in which the methods
for connecting these criteria with those required for the
supervisory reports are indicated. The Board of Directors
must be regularly informed on the performance of the
irregular loans and the related recovery procedures”.

According to the definitions in the above-mentioned Bank
of ltaly Circular, “impaired” financial assets are defined

(LTS

as those that lie within the “bad exposures”, “unlikely to
pay” or “past due and/or overdrawn exposures” categories.
Exposures whose anomalous situation is attributable
to factors related to “country risk” are not included in
“impaired” financial assets.

In particular, the following definitions apply:

Bad exposures

On- and off-statement of financial position exposures
(loans, securities, derivatives, etc.) owed by a party in
state of insolvency (even if not judicially ascertained) or in
broadly similar situations, regardless of any loss forecast

formulated by the Group (cf. art. 5 bankruptcy law). The

definition therefore applies regardless of the existence of

any collateral or personal guarantee provided as protection

against the exposures.

This class also includes:

= the exposure to local institutions (municipalities and
provinces) in state of financial difficulty for the portion
subject to the applicable liquidation procedure;

= receivables acquired from third parties in which the
main debtors are non-performing, regardless of the

portfolio’s accounting allocation.

Unlikely to pay

The classification in this category is first and foremost
based on the Bank’s judgement regarding the unlikelihood
that, without having to resort to actions such as enforcing
the guarantees, the debtor will completely (with regard to
principal and/or interest) fulfil its credit obligations. This
assessment is made independently of whether any sums
(or instalments) are past due and not paid. It is therefore
unnecessary to wait for explicit symptoms of irregularity
(non-repayment) if there are elements that entail a situation
of default risk on the part of the debtor (e.g. a crisis in the
industrial sector in which the debtor operates). The set of
on- and off-statement of financial position exposures to the
same debtor in the above conditions is named “unlikely
to pay”, unless the conditions for classifying the debtor
under bad exposures exist. The exposures to retail parties
may be classified in the unlikely to pay category at the
level of the individual transaction, provided that the Bank
has assessed that the conditions for classifying the set of

exposures to the same debtor in that category do not exist.

Past due and/or overdrawn exposures

These are understood to be the on-statement of financial
position exposures at carrying amount and off-statement of
financial position exposures (loans, securities, derivatives,
etc.), other than those classified as bad exposures and
unlikely to pay, that, on the reference date of the report,
have been past due or have been overdrawn by more than
90 days.

In order to verify the continuity of the past due exposure

in connection with factoring transactions, the following
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should be noted:

= for “with recourse” transactions, a past due exposure,
other than one associated with the assignment of
future receivables, becomes such only if both of the
following conditions exist:

- the amount of the advance is equal to, or greater
than the total amount of receivables that are coming
due;

- at least one invoice has not been honoured (past
due) by more than 90 days and the set of the past
due invoices (including those by less than 90 days)
exceeds 5% of the total receivables;

= for “without recourse” transactions, reference must be
made to the invoice that is furthest past due for each
assigned debtor.
In the calculation of the capital requirement for the
credit and counterparty risk, Banca Sistema uses the
standardised approach. This envisages that the exposures
that lie within the portfolios related to “Central Authorities
and Central Banks”, “Territorial entities”, and “Public
sector institutions” and “Businesses”, must apply the
notion of past due and/or overdrawn exposures at the level
of the debtor party.
The regulation requires that the debtor’s total exposure be
considered past due and/or overdrawn, on the reference
date of the report, any time the 5% materiality level is
exceeded.
On 1 January 2021, the new definition of default came
into force. As a result, the above Circular has been updated
to reflect the EBA Guidelines; the Group has adopted all
the necessary amendments to ensure that it complies with

the new rules from the outset.

Forborne exposures

Forborne exposures are defined as exposures that fall into
the category “Non-performing exposures with forbearance
measures” and “Forborne performing exposures” as
defined by the Implementing Technical Standards (ITS).
A forbearance measure represents a concession towards
a debtor which faces or is about to face difficulties in
fulfilling its financial obligations (“financial difficulties”); a
“concession” indicates one of the following actions:

= an amendment of the previous terms and conditions

of a contract which the debtor is considered unable
to fulfil due to its financial difficulties, that would not
have been granted if the debtor was not in financial
difficulty;

= a total or partial refinancing of a problem loan that
would not have been granted if the debtor was not in
financial difficulty.

Art. 172 of the EBA ITS sets some situations which, if

occurring, lead in any case to the presence of forbearance

measures, i.e. when:

= amodified contract was classified as non-performing or
would in the absence of modification be classified as
non-performing;

= the modification made to a contract involves a total or
partial cancellation by write-offs of the debt;

= the institution approves the use of embedded
forbearance clauses for a debtor who is under non-
performing status or who would be considered as non-
performing without the use of these clauses;

= simultaneously with or close in time to the concession
of additional debt by the institution, the debtor made
payments of principal or interest on another contract
with the institution that was non-performing or would
in the absence of refinancing be classified as non-
performing.

According to these criteria, forbearance is presumed to

have taken place when:

= the modified contract was totally or partially past-due
by more than 30 days (without being non-performing)
at least once during the three months prior to its
modification or would be more than 30 days past-due,
totally or partially, without modification;

= simultaneously with or close in time to the concession
of additional debt by the institution, the debtor made
payments of principal or interest on another contract
with the institution that was totally or partially 30
days past due (without being non-performing) at least
once during the three months prior to its modification
or would be more than 30 days past-due, totally or
partially, without modification;

= the institution approves the use of embedded forbearance
clauses for 30 days past-due debtors or debtors who would

be 30 days past-due without the exercise of these clauses.
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3.1 Management strategies and policies

The current regulatory framework requires impaired

financial assets to be classified according to their
criticality. More specifically, there are three categories:

LT

“bad exposures”, “unlikely to pay” and “past due and/or
overdrawn exposures”.
= Bad exposures: exposures owed by a party in state
of insolvency (even if not judicially ascertained) or
in broadly similar situations, regardless of the loss
forecasts formulated by the institution.
= Unlikely to pay: exposures for which the institution
considers it unlikely that the debtor will fully meet its
obligations without having to resort to actions such as
the enforcement of guarantees, regardless of whether
there are any past due and/or overdrawn amounts.
= Past due and/or overdrawn exposures: exposures, other
than those classified as bad exposures or unlikely to
pay, which have been continuously past due and/or
overdrawn for more than 90 days.
Forborne exposures, which refer to exposures that
are subject to renegotiation and/or refinancing due to
the customer's financial difficulties (whether evident
or developing), are also classified. These exposures
may constitute a subset of non-performing loans (non-
performing exposures with forbearance measures) and
performing loans (forborne performing exposures). The
management of these exposures, in compliance with the
regulatory provisions regarding timing and classification
methods, is supported by specific work processes and IT
tools.
The Group has a policy that establishes criteria
and methods for recognising impairment losses by
standardising the rules that, depending on the type of
non-performing loan and its original technical form,
define the methods and processes used to determine
expected losses. The management of non-performing
exposures is assigned to the Credit Departments of the
Divisions, which are responsible for identifying strategies
for maximising collection on individual positions and
establishing the impairment losses to be recognised for
those positions through a formalised process.
The expected loss reflects a number of elements derived

from various internal and external assessments of the

financial condition of the main debtor and any guarantors.
Expected losses are continuously monitored and compared
to the changes in each position. The Risk Department
oversees the collection of non-performing loans.

In order to maximise collections, the relevant departments
identify the best strategy for managing non-performing
exposures, which, based on the subjective characteristics
of the individual counterparty/exposure and internal
policies, may include amending the contractual terms
(forbearance), establishing the methods for loan
collection, or assigning the credit to third parties (either
for individual exposures or for a group of positions with

similar characteristics).

3.2 Write-offs

Non-performing exposures for which collection is not
possible (whether in full or in part) are written off from
the accounting records in compliance with the policies in
force at the time and subject to approval by the Group's

Board of Directors.

3.3 Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
In accordance with “IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments”, in
some cases a financial asset is considered impaired at
initial recognition because the credit risk is very high, and
in the case of a purchase, it is acquired at a significant
discount (compared to the original disbursement value). If
the financial assets in question, based on the application
of the classification drivers (i.e. SPPI test and business
model), are classified among assets measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
they are classified as "Purchased or Originated Credit-
Impaired" (in short "POCI") and are subject to specific
treatment. More specifically, impairment losses equal
to the lifetime expected credit loss (ECL) are recognised
from the date of initial recognition over the asset’s
entire life. In light of the above, POCI financial assets
are initially recognised in stage 3, although they may be
subsequently reclassified to performing loans, in which
case an expected loss equal to the lifetime ECL (stage
2) will continue to be recognised. A POCI financial asset
is therefore classified as such in the expected credit loss

(ECL) reporting and calculation processes.
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4. Financial assets subject to commercial renegotiation
and forborne exposures

In the event the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties,
the contractual terms of the exposures may be amended in
favour of the debtor in order to make repayment financially
sustainable. Depending on the subjective characteristics
of the exposure and the reasons behind the debtor's
financial difficulties, the amendments may be short term
(temporary suspension of the payment of the principal of

a loan or extension of a maturity) or long term (extension

of the duration of a loan, adjustment of the interest rate)
and result in the exposure (both performing and non-
performing) being classified as “forborne”. “Forborne”
exposures are subject to specific provisions for classification
in accordance with EBA ITS 2013-35, as transposed in
the Group's credit policies. If the forbearance measures
are applied to performing exposures, these are included in
the group of stage 2 exposures. All exposures classified as
“forborne” are included in specific monitoring processes by

the relevant departments.
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A. 1.3 Prudential consolidation - Financial assets, commitments to disburse funds and financial guarantees issued:
transfers between different credit risk stages (gross amount and nominal amount)

Transfers between the Y
first and second stage

Gross amount / Nominal amount

Transfers between the
second and third stage

Y Transfers between the
first and third stage

From the From the From the From the
first to the | secondto | second to | third to the From the F_rom the
. . first to the | third to the
second the first the third second third stage | first stage
stage stage stage stage g g
1. Financial assets measured at 44,364 31,710 4,371 3,525 38,969 38,148
amortised cost
2. Financial assets measured - - - - - -
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
3. Financial assets held for sale - - - - - -
4. Commitments to disburse funds 10,590 3,786 - 11,931 4,387 11,159
and financial guarantees issued
TOTAL AT 31.12.2020 54,954 35,496 4,371 15,456 43,355 49,307
TOTAL AT 31.12.2019 48,967 . 10,557 ) 31,604 . 4,056 )% 73,083 . 43,174 )

A.1.3a Loans subject to Covid-19 support measures: transfers between different credit risk stages (gross amount and

nominal amount)

Transfers between the

Gross amount / Nominal amount

first and second stage

Y~ Transfers between the

second and third stage

Y Transfers between the

first and third stage

From the From the From the From the
first to the | secondto | secondto | third to the From the F_rom the
: . first to the | third to the
second the first the third second third stage | first stage
stage stage stage stage g g
A. Loans measured at amortised cost - - - 2,507 135 -
A.1 forborne in compliance with - - - 2,507 135 -
the EBA Guidelines
A.2 subject to other forbearance - - - - - -
measures
A.3 new loans - - - - - -
B. Loans measured at fair value - - - - - -
through other comprehensive income
B.1 forborne in compliance with - - - - - -
the EBA Guidelines
B.2 subject to other forbearance - - - - - -
measures
B.3 new loans - - - - - -
TOTAL AT 31.12.2020 - - - 2,507 135 -
TOTAL AT 31.12.2019 - - - - - -
. N\ \ N\ J\ /\ J
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A. 1.4 Prudential consolidation - On- and off-statement of financial position loans and receivables with banks: gross
amounts and carrying amounts

E

-— © -—
532| 5 | =
Eo¢c + wn
3| & |588| & 85
=| & |EZ2¢ |32
E| 5 |sg=| § |&7
A. ON-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - - -
a) Bad exposures X - -
of which: forborne exposures X - - -
b) Unlikely to pay X - - -
of which: forborne exposures X - - -
c) Impaired past due exposures X - - -
of which: forborne exposures X - - -
d) Unimpaired past due exposures X - -
of which: forborne exposures X
e) Other unimpaired exposures X 192,500 20 92,480 -
of which: forborne exposures X
TOTAL A 92,500 20 | 92,480 -
B. OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - - -
a) Impaired X - - _
b) Unimpaired X | 2,446 - 2,446 -
TOTAL B 2,446 - 2,446 -
TOTAL (A+B) 94,946 20 | 94,926 -
N

A. 1.5 Prudential consolidation - On- and off-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers:
gross amounts and carrying amounts

[ ___Gross amount (D
é S ) S =
(&) o +
kel 8 'g % '% S < %
o K So's - 29
g 3 Es8 | £ |gt
E = 589 £ g =
D '2 é’ S o
A. ON-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
a) Bad exposures 52,354 X 25,241 27,113
of which: forborne exposures 369 X 369
b) Unlikely to pay 148,433 X 20,352 | 128,080
of which: forborne exposures 296 X 118 177
¢) Impaired past due exposures 50,377 X 435 49,942
of which: forborne exposures X
d) Unimpaired past due exposures X| 548,786 2,560 | 546,226
of which: forborne exposures X
e) Other unimpaired exposures X| 2,733,328 6,679 |2,726,649
of which: forborne exposures X 1,062 7 1,055
TOTAL A 251,164| 3,282,115 55,268 3,478,011
B. OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
a) Impaired 10,389 X 10,389
b) Unimpaired X| 229,592 26 | 450,176
TOTAL B 10,389 229,592 26 | 460,565
TOTAL A+B L 261,553| 3,511,707 L 55,294A3,938,576 L
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A. 1.6 Prudential consolidation - On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with banks: gross impaired positions

No positions to report.
A.1.6bis Prudential consolidation - On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with banks: breakdown of
gross forborne exposures by credit quality

No positions to report.

A.1.7 Prudential consolidation - On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers: gross

impaired positions
[ Bad | Unlikely | !mpaired
exposures to pay ee(aps(;fsﬂl;:s
A. Opening gross balance 50,622 139,348 55,646
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised - - -
B. Increases 16,505 193,225 207,750
B.1 transfers from performing loans 2,630 11,643 119,325
B.2 transfers from purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets 821 13,175 20
B.3 transfers from other categories of impaired loans 998 4,781 -
B.4 contract amendments without derecognition - - -
B.5 other increases 12,056 163,626 88,405
C. Decreases 14,773 184,141 213,019
C.1 transfers to performing loans 1,564 596 86,399
C.2 write-offs 455 - -
C.3 collections 12,754 182,824 121,562
C.4 gains on sales - - -
C.5 losses on sales - - -
C.6 transfers to other categories of impaired loans - 722 5,058
C.7 contract amendments without derecognition - - -
C.8 other decreases - - -
D. Closing gross balance 52,354 148,433 50,377
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised L 8 Lk 718 ) 3,875 )
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A.1.7a Loans subject to Covid-19 support measures: gross amount and carrying amount

- 2 ' 2
Gross amount Iozcs)teasI elarr?dp 2_|crgnrﬁglts gﬁ%ﬂ% vaarairtzl_lo?%rt*ial
to provisions

A. BAD LOANS - - - -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines - - - -

b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -

c) New loans - - - -
B. UNLIKELY-TO-PAY LOANS 5,761 846 4,915 -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines 5,761 846 4,915 -

b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -

c) New loans - - - -

C. IMPAIRED PAST DUE LOANS 135 4 130 -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines 135 4 130 -

b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -

c) New loans - - - -
D. PERFORMING LOANS - - - -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines - - - -

b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -

c) New loans - - - -

E. OTHER PERFORMING LOANS 71,796 324 71,473 -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines 6,304 108 6,197 -

b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -

c) New loans 65,492 216 65,276 -
TOTAL (A+B+C+D+E) L 77,692 | 1,174 | 76,518 | -
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A.1.7bis Prudential consolidation - On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers:

breakdown of gross forborne exposures by credit quality

N\

Norperforming ' other forborne
forbearance measures Exposures
A. Opening gross balance 2,056
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised
B. Increases 2,393 2,124
B.1 transfers from performing exposures without forbearance measures 1,062
B.2 transfers from forborne performing exposures X
B.3 transfers from non-performing exposures with forbearance measures X 1,062
B.4 transfers from non-performing exposures without forbearance measures 1,662
B.5 other increases 730 -
C. Decreases 3,785 1,062
C.1 transfers to performing exposures without forbearance measures X
C.2 transfers to forborne performing exposures X
C.3 transfers to non-performing exposures with forbearance measures X 1,062
C.4 write-offs
C.5 collections 3,120
C.6 gains on sales
C.7 losses on sales
C.8 other decreases 664
D. Closing gross balance 664 1,062
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised L A )

A.1.8 Prudential consolidation - On-statement of financial position non-performing loans and receivables with banks:
changes in impaired positions

No positions to report.
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A.1.9 Prudential consolidation - On-statement of financial position non-performing loans and receivables with

customers: changes in impaired positions

BAD UNLIKELY e Do
EXPOSURES TO PAY EXPOSURES
. o|eegq| L |ggg] L |ged
5 |s83| = |388| § |s88
= e = e = Te 3
A. Opening total impairment losses 20,078 - | 16,042 259 1,097 176
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised - - - - - -
B. Increases 6,770 369 | 12,902 118 362 -
B.1 impairment losses on purchased or originated 30 X 306 X - X
credit-impaired financial assets
B.2 other impairment losses 6,700 - 112,484 118 277 -
B.3 losses on sales - - - - - -
B.4 transfers from other categories of 34 369 94 - - -
impaired loans
B.5 contract amendments without derecognition - X - X - X
B.6 other increases 6 - 18 - 84 -
C. Decreases 1,607 - 8,592 259 1,024 176
C.1. impairment gains 1,076 - 5,343 - 703 -
C.2 impairment gains due to collections 106 - 565 - 43 -
C.3 gains on sales - - - - - -
C.4 write-offs - - - - - -
C.5 transfers to other categories of - - 30 259 99 176
impaired loans
C.6 contract amendments without derecognition - X - X - X
C.7 other decreases 425 - 2,654 - 179 -
D. Closing total impairment losses 25,241 369 | 20,352 118 435 -
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised - - 66 - 27 -
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A.2 Classification of the exposures based on external and internal rating

A.2.1 Prudential consolidation - Breakdown of financial assets, commitments to disburse funds and financial

guarantees issued by external rating class (gross amounts)

The risk categories for the external rating indicated in this table refer to the creditworthiness classes of the debtors/

guarantors pursuant to prudential requirements.

The Bank uses the standardised approach in accordance with the risk mapping of the rating agencies:

= “DBRS Ratings Limited”, for exposures to: central authorities and central banks; supervised brokers; public

sector institutions; territorial entities.

External rating class
-

Class Class Class Class Class Class Without Total
1 2 3 4 5 6 rating
A. Financial assets measured 448,083 -| 2,749,770 | 3,197,853
at amortised cost -
- First stage 448,083 -| 2,364,413 | 2,812,495
- Second stage - - 134,194 134,194
- Third stage - - 251,164 251,164
B. Financial assets measured 425,554 - - 425,554
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- First stage 425,554 - - 425,554
- Second stage - - - -
- Third stage - - - -
Total (A+B) 873,637 -| 2,749,770 | 3,623,407
of which: purchased or originated - - 32,403 32,403
credit-impaired financial assets -
C. Commitments to disburse funds - 463,037 463,037
and financial guarantees issued -
- First stage - - 427,883 427,883
- Second stage - - 24,765 24,765
- Third stage - - 10,389 10,389
Total C - - 463,037 463,037
Total (A + B + C) ) 873,637 -\ 3,212,807 | 4,086,444 |
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of which long-term rating

Risk weighting factors n

 E—
Creditz\{g;tshiness auth((:)Er)ir][Ji[gasland puSILiIE Zrev(iiglfj igg?ilfcittsiéns dl\g\lljelfiolgﬁgt g%rgpoi?li:rs DBTiSmTtiﬂngs
central banks and territorial entities banks parties
1 0% 20% 20% 20% from AAA to AAL
2 20% 50% 50% 50% from AH to AL
3 50% 100% 50% 100% from BBBH to BBBL
4 100% 100% 100% 100% from BBH to BBL
5 100% 100% 100% 150% from BH to BL
L 6 150% A 150% S 150% | 150% CCC and lower

of which short-term rating (for exposures to companies)

Credit\C/\:g;tshiness Risk weighting factors DBRS Ratings Limited
1 20% R-1 (high), R-1 (middle)
2 50% R-1 (low)
3 100% R-2; R-3
4 150% R-4, R-5,D
5 150%
6 150%

“Fitch Ratings”, for exposures to companies and other parties.

of which long-term rating

Risk weighting factors n

) EEEEE—
Creditworthiness Central Supervised brokers, Multilateral | Companies
class authorities and | public sector institutions |development| and other Fitch Ratings
central banks and territorial entities banks parties
1 0% 20% 20% 20% from AAA to AA-
2 20% 50% 50% 50% from A+ to A-
3 50% 100% 50% 100% from BBB+ to BBB-
4 100% 100% 100% 100% from BB+ to BB-
5 100% 100% 100% 150% from B+ to B-
6 150% 150% 150% 150% CCC+ and lower
. AN N \ N J

of which short-term rating (for exposures to companies)

\“

- '
Creditworthiness Risk weighting Fitch
class factors Ratings
1 20% Fl+
2 50% F1
3 100% F2, F3
from 4 to 6 150% less than F3
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B. BREAKDOWN AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURES

B.1 Prudential consolidation - Breakdown by business segment of on- and off-statement of financial position loans and

receivables with customers

Financial companies

Public Financial d ; Non-financial
P : . (of which: insurance ’ Households
administrations companies companies) companies
IS = € = IS = € = IS =
© © © © © © © © © o
2 £ 2 £ 2 £ 2 £ % £
> = > = > = > = = =
o © o © = © = © = ©
S ° 8 ° 8 e 8 e 8 e
A. On-statement of financial position loans and receivables
Al. Bad exposures 17,811 1,143 9,147 23,501 155 597
- of which: forborne exposures
A.2 Unlikely to pay 98,323 7,255 27,167 10,947 2,590 2,150
- of which: forborne exposures 177 118
A.3 Impaired past due exposures 26,147 193 7 5 16,021 157 7,767 85
- of which: forborne exposures 587 176
A.4 Unimpaired exposures 1,853,656 4,117 90,207 1,538 9 298,562 1,768(1,028,194 1,816
- of which: forborne exposures
TOTAL (A) 1,995,937 12,708| 90,213 1,538 14 350,896| 36,373|1,038,706 4,648
B. Off-statement of financial position loans and receivables
B.1 Impaired exposures 3,250 10 7,139
B.2 Unimpaired exposures 220,610 109,919 10 117,014 26 2,614
TOTAL (B) 223,860 109,919 20 124,152 26 2,614
TOTAL (A+B) AT 31.12.2020 2,219,797 12,708 | 200,132 1,538 34 475,049| 36,399(1,041,320 4,648
TOTAL (A+B) AT 31.12.2019 12,385,555 9,903 | 193,380 571 12) -\ 388,287) 29,923| 861,991) 3,338

B.2 Prudential consolidation - Breakdown by geographical segment of on- and off-statement of financial position loans

and receivables with customers

OTHER
ITALY EUROPEAN | AMERICA
COUNTRIES

85 S8 | 85 |PE|85|TE 85 |FE 85|78
A. On-statement of financial position loans and receivables - - - - - - - - -
A.1 Bad exposures 27,113| 25,161 - - - - - - - -
A.2 Unlikely to pay 128,080 20,352 - - - - - - - -
A.3 Impaired past due exposures 49,942 435 - - - - - - - -
A.4 Unimpaired exposures 3,206,768 7,481| 63,059|1,817|2,754| 17 533 3| 261 2
TOTAL (A) 3,411,404 | 53,429| 63,059(1,817| 2,754 17 533| 3| 261 2
B. Off-statement of financial position loans and receivables - - - - - - - - - -
B.1 Impaired exposures 10,389 - - - - - - - - -
B.2 Unimpaired exposures 436,503 10| 11,172 - - -| 2,500| 16 - -
TOTAL (B) 446,892 10| 11,172 - - -1 2,500| 16 - -
TOTAL (A+B) AT 31.12.2020 3,858,296 53,439| 74,231|1,817|2,754| 17| 3,034| 19| 261 2
TOTAL (A+B) AT 31.12.2019 3,758,458\ 43,020\ 57,099/ 198/ 1,094\ 4) A___-A_46\_ -
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B.3 Prudential consolidation - Breakdown by geographical segment of on- and off-statement of financial position loans and

receivables with banks

ITALY EUROPEAN | AMERICA
COUNTRIES
g | 8 | 85 |°8[ 357§ 85 |°g/85|°¢8
A. On-statement of financial position loans and receivables - - - -
A.1 Bad exposures - - - -
A.2 Unlikely to pay - - - -
A.3 Impaired past due exposures - - - -
A.4 Unimpaired exposures 93,980 20 - -
Total (A) 93,980 20 - -
B. Off-statement of financial position loans and receivables - - - -
B.1 Impaired exposures - - - -
B.2 Unimpaired exposures 2,446 - - -
Total (B) 2,446 - - .
Total A+B at 31.12.2020 96,427 20 - -
Total A+B at 31.12.2019 83,839 26 117 - - - - -
J N/ ~— ~—

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank’s large exposures are as follows:

= (Carrying amount
= Weighted value

= No. of positions 16.

D. TRANSFERS

€ 1,821,836 (in thousands)
€ 193,312 (in thousands)

A. Financial assets transferred and not derecognised

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

The financial assets transferred and not derecognised refer to Italian government securities used for repurchase

agreements. Said financial assets are classified in the financial statements among the available-for-sale financial

assets, while the repurchase agreement loan is predominantly presented in due to customers. As a last resort the

financial assets transferred and not derecognised comprise trade receivables used for loan transactions in the ECB

(Abaco).
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E. PRUDENTIAL CONSOLIDATION - MODELS FOR THE
MEASUREMENT OF CREDIT RISK

1.2 Market risks

The Group did not conduct trading activity on financial
instruments. At 31 December 2020 asset positions,
except for shares, included in the regulatory trading
portfolio that may generate market risk are not recognised.
The existing limit system defines a careful and balanced
management of the operational autonomy, establishing
limits in terms of portfolio amounts and composition by

type of security.

1.2.1 Interest rate risk and price risk - regulatory trading

portfolio

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

No positions to report.

1.2.2 Interest rate risk and price risk - Banking Book

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE
A. General aspects, management procedures and
methods of measuring the interest rate risk and the price
risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the
financial assets/liabilities increase/decrease because of
movements contrary to the interest rate curve. The Bank
identified the sources that generate interest rate risk
with reference to the credit processes and to the Bank'’s
funding.

The exposure to interest rate risk on the banking book is
calculated as provided for by current regulations, via the
simplified regulatory approach (Cf. Bank of Italy Circular
no. 285/2013, Part One, Title IIl, Chapter 1, Schedule
C implementing the recent guidelines of the European
Banking Authority); by using this method the Bank is
able to monitor the impact of unexpected changes in
market conditions on equity, thus identifying the related
mitigation measures to be implemented.

In greater detail, the process of estimating the exposure

to interest rate risk of the banking book provided by the

simplified method is organised in the following phases:

= Determination of material currencies. “Material
currencies” are considered those that represent a
portion of total assets, or also of the banking book
liabilities, greater than 5%. For the purposes of the
methodology for calculating exposure to interest
rate risk, the positions denominated in “material
currencies” are considered individually, while the
positions in “non-material currencies” are aggregated
for the equivalent amount in Euro;

= (Classification of the assets and liabilities in time
buckets. 19 time buckets are defined. The fixed-
rate assets and liabilities are classified based on
their residual maturity, while those at floating rates
based on the interest rate renegotiation date. Specific
classification rules are prescribed for specific assets
and liabilities. With particular reference to the deposit
and savings product “Si conto! Deposito”, the Bank
proceeded with the bucketisation that takes into
account the implied redemption option;

= Within each time bucket, the asset and liability
positions are multiplied by the weights derived from
the product of a hypothetical change in rates and
an approximation of the modified duration for each
individual bucket;

= Within each time bucket, the asset positions are
offset against the liability positions, so as to obtain
a net position;

= Aggregation in the various currencies. The absolute
values of the exposures regarding the individual
“material currencies” and the aggregate of the “non-
material currencies” are summed together, obtaining
an amount that represents the change of the economic
value of the Bank based on the assumed rate trends.

With reference to the Bank's financial assets, the main

sources that generate interest rate risk are loans and

receivables with customers and the bond securities

portfolio. As concerns the financial liabilities, relevant

instead are the customer deposits and savings activities

via current accounts, the deposit account, and funding
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on the interbank market. * the REPO deposits c/o the Central Bank are of short
Given the foregoing submissions, it should be noted that: duration (the maximum maturity is equal to 3 months);

= the interest rates applied to the factoring customers = the customers’ deposits on the deposit account

are at a fixed rate and can also be modified unilaterally
by the Bank (in compliance with regulations in force
and existing contracts);

the average financial term of the bond securities
portfolio is approximately one year;

the salary/pension-backed loan portfolio that contains
fixed rate contracts is that with the longest duration,
however on the reporting date this portfolio was small
and it was not deemed necessary to enter into interest

rate hedge transactions on said maturities;

product are at a fixed rate for the entire duration of the
constraint, which can be unilaterally renegotiated by
the Bank (in compliance with regulations in force and
existing contracts);

= the REPO and reverse REPO agreements are generally
of short duration, without prejudice to different funding
needs.

The Bank continuously monitors the main assets and

liabilities subject to interest rate risk; furthermore, no

hedging instruments were used as at the reporting date.
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. Banking book: Breakdown by residual term (by repricing date) of financial assets and liabilities

Ve

N\

Vs

Y

Y from more Y from moreY from more) from more)
der%rz]and nu15))r;[’?h:s3 m(t)r;]?ﬂs3up mgrﬁﬁfup thﬁg t10y5ear ye;r;: TJ[? to ni%r?/ég?sn ?e‘?ﬁ]n
to 6 months| to 1 year years 10 years
1. Assets 1,147,400| 261,918 342,963 | 285,130(1,172,041| 373,878 38
1.1 Debt instruments - -| 275,892 193,779| 406,671 3,566 -
- with early repayment option - - - - - -
- other - -| 275,892 193,779| 406,671 3,566 -
1.2 Financing to banks 51,301| 40,303 1 3 1 - -
1.3 Financing to customers 1,096,100| 221,615| 67,070 91,348| 765,369| 370,312 38
- current accounts 62,705 - - - 2 -
- other financing 1,033,395| 221,615 67,070 91,348 765,369| 370,310 38
- with early repayment option 143,325| 118,414| 66,630| 90,778| 592,586 334,907 38
- other 890,069 103,202 440 570 172,784 35,404 -
2. Liabilities 734,437| 607,827| 230,031 683,752 | 892,322 136,523 44
2.1 Due to customers 663,864 | 493,300| 107,529| 485,307| 388,928| 118,480 44
- current accounts -| 246,203| 104,809| 474,361| 350,921 24,584 44
- other payables 8,911 | 247,097 2,720 10,946 38,006 93,896 -
- with early repayment option - - - - - -
- other 8,911 247,097 2,720 10,946 38,006 93,896 -
2.2 Due to banks 70,572 95,000 30,000| 198,446| 495,377 - -
- current accounts 775 - - - - -
- other payables 69,798 95,000 30,000| 198,446| 495,377 - -
2.3 Debt instruments - 19,527 92,502 - 8,018 18,043 -
- with early repayment option -l 19,527 92,502 - -l 18,043 -
- other - - - 8,018 - -
2.4 Other liabilities - - - - - -
- with early repayment option - - - - - -
- other - - - - - -
3. Financial derivatives - 27,996 2,113 3,536 19,767 1,279 102
3.1 With underlying security - - - - - -
- Options - - - - - -
+ long positions - - - - - -
+ short positions - - - - - -
- Other derivatives - - - - - -
+ long positions - - - - - -
+ short positions - - - - - -
3.2 Without underlying security -l 27,99 2,113 3,536 19,767 1,279 102
- Options - 27,996 2,113 3,536 19,767 1,279 102
+ long positions - 600 2,113 3,536 19,767 1,279 102
+ short positions -l 27,39 - - - -
- Other derivatives - - - - - -
+ long positions - - - - - -
+ short positions - - - - - -
4. Other off-statement of financial
position transactions ) ) )
+ long positions - - - - -
+ short positions \ A A A A A A A




1.2.3 Currency risk
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A. General aspects, management processes and methods of measuring the currency risk
All items are in Euro, except for the security in the HTCS portfolio. The currency risk is limited due to the size of the

investment.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. Breakdown of assets, liabilities and derivatives by currency of denomination

us UK vEN | CANADIANT SWISS OTHER
DOLLARS | POUNDS DOLLARS | FRANCS |CURRENCIES

A. Financial assets - - - - - 618

A.1 Debt instruments - - - - - -

A.2 Equity instruments - - - - - 618

A.3 Financing to banks - - - - - i,

A.4 Financing to customers - - - - - _

A.5 Other financial assets - - - - - R

B. Other assets - - - - - .

C. Financial liabilities - - - - - -

C.1 Due to banks - - - - - R

C.2 Due to customers - - - - - -

C.3 Debt instruments - - - - - -

C.4 Other financial liabilities - - - - - _
D. Other liabilities - - - - - -

E. Financial derivatives - - - - - .

- Options - - - - - -

+ long positions - - - - - i,

+ short positions - - - - - _

- Other derivatives - - - - - -

+ long positions - - - - - _

+ short positions - - - - - _

Total assets - - - - - 618

Total liabilities - - - - - .

Difference (+/-) - - - - - 618

The amount refers to the Axactor shares held by the Bank partly in the Held to Collect and Sell (HTCS) portfolio. They

are listed securities traded in Norwegian krone.
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1.3 Derivatives and hedging policies

1.3.1 Derivatives held for trading

A. Financial derivatives
At 31 December 2020 no amount was recognised for this

item.

B. Credit derivatives
At 31 December 2020 no amount was recognised for this

item.

1.3.2 Hedge Accounting

The Bank did not perform any such transactions in 2020.

1.3.3 Other disclosure of derivatives (held for trading and
hedging)

At 31 December 2020 there were no such cases.

1.4 Liquidity risk

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A. General aspects, management processes and methods

of measuring the liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is represented by the possibility that the
Group is unable to maintain its payment commitments due
to the inability to procure funds or to the inability to sell
assets on the market to manage the financial imbalance.
It is also represented by the inability to procure adequate
new financial resources, in terms of amount and cost, with
respect to operational need/advisability, that forces the
Group to slow or stop the development of activity, or to
incur excessive funding costs to deal with its commitments,
with significant negative impacts on the profitability of its
activity.

The financial sources are represented by capital, funding
from customers, the funds procured on the domestic
and international interbank market as well from the
Eurosystem.

To monitor the effects of the intervention strategies and

to limit the liquidity risk, the Group identified a specific

section dedicated to monitoring the liquidity risk in the
Risk Appetite Framework (RAF).

Furthermore, in order to promptly detect and manage any
difficulties in procuring the funds necessary to conduct
its activity, every year, Banca Sistema, consistent with
the prudential supervisory provisions, updates its liquidity
policy and Contingency Funding Plan, i.e. the set of
specific intervention strategies in case of liquidity stress,
establishing procedures to procure funds in the event of
an emergency.

This set of strategies is of fundamental importance to
attenuate liquidity risk.

The aforesaid policy defines, in terms of liquidity risk, the
objectives, the processes and the intervention strategies
in case of liquidity stress, the organisational structures
responsible for implementing the interventions, the risk
indicators, the relevant calculation method and warning
thresholds, and procedures to procure the funding sources
that can be used in case of emergency.

In 2020, the Bank continued to pursue a particularly
prudent financial policy aimed at funding stability. This
approach allowed a balanced distribution between inflows
from retail customer and corporate and institutional
counterparties.

To date, the financial resources available are satisfactory
for the current and forward-looking volumes of activity. The
Bank is continuously active ensuring a coherent business
development, always in line with the composition of its
financial resources.

In particular, Banca Sistema, prudentially, has constantly
maintained a high quantity of securities and readily liquid
assets to cover all of the deposits and savings products
oriented towards the retail segment.

Moreover, the Bank uses as source of funding the ABS
securities of the securitisation transactions, whose SPVs
were established solely for funding purposes. As these
transactions are self-securitisations, the receivables
assigned to the SPV remain entirely recognised in the
Bank’s financial statements. Details of the ABS securities

of the existing self-securitisations are provided below.
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At 31 December 2020, the characteristics of the securities of the Quinto Sistema Sec. 2017 transaction were as follows.

Quinto Sistma SN | oslieat | opnSyg | MRt | e
Class A (senior) ITO005246811 217,042,106 A-high / Aa3 0.40% 2034
Class B1 (mezzanine) IT0O005246837 47,400,134 A-low / Bal 0.50% 2034
Class B2 (sub-mezzanine) IT0005246845 34,811,025 n.a. 0.50% 2034
Class C (junior) ITO005246852 2,370,007 n.a. 0.50% 2034

301,623,272

The transaction is held entirely by Banca Sistema, which uses the senior securities in bilateral ECB and repo transactions

under the GMRA framework, and the class B1 security in repo transactions under the GMRA framework.

At 31 December 2020, the characteristics of the securities of the Quinto Sistema Sec. 2019 transaction were as follows.

s - - N
Quinto Stema s | okt | oedtiiEeyy| TS| ety
Class A (senior) ITO005382996 91,800,000 Not Rated 1M Euribor +0.65% 2038
Class B (mezzanine) ITO005383002 12,300,000 Not Rated 0.50% 2038
Class C (junior) ITO005383010 17,200,000 Not Rated 0.50% 2038
121,300,000

The senior security is held by a third party for funding purposes.

At 31 December 2020, the characteristics of the securities of the BS IVA SPV transaction were as follows.

Amount
BS IVA SPV ISIN outstanding at Rating Interest Maturity
31.12.2020
Class A Notes (senior) IT0005218802 24,248,352 n.a. 3M Euribor +0.90% 2038
Class B Notes (junior) IT0005218810 2,353,086 n.a. 0,50% 2038
26,601,438
A\ A\ A\ A\ J
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. Breakdown of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual term

( \(from more\(from more\(from more\,fromargore\(fromangore\,frotrﬂ ar[?orevfrom more\ ) )
derggnd thal?pltc?ay d;;saﬂgto dg;asnué?o 1 month | 3 months | 6 months thig tloysear 5(;’\:99;“ (t)epr?“r?
7 days 15 days 1 month up to 3 up to up to years
months | 6 months 1 year
A. Assets 1,258,756 7,121 2,617 27,279 94,337 | 369,327 | 316,346 |1,054,511 | 328,767 40,269
A.1 Government securities - - 28 - 21| 265231 | 192961 | 415,192 - -
A.2 Other debt instruments - - - 64 - 64 128 3,129 2,609 -
A.3 OEIC units - - - - - - - - - -
A.4 Financing 1,258,756 7,121 2,589 27,215 94,316 | 104,032 | 123,257 | 636,190 | 326,158 40,269
- banks 51,319 - - 34 1 1 3 1 - 40,269
- customers 1,207,437 7,121 2,589 27,182 94316 | 104,031 | 123,254 | 636,189 | 326,158 -
B. Liabilities 727,198 | 253,506 35,547 25,865 | 274,019 | 231,257 | 688,014 | 884,304 | 164,052 -
B.1 Deposits and current accounts 648,667 8,156 35,405 25807 | 272,081 | 135,090 | 477,307 | 350,921 24,628 -
- banks 953 - 30,000 15,000 50,000 | 30,000 - - - -
- customers 647,714 8,156 5,405 10,807 | 222,081 | 105,090 | 477,307 | 350,921 24,628 -
B.2 Debt instruments - - - - 390 93,447 1,316 45,500 -
B.3 Other liabilities 78,531 | 245,350 142 58 1,547 2,720 | 209,391 | 533,383 93,923 -
C. Off-statement of financial position transactions | 79,720 - 58 9 - 56 4,358 20 -
C.1 Financial derivatives with exchange of
principal ) ) ) ) _ _ ) ) ) )
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.2 Financial derivatives without exchange
of principal ) ) ) ) _ ) ) ) ) )
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.3 Deposits and financing to be received - - - - - - - - - -
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.4 Irrevocable commitments to disburse funds| 77,273 - - 58 - - 56 119 - -
- long positions 38,520 - - 58 - - 56 119 - -
- short positions 38,753 - - - - - - - - -
C.5 Financial guarantees issued 2,446 - - - 9 - - 4,239 20 -
C.6 Financial guarantees received - - - - - - - - - -
C.7 Credit derivatives with exchange of principal - - - - - - - - - -
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.8 Credit derivatives without exchange of principal - - - - - - - - - -
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions \ -A -A -A -A -A A A - >, >,

With reference to the financial assets subject to “self-securitisation”, at the end of 2020, Banca Sistema has three

securitisation transactions in place.
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1.5 Operational risks

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate
or non-functioning internal processes, human resources
or systems, or from external events. This type of risk
includes - among other things - the ensuing losses from
fraud, human errors, business disruption, unavailability
of systems, breach of contract, and natural catastrophes.
Operational risk, therefore, refers to other types of events
that, under present conditions, would not be individually
relevant if not analysed jointly and quantified for the entire

risk category.

A. General aspects, management processes and methods

of measuring operational risk

In order to calculate the internal capital generated

by the operational risk, the Group adopts the Basic

Indicator Approach, which provides for the application of

a regulatory coefficient (equal to 15%) to the three-year

average of the relevant indicator defined in Article 316

of Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013 of 26 June 2013. The

above-said indicator is given by the sum (with sign) of the

following elements:

= interest and similar income;

= interest and similar expense;

= income on shares, quotas and other variable/fixed yield
securities;

= income for commissions/fees;

* expense for commissions/fees;

= profit (loss) from financial transactions;

= other operating income.

Consistent with that provided for by the relevant legislation,

the indicator is calculated gross of provisions and operating

costs; also excluded from computation are:

= profits and losses on the sale of securities not included
in the trading portfolio;

= income deriving from non-recurring or irregular items;

= income deriving from insurance.

As of 2014, the Bank measured the operational risk events

via a qualitative performance indicator (IROR - Internal

Risk Operational Ratio) defined within the operational risk

management and control process (ORF - Operational Risk
Framework). This calculation method allows a score to be
defined between 1 and 5, inclusive (where 1 indicates a
low risk level and 5 indicates a high risk level) for each
event that generates an operational risk.

The Bank assesses and measures the level of the identified
risk by also considering the controls and the mitigating
actions implemented. This method requires a first
assessment of the possible associated risks in terms of
probability and impact (so-called “Gross risk level”) and
a subsequent analysis of the existing controls (qualitative
assessment on the effectiveness and efficiency of the
controls) which could reduce the gross risk, on the basis
of which specific risk levels (the so-called “Residual risk™)
are determined. Finally, the residual risks are mapped
on a predefined scoring grid, useful for the subsequent
calculation of IROR via appropriate aggregation of the
scores defined for the individual operational procedure.
Moreover, the Bank assesses the operational risk associated
with the introduction of new products, activities, processes
and relevant systems mitigating the onset of the operational
risk via a preliminary evaluation of the risk profile.

The Bank places strong emphasis on possible ICT risks.
The Information and Communication Technology (ICT)
risk is the risk of incurring financial, reputational and
market losses in relation to the use of information
and communication technology. In the supplemented
representation of the business risks, this type of risk is
considered, in accordance with the specific aspects,
among operational, reputational and strategic risks.

The Bank monitors the ICT risks based on the continuous
information flows between the departments concerned
defined in its IT security policies.

In order to conduct consistent and complete analyses with
respect to the activities performed by the Bank’s other
control departments, the results of the compliance risks
audits conducted by the Compliance and Anti-Money
Laundering Department were shared internally with the
Internal Control and Risk Management Committee, as
well as with the CEO. The Internal Audit Department also
monitors the Bank's operations and processes to ensure
they are properly carried out and assesses the overall

effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control system
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put in place to oversee activities that are exposed to risks.
Finally, as an additional protection against operational
risk, the Bank has: =
= insurance coverage on the operational risks deriving
from actions of third parties or caused to third parties. =
In order to select the insurance coverage, the Bank =
initiated specific assessment activities, with the

support of a primary market broker, to identify the best

-161-

offers in terms of price/conditions proposed by several
insurance undertakings;

appropriate contractual riders to cover damages caused
by infrastructure and service suppliers;

a business continuity plan;

the assessment of each operational procedure in effect,
in order to define the controls implemented to protect

against risk activities.



PART F - INFORMATION ON EQUITY

( SECTION 1 - EQUITY )

A. QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

The objectives pursued in the Group’s equity management are inspired by the prudential supervisory provisions, and
are oriented towards maintaining adequate levels of capitalisation to take on risks typical to credit positions.
The income allocation policy aims to strengthen the Group's capital with special emphasis on common equity, to the

prudent distribution of the operating results, and to guaranteeing a correct balance of the financial position.
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B. QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE
B.1 Equity: breakdown by business type

Share capital

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

9,651

9,651

Share premium

39,100

39,100

Reserves

122,608

98,617

Equity instruments

(Treasury shares)

(234)

(234)

OO W N |-

Valuation reserves

1,287

267

- Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

154

- Hedging of equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income -

- Financial assets (other than equity instruments) measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

1,622

324

- Property and equipment

- Intangible assets

- Hedges of foreign investments

- Cash flow hedges

- Hedging instruments (non-designated elements)

- Exchange rate gains (losses)

- Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

- Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (changes in own credit rating) -

- Net actuarial losses on defined benefit pension plans

(335)

- Shares of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investees

- Special revaluation laws

- Other

Group profit for the year (+/-)

25,777

29,719

TOTAL
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B.2 Valuation reserves for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: breakdown

TOTAL AT TOTAL AT

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Positive | Negative | Positive | Negative
reserve | reserve | reserve | reserve
1. Debt instruments 1,977 - 467 -
2. Equity instruments - (355) 11 -
3. Financing - - - -
Total 1,977 (355) 478 -

. J\ N\ \. J/

B.3 Valuation reserves for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: changes

s Y A A
instr[l),li:)énts instErSrl#:[aynts Financing
1. Opening balance 467 11 -
2. Increases 2,788 181 -
2.1 Fair value gains - - -
2.2 Impairment losses due to credit risk 206 X -
2.3 Reclassifications of negative reserves to profit or loss on sale - X -
2.4 Transfers to other equity items (equity instruments) - - -
2.5 Other increases 2,582 181 -
3. Decreases 1,278 547 -
3.1 Fair value losses - 547 -
3.2 Impairment gains due to credit risk - - -
3.3 Reclassifications of positive reserves to profit or loss: on sale 403 X
3.4 Transfers to other equity items (equity instruments) - - -
3.5 Other decreases 875 - -
4. Closing balance L 1,977 I\ (355)) -
B.4 Valuation reserves related to defined benefit plans: changes
31.12.2020
A. Opening balance (211)
B. Increases 47
B.1 Actuarial gains -
B.2 Other increases 47
C. Decreases 171
C.1 Actuarial losses 171
C.2 Other decreases -
D. Closing balance (335)
Total (335)
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SECTION 2 - OWN FUNDS AND CAPITAL RATIOS j

2.1 Own funds
A. QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Own funds, risk-weighted assets and solvency ratios as at
31 December 2020 were determined based on the new
regulation, harmonised for Banks, contained in Directive
2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and in Regulation (EU) 575/2013
(CRR) of 26 June 2013, that transpose in the European
Union the standards defined by the Basel Committee on

Banking Supervision (the so-called Basel 3 framework),

Reconciliation of Group equity and Own Funds

and based upon Bank of ltaly Circulars no. 285 and no.
286 (enacted in 2013), and the update of Circular no. 154.
The Banca Sistema Group has not availed itself of the
option provided for by Article 473 bis of Regulation (EU)
575/2013 (CRR), which concerns the transitional measures
aimed at mitigating the impact of the introduction of
IFRS 9.

31.12.2020
Group equity 207,486
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests (9,297)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 198,189
Dividends distributed and other foreseeable expenses (6,434)
Equity assuming dividends are distributed to shareholders 191,756
Regulatory adjustments (35,753)
- Commitment to repurchase treasury shares (283)
- Deduction of intangible assets (32,725)
- Prudential filter for Prudent Valuation (1) (431)
- Other adjustments (2) (2,314)
Computable equity attributable to non-controlling interests 7,795
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 163,797
Security issued by Banca Sistema (3) 8,000
Additional Tier 1 Capital 8,000
Securities issued by Banca Sistema (3) 37,500
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests that can be included in T2 155
Tier 2 Capital 37,655
Total Own Funds 209,452

(1) Regulatory filter for additional valuation adjustments (AVA) to the prudential valuation under the provisions of Regulation 2016/101.
(2) Following the financial difficulty of a local authority, the Bank used this filter to manage an overdraft position.

(3) Included in the item “Financial liabilities at amortised cost”
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A. QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

31.12.2020

A. Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) before application of prudential filters 199,550
of which CET 1 instruments covered by transitional measures -

B. CET1 prudential filters (+/-) -
C. CET1 including items to be deducted and the effects of the transitional regime (A+/-B) 199,550
D. Items to be deducted from CET1 35,753
E. Transitional regime - Impact on CET (+/-) -
F. Total Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) (C-D+/-E) 163,797
G. Additional Tier 1 (AT1) including items to be deducted and the effects of the transitional regime 8,000
of which AT1 instruments covered by transitional measures -
H. ltems to be deducted from AT1 -
|. Transitional regime - Impact on AT1 (+/-) -
L. Total Additional Tier 1 (AT1) (G-H+/-1) 8,000
M. Tier 2 (T2) including items to be deducted and the effects of the transitional regime 37,655
of which T2 instruments covered by transitional measures -

N. Items to be deducted from T2 -
0. Transitional regime - Impact on T2 (+/-) -
P. Total Tier 2 (T2) (M-N+/-0) 37,655

Q. Total Own Funds (F+L+P)
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2.2 Capital adequacy
A. QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Total own funds were € 209 million at 31 December
2020 and included the profit for the year, net of
dividends estimated on the profit for the year which
were equal to a pay-out of 25% of the Parent's
profit. The increase was due to the combined effect
of the profit for 2019, the merger of Atlantide (which
generated goodwill of € 2.1 million, classified on the

Statement of financial position under intangible assets)

B. QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

and the issue, in the second quarter and third quarter of
2019, of a TIER 2 subordinated loan for a total of € 18
million (in conjunction with the repayment of another
Lower TIER 2 subordinated loan of € 12 million, which

can no longer be fully included as a capital). The

increase in capital ratios compared to 31 December

2019 is attributable to higher profits and lower capital

absorption from loans.

UNWEIGHTED WEIGHTED AMOUNTS/
AMOUNTS REQUIREMENTS

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019 | 31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019
A. EXPOSURES - - - -
A.1 Credit and counterparty risk 4,285,516 4,453,157 1,120,413 1,236,603
1. Standardised approach 4,285,516 | 4,453,157 1,120,413 1,236,603
2. Internal ratings based approach - - - -
2.1 Basic - - - -
2.2 Advanced - - - -
3. Securitisations - - - -
B. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS - -
B.1 Credit and counterparty risk 89,633 98,928
B.2 Credit assessment adjustment risk - 3
B.3 Settlement risk - -
B.4 Market risk - -
1. Standard approach - -
2. Internal models - -
3. Concentration risk - -
B.5 Operational risk 14,147 13,540
1. Basic indicator approach 14,147 13,540
2. Standardised approach - -
3. Advanced measurement approach - -
B.6 Other calculation elements - -
B.7 Total prudential requirements 103,780 112,471
C. EXPOSURES AND CAPITAL RATIOS 1,297,255 1,405,890
C.1 Risk-weighted assets 1,297,255 1,405,890
C.2 CET1 capital/risk-weighted assets (CET1 Capital Ratio) 12.6% 11.7%
C.3 Tier 1 capital/risk-weighted assets (Tier 1 Capital Ratio) 13.2% 12.3%
C.4 Total Own Funds/risk-weighted assets (Total Capital Ratio) 16.1% 15.0%
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PART G - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Section 1 - Transactions performed in the year

On 13 July 2020 the acquisition of the former Intesa Sanpaolo collateralised lending business unit was completed.

As this is a business unit, there are no income statement data for the months prior to the transaction.

Key information concerning this transaction is summarised below:

PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

In thousands of Euro

Purchase price 34,000
Price adjustment (991)
Final price (A) 33,009
Adjusted Business Unit “Equity” (B) 3,209
Residual value to be allocated (A+B) 29,800
Loans and receivables with customers (1,224)
Post-employment benefits (166)
Property and equipment 25
Allocation to goodwill 28,435

The final price amounted to € 33 million following the
change in the business unit’s imbalance (excess value)
between the closing date and the signing date of the
transaction, and an adjustment recognised by the
counterparty in relation to the valuation of the loans

and receivables. As required by IFRS 3, this excess

value was allocated to the financial statements items
that had a difference in fair value with respect to their
carrying amount and, in particular, to the item “Loans
and receivables with customers”, leaving the unallocated
balance under goodwill, which is subject to an annual

impairment test.

Section 2 - Transactions performed after the end of the year

No transactions to report.

Section 3 - Retrospective adjustments

No transactions to report.
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PART H - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions including the relevant
authorisation and disclosure procedures, are governed
by the “Procedure governing related party transactions”
approved by the Board of Directors and published on the
internet site of Banca Sistema S.p.A.

Transactions between Group companies and related
parties were carried out in the interests of the Bank,
including within the scope of ordinary operations;
these transactions were carried out in accordance with
market conditions and, in any event, on the basis of
mutual financial advantage and in compliance with all
procedures.

With respect to transactions with parties who exercise
management and control functions in accordance with

article 136 of the Consolidated Law on Banking, it should

be noted that they, where applicable, have been included

in the Board of Directors’ resolutions and received

approval from the Board of Statutory Auditors, subject

to compliance with the obligations provided under the

Italian Civil Code with respect to matters relating to the

conflict of interest of directors.

Pursuant to IAS 24, the related parties of Banca Sistema

include:

= shareholders with significant influence;

= companies belonging to the banking Group;

= companies subject to significant influence;

= key management personnel;

= the close relatives of key management personnel and
the companies controlled by (or connected with) such

personnel or their close relatives.

DISCLOSURE ON THE REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The following data show the remuneration of key management personnel, as per IAS 24 and Bank of Italy Circular no.

262 of 22 December 2005 as subsequently updated, which requires the inclusion of the members of the Board of

Statutory Auditors.

BOARD OF

In thousands of Euro DIREaTORS STATUTORY NAGERs 3112.2020
Remuneration to Board of Directors and Board of Statutory Auditors 2,185 207 10 2,402
Short-term benefits for employees - - 2,574 2,574
Post-employment benefits 85 - 215 301
Other long-term benefits 121 - 82 204
Termination benefits - - - -
Share-based payments 220 - 45 265
Total 2,612 207 2,926 5,745
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DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following table shows the assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020, differentiated by type of related party with

an indication of the impact on each individual caption.

DIRECTORS, BOARD OF

In thousands of Euro ASNTSTP?ETYO “F;\/&,/\}}_\Jg ||E—I|;/|OER|\jST %%L;_;TEESD C;/E'Ipl(F)N
PERSONNEL
Loans and receivables with customers 404 981 0.05%
Due to customers 1,511 10,840 0.55%
Other liabilities - - 0.00%

The following table indicates the costs and income for 2020, differentiated by type of related party.

DIRECTORS, BOARD OF

in thousands of e T A B
PERSONNEL
Interest income - - 0.00%
Interest expense 20 40 0.28%
Other administrative expenses - - 0.00%

The following tables set forth the details of each related party:

AMOUNT PERCENTAGE
(thousands of Euro) (%)
LIABILITIES 9,719 0.27%
Due to customers
Shareholders - SGBS 600 0.03%
Shareholders - Fondazione CR Alessandria 7,801 0.35%
Shareholders - Fondazione Sicilia 1,318 0.06%

AMOUNT PERCENTAGE
(thousands of Euro) (%)
COSTS 22 0.05%
Interest expense
Shareholders - SGBS 3 0.01%
Shareholders - Fondazione Sicilia 14 0.03%
Shareholders - Fondazione CR Alessandria 5 0.01%
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PART | - SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

As indicated in the 2020 Policy Document, Banca
Sistema, having total assets of less than € 4 billion at both
separate and consolidated levels, could be considered to
be a “smaller bank”. However, in virtue of its status as a
listed company, and of the EBA guidelines, the Bank has
opted to apply the rules relating to “medium size” banks
under Circular 285, Title 1V, Chapter 2.

As a medium size bank, therefore, and in accordance
with the principle of proportionality, it shall apply
the provisions relating to key personnel subject to
percentages and to deferral and retention periods that
may be reduced to less than half of those set out in the
applicable legislation, but in doing so it shall weigh up
a prudential alignment criterion also in relation to the
provisions of the Code of Conduct, for longer deferral in
the case of members of the Board of Directors and key
management personnel, that are thus extended to all
Key Personnel.
The Bank also indicates 25% of average total
remuneration of ltalian high earners, as indicated in the
latest EBA report published in 2019 and relating to data
processed at the end of 2017, as being a particularly
high level of variable remuneration. In 2020, the variable
component of remuneration for “key personnel” will be
paid as follows upon approval of the financial statements:
= for amounts equal to or lower than € 30,000, variable

remuneration shall be paid entirely up-front and in

cash, subject to the necessary approval of the Board of
Directors and of the Shareholders’ Meeting provided
for in the Remuneration Policies;
= for amounts greater than € 30,000 and up to
€ 425,000, 70% of the variable remuneration shall
be paid up-front (50% in cash and 50% in shares of
the Bank), and the remaining 30% (50% in cash and
50% in shares of the Bank) shall be deferred and paid
at the end of the three-year deferral period;
= for amounts greater than € 425,000, 60% of the
variable remuneration shall be paid up-front (50%
in cash and 50% in shares of the Bank) and the
remaining 40% (24% in cash and 76% in shares of
the Bank) shall be deferred and paid at the end of the
three-year deferral period.
The aforesaid limits and parameters are established by
the Bank, even though, in accordance with the principles
of proportionality set out in Paragraph 7 of Circular
285, Title 1V, Chapter 2 - General provisions, governing
medium-sized banks, more flexible, less complex terms
and proportions may be established in regard to the
deferral and balancing of shares and cash.
Please see Annex 3 “Bonus Payment Regulation”,
and insofar as it applies, the Information Document
published in the ‘Governance’ section of the website
www.bancasistema.it, regarding the calculation of the

Bank shares to be assigned and the applicable provisions.
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Disclosure of the fees paid to the independent auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Art. 149 duodecies of the

Consob Issuers’ Regulations, the information regarding

the fees paid to the independent auditors BDO ltalia

S.p.A. and to the companies included in the same

network is reported below for the following services:

= Audit services that include:

= The audit of the annual accounts, for the purpose of
expressing an opinion thereon.

* The audit of the interim accounts.

= Certification services that include tasks whereby
the auditor evaluates a specific element, the

determination of which is performed by another

party who is responsible thereof, through appropriate
criteria, in order to express a conclusion that provides
the recipient party with a degree of confidence
concerning said specific element.
= Tax advisory services.
= Other services.
The fees presented in the table, pertaining to 2020,
are those contracted, including any index-linking (but
do not include out-of-pocket expenses, any supervisory
contribution and VAT).
They do not include, in accordance with the cited
provision, the fees paid to any secondary auditors or to

parties of the respective networks.

4 Y Y \
Type of services Entity prov.ldlng Entity rece:wmg Remuneration
the service the service
Audit of the separate and consolidated BDO lItalia S.p.A. | Banca Sistema S.p.A. 180
financial statements and interim reports
Other certifications BDO Italia S.p.A. [ Banca Sistema S.p.A. 31
Audit of the separate financial statements | BDO Italia S.p.A. | Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.| 13
Audit of the separate financial statements | BDO Italia S.p.A. | Quinto Sistema SEC. 2017 22
Audit of the separate financial statements \BDO Italia S.p.A. AProntoPegno S.p.A. A 35 )

-172-



PART L - SEGMENT REPORTING

For the purposes of segment reporting as per IFRS 8, the income statement is broken down by segment as follows.

Breakdown by segment: income statement for 2020

Ve

N\

~

Y- Y
income statement (€,000) Foctorng | ¢ [Lenang | Copete | GRouP
Net interest income 53,850 17,366 2,836 218 74,271
Net fee and commission income (expense) 15,456 (744) 2,691 25 17,428
Dividends 141 82 - 4 227
Net trading income 23 14 - 1 37
Gain from sales or repurchases of financial 5,949 3,492 - 90 9,531
assets/liabilities
Total income 75,419 20,210 5,527 337 101,494
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables (9,766) (405) (1) (828) (11,000)
Net financial income (expense) (65,653 | 19,805 | 5,526 | (491) | 90,494 )
Breakdown by segment: statement of financial position data as at 31 December 2020
r \ Y- Y ' \
Statement of Financial Position (€,000) ng(:,tig'i"i)mg Di\ﬁgon COIII??Eéiia&:gTEd Cc():rgI:)trl?;e %?Ef

Financial assets (HTS and HTCS) 272,764 158,202 - - 430,966
Loans and receivables with banks 37,295 55,186 - - 92,481
Loans and receivables with customers 1,786,370 | 1,111,606 77,684 69,009 | 3,044,669
Loans and receivables with customers - loans 1,502,911 947,200 77,684 69,009 | 2,596,805
Loans and receivables with customers - debt instruments 283,459 164,405 - - 447,864
Due to banks - - - 867,374 867,374
Due to customers 71,654 ) - L - A2,089,223 A2,160,877 )
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Following the review of the internal model which was =
completed at the end of the first quarter, this segment
reporting was amended to include the following divisions: =
=  Factoring Division, which includes the business
segment related to the origination of trade and
tax receivables with and without recourse and the
management and recovery of default interest. In
addition, the division includes the business segment
related to the origination of state-guaranteed loans
to SMEs disbursed to factoring customers and the
management and recovery of receivables on behalf
of third parties;
=  CQ Division, which includes the business segment

related to the purchase of salary- and pension-

Collateralised Lending Division, which includes the
business segment related to collateral-backed loans;
Corporate  Division, which includes activities
related to the management of the Group’s financial
resources and costs/income in support of the
business activities. In particular, the cost of funding
managed in the central treasury pool is allocated to
the divisions via an internal transfer rate (“ITR"),
while income from the management of the securities
portfolio and income from liquidity management (the
result of asset and liability management activities) is
allocated entirely to the business divisions through a
pre-defined set of drivers. The division also includes

income from the management of SME loan run-offs.

backed loans (CQS/CQP) portfolios and salary- and  The secondary disclosure by geographical segment has

pension-backed loans disbursed through the direct  been omitted as immaterial, since the customers are

channel; mainly concentrated in the domestic market.
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PART M - LEASE DISCLOSURE

( SECTION 1 - LESSEE )

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

The Bank has contracts that fall within the scope of IFRS
16 attributable to the following categories:

=  Property used for business and personal purposes;

= Cars.

At 31 December 2020, there were 63 leases, 15 of which
were property leases for a total right of use value of € 6.6
million, while 48 were for cars, for a total right of use value
of € 0.8 million.

Property leases, which refer to lease payments for buildings
used for business purposes such as offices and for personal

use, have terms exceeding 12 months and typically have

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

renewal and termination options that may be exercised by
the lessor and the lessee as provided for by law.

Contracts referring to other leases are long-term leases for
cars which are generally used exclusively by the employees
to whom they are assigned. These contracts have a
maximum term of 5 years with monthly lease payments, no
renewal option, and no option to purchase the asset.
Contracts with a term of less than 12 months or those for
which the replacement value of the individual leased asset
is low, i.e. less than € 20 thousand, are excluded from the

application of the standard.

The following table provides a summary of the Statement of Financial Position items relating to leases; for further

information, please refer to Part B of the notes to the financial statements:

Type of contract

( Y )

Right of use (*) | Lease liabilities

Property lease payments 6,575,655 6,648,199
Long-term car lease 797,777 802,255
Total 7,373,432 A 7,450,454 )

(*) This is the right of use value net of accumulated depreciation.

The following table provides a summary of the Income Statement items relating to leases; for further information, please

refer to Part B of the notes to the financial statements:

Type of contract

( Y Net impairment\

Interest expense |losses on property
and equipment

Property lease payments 71,208 1,573,756
Long-term car lease 9,434 370,811
Total 80,642 1,944,567
AN J
( SECTION 2 - LESSOR )

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

At the reporting date, the Bank does not engage in leases as a lessor.
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STATEMENTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 81-TER OF CONSOB REGULATION

NO. 11971 OF 14 MAY 1999 AS AMENDED AND SUPPLEMENTED

1. The undersigned, Gianluca Garbi, CEO, and
Alexander Muz, Manager in charge of financial

reporting of Banca Sistema S.p.A., hereby state,

having taken into account the provisions of Art. 3.

154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree
no. 58 of 24 February 1998:
= the suitability as regards the characteristics of
the bank and
= the effective application of the administrative
and accounting procedures for the drafting of the
consolidated financial statements during 2020.
2. Reference model
The suitability of the administrative and accounting
procedures for the drafting of the consolidated
financial statements at 31 December 2020 was
assessed based on an internal model defined by Banca
Sistema S.p.A. that was designed in a manner
consistent with the framework developed by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) and the Control
Objectives for IT and Related Technology (COBIT)

Milan, 29 March 2021

Gianluca Garbi

Chief Executive Officer
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framework, which represent the reference standards

for the internal control system generally accepted on

an international level.

Moreover, the undersigned hereby state that:

3.1 the consolidated financial statements:

a) were drafted in accordance with the applicable
international accounting standards endorsed by
the European Union, pursuant to Regulation (EC)
no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 19 July 2002;

b) match the accounting books and records;

c) are suitable for providing a true and fair view of
the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the issuer and all the companies
included in the scope of consolidation.

3.2 The Directors’ Report includes a reliable analysis
of business performance and results, as well as
of the position of the issuer and the companies
included in the scope of consolidation, together
with a description of the main risks and

uncertainties to which they are exposed.

Alexander Muz

Manager in charge of financial
reporting
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Independent auditor’s Report
pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010
and article 10 of EU Regulation n. 537/2014

To the shareholders of
Banca Sistema S.p.A.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Banca Sistema Group (the Group), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2020, the profit and loss account, the
statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in net equity, the cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and notes and comments to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group as at December 31, 2020 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union,
as well as the regulation issued to implement article 9 of Legislative Decree NO. 38/05 as well as article
43 of Legislative Decree NO. 136/15.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Banca Sistema
S.p.A. (the Company) in accordance with the ethical and independence requirements applicable in Italy to
the audit of financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Bari, Bergamo, Bologna, Brescia, Cagliari, Firenze, Genova, Milano, Napoli, Padova, Palermo, Roma, Torino, Verona
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Codice Fiscale, Partita IVA e Registro Imprese di Milano n. 07722780967 - R.E.A. Milano 1977842
Iscritta al Registro dei Revisori Legali al n. 167911 con D.M. del 15/03/2013 G.U. n. 26 del 02/04/2013
BDO Italia S.p.A., societa per azioni italiana, &€ membro di BDO International Limited, societa di diritto inglese (company limited by guarantee), e fa parte della rete
internazionale BDO, network di societa indipendenti.
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Key audit matters

Audit responses

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF LOANS AND
RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS BOOKED UNDER THE
FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

Notes: Part A) Accounting policies - paragraph A.2,
“Information on the main items of the consolidated
financial statements”: “Financial assets measured
at amortised cost”; Part B) Information on the
statement of financial position, Assets - Section 4
“Financial assets measured at amortised cost”; Part
C) Information on the income statement - Section
8.1 “Net impairment losses due to credit risk
related to financial assets measured at amortised
cost: breakdown”; Part E) Information concerning
risk and related hedging policies

Loans and receivables with customers, which are
booked under the financial assets measured at
amortised cost as of December 31, 2020, are equal
to Euro 3,050 million and represent the 83% of the
Group’s total assets.

The acquisition by the Company of non-impaired
loans claimed by companies supplying goods and
services, mainly towards the public administration
(the “factoring credits”) and origination of credits
relating to the sector of the transfers of salary or
pension backed loans (the “CQS/CQP credits”)
represens the Company's main activities.

Factoring credits and CQS/CQP credits as of
December 31, 2020, are equal to, respectively,
Euro 1,475 million and Euro 934 million.

For classification purposes, the directors of the
Company carry out analyses, sometimes complex,
aimed at identifying the positions which, after the
disbursement and / or acquisition, show evidence
of a possible loss of value, considering both internal
information related to the trend credit positions,
and external information related to the sector of
reference or to the overall exposure of such debtors
to the banking system.

The evaluation of loans and receivables with
customers is a complex estimation activity,
characterized by a high degree of uncertainty and
subjectivity, in which the Company's directors use
evaluation models that take into consideration
numerous quantitative and qualitative elements
such as, among others, historical data relating to
collections, expected cash flows and related
recovery times, the existence of indicators of
possible impairment, the assessment of any
guarantee, the impact of macroeconomic variables,
future scenarios and risks of the sectors in which
the Group customers operate.

Our main audit procedures carried out in response
to the key audit matter relating to the classification
and evaluation of loans and receivables with
customers, concerned the following activities:

analysis of the procedures and processes
related to the item and verification of the
effectiveness of controls to monitor these
procedures and processes;

= analysis of the adequacy of the IT environment
related to IT applications that are relevant to
the process of evaluating loans to banks and
customers;

= procedures for reconciling data between
management systems and information reported
in the financial statements;

= comparative analysis procedures and analysis of
the results with the management involved;

= analysis of the criteria and methods for the
evaluation of credits (analytical and collective)
and verification on a sample basis of the
reasonableness of the assumptions and of the
components used for the assessment and the
relative results;

= examination on a sample basis of the
classification and valuation in the financial
statements in accordance with the IFRS
adopted by the European Union and the
provisions issued pursuant to Article 43 of
Legislative Decree 136/2015;

= examination of the disclosures provided in the
notes.

Banca Sistema S.p.A. | Independent auditor’s Report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010 and article 10 of EU

Regulation n. 537/2014
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For these reasons, we have considered the
classification and evaluation of loans and
receivables with customers booked under financial
assets valued at amortized cost, a significant key
matter in the context of the auditing activity.

DETECTION OF DEFAULT INTEREST PURSUANT TO
LEGISLATIVE DECREE NO. 231 OF 9 OCTOBER 2002
ON PERFORMING RECEIVABLES ACQUIRED WITHOUT
RECOURSE.

Notes: Part A) Accounting policies - paragraph A.2.,
“Information on the main items of the consolidated
financial statements”; Part C) Information on the
income statement - Section 1 “interest - item 10
and 20”; Part E) Information concerning risk and
related hedging policies

The Company’s directors account for accrued
default interest pursuant to legislative decree no.
231 of 9 october 2002 on performing receivables
acquired without recourse.

Default interest recognized on an accrual basis in
the year ended on December 31, 2020 amount to
Euro 10 million and represent the 10% of the
Group's interest and similar income.

The default interest deemed recoverable by the
directors of the Company is estimated by using
models based on the analysis of the time series
concerning the recovery percentages and actual
collection times observed internally.

These analyses are periodically updated following
the progressive consolidation of the time series.

The aforementioned estimate, characterized by a
high degree of uncertainty and subjectivity, feeds
analysis models that take into account numerous
quantitative and qualitative elements such as,
among others, the historical data relating to
collections, expected cash flows, the relative
times collection costs and the impact of the risks
associated with the geographical areas in which
the Bank's customers operate.

For these reasons, we have considered the
detection of default interest pursuant to legislative
decree no. 231 of 9 october 2002 on performing
receivables acquired without recourse a significant
key matter in the context of the auditing activity.

The main audit procedures carried out in response
to the key audit matter relating to the detection of
default interest pursuant to legislative decree no.
231 of 9 october 2002 on performing receivables
acquired without recourse, also carried out with
the support of our experts, concerned the following
activities:

= understanding of the business processes and the
related IT environment with reference to the
estimation of default interest;

= examination of the configuration and
implementation of the controls and
performance of procedures to evaluate the
operational effectiveness of controls which are
considered relevant, with particular reference
to the estimation of default interest;

= analysis of the models used to estimate default
interest and examination of the reasonableness
of the main assumptions contained in them,
with the support of our experts;

= analysis of the adequacy of the information
provided in the explanatory notes.

Banca Sistema S.p.A. | Independent auditor’s Report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010 and article 10 of EU

Regulation n. 537/2014
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VALUATION OF GOODWILL

Notes: Part A) Accounting policies - paragraph A.2.,
“Information on the main items of the consolidated
financial statements”: “Intangible assets”; Part B)
Information on the statement of financial position -
Section 10 “Intangible assets”; Part G) Business
combinations - Section 1 “Transactions performed
in the year”.

The Group recorded among intangibles in the

financial statements, a goodwill for Euro 32 million.

Goodwill, as required by IAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”, is not depreciated but tested for
impairment (“Impairment test”), at least annually,
by means of comparison of the carrying value with
recoverable amounts of each CGU represented by
the value in use.

The impairment test performed by the Bank
confirmed the recoverability of goodwill registered
in the consolidated financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the significance of
its amount and the significant judgement and
complexity of the evaluation process; the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based on the
realisation of the assumptions of the plan, discount
rates and expected future growth rates and other
subjective assumptions.

Our main audit procedures performed, also with the
support of our specialists, in response to the key
audit matter regarding the valuation of goodwill,
included the following:

=  We challenged the reasonableness of the key
underlying assumptions of the plan;

= We assessed and challenged the adequacy of
the impairment model adopted;

=  We assessed the key underlying assumptions
for the impairment model, in particular the
ones related to cash flow projections, discount
rates, long term growth rates.

=  We verified the clerical accuracy of the
impairment model adopted.

=  We performed sensitivity analysis of the
control model of impairment when key
assumptions change;

= We verified the disclosures provided.

Banca Sistema S.p.A. | Independent auditor’s Report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010 and article 10 of EU

Regulation n. 537/2014
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, as well as the regulation issued to implement article 9 of Legislative Decree NO. 38/05 and article
43 of Legislative Decree NO. 136/15 and, within the terms provide by the law, for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the holding Banca Sistema S.p.A. or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA Italia will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA Italia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also have:

= |dentified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

= Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Concluded on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

= Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= QObtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Banca Sistema S.p.A. | Independent auditor’s Report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010 and article 10 of EU
Regulation n. 537/2014
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We have communicated with those charged with governance, as properly identified in accordance with ISA
Italia, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We have also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical and independence requirements applicable in Italy, and communicated with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We described those matters in the auditor’s report.

Other information communicated pursuant to article 10 of Regulation (EU) 537/2014

We were initially engaged by the shareholders meeting of Banca Sistema S.p.A. on April 18, 2019 to
perform the audit of the separate and the consolidated financial statements of each fiscal year starting
from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2027.

We declare that we did not provide prohibited non audit services, referred to article 5, paragraph 1, of
Regulation (EU) 537/2014, and that we remained independent of the company in conducting the audit.

We confirm that the opinion on the consolidated financial statements included in this audit report is
consistent with the content of the additional report prepared in accordance with article 11 of the EU
Regulation n.537/2014, submitted to those charged with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion pursuant to article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree n. 39/10 and of article
123-bis of Legislative Decree n. 58/98.

The directors of Banca Sistema S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the report on operations and
of the corporate governance report of Banca Sistema S.p.A. as at December 31, 2020, including their
consistency with the consolidated financial statements and their compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations.

We have performed the procedures required under audit standard (SA Italia) n. 720B in order to express an
opinion on the consistency of the report on operations and of specific information of the corporate
governance report as provided by article 123-bis, paragraph. 4, of Legislative Decree n. 58/98, with the
consolidated financial statements of Banca Sistema S.p.A. as at December 31, 2020 and on their
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and in order to assess whether they contain material
misstatements.

In our opinion, the report on operations and the above mentioned specific information of the corporate
governance report are consistent with the consolidated financial statements of Banca Sistema Group as at
December 31, 2020 and are compliant with applicable laws and regulations.

With reference to the assessment pursuant to article 14, paragraph. 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree n.
39/10 based on our knowledge and understanding of the entity and its environment obtained through our
audit, we have nothing to report.

Milan, March 30, 2021

BDO Italia S.p.A.
(signed in the original)
Rosanna Vicari
Partner

Banca Sistema S.p.A. | Independent auditor’s Report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010 and article 10 of EU
Regulation n. 537/2014
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Introduction to the Directors’ Report of Banca Sistema * factoring;

S.p.A. = salary- and pension-backed loans;

This Directors' Report provides commentary on the = funding activities;

Parent's performance and the related figures and results. = composition and organisational structure of the
For other information required by the applicable legal Group;

and regulatory provisions, please see the Directors' = capital and shares;

Report in the Banca Sistema Group's consolidated = risk management and support control methods;

financial statements as regards the following: = significant events after the reporting date;

= composition of management bodies; = business outlook and main risks and uncertainties.

= composition of the internal committees; With respect to the notes to the separate financial

= significant events during the year; statements, the sections where reference is made to the

= the macroeconomic scenario; consolidated financial statements are provided below:
REFERRING SECTION OF THE SEPARATE SECTION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STATEMENTS TO WHICH REFERENCE IS MADE
Part B Section 9 - Intangible assets - Item 90 Part B Section 10 - Intangible assets - Item 100

Narrative section

Narrative section

Part E Section 1 - Credit risk

Qualitative disclosure

Part E Section 2 - Prudential consolidation risks,

1.1 Credit risk

Qualitative disclosure

Part E Section 2 - Market risk
2.1 |Interest rate risk and price risk -
regulatory trading portfolio

Qualitative disclosure

Part E 1.2 Market risk

1.2.1 Interest rate risk and price risk -

regulatory trading portfolio

Qualitative disclosure

Part E Section 2 - Market risk
2.2 Interest rate risk and price risk -
Banking Book

Qualitative disclosure

Part E 1.2 Market risk

1.2.2  Interest rate risk and price risk -

Banking Book

Qualitative disclosure

Part E Section 2 - Market risk
2.3 Currency risk

Qualitative disclosure

Part E 1.2 Market risk

1.2.3 Currency risk

Qualitative disclosure

Part E Section 4 - Liquidity risk

Qualitative disclosure

Part E 1.4 Liquidity risk

Qualitative disclosure

Part E Section 5 - Operational risks

Qualitative disclosure
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Total Asset e — S 4.0% |31 pec 2020
O I 3736554 7
I 881,183
iti i ! ° 31 Dec 2019
Securities Portfolio I 991,560 11.1% .

I 1,436,768 /

Loans - Factoring I 1,714,661 -16.2%

Loans - Salary-backed loans I 1,008,282 21.6%

and SME 829,227 /

I 1,054,231

Funding - Banks and REPOs 24.7%
3 I 845,428

, .- | I

Funding - Term Deposits SR -8.2%
] 1,325,794

Funding - Current Accounts . 639,546 g 39,
[ 682,289

Income statement data (€,000)

Net interest income S -11.2%
] 80,552

Net fee and commission income i I -6.9%
m 15,841

I o6,
i )4,

Total Income
N 100,551
Personnel Expenses i (@1,742) -2.6%
I (22,316)
Other administrative expenses ] (21,570) -4.2%
[ (22,512)
Profit for the year | 25,746 -14.1%
| 29,956

Performance Indicators

: | 49.1%
Cost/income y 0.1%
] 49.1%
ROTE — 13.2% 55 89,
] 17.0%



HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank had staff of 198, broken down by category as follows:

FTES 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Senior managers 24 23
Middle managers (QD3 and QD4) 42 40
Other personnel 132 136
Total 198 199

During the year, a total of ten new resources were
recruited in the Chief of Staff, ICT, Corporate Strategy,
CQ Commercial, Human Capital, and Credit departments.
Starting from the end of February, the Group, in response
to the health emergency, promptly adapted its operational
model to ensure business continuity by allowing employees
to work remotely. Excluded from this new operational
model were employees of the Banking branches and those
working in the departments having the greatest impact
on managing the emergency, namely ICT and Logistics.
Along with all safety and precautionary measures, all
activities were reorganised and managed remotely with
a total of over 77% of workdays performed outside the
Bank’s premises. Even during the second half of the year,
depending on the evolution of the health emergency and
the resulting measures to counter the spread of the virus,
including by restricting movement, operations continued
to be carried out remotely for an average of around 75% of
workdays. Several internal communication initiatives were
carried out on the health emergency and its management
by the Group’s Crisis Committee, and on business
performance and strategies between management and
all employees. In addition, frequent exchanges between
teams and between employees have been encouraged and
the right to disconnect has been guaranteed based on
the hours the central access tools are available. In April,
a workplace climate survey was conducted specifically
to verify the overall effectiveness of the actions taken.
Survey participation was high, and the results revealed
a high degree of satisfaction with the initiatives in place
and with the feeling of safety and closeness ensured by
the Group. During the emergency, an agreement was

signed to guarantee qualified and immediate health

and medical advice remotely through digital channels to
employees and their families, even for matters unrelated
to the coronavirus.

During the first half of the year, various professional training
courses were organised covering regulatory topics affecting
the Bank, both with internal and external instructors. Some
of these courses were rescheduled for the second half of
the year because of the health emergency. Specific training
courses and coaching programmes were also developed and
launched focusing on managerial and professional topics
mainly for the Commercial Department and new managers.
With the implementation of the new divisional structure
and the ensuing appointments of the top-level managers
of the new structures, targeted coaching programmes were
developed and implemented to accelerate the onboarding
of the new heads of division. During 2020, there was a shift
from in-person classroom training in the early months of
the year to distance learning as a way of continuing training
programmes despite the continuing pandemic and the
associated restrictions on movements and social contact.
In the second half of the year, individual coaching, training
on the regulatory and legal framework, as well as technical
and language training for all Group staff also continued.
In 2020, 257 days of training were provided to Banca
Sistema staff, a 15% decrease compared to the previous
year. This decrease was a consequence of some training
courses being postponed and rescheduled remotely,
and in a manner consistent with the guidelines of the
interprofessional funds providing financed training, which
were formalised on several occasions throughout 2020.
The average age of Group employees is 47 for men and
44 for women. The breakdown by gender is essentially

balanced with men accounting for 56% of the total.
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INCOME STATEMENT RESULTS

INCOME STATEMENT (€,000) € Change | % Change
Net interest income 71,559 80,552 (8,993) -11.2%
Net fee and commission income 14,747 15,841 (1,094) -6.9%
Dividends and similar income 227 227 - 0.0%
Net trading income 56 215 (159) -74.0%
Gain from sales or repurchases of financial assets/liabilities 9,531 3,716 5,815 >100%
Total income 96,120 100,551 (4,431) -4.4%
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables (12,481) (9,053) (3,428) 37.9%
Net financial income 83,639 91,498 (7,859) -8.6%
Personnel expense (21,742) (22,316) 574 -2.6%
Other administrative expenses (21,570) (22,512) 942 -4.2%
Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges (2,520) (1,996) (524) 26.3%
Net impairment losses on property and equipment/intangible assets (1,618) (1,748) 130 -7.4%
Other operating income (expense) 233 (795) 1,028 <100%
Operating costs (47,217) (49,367) 2,150 -4.4%
Gains (losses) on sales of investments 1,090 - 1,090 n.a.
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations 37,512 42,131 (4,619) -11.0%
Income taxes for the year (11,766) (12,351) 585 -4.7%
Post-tax profit for the year 25,746 29,780 (4,034) -13.5%
Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - 176 (176) -100.0%
Profit for the year 25,746 29,956 (4,210) -14.1%
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests - - - n.a.
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the parent 25,746 29,956 (4,210) -14.1%

Profit for 2020 amounted to € 25.7 million, down on
the previous year mainly due to a decline in net interest
income as a result of the lower contribution from the
loans and receivables factoring portfolio.

Inthe third quarter of 2020, the expected rates of recovery
of default interest on factoring and the related collection
times used for the estimate as at 30 September 2020
were updated in the light of the progressive consolidation
of the historical data series; the adjustment of these
estimates led to the recognition of higher total interest
income of € 1.0 million. The results for the same period
in the previous year also benefited from the change in
the estimate for the probability of collection of default

interest which led to the recognition of higher interest

income of € 5.1 million.

Unlike the 2020 financial year, the figures for 2019
did not include the full year's operating costs of
Atlantide, which entered the scope of consolidation in
the second quarter of 2019 following the acquisition
of the company which was completed on 3 April 2019.
Since August 2019, the costs associated with the
collateralised lending business have not been included
as the business unit was merged into the newly formed
ProntoPegno. Furthermore, to correctly interpret the
operating costs, one must bear in mind that the amount
due to the Resolution Fund is € 0.9 million higher than
the first half of 2019 (the unexpected increase in the

contribution was 75%).
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NET INTEREST INCOME (€,000) € Change % Change
Interest and similar income
Loans and receivables portfolios 87,620 104,691 (17,071) -16.3%
Factoring 64,528 81,335 (16,807) -20.7%
cQ 22,415 23,006 (591) -2.6%
Collateralised lending (interest income) - 350 (350) -100.0%
Government-backed loans to SMEs 677 - 677 n.a.
Securities portfolio 1,872 750 1,122 >100%
Other 1,633 2,111 (578) -27.4%
Financial liabilities 4,222 2,692 1,530 56.9%
Total interest income 95,247 110,244 (14,997) -13.6%
Interest and similar expense
Due to banks (412) (575) 163 -28.3%
Due to customers (15,716) (21,059) 5,343 -25.4%
Securities issued (7,372) (7,930) 558 7.0%
Financial assets (188) (128) (60) 46.9%
Total interest expense (23,688) (29,692) 6,004 -20.2%
Net interest income 71,559 80,552 (8,993) -11.2%

Net interest income decreased compared to the previous
year. This was due to the lower contribution of the
Factoring Division as a result of the reduction in default
interest from both legal and out-of-court actions, and
tax receivables. On the other hand, the current funding
policies had a positive impact on net interest income.
The total contribution of the Factoring Division to interest
income was € 65.2 million, equal to 74% of the entire
loans and receivables portfolio (compared to 78% at 31
December 2019), to which the commission component
associated with the factoring business and the revenue
generated by the assignment of receivables from the
factoring portfolio need to be added. The component
linked to default interest from legal action at 31 December
2020 was € 21.6 million (€ 29 million at 31 December
2019):
= of which € 1 million resulting from the updated
recovery estimates and expected collection times (€
5.1 million in 2019);
= of which € 9.0 million resulting from the current
recovery estimates (€ 12.0 million in 2019);

= of which € 11.6 million (€ 11.9 million in 2019)

coming from net collections during the year, i.e. the
difference between the amount collected during the
period, equal to € 21.5 million (€ 21.6 million in
2019) and that recognised on an accruals basis in
previous years. This item includes gross collections of
€ 6.5 million from transfers to third parties (equal to €
7.0 million in 2019).
The decrease in the effect resulting from the updated
recovery estimates is a consequence of the fact that the
historical series over the last few years have settled nearer
to the average collection percentages and have stabilised in
terms of the number of positions. As a result, the expected
recovery percentage calculated by the statistical model is
now quite stable and does not fluctuate significantly.
The amount of the stock of default interest from legal
actions accrued at 31 December 2020, relevant for the
allocation model, was € 98 million (€ 107 million at
the end of 2019), which would become € 155 million
including troubled local authorities, a component for
which default interest is not allocated in the financial
statements, whereas the loans and receivables recognised

in the financial statements amount to € 50.1 million. The
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amount of default interest accrued but not recognised in
the income statement is € 105 million.

During the year, factoring portfolios were sold that
generated a total net profit of € 2.4 million recognised
in the item Gain from sales or repurchases of financial
assets/liabilities.

The positive impact on income was also driven by growth in
interest on the salary- and pension-backed portfolios which
is down slightly on the previous year at € 16.9 million as a
result of the early redemption of several positions.

The contribution from the Collateralised Lending Division
amounting to € 350 thousand represents income
generated up to 31 July 2019, because from the following

month the collateralised lending business unit was

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

merged into the newly formed ProntoPegno.

The item “financial liabilities” mainly includes income
arising from the financing activity of the securities
portfolio in repurchase agreements and ECB loans at
negative rates, which account for € 4.2 million.

Despite the increase in average lending, interest expense
decreased compared to the previous year thanks to the
funding strategies put in place which aimed to carefully
contain the cost of funding. In particular, interest on term
deposits from customers decreased as a result of the
reduction in the interest rate applied to deposit accounts.
This has led to a decrease in funding from this channel,

while the various forms of funding from the ECB, at

negative rates, have increased significantly.

€ Change % Change
(€,000)

Fee and commission income

Factoring activities 17,726 18,420 (694) -3.8%
Fee and commission income - off-premises CQ 2,388 1,859 529 28.5%
Collateralised loans (fee and commission income) 2 226 (224) -99.1%
Collection activities 1,138 1,247 (109) -8.7%
Other 365 508 (143) -28.1%
Total fee and commission income 21,619 22,260 (641) -2.9%
Fee and commission expense

Factoring portfolio placement (1,279) (1,204) (75) 6.2%
Placement of other financial products (1,767) (2,721) 954 -35.1%
Fees - off-premises CQ (3,013) (1,936) (1,077) 55.6%
Other (813) (558) (255) 45.7%
Total fee and commission expense (6,872) (6,419) (453) 7.1%
Net fee and commission income 14,747 15,841 (1,094) -6.9%

Net fee and commission income of € 14.7 million was
down by -6.9%.

Fee and commission income from factoring should be
considered together with interest income, since it makes
no difference from a management point of view whether
profit is recognised in the commissions and fees item or
in interest in the without recourse factoring business.
Commissions on collection activities, related to the
service of reconciliation of third-party invoices collected

from Public Administration are down slightly on the

previous year.

Other fee and commission income includes commissions
and fees from collection and payment services, and the
keeping and management of current accounts.

Fee and commission income - off-premises CQ refers to
the commissions on the salary- and pension-backed loan
(CQ) origination business of € 2.4 million, which should
be considered together with the item Fees - off-premises
CQ, amounting to € 3.0 million, which are composed of

the commissions paid to financial advisers for the off-
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premises placement of the salary- and pension-backed
loan product, including the estimated year-end bonuses
payable to them.

Fees and commissions for the placement of financial
products paid to third parties are attributable to returns
to third party intermediaries for the placement of the SI

Conto! Deposito product under the passporting regime,

GAIN FROM SALES OR REPURCHASES

whereas the fee and commission expense of placing the
factoring portfolios are linked to the origination costs of
factoring receivables, which remained in line with those
reported the previous year.

Other fee and commission expense includes commissions

for trading third-party securities and for interbank

collections and payment services.

(€,000) € Change % Change
Gains from HTCS portfolio debt instruments 5,301 2,610 2,691 >100%
Gains from HTC portfolio debt instruments 340 - 340 n.a.
Gains from financial liabilities 16 - 16 n.a.
Gains from receivables (Factoring portfolio) 2,425 1,106 1,319 >100%
Gains from receivables (CQ portfolio) 1,449 - 1,449 n.a.
Total 9,531 3,716 5,815 >100%

The item Gain (loss) from sales or repurchases includes
gains generated by the proprietary HTCS and HTC securities
portfolio of € 5.6 million, and net realised gains from
factoring receivables of € 2.4 million, the revenue from
which derives mainly from the sale of factoring portfolios
to private-sector assignors. During the second half of the
year, loans and receivables from the internally originated
CQ portfolio were sold, generating a gain of € 1.4 million.
receivables at 31

Impairment losses on loans and

December 2020 amounted to € 12.5 million and include
a model update of the collective provision due to the
deterioration of the macroeconomic scenario caused by
the ongoing health emergency. Impairment losses are
mainly attributable to exposures to businesses and some
factoring loans. The loss rate increased from 0.36% at 31

December 2019 to 0.48%. Impairment losses include a

€ 1.5 million impairment loss on a receivable from the

UK subsidiary.

PERSONNEL EXPENSE (€,000) € Change % Change
Wages and salaries (20,256) (20,883) 627 -3.0%
Social security contributions and other costs (379) (335) (44) 13.1%
Directors' and statutory auditors' remuneration (1,107) (1,098) (9) 0.8%
Total (21,742) (22,316) 574 -2.6%

The decrease in personnel expense is mainly due to lower

redundancy charges of € 0.2 million (€ 0.6 million at

31 December 2019) and lower accruals for non-compete

agreements.
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OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE

2020 2019 € Change % Change
EXPENSES (€,000)
Consultancy (4,672) (4,128) (544) 13.2%
IT expenses (5,020) (5,711) 691 -12.1%
Servicing and collection activities (2,951) (2,992) 41 -1.4%
Indirect taxes and duties (1,802) (2,108) 306 -14.5%
Insurance (468) (486) 18 -3.7%
Other (523) (429) (94) 21.9%
Expenses related to management of the SPVs (537) (530) (7) 1.3%
Car hire and related fees (546) (635) 89 -14.0%
Advertising (310) (499) 189 -37.9%
Rent and related fees (945) (1,030) 85 -8.3%
Expense reimbursement and entertainment (302) (825) 523 -63.4%
Infoprovider expenses (514) (638) 124 -19.4%
Membership fees (288) (304) 16 -5.3%
Property management expenses (66) (101) 35 -34.7%
Audit fees (240) (329) 89 -27.1%
Telephone and postage expenses (139) (135) (4) 3.0%
Logistics expenses (61) (61) - 0.0%
Stationery and printing (41) (60) 19 -31.7%
Total operating expenses (19,425) (21,001) 1,576 -7.5%
Resolution Fund (2,007) (1,146) (861) 75.1%
Merger-related costs (138) (365) 227 -62.2%
Total (21,570) (22,512) 942 -4.2%
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Administrative expenses decreased mainly as a result
of lower travel expenses due to the pandemic and lower
IT costs. The cost related to the contribution to the
Resolution Fund accounted for € 0.9 million of the
increase in costs.

The increase in consulting expenses is mainly due to
the costs incurred for legal expenses related to pending
lawsuits and enforceable injunctions for the recovery
of receivables and default interest from debtors of the
Public Administration.

The 2020 merger-related costs refer to costs incurred
by the Parent in connection with the acquisition of the
collateralised lending business unit completed in July.
The 2019 merger-related costs include the costs for
the integration and merger of Atlantide into the Bank.

The impairment losses on property and equipment/
intangible assets are the result of higher provisions
for property used for business purposes, as well as the

depreciation of the “right-of-use” asset following the

application of IFRS 16.

The item accruals to provisions for risks is mainly
attributable to the measurement and review of
contingent liabilities for ongoing lawsuits, and the
assessment and quantification of possible future risks.
The item Gains (losses) on sales of investments includes
the € 1.1 million gain on the sale of 25% of the share
capital of the ProntoPegno subsidiary by the Parent to
its current minority shareholders.

The tax it benefited from the

(Aid to

rate improved as
reintroduction by the legislator of “ACE”
Economic Growth), which is aimed at strengthening
the capital structure of companies, a measure that was
introduced in 2011, abolished by the previous 2019
Budget Law and then reintroduced with the 2020
Budget Law. The gain on the sale of 25% of the equity
investment in ProntoPegno held by the Parent benefits

from the participation exemption (PEX), which means

that 95% of it is exempt from taxation.
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THE MAIN STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AGGREGATES

The comments on the main aggregates on the asset side of the statement of financial position are shown below.

ASSETS (€£,000)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019 € Change % Change

Cash and cash equivalents 108 154 (46) -29.9%
Financial assets measured at fair value 2,353 - 2,353 n.a.
through profit or loss
Financial assets measured at fair value through 430,966 556,383 (125,417) -22.5%
other comprehensive income
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,073,680 3,123,738 (50,058) -1.6%
a) loans and receivables with banks 90,434 81,002 9,432 11.6%
b1) loans and receivables with customers - loans 2,535,382 2,607,559 (72,177) -2.8%
b2) loans and receivables with customers - debt instruments 447,864 435,177 12,687 2.9%
Equity investments 45,250 20,000 25,250 >100%
Property and equipment 5,427 6,061 (634) -10.5%
Intangible assets 3,932 3,921 11 0.3%
Tax assets 8,835 8,099 736 9.1%
Other assets 18,190 18,198 (8) 0,0%
Total assets 3,588,741 3,736,554 (147,813) -4.0%

The year ended 31 December 2020 closed with total
assets down by 4.0% on the end of 2019 and equal to
€ 3.7 billion.

The securities portfolio relating to Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“HTCS"” or “Held to collect and Sell”) of the Group
was down slightly compared to 31 December 2019 and
continues to be mainly comprised of Italian government

bonds with an average duration of about 14.8 months (the

average remaining duration at the end of 2019 was 20.1

months). This is consistent with the Group investment
policy. The HTCS portfolio amounted to € 425 million at
31 December 2020 (€ 550 million at 31 December 2019).
The associated valuation reserve was positive at the end of
the year, amounting to € 2.6 million before the tax effect.
In addition to government securities, the HTCS portfolio
also includes 200 shares of the Bank of Italy, amounting
to € 5 million, and the Axactor Norway shares, which at 31
December 2020 had a negative fair value reserve of € 0.5

million, resulting in a year-end amount of € 0.6 million.
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LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH

31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change

CUSTOMERS (€,000)

Factoring 1,436,768 1,714,661 (277,893) -16.2%
Salary-/pension-backed loans (CQS/CQP) 933,873 817,229 116,644 14.3%
Loans to SMEs 74,409 11,998 62,411 >100%
Current accounts 64,027 41,829 22,198 53.1%
Compensation and Guarantee Fund 12,639 20,676 (8,037) -38.9%
Other loans and receivables 13,666 1,166 12,500 >100%
Total loans 2,535,382 2,607,559 (72,177) -2.8%
Securities 447,864 435,177 12,687 2.9%
Total loans and receivables with customers 2,983,246 3,042,736 (59,490) -2.0%

The item loans and receivables with customers under
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (hereinafter
HTC, or “Held to Collect”), is composed of loan receivables
with customers and the “held-to-maturity securities”
portfolio.

Outstanding loans for factoring receivables compared
to Total loans, therefore excluding the amounts of the
securities portfolio, were 57% (66% at the end of 2019).
The volumes generated during the year amounted to
€ 3,101 million (€ 3,055 million at 31 December 2019).

Salary- and pension-backed loans grew thanks to new

loans from acquired portfolios and originated receivables,
which increased by 14% compared to the previous
year (the new volumes acquired in 2020 amounted to
€ 308 million), while government-backed loans to SMEs
increased following new disbursements made under SACE
and SME Fund guarantees.

HTC Securities are composed entirely of Italian government
securities with an average duration of 11.2 months for an
amount of € 447 million. The mark-to-market valuation
of the securities at 31 December 2020 was a positive fair

value of € 4.9 million.
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The following table shows the quality of receivables in the Loans and receivables with customers item, excluding the

securities positions.

STATUS (€,000)

31.12.2020

31.12.2019

Bad exposures 52,354 50,622
Unlikely to pay 147,431 139,349
Past due 50,377 55,647
Non-performing 250,162 245,618
Performing 2,337,945 2,392,985

Stage 2 134,159 124,252

Stage 1 2,203,786 2,268,733
Total loans and receivables with customers 2,588,107 2,638,603
Individual impairment losses 45,151 37,217
Bad exposures 25,240 20,078
Unlikely to pay 19,476 16,042
Past due 435 1,097
Collective impairment losses 8,787 5,686

Stage 2 781 667

Stage 1 8,006 5,019
Total impairment losses 53,938 42,903
Net exposure 2,534,169 2,595,700

The ratio of gross non-performing loans to the total
portfolio went from 9.3% at 31 December 2019 to the
current 9.7%. Non-performing loans increased slightly
compared to 31 December 2019. The amount of past
due loans and local authorities in financial difficulty is
attributed to factoring receivables without recourse from
Public Administration and is considered normal for the
sector and does not represent an issue in terms of credit
quality and probability of collection.

Net bad exposures remained at moderate levels and
amounted to 1.1% of total loans and receivables with
customers, while the coverage ratio of non-performing
loans was equal to 18.0%.

Equity investments increased compared to the previous
year, mainly as a result of the capital increase paid
into the ProntoPegno subsidiary in preparation for its
acquisition of the business unit. At the end of 2020,

Banca Sistema entered into an equal partnership with

EBN Banco de Negocios S.A., taking a stake in the capital
of EBNSISTEMA Finance S.L., and thereby entering the
Spanish factoring market. Banca Sistema acquired an
equity investment in EBNSISTEMA through a capital
increase of € 1 million which gave Banca Sistema a 50%
stake in the Madrid-based company. The aim of the joint
venture is to develop the Public Administration factoring
business on the Iberian peninsula, specialising in the
purchase of healthcare receivables.
Intangible assets refer to goodwill of € 3.9 million,
broken down as follows:
= the goodwill originating from the merger of the former
subsidiary Solvi S.r.l. which took place in 2013
amounting to € 1.8 million;
= the goodwill generated by the acquisition of Atlantide
S.p.A. on 3 April 2019 amounting to € 2.1 million.
Other assets mainly include amounts being processed

after the end of the year and advance tax payments.
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Comments on the main aggregates on the liability side of the statement of financial position are shown below.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 3,210,632 3,416,940 (206,308) -6.0%
a) due to banks 819,001 388,358 430,643 >100%
b) due to customers 2,253,541 2,716,975 (463,434) -17.1%
¢) securities issued 138,090 311,607 (173,517) -55.7%
Tax liabilities 16,645 16,433 212 1.3%
Other liabilities 136,004 98,809 37,195 37.6%
Post-employment benefits 3,374 2,955 419 14.2%
Provisions for risks and charges 22,637 21,792 845 3.9%
Valuation reserves 1,386 279 1,107 >100%
Reserves 162,900 139,973 22,927 16.4%
Share capital 9,651 9,651 - 0.0%
Treasury shares (-) (234) (234) - 0.0%
Profit for the year 25,746 29,956 (4,210) -14.1%
Total liabilities and equity 3,588,741 3,736,554 (147,813) -4.0%

Wholesale funding, which represents about 39% of
the total, increased in both relative and absolute terms

from the end of 2019 following the increase in funding

from the ECB and the decrease in funding through

deposit accounts. The contribution of bond funding to

total wholesale funding was 12%.

DUE TO BANKS (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change
Due to Central banks 689,686 358,250 331,436 92.5%
Due to banks 129,315 30,108 99,207 >100%
Current accounts and demand deposits 125,178 19 125,159 >100%
Term deposits with banks - 30,089 (30,089) -100.0%
Other amounts due to banks 4,137 - 4,137 n.a.
Total 819,001 388,358 430,643 >100%

The item “Due to banks” increased compared to 31
December 2019 due to the increase in interbank
funding and especially refinancing with the ECB backed
by ABS from the salary- and pension-backed loans
(CQS/CQP) securitisation, government bonds, CQS/
CQP receivables and some factoring receivables. As a
result of the decisions taken by the ECB in response
to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, the amount
available to the Bank under TLTRO Il (starting in June

2020) increased to a maximum of € 491 million from
the previous amount of € 295 million. From March to
June, the Bank could benefit from the LTRO bridge loan
for a total amount of 650 million at an average rate of
-0.50% that was repaid on 24 June 2020. From May,
the Bank could also benefit from PELTROs, Pandemic
Emergency Longer-Term Refinancing Operations (200
million as at 31 December 2020) at a fixed rate of

-0.25%.
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DUE TO CUSTOMERS (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change

Term deposits 1,216,523 1,325,794 (109,271) -8.2%
Financing (repurchase agreements) 235,230 457,070 (221,840) -48.5%
Current accounts 639,546 682,289 (42,743) -6.3%
Due to assignors 71,654 83,783 (12,129) -14.5%
Other payables 90,588 168,039 (77,451) -46.1%
Total 2,253,541 2,716,975 (463,434) -17.1%

The item “Due to customers” decreased compared to € -108 million due to the reduction in interest rates in the

the end of the previous year, mainly due to a decrease international channel; gross deposits from the beginning
in funding from term deposits and from repurchase of the year were € 1,091 million, against withdrawals
agreements. The year-end amount of term deposits totalling € 1,199 million.
decreased by 8.2% compared to the end of 2019, Duetoassignorsincludes payables related tothe unfunded

reflecting net negative deposits (net of accrued interest) of  portion of acquired receivables.
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SECURITIES ISSUED (€,000) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 € Change % Change

Bond - AT1 8,018 8,016 2 0.0%
Bond - Tier Il 37,570 37,547 23 0.1%
Bonds - other 92,502 266,044 (173,542) -65.2%
Total 138,090 311,607 (173,517) -55.7%

The item Securities issued (138 million) decreased

compared to 31 December 2019 and 30 September

2020 mainly due to the repayment of the senior bond

maturing in October amounting to 175 million.

The nominal amount of securities issued at 31 December

2020 is broken down as follows:

= Tier 1 subordinated loan of € 8 million, with no
maturity (perpetual basis) and a fixed coupon until
18 December 2022 at 7% issued on 18 December
2012;

= Tier 2 subordinated loan of € 19.5 million, 2017-
2027 with a variable coupon equal to 6-month
Euribor + 4.5%;

= Tier 2 subordinated loan of € 18 million, 2019-2029
with a fixed coupon of 7%;

= Senior bonds (private placement) of € 92.5 million,
2018-2021 with a fixed coupon of 2%, and the
senior shares of the ABS in the BS IVA securitisation
subscribed by third-party institutional investors.

The provision for risks and charges of € 22.6 million

includes the provision for possible liabilities attributable

to past acquisitions of € 3.1 million, the estimated

amount of personnel-related charges such as the portion

of the bonus for the year, the deferred portion of the

bonus accrued in previous years, the estimate related

to the non-compete agreement and ongoing labour-

related lawsuits, totalling € 7.9 million. The provision
also includes an estimate of charges related to possible
liabilities to assignors that have yet to be settled of
€ 4.7 million and other estimated charges for ongoing
lawsuits and legal disputes amounting to € 1.2 million.
Following the acquisition of Atlantide, the provision
increased as a result of the estimated earn-out to be paid
to the sellers linked to the achievement of production
volume targets for the next three years (the liability is
currently estimated to be € 1.3 million and is offset
against goodwill), and the provision for supplementary
customer allowances. Also included is the provision for
claims and the provision to cover the estimated adverse
effect of possible early repayments (also known as pre-
payments) on CQS portfolios purchased from third-party
intermediaries and on the assigned portfolio, for an
amount of € 3.4 million.

Other liabilities mainly include payments received after
the end of the year from the assigned debtors and which
were still being allocated and items being processed
during the days following year-end, as well as trade
payables and tax liabilities.

The item also includes the 2019 dividend of € 7.5
million, which has been approved but not distributed.
This amount is excluded from the calculation of CET1

insofar as it is excluded from the Bank’s equity.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Provisional information concerning the regulatory capital and capital adequacy of Banca Sistema is shown below.

OWN FUNDS (€,000) AND CAPITAL RATIOS 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 188,364 146,549
ADDITIONAL TIER 1 8,000 8,000
Tier 1 capital (T1) 196,364 154,549
TIER2 37,500 37,500
Total Own Funds (TC) 233,864 192,049
Total risk-weighted assets 1,289,079 1,308,721
of which, credit risk 1,116,262 1,152,292
of which, operational risk 172,817 156,429
Ratio - CET1 14.6% 11.2%
Ratio - T1 15.2% 11.8%
Ratio - TCR 18.1% 14.7%

Total own funds were € 234 million at 31 December
2020 and included the profit for the year, net of
dividends estimated on the profit for the year which were
equal to a pay-out of 25% of the Parent’s profit.

As previously reported, on 30 June 2020 the Group
began benefitting from the reduction in the weighting
of the CQS/CQP assets set out in Regulation 876/2019
that came into effect on 27 June 2020.

The Group’s consolidated capitalisation requirements,

according to the transitory criteria, are as follows:

= CET1 ratio of 7.75%;

= TIERI ratio of 9.55%;

= Total Capital Ratio of 11.90%.

The additional ratio for the CET1 ratio is unchanged from
that expected for 2019, while for the T1 ratio and the
Total Capital Ratio, the OCR were increased by 5 basis
points. The new SREP decision does not include any

quantitative liquidity requirements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Report on corporate governance and ownership structure

Pursuant to art. 123-bis, paragraph 3 of Legislative
Decree no. b8 dated 24 February 1998, a “Report
on corporate governance and ownership structure”

has been drawn up; the document - published jointly

Remuneration Report

Pursuant to section 84-quater, paragraph 1 of the
Issuers’ Regulation implementing Legislative Decree
No. 58 dated 24 February 1998, a “Remuneration

Report” has been drawn up; the document - published

Research and Development Activities

with the draft financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2020 - is available in the
“Governance” section of the Banca Sistema website

(www.bancasistema.it).

jointly with the draft financial statements as at and for
the year ended 31 December 2020 - is available in
the “Governance” section of the Banca Sistema website

(www.bancasistema.it).

No research and development activities were carried out in 2020.

Future activities and new initiatives

In line with the Bank's values and corporate culture and
with the activities already in place in terms of sustainability,
the Banca Sistema Group intends to pursue, on a voluntary

basis, a structured approach for defining its positioning

on ESG issues, a sustainability reporting process aligned
with industry best practices and leading international
guidelines, as well as an action plan aimed at identifying

ways of improving its sustainability profile.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions including the relevant
authorisation and disclosure procedures, are governed
by the “Procedure governing related party transactions”
approved by the Board of Directors and published on
the internet site of the Parent, Banca Sistema S.p.A.

Transactions between Group companies and related

parties were carried out in the interests of the Bank,
including within the scope of ordinary operations;
these transactions were carried out in accordance
with market conditions and, in any event, based on
mutual financial advantage and in compliance with all

procedures.

ATYPICAL OR UNUSUAL TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not carry out any atypical or unusual transactions, as defined in Consob Communication

no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Reference should be made to the corresponding section  consolidated financial statements, which is deemed to

of the Directors' Report in the Banca Sistema Group's  be fully reported here.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND MAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Reference should be made to the corresponding section  consolidated financial statements, which is deemed to

of the Directors' Report in the Banca Sistema Group's  be fully reported here.

PROPOSED ALLOCATION OF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Dear Shareholders, = adividend of € 6,433,684.16;

The separate financial statements as at and for the year = the remainder of € 19,311,856.49 to retained
ended 31 December 2020, which we submit for your earnings.

approval, show a profit for the year of € 25,745,540.65.  An allocation to the Legal Reserve was not made since
We recommend allocating the profit for the year as  the limits set out in Article 2430 of the Italian Civil Code

follows: were reached.

Milan, 11 March 2021
On behalf of the Board of Directors

The Chairperson The CEO

Luitgard Spogler Gianluca Garbi

e ‘Jmff’“ A A
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SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amounts in Euros)

Assets 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

10. | Cash and cash equivalents 108,490 153,601

20. | Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,353,445 -

a) financial assets held for trading - -

b) financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss - -

c) other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,353,445 -

30. | Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 430,965,635 556,383,266

40. | Financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,073,679,467 | 3,123,737,882

a) loans and receivables with banks 90,433,675 81,002,261

b) loans and receivables with customers 2,983,245,792| 3,042,735,621

70. | Equity investments 45,250,000 20,000,000

80. | Property and equipment 5,426,963 6,061,393

90. | Intangible assets 3,931,911 3,920,808
of which:

gooadwill 3,919,700 3,919,700

100. | Tax assets 8,835,232 8,099,379

a) current - -

b) deferred 8,835,232 8,099,379

120. | Other assets 18,189,979 18,197,732

Total Assets 3,588,741,122( 3,736,554,061
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Liabilities and equity

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

10. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 3,210,631,042 3,416,939,923
a) due to banks 819,000,552 388,357,667
b) due to customers 2,253,5640,906 | 2,716,975,290
¢) securities issued 138,089,584 311,606,966
60. | Tax liabilities 16,644,951 16,433,038
a) current 1,995,302 2,213,198
b) deferred 14,649,649 14,219,840
80. | Other liabilities 136,006,687 98,810,084
90. Post-employment benefits 3,373,701 2,955,435
100. | Provisions for risks and charges: 22,636,456 21,791,092
a) commitments and guarantees issued 25,923 43,590
c) other provisions for risks and charges 22,610,533 21,747,502
110. | Valuation reserves 1,386,179 278,968
140. | Reserves 123,799,503 100,872,736
150. | Share premium 39,100,168 39,100,168
160. | Share capital 9,650,526 9,650,526
170. | Treasury shares (-) (233,632) (233,632)
180. | Profit for the year 25,745,541 29,955,723

Total liabilities and equity
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INCOME STATEMENT

(Amounts in Euros)

2020 2019

10. | Interest and similar income 95,247,332 | 110,243,896
of which: interest income calculated with the effective interest method 93,444,182 107,552,012

20. | Interest and similar expense (23,688,033) | (29,691,485)
30. | Net interest income 71,559,299 80,552,411
40. | Fee and commission income 21,618,986 22,260,029
50. | Fee and commission expense (6,871,488) (6,418,953)
60. | Net fee and commission income 14,747,498 15,841,076
70. | Dividends and similar income 226,667 226,667
80. | Net trading income 55,509 214,846
100. | Gain from sales or repurchases of: 9,530,798 3,716,224
a) financial assets measured at amortised cost 4,213,550 1,105,860

b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 5,301,079 2,610,364

¢) financial liabilities 16,169 -

120. | Total income 96,119,771 100,551,224
130. | Net impairment losses on: (12,480,750) (9,053,279)
a) financial assets measured at amortised cost (12,428,581) (8,948,421)

b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (52,169) (104,858)

150. | Net financial income 83,639,021 91,497,945
160. | Administrative expenses (43,312,698) | (44,827,766)
a) personnel expense (21,742,327) | (22,315,805)

b) other administrative expenses (21,570,371) | (22,511,961)

170. | Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges (2,520,150) (1,996,083)
a) commitments and guarantees issued 17,667 (36,264)

b) other net accruals (2,637,817) (1,959,819)

180. | Net impairment losses on property and equipment (1,616,526) (1,640,515)
190. | Net impairment losses on intangible assets (809) (107,062)
200. | Other operating income (expense) 232,514 (795,556)
210. | Operating costs (47,217,669) | (49,366,982)
250. | Gains (losses) on sales of investments 1,090,000 -
260. | Pre-tax profit from continuing operations 37,511,352 42,130,963
270. | Income taxes (11,765,811)| (12,350,772)
280. | Post-tax profit from continuing operations 25,745,541 29,780,191
290. | Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - 175,532
300. | Profit for the year 25,745,541 29,955,723
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounts in Euros)

2020 2019

10. | Profit for the year 25,745,541 29,955,723

Items, net of tax, that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -

70. | Defined benefit plans (36,799) (19,660)

Items, net of tax, that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -

140. | Financial assets (other than equity instruments) measured at fair value 1,144,011 1,430,086
through other comprehensive income

170. | Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax 1,107,211 1,410,426

180. | Comprehensive income (Items 10+170) 26,852,752 31,366,149

-211-



G8Z'8Y'661 |2SL'258'9¢ - - - - - - zoz'ost (8ST'6LY'L) - 68'29'6LT| - 681'v29'6L1 Aunb3
1vs'svL'se 1vG'avL'se - - - - - - - (8ST'6LY'L) (G9G'9/¥°22) | €24'G86'6C | - €2/,'966'6¢2 Jeah a8y} Joj joid
(ze9'cea) - - - - - - - - - - (ce9'eea) - (ze9'eca) saieys Ainseal|
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - sjuawiniisul Alinb3
6L1'98€'T 112'£0T°1 - - - - - - - - - 896'8/2 - 896'8/C SOAI9S3I UolEN|_A
(598‘61€) - - - - - - - 822651 - - (€80'608) - (€80'608) Jayio (q
8Ge'6vI' Vel |- - - - - - - (920'6) - G9G'9/¥'cec | 618189101 | - 618'189'101 pajejaJ-swodul (e
€05‘66L'€eT |- - - - - - - 20z'0st - G9G'9/v'ce | 9€L'2/8001 | - 9€/'2/8'001 SONIBSRY
891'001°6E |- - - - - - - - - - 891°001'6E | - 891°'001°6€ wniwaid aieys
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - saJeys Jay1o (q
925'059'6 - - - - - - - - - - 925°099'6 - 925'059'6 saieys Aeuipio (e
‘leydeod aleys
g 2 g =
=, o © (o}
5 ® 5 z 8
g w| £ 2 S z o 3 2
o 3 g o > a g @ @ ~ o el o w
° o o @ [y @ Q 3 > @ D @ L
= ) = = Q S5 Q. = G o B 2 @ e
< 3 o | = E gi | = 3 9 o g S i 3
™ = =t e < S< I = 2. = @ I} 3 o
=3 oL > » =] o 3 » =] @ 1) @ S o
w NS > c @ S = c = 3 N =1 @ o
= o o 3 = o | 3 2 o = — = o
= 3 %) m g % 3 o e — = ;
N 8 N @ a > s & 5 0a =
N 3 @ 2 3 o & (> g o
N @ o @ @ @ S S =
o 3 ©
Ainb ?
1INba uo suonoesuel| TN

Jeah sy} Suninp sasuey)

Joud Jo uoneao||y

020¢’¢T'T€ 1V SV ALIND3 NI SIONVYHO 40 LNJFNTLVLS

(S0JN7 Ul sjunowy)

=212~



-213-

68v'v29‘6L1 611'99€'1E - - - (£96‘€eT) | (2€9'966'9) | - 6€G'8LE'GST| - 6€G'8LE'GST funb3
€2.'G56'62 €2/'G56'6¢ - - - - (2€9'966'9) (826'€/0'T2) | 095'0/0'8C | - 0950082 Jeak ayy Joj Jijoid
(ze9‘eca) - - - - (6€L'YE) - - (€68'861) - (€68'86T) saleys Ainseai]
- - - - - - - - - - - sjuawinisul Ainb3
896'8LC 9er'01IY'T - - - - - - (8SY'1ET'D) | - (8SH'TIET'T) SOAIBSaI Uolien|eA
(€80°608) - - - - /02'ST - - (062'728) - (062'v28) Jayio (q
618'189°10T | - - - - (S91°02) - 826'€/0'TC | 950'829'08 | - 96082908 pajejai-swodul (e
9€/‘2/8°00T | - - - - (856'1) 826'€/0'TC | 99/'€08'6L | - 99/‘€08‘6L SONIBSaY
891°001'6E - - - - (0/8'€8) - - 8e0'¥8I'6E | - 8€0'V81°6€ wniwaid aleys
- - - - - - - - - - - SaJeys Jaylo (q
925°059°'6 - - - - - - - 925'059'6 - 925°059°6 saleys Aseulpio (e
:|ended aleys
g 9 ) S
= [ © o)
5 ® = 3 z g
5 » < C Ry = e o & Q
m 3 g1 32 5 o 9 5 o S o = S o
2 © o o @ ey @ o o S @ o} > @
=) @ = =1 Q = Q = @ a @ <N @ ©
< <=3 o =3 < o - % D o o Ww _. >
5 2 T | 8 g g2 3 g ¢ = 5 3 5 8
- S 2. 5 3 5 oo % " = MN ] @ m o
w =S =] c %] S = c 5 > ) B @ "
» ©s N c o) <2 @ o 5 = = =
N g s 2 2| & @ 3 S - @ e
R S s | 8 3 3 5 8 g N
=] @ 3 @ o 2 2 & o
© m 0o
w
Aunba uo suogoesuel 183k snoinaid wouy
Jeak sy} Bulnp ssaduey) Hinsel 19t Jo Uokeally

(S0JN7 Ul sjunowly)

6102 ¢TI 1€ 1V SV ALIND3 NI SIONVYHO 40 LNIFNTLVLS




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (indirect method)

2020 2019

(Amounts in Euros)

A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1. Operations 52,706,142 49,939,249
= Profit for the year (+/-) 25,745,541 29,955,723

= Gains/losses on financial assets held for trading and other financial - -

assets/liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (-/+)

= Gains/losses on hedging activities (-/+) - -

= Net impairment losses due to credit risk (+/-) 12,428,581 8,948,421

= Net impairment losses on property and equipment and intangible assets (+/-) 1,617,335 1,747,577

= Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges and other costs/income (+/-) 2,520,150 1,996,083

= Taxes, duties and tax assets not yet paid (+) (261,165) 1,492,987

= Other adjustments (+/-) 10,655,700 5,798,458

2. Cash flows generated by (used for) financial assets 174,048,197 | (562,424,429)
= Financial assets held for trading - -

= Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss - -

= QOther assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (2,353,445) -

= Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 126,524,842 | (250,503,362)

= Financial assets measured at amortised cost 48,357,111 | (309,864,973)

= Other assets 1,519,689 (2,056,094)

3. Cash flows generated by (used for) financial liabilities (200,555,442) 528,034,390
= Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (221,973,490) 498,196,976

= Financial liabilities held for trading - -

= Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss - -

= Other liabilities 21,418,048 29,837,414
Net cash flows generated by operating activities 26,198,897 15,549,210

B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1. Cash flows generated by 1,884,430 -
= Sales of equity investments 1,250,000 -

= Dividends from equity investments - -

= Sales of property and equipment 634,430 -

= Sales of intangible assets - -

= Sales of business units - -

2. Cash flows used in (28,128,438) (8,652,669)
= Purchases of equity investments (26,500,000) (721,989)

= Purchases of property and equipment (1,616,526) (6,991,980)

= Purchases of intangible assets (11,912) (938,700)

= Purchases of business units - -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (26,244,008) (8,652,669)

C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES

= |ssues/repurchases of treasury shares - (34,739)

= |ssues/repurchases of equity instruments - -

= Dividend and other distributions - (6,996,632)
Net cash flows generated by (used in) financing activities - (7,031,371)
NET CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR (45,111) (134,830)

KEY:

(+) generated

(=) used

Reconciliation

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 153,601 288,431
Total net cash flows for the year (45,111) (134,830)
Cash and cash equivalents: effect of change in exchange rates _ -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 108,490 153,601
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



PART A - ACCOUNTING POLICIES

[ A.1 - GENERAL PART

SECTION 1 - Statement of compliance with International

Financial Reporting Standards

The separate financial statements of Banca Sistema S.p.A.
at 31 December 2020 were drawn up in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards - called IFRS
- issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and interpretations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and endorsed
by the European Commission, as established by EU
Regulation no. 1606 of 19 July 2002, adopted in Italy by
art. 1 of Legislative Decree no. 38 of 28 February 2005
and considering the Bank of Italy Circular no. 262 of 22
December 2005 as subsequently updated, regarding the
forms and rules for drafting the Financial Statements of
banks.
The International Financial Reporting Standards are
applied by referring to the “Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements” (Framework).
If there is no standard or interpretation that applies
specifically to a transaction, other event or circumstance,
the Board of Directors uses its judgement to develop and
apply an accounting standard in order to provide disclosure
that:
= s relevant to the economic decision-making needs of

users;
= jsreliable, in that the financial statements:

- represent faithfully the financial position, financial

performance and cash flows of the Bank;
- reflect the economic substance of transactions, other
events and conditions, and not merely the legal form;

- are neutral, i.e. free from bias;

- are prudent;

- are complete in all material respects.
When exercising the aforementioned judgement, the
Board of Directors of the Bank has made reference to
and considered the applicability of the following sources,

described in descending order of importance:

K

the provisions and application guidelines contained in
the Standards and Interpretations governing similar or
related cases;
= the definitions, recognition criteria and measuring
concepts for accounting for the assets, liabilities,
revenue, and costs contained in the “Framework”.
When expressing an opinion, the Board of Directors may
also consider the most recent provisions issued by other
bodies that rule on accounting standards that use a
similar "Framework" in concept for developing accounting
standards, other accounting literature and consolidated
practices in the sector.
In accordance with art. 5 of Legislative Decree no. 38 of
28 February 2005, if, in exceptional cases, the application
of a provision imposed by the IFRS were incompatible with
the true and fair representation of the financial position or
results of operations, the provision would not apply. The
justifications for any exceptions and their influence on
the presentation of the financial position and results of
operations would be explained in the Notes to the financial
statements.
Any profits resulting from the exception would be recognised
in a non-distributable reserve if they did not correspond to
the recovered amount in the financial statements. However,
no exceptions to the IFRS were applied.

The financial statements were audited by BDO lItalia S.p.A.

SECTION 2 - General basis of preparation

The financial statements are drawn up with clarity and
give a true and fair view of the financial position, profit
or loss, cash flows, and changes in equity and comprise
the statement of financial position, the income statement,
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the
notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements are accompanied by the Directors'
Report on the Bank’s performance.

If the information required by the IFRS and provisions
contained in Circular no. 262 of 22 December 2005 and/

or the subsequent updates issued by the Bank of Italy are
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not sufficient to give a true and fair view that is relevant,

reliable, comparable and understandable, the notes to the

financial statements provide the additional information

required. For the sake of completeness, please note that

this financial report also considers the interpretation

and supporting documents regarding the application of

accounting standards, including those issued in connection

with the Covid-19 pandemic, as well as those issued by

European regulatory and supervisory bodies and standard

setters.

The general principles that underlie the drafting of the

financial statements are set out below:

= the measurements are made considering that the bank
will continue as a going concern, where it is stated that
the Directors have not identified any uncertainties that
could cast doubt in this respect;

= costs and income are accounted for on an accruals basis;

= to ensure the comparability of the data and information
in the financial statements and the notes to the
financial statements, the methods of presentation and
classification are kept constant over time unless they are
changed to present the data more appropriately;

= each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the statement of financial position and
income statement; items of a dissimilar nature or
function are presented separately unless they are
considered immaterial;

= items that have nil balances at year end or for the
financial year or for the previous year are not indicated
in the statement of financial position or the income
statement;

= if an asset or liability comes under several items in
the statement of financial position, the notes to the
financial statements make reference to the other items
under which it is recognised if it is necessary for a better
understanding of the financial statements;

= the items are not offset against one another unless
it is expressly requested or allowed by an IFRS or an
interpretation or the provisions of the aforementioned
Circular no. 262 of 22 December 2005 as amended by
the Bank of Italy;

= the financial statements are drafted by favouring

substance over form and in accordance with the principle

of materiality and significance of the information;

= comparative data for the previous financial year are
presented for each statement of financial position and
income statement item; if the items are not comparable
to those of the previous year, they are adapted and
the non-comparability and adjustment/or impossibility
thereof are indicated and commented on in the notes to
the financial statements;

= the layout recommended by the Bank of Italy was used
with reference to the information reported in the notes
to the financial statements; the tables included in this
layout were not presented if they were not applicable to
the Group's business.

Within the scope of drawing up the financial statements in

accordance with the IFRS, bank management must make

assessments, estimates and assumptions that influence

the amounts of the assets, liabilities, costs and income

recognised during the year.

The use of estimates is essential to preparing the financial

statements. In particular, the most significant use of

estimates and assumptions in the financial statements can

be attributed to:

= the valuation of loans and receivables with customers:
the acquisition of performing receivables from
companies that supply goods and services represents
the Bank’s main activity. Estimating the value of these
receivables is a complex activity with a high degree of
uncertainty and subjectivity. Their value is estimated by
using models that include numerous quantitative and
qualitative elements. These include the historical data
for collections, expected cash flows and the related
expected recovery times, the existence of indicators of
possible impairment, the valuation of any guarantees,
and the impact of risks associated with the sectors in
which the Bank’s customers operate;

= the valuation of default interest pursuant to Legislative
Decree no. 231 of 9 October 2002 on performing
receivables acquired without recourse: estimating

the expected recovery percentages of default interest

is complex, with a high degree of uncertainty and

subjectivity. Internally developed valuation models

are used to determine these percentages, which take

numerous qualitative and quantitative elements into
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consideration;

= the estimate related to the possible impairment losses
on goodwill and equity investments recognised in the
financial statements;

= the quantification and estimate made for recognising
liabilities in the provision for risks and charges, the
amount or timing of which are uncertain;

= the recoverability of deferred tax assets.

It should be noted that an estimate may be adjusted

following a change in the circumstances upon which it was

formed, or if there is new information or more experience.
Any changes in estimates are applied prospectively and
therefore will have an impact on the income statement for
the year in which the change takes place.

Pursuant to the provisions of art. 5 of Legislative Decree no.
38 of 28 February 2005, the financial statements use the
Euro as the currency for accounting purposes. The financial
statements are expressed in Euro. Unless otherwise stated,
the notes to the financial statements are expressed in

thousands of Euro.

The following should be noted regarding the regulatory developments in the IAS/IFRS:

REGULATION (EU)
2020/34 of 15 January 2020

2020/1434 of 9 October 2020

TITLE

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendment to IFRS 16 - Covid-19-related rent concessions

2020/551 of 21 April 2020

Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business

The introduction of the amendments to the Regulations listed above had no significant impact.

The following table summarises the new international financial reporting standards that will be effective from 1

January 2021.

REGULATION (EU)
2020/2097 of 15 December 2020

TITLE

Amendments to IFRS 4 - Extension of the Temporary Exemption

from Applying IFRS 9

2021/25 of 13 January 2021

SECTION 3 - Subsequent events

With regard to IAS 10, after 31 December 2020, the
reporting date of the financial statements, and up to 29
March 2021, no events occurred that would require any
adjustments to the figures in the financial statements.

On 29 March 2021, the Board of Directors of Banca
Sistema resolved on a technical-formal reclassification of
the draft financial statements as at 31 December 2020
already approved in the meeting held on 11 March, that
has no effect on the profit for the year and on the capital
ratios reported to the market on 10 February.

The reclassification is aimed exclusively at accounting for
loans under disposal — totalling € 5.6 million out of total
assets of € 3.7 billion — that cannot be derecognised from
an accounting point of view. This leads to an increase by an

equal amount in the line-item “Financial assets measured

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 -

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

at amortised cost” and in the line-item “Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost”. The above disposals had
been recognised for the same amounts as off-statement of

financial position commitments.

SECTION 4 - Other aspects

With reference to the risks, uncertainties and effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic, given the type of activities carried out
by the Group, for the moment no significant impacts have
been identified, particularly with regard to the valuations
and items subject to estimates, where consideration has
been given, insofar as can currently be estimated, to the
impact of the pandemic on future forward-looking scenarios.
However, the situation is being continuously monitored and
any impacts not yet evident will be reflected, if necessary,

in the estimated recoverable value of the financial assets.
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With reference to the transparency rules on public funding
introduced by article 1, paragraphs 125-129 of ltalian

Law no. 124/2017 and subsequently supplemented

A.2 - INFORMATION ON THE MAIN ITEMS
OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit

or loss

Classification criteria

Financial assets other than those classified as

Financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income and Financial assets measured

at amortised cost are classified in this category. In

particular, this item includes:

= financial assets held for trading;

= equity instruments, except for the possibility of their
being classified in the new category Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, excluding the possibility of subsequent
reclassification to profit or loss;

= financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value,
and which have not met the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost;

= financial assets that are not held under a Held to
Collect (or “HTC") business model or as part of a
mixed business model, whose aim is achieved by
collecting the contractual cash flows of financial
assets held in the Bank’s portfolio or also through
their sale, when this is an integral part of the strategy
(“Held to Collect and Sell” business model);

= financial assets designated at fair value, i.e. financial
assets that are defined as such upon initial recognition
and when the conditions apply. For this type of
financial assets, upon recognition an entity may
irrevocably recognise a financial asset as measured at
fair value through profit or loss only if this eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement inconsistency;

= derivative instruments, which shall be recognised as

financial assets held for trading if their fair value is

by the ‘Sicurezza’ Law Decree (no. 113/2018) and the
‘Semplificazione’ Law Decree (no. 135/2018), there are no

issues to report. There are no significant aspects to note.

positive and as liabilities if their fair value is negative.
Positive and negative values may be offset only for
transactions executed with the same counterparty
if the holder currently holds the right to offset the
amounts recognised in the books and it is decided to
settle the offset positions on a net basis. Derivatives
also include those embedded in complex financial
contracts — where the host contract is a financial
liability which has been recognised separately.
Except for the equity instruments which cannot be
reclassified, financial assets may be reclassified to other
categories of financial assets only if the entity changes
its own business model for management of the financial
assets. In such cases, which are expected to be absolutely
infrequent, the financial assets may be reclassified from
those measured at fair value through profit or loss to one of
the other two categories established by IFRS 9 (Financial
assets measured at amortised cost or Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income). The transfer value is the fair value at the time of
the reclassification and the effects of the reclassification
apply prospectively from the reclassification date. In
this case, the effective interest rate of the reclassified
financial asset is determined based on its fair value at the
reclassification date and that date is considered as the
initial recognition date for the credit risk stage assignment

for impairment purposes.

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of financial assets occurs at the

settlement date for debt instruments and equity
instruments, at the disbursement date for loans and at the
subscription date for derivative contracts.

On initial recognition, financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised at fair value,
without considering transaction costs or income directly

attributable to the instrument.
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Measurement and recognition criteria for income

components

After initial recognition, the financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at fair
value. The effects of the application of this measurement
criterion are recognised in the income statement. For the
determination of the fair value of financial instruments
quoted on active markets, market quotations are used.
If the market for a financial instrument is not active,
standard practice estimation methods and measurement
techniques are used which consider all the risk factors
correlated to the instruments and that are based on market
elements such as: measurement of quoted instruments
with the same characteristics, calculation of discounted
cash flows, option pricing models, recent comparable
transactions, etc.. For equity and derivative instruments
that have equity instruments as underlying assets, which
are not quoted on an active market, the cost approach
is used as the estimate of fair value only on a residual
basis and in a small number of circumstances, i.e., when
all the measurement methods referred to above cannot
be applied, or when there are a wide range of possible
measurements of fair value, in which cost represents the
most significant estimate.

In particular, this item includes:

= debt instruments held for trading;

= equity instruments held for trading.

For more details on the methods of calculating the fair
value please refer to the paragraph below "Criteria for

determining the fair value of financial instruments".

Derecognition criteria

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
on the cash flows deriving from the assets expire, or in the
case of a transfer, when the same entails the substantial

transfer of all risks and rewards related to the financial assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Classification criteria

This category includes the financial assets that meet both

the following conditions:

= financial assets that are held under a business model
whose aim is achieved both through the collection
of contractual cash flows and through sale (“Held to
Collect and Sell” business model);
= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (“SPPI Test” passed).
This item also includes equity instruments, not held for
trading, for which the option was exercised upon initial
recognition of their designation at fair value through other
comprehensive income.
In particular, this item includes:
= debt instruments that can be attributed to a Held to
Collect and Sell business model and that have passed
the SPPI test;
= equity interests, that do not qualify as investments
in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and are
not held for trading, for which the option has been
exercised of their designation at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
Except for the equity instruments which cannot be
reclassified, financial assets may be reclassified to other
categories of financial assets only if the entity changes
its own business model for management of the financial
assets.
In such cases, which are expected to be absolutely
infrequent, the financial assets may be reclassified from
those measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income to one of the other two categories established by
IFRS 9 (Financial assets measured at amortised cost or
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss). The transfer value is the fair value at the time of the
reclassification and the effects of the reclassification apply
prospectively from the reclassification date. In the event
of reclassification from this category to the amortised cost
category, the cumulative gain (loss) recognised in the
valuation reserve is allocated as an adjustment to the fair
value of the financial asset at the reclassification date. In
the event of reclassification to the fair value through profit
or loss category, the cumulative gain (loss) previously
recognised in the valuation reserve is reclassified from

equity to profit (loss).
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Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of the financial assets is at the date
of disbursement, based on their fair value including
the transaction costs/income directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial instrument. Costs/income
having the previously mentioned characteristics that will
be repaid by the debtor or that can be considered as
standard internal administrative costs are excluded.

The initial fair value of a financial instrument is usually
the cost incurred for its acquisition.

income

Measurement and recognition criteria for

components

Following initial recognition, financial assets are measured
at their fair value with any gains or losses resulting from
a change in the fair value compared to the amortised
cost recognised in a specific equity reserve recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income up until said
financial asset is derecognised or an impairment loss is
recognised.

For more details on the methods of calculating the fair
value please refer to paragraph 17.3 below "Criteria for
determining the fair value of financial instruments".
Equity instruments, for which the choice has been made
to classify them in this category, are measured at fair
value and the amounts recognised in other comprehensive
income cannot be subsequently transferred to profit
or loss, not even if they are sold (the so-called OCI
exemption). The only component related to these equity
instruments that is recognised through profit or loss is
their dividends. Fair value is determined on the basis
of the criteria already described for Financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

For the equity instruments included in this category, which
are not quoted on an active market, the cost approach
is used as the estimate of fair value only on a residual
basis and in a small number of circumstances, i.e., when
all the measurement methods referred to above cannot
be applied, or when there are a wide range of possible
measurements of fair value, in which cost represents the
most significant estimate.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income are subject to the verification of the
significant increase in credit risk (impairment) required by
IFRS 9, with the consequent recognition through profit or

loss of an impairment loss to cover the expected losses.

Derecognition criteria

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights on the cash flows deriving from the assets expire,
or in the case of a transfer, when the same entails the
substantial transfer of all risks and rewards related to the

financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Classification criteria

This category includes the financial assets that meet both

the following conditions:

= the financial asset is held under a business model
whose objective is achieved through the collection
of expected contractual cash flows (Held to Collect
business model);

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (“SPPI Test” passed).

In particular, this item includes:

* loans and receivables with banks;

= loans and receivables with customers;

= debt instruments.

Except for the equity instruments which cannot be

reclassified, financial assets may be reclassified to

other categories of financial assets only if the entity

changes its own business model for management of

the financial assets. In such cases, which are expected

to be absolutely infrequent, the financial assets may

be reclassified from the amortised cost category to

one of the other two categories established by IFRS 9

(Financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income or Financial assets measured at

fair value through profit or loss). The transfer value is

the fair value at the time of the reclassification and the

effects of the reclassification apply prospectively from the
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reclassification date. Gains and losses resulting from the
difference between the amortised cost of a financial asset
and its fair value are recognised through profit or loss in
the event of reclassification to Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss and under equity, in the
specific valuation reserve, in the event of reclassification
to Financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of a receivable is at the date of
disbursement based on its fair value including the costs/
income of the transaction directly attributable to the
acquisition of the receivable.

Costs/income  having the previously mentioned
characteristics that will be repaid by the debtor or that
can be considered as standard internal administrative
costs are excluded.

The initial fair value of a financial instrument is usually
equivalent to the amount granted or the cost incurred by

the acquisition.

Measurement and recognition criteria for income

components

Following initial recognition, loans and receivables with
customers are stated at amortised cost, equal to the
initial recognition amount reduced/increased by principal
repayments, by impairment losses/gains and the amortisation
- calculated on the basis of the effective interest rate - of the
difference between the amount provided and that repayable
at maturity, usually the cost/income directly attributed to the
individual loan.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts future
payments estimated for the expected duration of the loan, in
order to obtain the exact carrying amount at the time of initial
recognition, which includes both the directly attributable
transaction costs/income and all of the fees paid or received
between the parties. This accounting method, based on
financial logic, enables the economic effect of costs/income
to be spread over the expected residual life of the receivable.
The measurement criteria are strictly connected with the

stage to which the receivable is assigned, where stage

1 contains performing loans, stage 2 consists of under-
performing loans, i.e. loans that have undergone a significant
increase in credit risk (“significant deterioration”) since the
initial recognition of the instrument, and stage 3 consists
of non-performing loans, i.e. the loans that show objective
evidence of impairment.

The impairment losses recognised through profit or loss for
the performing loans classified in stage 1 are calculated
by considering an expected loss at one year, while for
the performing loans in stage 2 they are calculated by
considering the expected losses over the entire residual
contractual lifetime of the asset (Lifetime Expected Loss).
The performing financial assets are measured according to
probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and
exposure at default (EAD) parameters, derived from internal
historical series. For impaired assets, the amount of the loss,
to be recognised through profit or loss, is established based
on individual measurement or determined according to
uniform categories and, then, individually allocated to each
position, and takes account of forward-looking information
and possible alternative recovery scenarios. Impaired assets
include financial instruments classified as bad exposures,
unlikely-to-pay or past due/overdrawn by over ninety days
according to the rules issued by the Bank of Italy, in line with
the IFRS and EU Supervisory Regulations. The expected
cash flows take into account the expected recovery times and
the estimated realisable value of any guarantees. The original
effective rate of each asset remains unchanged over time
even if the relationship has been restructured with a variation
of the contractual interest rate and even if the relationship, in
practice, no longer bears contractual interest. If the reasons
for impairment are no longer applicable following an event
subsequent to the recognition of impairment, impairment
gains are recognised in the income statement. The
impairment gains may not in any case exceed the amortised
cost that the financial instrument would have had in the
absence of previous impairment losses. Impairment gains

with time value effects are recognised in net interest income.

Derecognition criteria

Loans and receivables are derecognised from the

financial statements when they are deemed totally
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unrecoverable or if transferred, when this entails the

substantial transfer of all loan-related risks and rewards.

Hedging transactions
At the reporting date, the Bank had not made any

“Hedging transactions”.

Equity investments

Classification criteria

This category includes equity investments in subsidiaries,

associates, and joint ventures by Banca Sistema.

Recognition criteria

Equity investments are recognised in the financial

statements at purchase cost plus any related charges.

Measurement criteria

If there is evidence that an equity investment may be
impaired, the recoverable value of said equity investment
is estimated by considering the present value of future
cash flows that the investment could generate, including
the final disposal value of the investment and/ or other
measurement elements. The amount of any impairment,
calculated based on the difference between the carrying
amount of the investment and its recoverable value is
recognised in the income statement under “Gains (losses)
on equity investments”. If the reasons for impairment are
removed following an event occurring after recognition of
the impairment, impairment gains are recognised in the
income statement under the same item as above to the

extent of the previous impairment loss.

Derecognition criteria

Equity investments are derecognised from the financial
statements when the contractual rights to cash flows
deriving from the investment are lost or when the
investment is transferred, with the substantial transfer
of all related risks and rewards. Gains and losses on the
sale of equity investments are charged to the income
statement under the item “220 Gains (losses) on equity

investments”; gains and losses on the sale of investments

other than those measured at equity are charged to the
income statement under the item “250 Gains (losses) on

sales of investments”.

Property and equipment

Classification criteria

This item includes assets for permanent use, held to
generate income, to be leased, or for administrative
purposes, such as land, operating property, investment
property, technical installations, furniture and fittings and
equipment of any nature and works of art.

They also include leasehold improvements to third
party assets if they can be separated from the assets in
question. If the above costs do not display functional
or usefulness-related autonomy, but future economic
benefits are expected from them, they are recognised
under “other assets” and are depreciated over the
shorter period between that of expected usefulness of the
improvements in question and the residual duration of the
lease. Depreciation is recognised under “Other operating
income (expense)”.

Property and equipment also include payments on account
for the purchase and renovation of assets not yet part of
the production process and therefore not yet subject to
depreciation.

“Operating” property and equipment are represented
by assets held for the provision of services or for
administrative purposes, while property and equipment
held for “investment purposes” are those held to collect
lease instalments and/or held for capital appreciation.

The item also includes rights of use associated with leased

assets and fees for use.

Recognition criteria

Property and equipment are initially recognised at cost,
including all costs directly attributable to installation of
the asset.

Extraordinary maintenance costs and costs for
improvements leading to actual improvement of the
asset, or an increase in the future benefits generated by

the asset, are attributed to the reference assets, and are
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depreciated based on their residual useful life.

Under IFRS 16, leases are accounted forin accordance with
the right-of-use model, whereby, at the commencement
date, the lessee incurs an obligation to make payments to
the lessor for the right to use the underlying asset for the
term of the lease. When the asset is made available for
use by the lessee, the lessee recognises both the liability

and the right-of-use asset.

Measurement criteria

Following initial recognition, “operating” property and
equipment are recognised at cost, less accumulated
depreciation, and any impairment losses, in line with the
“cost model” illustrated in paragraph 30 of IAS 16. More
specifically, property and equipment are systematically
depreciated each year based on their estimated useful
life, using the straight-line basis method apart from:
= land, regardless of whether this was purchased
separately or was incorporated into the value of the
building, which, insofar as it has an indefinite useful
life, is not depreciated;
= works of art, which are not depreciated as their useful
life cannot be estimated and their value typically
appreciates over time;
= investment property which is recognised at fair value in
accordance with IAS 40.
For assets acquired during the financial year, depreciation
is calculated on a daily basis from the date of entry into
use of the asset. For assets transferred and/or disposed of
during the financial year, depreciation is calculated on a
daily basis until the date of transfer and/or disposal.
At the end of each year, if there is any evidence that
property or equipment that is not held for investment
purposes may have suffered an impairment loss, a
comparison is made between its carrying amount and its
recoverable value, equal to the higher between the fair
value, net of any costs to sell, and the related value in
use of the asset, intended as the present value of future
cash flows expected from the asset. Any impairment
losses are recognised in the income statement under “net
impairment losses on property and equipment”.
If the reasons that led to recognition of the impairment

loss cease to apply, an impairment gain is recognised that

may not exceed the value that the asset would have had,
net of depreciation calculated in the absence of previous
impairment losses.

For investment property, which comes within the scope of
application of IAS 40, the measurement is made at the
market value determined using independent surveys and
the changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement under the item “fair value gains (losses) on
property, equipment and intangible assets”.

The right-of-use asset, recognised in accordance with
IFRS 16, is measured using the cost model under IAS
16 Property, plant and equipment. In this case, the asset
is subsequently depreciated and tested for impairment if

impairment indicators are present.

Derecognition criteria

Property and equipment is derecognised from the
statement of financial position upon disposal thereof or
when the asset is permanently withdrawn from use and

no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

Intangible assets

Classification criteria

This item includes non-monetary assets without physical
substance that satisfy the following requirements:

= they can be identified;

= they can be monitored;

= they generate future economic benefits.

In the absence of one of the above characteristics, the
expense of acquiring or generating the asset internally is
recognised as a cost in the year in which it was incurred.
Intangible assets include software to be used over several
years and other identifiable assets generated by legal or
contractual rights.

Goodwill is also included under this item, representing
the positive difference between the acquisition cost and
fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired as part of
a business combination. Specifically, an intangible asset
is recognised as goodwill when the positive difference
between the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired
and the acquisition cost represents the future capacity of

the equity investment to generate profit (goodwill). If this
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difference proves negative (badwill), or if the goodwill offers
no justification of the capacity to generate future profit
from the assets and liabilities acquired, it is recognised

directly in the income statement.

Measurement criteria

Intangible assets are systematically amortised from the
time of their input into the production process.

With reference to goodwill, on an annual basis (or when
impairment is detected), an assessment test is carried out
on the adequacy of its carrying amount. For this purpose,
the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is attributed,
is identified. The amount of any impairment is determined
by the difference between the goodwill carrying amount
and its recoverable value, if lower. This recoverable value
is equal to the higher amount between the fair value of the
cash-generating unit, net of any costs to sell, and its value
in use. As stated above, any consequent impairment losses

are recognised in the income statement.

Derecognition criteria

An intangible asset is derecognised from the statement of
financial position at the time of its disposal and if there

are no expected future economic benefits.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

Non-current assets or groups of assets for which a disposal
process has been initiated and whose sale is considered
highly probable are classified under "Non-current assets
held for sale and disposal groups"'. These assets are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their
fair value, net of disposal costs, with the exception of
certain types of assets (e.g. financial assets falling within
the scope of IFRS 9) for which IFRS 5 specifically requires
that the measurement criteria of the relevant accounting
standard be applied. Income and expenses (net of the
tax effect) relating to groups of assets being disposed of
or recognised as such during the year, are shown in the

income statement as a separate item.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification criteria

This item includes Due to banks, Due to customers and

Securities issued.

Recognition criteria

These financial liabilities are initially recognised when
the deposits are received or when the debt instruments
are issued. Initial recognition is based on the fair value
of the liabilities, increased by the costs/income of the
transaction directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial instrument.

Costs/income  having the previously mentioned
characteristics that will be repaid by the creditor or that
can be considered as standard internal administrative
costs are excluded.

The initial fair value of a financial liability is usually
equivalent to the amount collected.

income

Measurement and recognition criteria for

components

After the initial recognition, the previously mentioned
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost with

the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition criteria

The above financial liabilities are derecognised from the
statement of financial position when they expire or when
they are extinguished. They are derecognised also in the
event of repurchase, even temporary, of the previously-
issued securities. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the extinguished liability and the amount
paid is recognised in the income statement, under “Gain
(loss) from sales or repurchases of: financial liabilities”.
If the Group, subsequent to the repurchase, re-places
its own securities on the market, said transaction is
considered a new issue and the liability is recognised at

the new placement price.
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Financial liabilities held for trading

Classification and recognition criteria

In particular, this category of liabilities includes the
liabilities originating from technical exposures deriving
from security trading activities.

Financial instruments are recognised at the date of their
subscription or issue at a value equal to their fair value,
without including any transaction costs or income directly

attributable to the instruments themselves.

Measurement and recognition criteria for income

components

The financial instruments are measured at fair value with
recognition of the measurement results in the income

statement.

Derecognition criteria

Financial liabilities held for trading are derecognised when
the contractual rights on the related cash flows expire
or when the financial liability is sold with a substantial

transfer of all risks and rewards related to the liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss
At the reporting date, the Bank did not hold any “Financial

liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

Current and deferred taxes

Income taxes, calculated in compliance with prevailing
tax regulations, are recognised in the income statement
on an accruals basis, in accordance with the recognition
in the financial statements of the costs and income that
generated them, apart from those referring to the items
recognised directly in equity, where the recognition of
the tax is made to equity in order to be consistent.

Income taxes are provided for on the basis of a
prudential estimate of the current and deferred taxes.
More specifically, deferred taxes are determined on

the basis of the temporary differences between the

carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets are recognised in the financial
statements to the extent that it is probable that they will
be recovered based on the Group’s ability to continue to
generate positive taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are accounted for in
the statement of financial position with open balances
and without offsetting entries, recognising the former
under “Tax assets” and the latter under “Tax liabilities”.
With respect to current taxes, at the level of individual
taxes, advances paid are offset against the relevant tax
charge, indicating the net balance under “current tax
assets” or “current tax liabilities” depending on whether

it is positive or negative.

Provisions for risks and charges

In line with the requirements of IAS 37, provisions for
risks and charges cover liabilities, the amount or timing
of which is uncertain, related to current obligations (legal
or implicit), owing to a past event for which it is likely that
financial resources will be used to fulfil the obligation,
on condition that an estimate of the amount required to
fulfil said obligation can be made at the reporting date.
Where the temporary deferral in sustaining the charge is
significant, and therefore the extent of the discounting
will be significant, provisions are discounted at current
market rates.

The provisions are reviewed at the reporting date of the
annual financial statements and the interim financial
statements and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. These are recognised under their own items
in the income statement in accordance with a cost
classification approach based on the “nature” of the
cost. Provisions related to future charges for employed
personnel relating to the bonus system appear under
“personnel expense”. The provisions that refer to risks
and charges of a tax nature are reported as “income
taxes”, whereas the provisions connected to the risk of
potential losses not directly chargeable to specific items
in the income statement are recognised as “net accruals

to provisions for risks and charges”.
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Other information
Post-employment benefits

According to the IFRIC, the post-employment benefits
can be equated with a post-employment benefit of the
“defined-benefit plan” type which, based on IAS 19, is
to be calculated via actuarial methods. Consequentially,
the end of the year measurement of the item in question
is made based on the accrued benefits method using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

This method calls for the projection of the future
payments based on  historical, statistical, and
probabilistic analysis, as well as in virtue of the adoption
of appropriate demographic fundamentals. It allows the
post-employment benefits vested at a certain date to be
calculated actuarially, distributing the expense for all the
years of estimated remaining employment of the existing
workers, and no longer as an expense to be paid if the
company ceases its activity on the reporting date.

The actuarial gains and losses, defined as the difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the
present value of the obligation at year end, are recognised
in equity.

An independent actuary assesses the post-employment

benefits in compliance with the method indicated above.

Repurchase agreements

“Repurchase agreements” that oblige the party selling the
relevant assets (for example securities) to repurchase them
in the future and the “securities lending” transactions
where the guarantee is represented by cash, are considered
equivalent to swap transactions and, therefore, the amounts
received and disbursed appear in the financial statements
as payables and receivables. In particular, the previously
mentioned “repurchase agreements” and ‘“securities
lending” transactions are recognised in the financial
statements as payables for the spot price received, while
those for investments are recognised as receivables for
the spot price paid. Such transactions do not result in
changes in the securities portfolio. Consistently, the cost of
funds and the income from the investments, consisting of
accrued dividends on the securities and of the difference

between the spot price and the forward price thereof, are

recognised for the accrual period under interest in the

income statement.

Criteria for determining the fair value of financial

instruments

Fair value is defined as “the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants”, at a specific
measurement date, excluding forced transactions.
Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumption
that a company is a going concern without any intention
or need to liquidate, to curtail materially the scale of its
operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.
In the case of financial instruments quoted in active
markets, the fair value is determined based on the deal
pricing (official price or other equivalent price on the last
stock market trading day of the financial year of reference)
of the most advantageous market to which the Group
has access. For this purpose, a financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
In the absence of an active market, the fair value is
determined using measurement techniques generally
accepted in financial practice, aimed at establishing what
price the financial instrument would have had, on the
valuation date, in a free exchange between knowledgeable
and willing parties. Such measurement techniques
require, in the hierarchical order in which they are
presented, the use:

1. of the most recent NAV (Net Asset Value) published
by the management investment company for the
harmonised funds (UCITS - Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities), the
Hedge Funds and the SICAVs;

2. of the recent transaction prices observable in the
markets;

3. of the price indications deducible from infoproviders
(e.g., Bloomberg, Reuters);

4. of the fair value obtained from measurement models

(for example, Discounting Cash Flow Analysis,
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Option Pricing Models) that estimate all the
possible factors that influence the fair value of a
financial instrument (cost of money, credit exposure,
liquidity risk, volatility, foreign exchange rates,
prepayment rates, etc.) based on data observable in
the market, also with regards to similar instruments
on the measurement date. If market data cannot
be referenced for one or more risk factors, metrics
internally determined on a historical-statistical basis
are used. The measurement models are subject to
periodic review to guarantee complete and constant
reliability;

5. of the price indications provided by the counterparty
issuer adjusted if necessary to take into account the
counterparty and/or liquidity risk (for example, the
price resolved on by the Board of Directors and/or the
Shareholders for the shares of unlisted cooperative
banks, the unit value communicated by the
management investment company for the closed-end
funds reserved to institutional investors or for other
types of OEICs other than those cited in paragraph 1,
the redemption value calculated in compliance with
the issue regulation for the insurance contracts);

6. for the -equity-linked instruments, where the
measurement techniques pursuant to the previous
paragraphs are not applicable: i) the value resulting
from independent surveys if available; ii) the value
corresponding to the portion of equity held resulting
from the company's most recently approved financial
statements; iii) the cost, adjusted if necessary to take
into account significant reductions in value, where
the fair value cannot be reliably determined.

Based on the foregoing considerations and in compliance

with the IFRS, the Group classifies the measurements at

fair value based on a hierarchy of levels that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in the measurements. The
following levels are noted:

= Level 1 - prices (without adjustments) reported on

an active market: the measurements of the financial
instruments quoted on an active market based on
quotations that can be understood from the market;

= Level 2 - the measurement is not based on prices of the

same financial instrument subject to measurement,

but on prices or credit spreads obtained from the
official prices of essentially similar instruments in
terms of risk factors, by using a given calculation
method (pricing model).

The use of this approach translates to the search
for transactions present on active markets, relating
in terms of

to instruments that, risk factors,

are comparable with the instrument subject to

measurement.

The calculation methods (pricing models) used in the

comparable approach make it possible to reproduce

the prices of financial instruments quoted on active

markets (model calibration) without including
discretionary parameters - i.e. parameters whose
value cannot be obtained from the prices of financial
instruments present on active markets or cannot be
fixed at levels as such to replicate prices present
on active markets - which may influence the final
valuation price in a decisive manner.

= Level 3-inputsthatare not based on observable market
data: the measurements of financial instruments not
quoted on an active market, based on measurement
techniques that use significant inputs that are not
observable on the market, involving the adoption of
estimates and assumptions by management (prices
supplied by the issuing counterparty, taken from
independent surveys, prices corresponding to the
fraction of the equity held in the company or obtained
using measurement models that do not use market
data to estimate significant factors that condition
the fair value of the financial instrument). This level
includes measurements of financial instruments at

cost price.

Business combinations

A business combination is the bringing together of
separate entities or businesses into one reporting entity.
A business combination may give rise to an investment
relationship between the parent (acquirer) and the
subsidiary (acquiree). A business combination may also
involve the purchase of the net assets, including any
goodwill, of another entity rather than the purchase of

the equity of the other entity (mergers and contributions).
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Based on the provisions of IFRS 3, business combinations

must be accounted for by applying the purchase method,

which comprises the following phases:

= identification of the acquirer;

= measurement of the cost of the business combination;

= allocation, at the acquisition date, of the cost of the
business combination to the assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed.

More specifically, the cost of a business combination

must be determined as the total fair value, at the date

of exchange, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or

assumed, and equity instruments issued, in exchange for

control of the acquiree, and all costs directly attributable

to the business combination.

The acquisition date is the date on which control of the

acquiree is effectively obtained. When this is achieved

through a single exchange transaction, the date of

exchange coincides with the acquisition date.

If the business combination is carried out through

several exchange transactions:

= the cost of the combination is the aggregate cost of
the individual transactions

= the date of exchange is the date of each exchange
transaction (i.e. the date that each individual
investment is recognised in the financial statements
of the acquirer), whereas the acquisition date is the
date on which control of the acquiree is obtained.

The cost of a business combination is allocated by

recognising the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities at their fair values at the

acquisition date.

The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities are recognised separately at the

acquisition date only if they satisfy the following criteria
at that date:

* in the case of an asset other than an intangible asset,
it is probable that any associated future economic
benefits will flow to the acquirer, and its fair value can
be measured reliably;

* in the case of a liability other than a contingent
liability, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and its fair value can be measured
reliably;

* in the case of an intangible asset or a contingent
liability, its fair value can be measured reliably.

The positive difference between the cost of the business

combination and the acquirer's interest in the net fair

value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities must be accounted for as goodwill.

After the initial recognition, the goodwill acquired in a

business combination is measured at the relevant cost

and is submitted to an impairment test at least once a

year.

If the difference is negative, a new measurement is made.

This negative difference, if confirmed, is recognised

immediately as income in the income statement.
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[ A.3 - DISCLOSURE ON TRANSFERS BETWEEN PORTFOLIOS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A.3.1 Reclassified financial assets: change in business model, carrying amount and interest income

No financial instruments were transferred between portfolios.

A.3.2 Reclassified financial assets: change in business model, fair value and effects on comprehensive income

No financial assets were reclassified.

A.3.3 Reclassified financial assets: change in business model and effective interest rate

No financial assets held for trading were transferred.

( A.4 - FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A.4.1 Fair value levels 2 and 3: valuation techniques and inputs used

Please refer to the accounting policies.

A.4.2 Processes and sensitivity of measurements

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities due within one year has been assumed to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value, while for those due beyond one year, the fair value is calculated taking into account both

interest rate risk and credit risk.

A.4.3 Fair value hierarchy
The following fair value hierarchy was used in order to prepare the financial statements:

= Level 1- Effective market quotes

The valuation is the market price of said financial instrument subject to valuation, obtained on the basis of

quotes expressed by an active market.
= Level 2 - Comparable Approach
= Level 3 - Mark-to-Model Approach

A.4.4 Other Information

The item is not applicable for the Bank.
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE
A.4.5 Fair value hierarchy

A.4.5.1 Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: breakdown by fair value level.

Financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3

. Financial assets measured at fair value through - - 2,353 - - -
profit or loss

a) financial assets held for trading - - - - - -

b) financial assets designated at fair value - - - - - -
through profit or loss

c) other financial assets mandatorily measured - - 2,353 - - -
at fair value through profit or loss
. Financial assets measured at fair value through 425,966 - 5,000 | 551,383 - 5,000

other comprehensive income

3. Hedging derivatives - - - - - _

4. Property and equipment - - - - - -

. Intangible assets - - - - - -

TOTAL 425,966 - 7,353 | 551,383 - 5,000

. Financial liabilities held for trading - - - - - -

. Financial liabilities designated at fair value - - - - - -
through profit or loss

. Hedging derivatives - - - - - -

TOTAL - - - - - -

Key:

L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3
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A.4.5.4 Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value or measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis:

breakdown by fair value level

pses and avities ot measurcs [ (DN

at fair value or measurgd at fé_i/'r value CA L1 L2 L3 CA L1 L2 L3
on a non-recurring basis
. Financial assets measured at 3,073,679 (452,969 72,001 | 2,664,963 3,123,738 |435,177 - 12,688,561
amortised cost
2. Investment property - - - - - - - -
3. Non-current assets held for sale - - - - - - - -
and disposal groups
TOTAL 3,073,679 | 452,969 72,001 | 2,664,963 | 3,123,738 |435,177 - 12,688,561
. Financial liabilities measured at 3,210,631 B, -13,210,491| 3,416,940 -1 -13,416,940
amortised cost
2. Liabilities associated with disposal - _ - - _ _ - _
groups
TOTAL 3,210,631 - -13,210,491 | 3,416,940 - - 13,416,940
. I\, I\, \ AN I\, /\\ /\ J
Key:
CA = carrying amount
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3

A.5 DISCLOSURE CONCERNING “DAY ONE PROFIT/LOSS”
Nothing to report.
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PART B - INFORMATION ON THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS
(SECTION 1 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ITEM 10 )
1.1 Cash and cash equivalents: breakdown
31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019
a. Cash 108 154

b. Demand deposits with Central Banks - -

TOTAL 108 154

( SECTION 2 - FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - ITEM 20 j

2.5 Other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss: breakdown by product

L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3

1. Debt instruments - - 2,353 - - .
1.1 Structured instruments - - - - - -
1.2 Other debt instruments - - 2,353 - - -

2. Equity instruments - - - - - -

3. OEIC units - - - - - -

4. Financing - - - - - -

4.1 Reverse repurchase agreements - - - - - ,
4.2 Other - . - _ . ;
Total L - - 2,353) - - .

Key:

L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3

This item consists of the junior security of the BS IVA securitisation, a transaction consolidated on a line-by-line basis
in the Group’s financial statements.
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2.6 Other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss: breakdown by debtor/issuer

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Equity instruments - -

of which: banks - -

of which: other financial companies - -

of which: non-financial companies - -

2. Debt instruments 2,353 -

a. Central Banks - -

b. Public administrations - -

c. Banks ) )

d. Other financial companies 2,353 -

of which: insurance companies - -

e. Non-financial companies - -

3. OEIC units - -

4. Financing - -

a. Central Banks - -

b. Public administrations - -

c. Banks - -

d. Other financial companies - -

of which: insurance companies - -

e. Non-financial companies - -

f. Households - -

Total 2,353 -
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SECTION 3 - FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME - ITEM 30

3.1 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: breakdown by product

L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3
1. Debt instruments 425,348 -1 550,219 -
1.1 Structured instruments - - - -
1.2 Other debt instruments 425,348 -1 550,219 -
2. Equity instruments 618 5,000 1,164 5,000
3. Financing - - - -
Total 425,966 5,000 )] 551,383 5,000
|\ \. I\ J J
Key:
L1l =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3
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1. Debt instruments

3.2 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

breakdown by debtor/issuer

31.12.2020

425,348

31.12.2019

550,219

a. Central Banks

b. Public administrations

425,348

550,219

c. Banks

d. Other financial companies

of which: insurance companies

e. Non-financial companies

. Equity instruments

5,618

6,164

a. Banks

5,000

5,000

b. Other issuers:

618

1,164

- other financial companies

618

1,164

of which: insurance companies

- non-financial companies

- other

. Financing

a. Central Banks

b. Public administrations

c. Banks

d. Other financial companies

of which: insurance companies

e. Non-financial companies

f. Households

Total
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3.3 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: gross amount and total impairment

losses
0SSEes il
_ of which , , , partia
First instruments [Second| Third First | Second | Third |write-offs
stage with low | stage | stage | stage stage stage (*)
credit risk
Debt instruments 425,554 425,554 - - 206 - - -
Financing - - - - - - - -
Total at 31.12.2020 425,554 425,554 - - 206 - - -
Total at 31.12.2019 550,373 550,373 - - 154 - - -
of which: purchased or originated X X - - X - - -
credit-impaired financial assets A A A A A A A )
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(SECTION 4 - FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST - ITEM 40

4.1 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of the loans and receivables with banks

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value
. of which: . of which:
Firstand | 1. o | purchased Firstand | 1.4 | purchased
second or originated| L1 | L2 L3 second or originated| L1 [ L2 L3
stage | S'88¢ | credit- stage | S1€° | credit-
impaired impaired
A. Loans and receivables
with Central Banks 40,275 - - - 40,275 19,966 - -1 - - 19,966
1. Term deposits - - -l X[ X X - - - X ] X X
2. Minimum reserve 40,269 - -l X[ X X 19,912 - -l X [ X X
3. Reverse repurchase agreements - - -l XX X - - -l X [ X X
4. Other 6 - - X X X 54 - -1 X X X
B. Loans and receivables 50,159 - | - | -] 50159 61,036 - |- | - | e1036
with banks
1. Financing 50,159 - - - - 50,159 61,036 - -1 - - 61,036
1.1 Current accoun_ts and 41,089 i x| x X 52,503 i x| x X
demand deposits
1.2. Term deposits 3,129 - -l X [ X 3,129 - - -l X ] X X
1.3. Other financing: 5,941 - -1 X X X 8,533 - -1 X X X
- Reverse repurchase agreements - - -l X[ X X - - -l X ] X X
- Finance leases - - - X | X X - - -1 X [ X X
- Other 5,941 - - X X X 8,533 - -1 X X X
2. Debt instruments - - -l X [ X X - - - - - -
2.1 Structured instrumentsi - - -l X[ X - - - -l - - -
2.2 Other debt instruments - - -l X[ X X - - -l - - -
Total 90,434 - - - - 90,434 81,002 - - - - 81,002
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3
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4.2 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of the loans and receivables with customers

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value
First and of vvhhich(:j First and of whhich(=j
; purchase ; purchase
second | Third | 2 oinated| L1 L2 L3 second | Third ) 0 cinated| L1 [L2 L3
stage stage credit- stage stage credit-
impaired impaired
1. Financing 2,329,158 | 205,011 31,699 - - 2,568,889 | 2,399,160 | 208,399 27,527 -| - 12,632,328
1.1 Current accounts 62,468 239 - X X X 41,966 56 - X[ X X
1.2 Reverse repurchase agreements 5,546 - - X X X - - - X[ X X
1.3 Loans 70,553 1,290 - X X X 6,753 1,970 - X| X X
1.4 Credit cards, personal loans
and salary- and pension-backed 913,311 7,880 - X X X| 796,367 6,012 - X[ X X
loans
1.5 Finance leases - - - X X X - - - X| X X
1.6 Factoring 911,782 | 179,445 31,699 X X X| 963,352)188,869 27,527 X| X X
1.7 Other financing 365,498 | 16,157 - X X X| 590,722| 11,492 - X| X X
2. Debt instruments 449,077 - - 1452,969 X -| 435,177 - -1436,634 | - -
2.1 Structured instruments - - - - X - - - - -l - -
2.2 Other debt instruments 449,077 - - 452,969 X -| 435,177 - -1436,634 | - -
Total | 2,778,235 | 205,011 31,699 (452,969 | 72,001 |2,568,889 | 2,834,337 | 208,399 27,527 1436,634 | - |2,632,328
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 = Level 3

Financing mainly includes the loans and receivables of
companies that supply goods and services mainly to the
Public Administration (ASL — local health authorities —
and Territorial Entities) and receivables related to the
pension and salary-backed loans segment.

Factoring receivables include default interest recognised
on an accruals basis for € 50.1 million.

For classification purposes analyses are performed, some
of which are complex, aimed at identifying positions
which, subsequent to disbursement/acquisition, show
evidence of possible impairment based on both internal
information, associated with the performance of credit
positions, and external information, associated with the
specific sector in question.

Measuring loans and receivables with customers is an
activity with a high degree of uncertainty and subjectivity
involving the use of measurement models that take into

account numerous quantitative and qualitative elements.

These include the historical data for collections, expected
cash flows and the related expected recovery times,
the existence of indicators of possible impairment, the
valuation of any guarantees, and the impact of risks
associated with the sectors in which the Bank’s customers
operate.

Subsequent to their recognition, factoring receivables are
measured at amortised cost, based on the present value
of the estimated cash flows of the principal, or for all
receivables whose recovery strategy involves legal action,
based on the present value of the cash flows, in addition to
the principal, of the default interest component that will
accrue up to the expected date of collection on amounts
considered recoverable.

As a matter of prudence, given the limited amount of
historical data available, the recovery percentages used
for territorial entities and the public sector (statistical

series starting from 2008) are based on a confidence
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interval of the twentieth percentile, while for ASL - local
health authorities (statistical series starting from 2005)
a confidence interval of the fifth percentile is used. The
estimated recovery percentages and expected collection
dates are updated based on annual analyses in light of
the progressive consolidation of the historical data series,
which provide increasingly solid and robust estimates. In
the fourth quarter of 2020, the expected rates of recovery
of default interest on factoring, in light of the statistical
evidence that benefits from the progressive consolidation
of the historical data series, have increased, as have
the related collection times used. The update of these
estimates led to the recognition of higher total interest
income of € 1.0 million (€ 4.8 million at 31 December
2019). The decrease in the effect resulting from the
updated recovery estimates is a consequence of the fact
that the historical series over the last few years have
settled nearer to the average collection percentages and
have stabilised in terms of the number of positions. As
a result, the expected recovery percentage calculated by
the statistical model is now quite stable and does not

fluctuate significantly. The amount of the stock of default

interest from legal actions accrued at 31 December 2020,
relevant for the allocation model, was € 101 million
(€ 104 million at the end of the fourth quarter of 2020),
€ 155 million when including troubled local authorities, a
component for which default interest is not allocated in the
financial statements, whereas the loans and receivables
recognised in the financial statements amount to € 50.1
million. Therefore, the amount of default interest accrued
but not yet recognised in the income statement is € 105
million.

Securities are composed primarily of Italian government
securities with an average duration of approximately 14.8
months. The HTCS portfolio amounted to € 425 million
at 31 December 2020 (€ 550 million at 31 December
2019). The associated valuation reserve was positive at
the end of the year, amounting to € 2.6 million before the
tax effect. In addition to government securities, the HTCS
portfolio also includes 200 shares of the Bank of Italy,
amounting to € 5 million, and the Axactor Norway shares,
which at 31 December 2020 had a negative fair value
reserve of € 0.5 million, resulting in a year-end amount

of € 0.6 million.

4.3 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown by debtor/issuer of the loans and receivables with

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

customers

First and Third ;Jr\évlﬁéggd First and Third [g)ljr\évﬁéggd

second or originated second or originated
stage stage  |credit-impaired stage stage | credit-impaired

assets assets

1. Debt instruments 449,077 - - 435,177 - -
a) Public administrations 447,864 - - 435,177 - -
b) Other financial companies 1,213 - - - - -
of which: insurance companies - - - - - -
c) Non-financial companies - - - - - -
2. Financing to: 2,329,158 | 205,011 31,699 | 2,399,160| 208,399 27,527
a) Public administrations 993,321 | 142,282 31,699 | 1,281,129| 142,646 27,527
b) Other financial companies 86,641 7 - 72,341 4 -
of which: insurance companies 9 5 - 9 3 -
c¢) Non-financial companies 298,562 | 52,334 - 210,459| 56,872 -
d) Households 950,634 10,387 - 835,231 8,877 -
Total | 2,778,235 | 205,011 31,699 | 2,834,337 | 208,399 27,527

-240-



4.4 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: gross amount and total impairment losses

Total impairment
losses

First stage
)
of which Overall
instruments | Second Third First Second Third partial
with low stage stage stage stage stage write-offs
credit risk (*)
Debt instruments 449,296 449,296 219 -
Financing 2,294,239 976,673 [134,159|250,162| 8,025 781 | 45,152 -
Total at 31.12.2020 2,743,535 | 1,425,969 (134,159|250,162| 8,244 781 | 45,152 -
Total at 31.12.2019 2,796,917 | 1,248,699 |124,252|245,618| 5,165 667 | 37,217 -
of which: purchased or originated X X | 20,294| 12,109 X 171 533 -
credit-impaired financial assets

4.4a Loans measured at amortised cost subject to Covid-19 support measures: gross amount and total impairment

losses
Total impairment
losses
First stage
of which Overall
instruments | Second Third First Second Third partial
with low stage stage stage stage stage write-offs
credit risk *)
1. Forborne loans in compliance 3,797 - 2,507 5,896 99 9 851 -
with the EBA Guidelines
2. Loans subject to other - - - - - - - -
forbearance measures
3. New loans 65,492 - - - 216 - - -
Total at 31.12.2020 69,289 - 2,507 5,896 315 9 - -
Total at 31.12.2019 - - - - - - - -
- - ” ” -
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[SECTION 7 - EQUITY INVESTMENTS - ITEM 70 J

7.1 Equity investments: information on investment relationships

4 Y Y 3\
Registered Interest % of
office % votes available
A. Fully-controlled companies
1. S.F. Trust Holdings Ltd London 100% 100%
2. Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.l. Milan 100% 100%
3. ProntoPegno S.p.A. Milan 75% 75%
B. Joint ventures
1. EBNSISTEMA FINANCE S.L. Madrid 50% 50%
| AN AN J/

7.3 Significant equity investments: accounting information

4 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y . A
[0}
) %)
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[}
A. Fully-
controlled
companies
1. S.F. Trust
) - 44 536 | 1,926 65 - (78) (118) | (117) - (117) - (117)
Holdings Ltd -
2. Largo
Augusto Servizi - - | 28631 | 12,718 305 | 1,455 | (130) | (611) 69 98 - 98 - 98
e Sviluppo S.r.l.
3. ProntoPegno
SpA 1,822 | 81983 | 32959 | 74,305 | 5,927 | 6,027 | 2,836 | (520) | (2,664) | (1,936) - | (1,936) - | 2,023)
P-A- \ A A A A A A A A A A A A A J
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B. Joint
ventures
1. EBNSISTEMA
-1 2,175 - 49 132 126 126 - 126 - 126
FINANCE S.L. -
. A A A A A A A A A A A J

7.5 Equity investments: changes

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

A. Opening balance 20,000 19,278
B. Increases 26,500 1,500
B.1 Purchases 1,000 -
B.2 Impairment gains - -
B.3 Revaluations - -
B.4 Other increases 25,500 1,500

C. Decreases 1,250 778
C.1 Sales 1,250 778
C.2 Impairment losses - -
C.3 Write-offs - -
C.4 Other decreases - -

D. Closing balance 45,250 20,000

E. Total revaluations

F. Total impairment losses

Equity investments

previous year, mainly as a result of the capital
increase paid into the ProntoPegno subsidiary in
preparation for its acquisition of the business unit.
At the end of 2020, Banca Sistema entered into

an equal partnership with EBN Banco de Negocios

increased

compared to the

Madrid-based company.
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S.A. Banca Sistema acquired an equity investment
in EBNSISTEMA through a capital increase of € 1

million which gave Banca Sistema a 50% stake in the

The decrease is related to the sale of 25% of shares

in ProntoPegno to the current minority shareholders.




(SECTION 8 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - ITEM 80 J

8.1 Operating property and equipment: breakdown of property and equipment

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

1. Owned 357 356
a) land - -
b) buildings - -
c) furniture 142 172
d) electronic equipment 215 184
e) other - -

2. Under finance lease 5,070 5,705
a) land - -
b) buildings 4,357 5,018
c) furniture - -
d) electronic equipment - -
e) other 713 687

Total 5,427 6,061

of which: obtained from the enforcement of guarantees received - -

Property and equipment are recognised in the financial statements in accordance with the general acquisition cost
criteria, including the related charges and any other expenses incurred to place the assets in conditions useful for the
Bank, in addition to indirect costs for the portion reasonably attributable to assets that refer to the costs incurred,

as at the end of the year.
Depreciation rates:

= Office furniture: 12%

= Furnishings: 15%

= Electronic machinery and miscellaneous equipment: 20%

= Assets less than Euro 516: 100%
The item “Under finance lease” includes the right of use relating to rents, of which the most significant amount refers
to the property owned by the subsidiary Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.l. (LASS) located in Milan, and the item

“Other” includes the right of use relating to leased company cars.
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8.6 Operating assets: changes

Y

Land

~N

Buildings

Furniture

<\
Electronic
equipment

Other

Total

A. Gross opening balances

6,321

1,243

2,117

1,176

10,857

A.1 Total net impairment losses

1,303

1,071

1,933

489

4,796

A.2 Net opening balances

5,018

172

184

687

6,061

B. Increases

491

10

111

376

988

B.1 Purchases

491

10

108

350

959

B.2 Capitalised improvement costs

B.3 Impairment gains

B.4 Fair value gains recognised in

a. equity

b. profit or loss

B.5 Exchange rate gains

B.6 Transfers from investment property

B.7 Other increases

B.8 Business combination transactions

B.9 First-time adoption of IFRS 16

C. Decreases

1,151

40

80

351

1,622

C.1 Sales

C.2 Depreciation

1,151

38

80

346

1,615

C.3 Impairment losses recognised in

a. equity

b. profit or loss

C.4 Fair value losses recognised in

a. equity

b. profit or loss

C.5 Exchange rate losses

C.6 Transfers to:

a. investment property

b. non-current assets held for

sale and disposal groups

C.7 Other decreases

B.8 Business combination transactions

D. Net closing balance

4,358

142

215

712

5,427

D.1 Total net impairment losses

2,454

1,111

2,013

840

6,418

D.2 Gross closing balance

6,812

1,253

2,228

1,552

11,845

E. Measurement at cost

4,358
/\.

142

215
J

712

5,427
J
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(SECTION 9 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS - ITEM 90

9.1 Intangible assets: breakdown by type of asset

Finite Indefinite Finite Indefinite
useful life | useful life | useful life | useful life
A.1 Goodwill - 3,920 - 3,920
A.2 Other intangible assets 12 - 1 -
A.2.1 Assets measured at cost: 12 - 1 -
a. Internally developed assets - - - -
b. Other 12 - 1 -
A.2.2 Assets measured at fair value: - - - -
a. Internally developed assets - - - -
b. Other - - - -
TOTAL L 12 | 3,920 | 1] 3,920 )

The other intangible assets are recognised at purchase
cost including related costs, and are systematically
amortised over a period of 5 years. The item mainly
refers to software.

With respect to information related to goodwill, reference

should be made to Part B - Information on the statement
of financial position, Section 10 — Intangible assets
— Item 100 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Banca Sistema Group, which is

deemed to be fully reported here.
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9.2 Intangible assets: changes

Other intangible
assets: internally

Other intangible

developed assets: Other

S
Goodwill FIN INDEF | FIN INDEF Total

A. Opening balance 3,920 - -| 3,104 - 7,024
A.1 Total net impairment losses - - -1 3,103 - 3,103
A.2 Net opening balances 3,920 - - 1 - 3,921

B. Increases - - - 12 - 12
B.1 Purchases - - - 12 - -

B.2 Increases in internally developed assets - - - - - -

B.3 Impairment gains - - - - - -

B.4 Fair value gains recognised in: - - - - - -

- equity - - - - - -

- profit or loss - - - R R _

B.5 Exchange rate gains - - - - - -

B.6 Other increases - - - - - R

B.7 Business combination transactions - - - - - .

C. Decreases - - - - - .
C.1 Sales - - - - - -

C.2 Impairment losses - - - 1 - 1

- Amortisation - - - 1 - 1

- Impairment losses: - - - - - -

- equity - - - - - -

- profit or loss - - - - - -

C.3 Fair value losses recognised in: - - - - - -

- equity - - - - - .

- profit or loss - - - _ _

C.4 Transfers to disposal groups - - - - - -

C.5 Other decreases - - - - - R

C.6 Altre variazioni - - - - - -
D. Net closing balance 3,920 - - 12 - 3,932
D.1 Total net impairment losses - - -| 3,104 - 3,104
E. Gross closing balance 3,920 - -1 3,116 - 7,036
F. Measurement at cost 3,920 - - 12 - 3,932

\. AN /\ /\. /\ AN J/

Key: Fin: finite useful life | Indef: indefinite useful life
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[SECTION 10 - TAX ASSETS AND TAX LIABILITIES - ITEM 100 OF ASSETS AND ITEM 60 OF LIABILITIES j

Below is the breakdown of the current tax assets and current tax liabilities

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Current tax assets 12,062 10,995
IRES prepayments 8,863 8,249
IRAP prepayments 3,136 2,609
Other 63 137
Current tax liabilities (14,057) (13,208)
Provision for IRES (10,827) (9,658)
Provision for IRAP (2,970) (3,523)
Provision for substitute tax (260) (27)
Total (1,995) (2,213)

10.1 Deferred tax assets: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Deferred tax assets through profit or loss: 8,334 7,771
Impairment losses on loans 2,376 2,756
Non-recurring transactions 414 427
Other 5,544 4,588
Deferred tax assets through equity: 501 328
Non-recurring transactions 239 247
HTCS securities 176 -
Other 86 81
Total 8,835 8,099

10.2 Deferred tax assets: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Deferred tax liabilities through profit or loss: 13,775 14,060
Uncollected default interest income 13,775 14,000
Other - 60
Deferred tax liabilities through equity: 875 160
HTCS securities 875 160
Total 14,650 14,220
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10.3 Changes in deferred tax assets (through profit or loss)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 7,771 6,716
2. Increases 3,498 1,852
2.1 Deferred tax assets recognised in the year - -

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. impairment gains - -

d. other 3,498 1,852

e. business combination transactions - -

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -
2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 2,935 797
3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised in the year - 160

a. reversals - -

b. impairment due to non-recoverability - -

c. changes in accounting policies - -

d. other 2,935 160

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -
3.3 Other decreases - 637

a. conversion into tax assets pursuant to Law 214/2011 - -

b. other - 637

4. Closing balance 8,334 7,771

10.3 bis Change in deferred tax assets pursuant to Law 214/2011

1. Opening balance

3,429

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

3,376

2. Increases

53

3. Decreases

400

3.1 Reversals

3.2 Conversions into tax assets

a) arising on loss for the year

b) arising on tax losses

3.3 Other decreases

400

4. Closing balance

=249~

3,029

3,429



10.4 Changes in deferred tax liabilities (through profit or loss)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 14,060 12,222
2. Increases 41 2,049
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the year 41 2,049

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 41 2,049

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -
2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 326 211
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities derecognised in the year 54 68

a. reversals - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 54 68

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -
3.3 Other decreases 272 143

4. Closing balance 13,775 14,060

10.5 Change in deferred tax assets (through equity)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 328 910
2. Increases 189 16
2.1 Deferred tax assets recognised in the year 189 16

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 189 16

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -
2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 16 598
3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised in the year 16 588

a. reversals - -

b. impairment due to non-recoverability - -

c. due to changes in accounting policies - -

d. other 16 588

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -
3.3 Other decreases - 10
4. Closing balance 501 328
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10.6 Change in deferred tax liabilities (through equity)

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Opening balance 160 9
2. Increases 875 160
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the year 875 160

a. related to previous years - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 875 160

2.2 New taxes or tax rate increases - -

2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 160 9
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities derecognised in the year 160 9
a. reversals - -

b. due to changes in accounting policies - -

c. other 160 9

3.2 Tax rate reductions - -

3.3 Other decreases - -

4. Closing balance 875 160
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(SECTION 12 - OTHER ASSETS - ITEM 120 )

12.1 Other assets: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

Tax advances 9,359 7,175
Other 2,793 3,631
Prepayments not related to a specific item 2,227 1,952
Work in progress 1,933 2,970
Trade receivables 1,677 2,446
Security deposits 157 54
Leasehold improvements 44 70
Total 18,190 18,198

The item is mainly composed of tax advances relative to virtual stamp duties and withholding taxes on interest expense.
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LIABILITIES

(SECTION 1 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST - ITEM 10 j

1.1 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of due to banks

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Fair value Fair value
Carrying Carrying
amount L1 L2 L3 amount L1 L2 L3
1. Due to Central banks 689,686 X X X| 358,250 X X X
2. Due to banks 129,315 X X X| 30,108 X X X
2.1 Current accounts and demand deposits - X X X 19 X X X
2.2 Term deposits 125,178 X X X| 30,089 X X X
2.3 Financing 1,863 X X X - X X X
2.3.1 Repurchase agreements - X X X - X X X
2.3.2 Other 1,863 X X X - X X X
2.4 Commitments to repurchase own
o - X X X - X X X
equity instruments
2.5 Lease liabilities - X X X - X X X
2.6 Other payables 2,274 X X X - X X X
TOTAL 819,001 819,001 | 388,358 388,358
Key:
L1= Level 1
L2= Level 2
L3= Level 3

1.2 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of due to customers

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Fair value Fair value
Carrying Carrying
amount L1 L2 L3 amount L1 L2 L3
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 639,459 X X X| 682,214 X X X
2. Term deposits 1,216,417 X X X (1,325,742 X X X
3. Financing 306,884 X X X| 543,941 X X X
3.1 Repurchase agreements 235,230 X X X| 457,070 X X X
3.2 Other 71,654 X X X 86,871 X X X
4. Commitments to repurchase own
o X X X - X X X
equity instruments
5. Lease liabilities X X X - X X X
6. Other payables 90,781 X X X| 165,078 X X X
TOTAL 2,253,541 - - | 2,253,541 | 2,716,975 - - 12,716,987
Key:
L1= Level 1
L2= Level 2
L3= Level 3
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1.3 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: breakdown by product of the securities issued

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Fair value Fair value
Carrying Carrying
amount L1 L2 L3 amount L1 L2 L3
A. Securities
1. bonds 138,090 - -1137,949| 311,607 | 177,657 - 1135,722
1.1 structured - - - - - - - -
1.2 other 138,090 - -1137,949| 311,607 177,657 -1135,722
2. other securities - - - - - - - -
1.1 structured - - - - - - - -
1.2 other - - - - - - - -
TOTAL 138,090 - -1137,949| 311,607 | 177,657 - 1135,722
Key:
L1 =Level 1
L2 = Level 2
L3 =Level 3
1.4 Breakdown of subordinated loans/securities
Y Y Y Y N\
Issuer Type of issue Coupon Maturity Nominal IFRS
yp P date amount | amount
Until 17 June 2023,
fixed rate at 7%
_ _ Banca Sistema Tier 1 subordinated edrate a
Tier 1 Capital loans with mixed rate: Perpetual 8,000 8,018
S.p.A. ISIN 1T0004881444 From 18 June 2023,
6-month Euribor +5%
variable rate
Banca Sistema | Subordinated ordinary
Tier 2 Capital loans (Tier 2): 6-month Euribor + 4.5% | 30/03/2027 | 19,500 | 19,527
S.p.A. ISIN 1T0005247397
Banca Sistema | Subordinated ordinary
Tier 2 Capital loans (Tier 2): Fixed rate at 7% 20/06/2029 | 18,000| 18,043
S.p.A. ISIN IT0005373060
TOTAL 45,500 | 45,588
AN AN I\ AN J

This item includes Senior bonds (private placement) of € 92.5 million, 2018-2021 with a fixed coupon of 2%.
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(SECTION 6 - TAX LIABILITIES - ITEM 60 J

The breakdown as well as the change in the deferred tax liabilities were illustrated in Part B Section 10 of assets in

these notes to the financial statements.

(SECTION 8 - OTHER LIABILITIES - ITEM 80 )

8.1 Other liabilities: breakdown

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Payments received in the reconciliation phase 73,367 54,893
Work in progress 26,868 9,180
Accrued expenses 10,858 10,975
2019 dividends due to shareholders 7,479 -
Trade payables 5,788 6,485
Finance lease liabilities 5,126 5,736
Tax liabilities with the Tax Authority and other tax authorities 4,956 9,458
Due to employees 719 838
Pension repayments 707 699
Due to group companies 114 436
Other 25 110
TOTAL 136,007 98,810

(SECTION 9 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - ITEM 90 )

9.1 Post-employment benefits: changes

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

A. Opening balance 2,955 2,402
B. Increases 646 911
B.1 Accruals 577 513
B.2 Other increases 69 180
B.3 Business combination transactions - 218

C. Decreases 227 358
C.1 Payments 175 222
C.2 Other decreases 52 136

D. Closing balance 3,374 2,955
TOTAL 3,374 2,955
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9.2 Other Information
The actuarial amount of post-employment benefits was calculated by an external actuary, who issued an appraisal.

The other decreases refer to the actuarial gain accounted for during the year. The payments made refer to post-

employment benefits paid during the year.

The technical valuations were conducted on the basis of the assumptions described in the following table:

Annual discount rate 0.34%
Annual inflation rate 0.80%
Annual post-employment benefits increase rate 2.10%
Annual salary increase rate 1.00%

The discount rate used for determining the present value  during the valuation month. To this end, a choice was
of the obligation was calculated, pursuant to IAS 19.83, made to select the yield with a duration comparable to

from the Iboxx Corporate AA index with 10+ duration  the duration of the set of workers subject to valuation.

(SECTION 10 - PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES - ITEM 100 )

10.1 Provisions for risks and charges: breakdown

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

1. Provisions for credit risk related to commitments and financial guarantees issued 26 44
2. Provisions for other commitments and other guarantees issued - -
3. Internal pension funds - -
4. Other provisions for risks and charges 22,610 21,747
4.1 legal and tax disputes 4 264 4,481
4.2 personnel expense 7,932 7,220
4.3 other 10,414 10,046
TOTAL 22,636 21,791
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10.2 Provisions for risks and charges: changes

.. Y ( \
F]’(rowilr?ns
or other - Other
commitments Pension L
and otther funds foprr?ivsllzogﬁd Total
uarantees
g e charges
A. Opening balance 44 21,747 21,791
B. Increases - 12,082 12,082
B.1 Accruals - 10,658 10,658
B.2 Discounting - - -
B.3 Changes due to discount rate changes - - -
B.4 Other increases - 1,424 1,424
B.5 Business combination transactions - - -
C. Decreases 18 11,219 11,237
C.1 Utilisations - 3,128 3,128
C.2 Changes due to discount rate changes - - -
C.3 Other decreases 18 8,091 8,109
D. Closing balance L 26A A 22,610 L 22,6361

Accruals are mainly due to deferred amounts due to

personnel and agents equal to € 4.1 million and other

accruals for possible liabilities to assignors that have yet to

be settled and pending lawsuits amounting to € 5.1 million.

10.3 Provisions for credit risk related to commitments and financial guarantees issued

Provisions for credit risk related
to financial guarantees issued

Provisions
for other Other
commitments Pension provisions Total
and other funds for risks and
guarantees charges
issued
1. Commitments to disburse funds - - - -
2. Financial guarantees issued 26 - - 26
TOTAL 26 - - 26
AN J J/

10.5 Internal defined benefit pension funds

Nothing to report.
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10.6 Provisions for risks and charges - other provisions

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Legal and tax disputes 4,264 4,481
Personnel expense 7,932 7,220
Other 10,414 10,046

TOTAL 22,610 21,747

Legal and tax disputes include a provision for possible

liabilities arising from past acquisitions and therefore

recognised in accordance with IFRS 3 for an amount of €

3.1 million and, for the remainder, provisions for lawsuits

where the risk of losing the case is considered probable.

“Personnel expense” includes:

= the provisions made for variable remuneration to be
paid to employees in subsequent years, for which the
due date and/or amount are uncertain;

= an estimate of labour-related disputes;

= the amount resulting from the actuarial valuation of the
non-compete agreement under IAS 19, as described
below.

The calculation method can be summarised in the

following steps:

= projection for each employee in service at the valuation
date of the NCA that has already been accrued, and
the future obligations up to an uncertain payment date;

= determination for each employee of the NCA

payments that the Group will have to make in the

event of employment termination due to dismissal

and retirement in case of fulfilment of the NCA

commitments;
= discounting, at the valuation date, of each probable
payment.

In particular, the annual discount rate used for determining
the present value of the obligation was calculated,
pursuant to IAS 19.83, from the Iboxx Corporate AA index
with 10+ duration during the valuation month. To this
end, a choice was made to select the yield with a duration
comparable to the duration of the set of workers subject
to valuation.

The item “Other” includes an estimate of charges related
to possible liabilities to assignors that have yet to be settled
for € 4.7 million, the estimated earn-out to be paid to the
sellers linked to the achievement of production volume
targets for the next three years (the liability is currently
estimated to be € 1.3 million and is offset against
goodwill), and an estimate for amounts due to agents of €
1 million. Also included is the provision for claims and the
provision to cover the estimated adverse effect of possible
early repayments (also known as pre-payments) on CQS
portfolios purchased from third-party intermediaries and

on the assigned portfolio, for an amount of € 3.4 million.
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(SECTION 12 - BANK EQUITY - ITEMS 110, 130, 140, 150, 160, 170 AND 180 )

12.1 “Share capital” and “Treasury shares”: breakdown

The share capital of Banca Sistema is composed of
80,421,052 ordinary shares, for a total paid-in share
capital of € 9,650,526.24. All outstanding shares have
regular dividend entitlement from 1 January.

Based on evidence from the Shareholders' Register and

more recent information available, as at 18 February
2021 the shareholders with stakes of more than 5%,
the threshold above which Italian law (art. 120 of the
Consolidated Law on Finance) requires disclosure to the

investee and Consob, were as follows:

SHAREHOLDERS % HELD
SGBS S.r.l. 23.10%
Garbifin S.r.I. 0.54%
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Alessandria 7.91%
Chandler SARL 7.48%
Fondazione Sicilia 7.40%
Moneta Micro Entreprises 5.12%
Market* 48.45%

(*) Includes treasury shares held by the Bank.

At 31 December 2020, the bank held 168,669 treasury shares (equal to 0.21% of the share capital) as a stock of

securities to be used for the incentive plan for the Group’s key personnel.

The breakdown of the bank's equity is shown below:

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1. Share capital 9,651 9,651
2. Share premium 39,100 39,100
3. Reserves 123,799 100,873
4. (Treasury shares) (234) (234)
5. Valuation reserves 1,386 279
6. Equity instruments - -
7. Profit for the year 25,746 29,956

TOTAL 199,448 179,625

For changes in reserves, please refer to the statement of changes in equity.
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12.2 Share capital - Number of shares: changes

Ordinary

Other

A. Opening balance

80,421,052

- fully paid-in

80,421,052

- not fully paid-in

A.1 Treasury shares (-)

168,669

A.2 Outstanding shares: opening balance

80,252,383

B. Increases

B.1 New issues

against consideration:

- business combination transactions

- conversion of bonds

- exercise of warrants

- other

bond issues:

- to employees

- to directors

- other

B.2 Sale of treasury shares

B.3 Other increases

C. Decreases

C.1 Cancellation

C.2 Repurchase of treasury shares

C.3 Disposal of equity investments

C.4 Other decreases

D. Outstanding shares: closing balance

80,252,383

D.1 Treasury shares (+)

168,669

D.2 Closing balance

80,421,052

- fully paid-in

80,421,052

- not fully paid-in
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12.4 Income-related reserves: other information

In compliance with art. 2427(7 bis) of the Italian Civil Code, below is the detail of the equity items revealing the

origin and possibility of use and distributability.

' Y Y A
gnlﬂ?lu;-tzzsza(ljt Possible use Available portion
A. Share capital 9,651 - -
B. Equity-related reserves - - -
Share premium reserve 39,100 A,B,C -
Reserve to provide for losses - - -
C. Income-related reserves: - - -
Legal reserve 1,930 B -
Valuation reserve 1,386 - -
Negative goodwill 1,774 A,B,C -
Retained earnings 120,507 A,B,C -
Reserve for treasury shares 200 - -
Reserve for future capital increase - - -
D. Other reserves (612) - -
E. Treasury shares (234) - -
TOTAL 173,702 - -
Profit for the year 25,746 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 199,448 - -
Undistributable portion - - -
Distributable portion - - -
. \ I\, J

Key:

A: for share capital increase

B: to cover losses

C: for distribution to shareholders
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[OTHER INFORMATION ]

1. Commitments and financial guarantees issued

Nominal amount of commitments

and financial guarantees issued

'Y Y N

SFt'ar;E Sset;‘;gd Ithaiég 31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019
Commitments to disburse funds 421,159 24,765 10,389 456,313 246,489
a) Central Banks - - - - -
b) Public administrations 220,610 - 3,250 223,860 -
c¢) Banks - - - - -
d) Other financial companies 109,919 - - 109,919 121,035
e) Non-financial companies 88,342 24,536 7,139 120,017 120,372
f) Households 2,288 229 - 2,517 5,082
Financial guarantees issued 6,724 - - 6,724 3,119
a) Central Banks - - - - -
b) Public administrations 20 - - 20 -
c) Banks 2,446 - - 2,446 2,446
d) Other financial companies - - - - -
e) Non-financial companies 4,161 - - 4,161 627

f) Households L 97 A - L -1 97 Je 45 )

The item “financial guarantees issued - banks” includes the commitments taken on with the interbank guarantee
systems; the item “Irrevocable commitments to disburse funds” is related to the equivalent value of the securities to

receive for transactions to be settled.
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3. Assets pledged as collateral for liabilities and commitments

1. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

2. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

71,350

192,101

3. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

285,987

469,875

4. Property and equipment

of which: Property and equipment included among inventories

6. Management and trading on behalf of third parties

1. Execution of orders on behalf of customers

lIIIIHHHHIHHIIII

a) purchases

1. settled

2. unsettled

b) sales

1. settled

2. unsettled

2. Individual asset management

3. Securities custody and administration 1,262,864
a) third-party securities held as part of depositary bank services

(excluding asset management) -

1. securities issued by the reporting entity -

2. other securities -

b) third-party securities on deposit (excluding asset management): other 32,207

1. securities issued by the reporting entity 4,063

2. other securities 28,144

c) third-party securities deposited with third parties 32,207

d) securities owned by the bank deposited with third parties 1,230,658

4., Other transactions
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PART C - INFORMATION ON THE INCOME STATEMENT

(SECTION 1 - INTEREST - ITEMS 10 AND 20

1.1 Interest and similar income: breakdown

- ' ' ' g \
insteruent’)ntants Financing tranztar::iirons 2020 2019
1. Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss: ) - ) ) )
1.1 Financial assets held for trading - - - - -
1.2 Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss ) ) ) ) )
1.3 Other financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss _ _ _ ) _
2. Financial assets measured at fair value through ) ) X ) )
other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 1,872 89,153 - 91,025| 107,552
3.1 Loans and receivables with banks - 167 X 167 146
3.2 Loans and receivables with customers 1,872 88,986 X 90,858 | 107,406
4. Hedging derivatives X X - - -
5. Other assets X X - - -
6. Financial liabilities X X X 4,222 2,692
TOTAL 1,872 89,153 -| 95,247 | 110,244
of which: interest income on impaired assets - - - - -
of which: interest income on finance leases L - L -1 -1 -A -)

The total contribution of the Factoring Division to interest
income was € 65.2 million, equal to 74% of the entire
loans and receivables portfolio (compared to 78% at 31
December 2019), to which the commission component
associated with the factoring business and the revenue
generated by the assignment of receivables from the
factoring portfolio need to be added. The component linked
to default interest from legal action at 31 December 2020
was € 21.6 million (€ 29 million at 31 December 2019):
= of which € 1 million resulting from the updated
recovery estimates and expected collection times (€
5.1 million in 2019);
= of which € 9.0 million resulting from the current
recovery estimates (€ 12.0 million in 2019);
= of which € 11.6 million (€ 11.9 million in 2019)
coming from net collections during the year, i.e. the
difference between the amount collected during the

period, equal to € 21.5 million (€ 21.6 million in

2019) and that recognised on an accruals basis in
previous years. This item includes gross collections of
€ 6.5 million from transfers to third parties (equal to €
7.0 million in 2019).
The positive impact on income was also driven by growth
in interest on the salary- and pension-backed portfolios
which is down slightly on the previous year at € 16.9
million as a result of the early redemption of several
positions.
The contribution from the Collateralised Lending Division
amountingto € 350 thousand represents income generated
up to 31 July 2019, because from the following month
the collateralised lending business unit was merged into
the newly formed ProntoPegno.
The item “financial liabilities” mainly includes income
arising from the financing activity of the securities
portfolio in repurchase agreements and ECB loans at

negative rates, which account for € 4.2 million.
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1.3 Interest and similar expense: breakdown

\ Y \ N \
Liabilities | Securities [ O | 2020 | 2019
1. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 16,128 7,372 - 23,500 29,564
1.1 Due to Central banks - X - - -
1.2 Due to banks 412 X - 412 578
1.3 Due to customers 15,716 X - 15,716 21,056
1.4 Securities issued X 7,372 - 7,372 7,930
2. Financial liabilities held for trading - - - - -
3. Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss - ) - ) -
4. Other liabilities and provisions X X - - -
5. Hedging derivatives X X - - -
6. Financial assets X X X 188 127
TOTAL 16,128 7,372 - 23,688 29,691
of which: interest expense related to lease liabilities 66 - - - -
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[SECTION 2 - NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME - ITEMS 40 AND 50 J

2.1 Fee and commission income: breakdown

2020 2019

a. guarantees issued 36 13

b. credit derivatives - -

c. management, brokerage and consultancy services: 152 124

1. trading in financial instruments - -

2. foreign currency transactions - -
3. individual asset management 10 10
4. securities custody and administration 1 2
5. depositary services - -
6. placement of securities 100 72
7. order collection and transmission 41 40
8

. consultancy services - -

8.1. on investments - -

8.2. on financial structure - -

9. distribution of third party services - -

9.1. asset management - -
9.1.1. individuali - -
9.1.2. collettive - -

9.2. insurance products - -

9.3. other products - -

d. collection and payment services 54 62

e. services for securitisations - -
f. services for factoring 17,715 18,409

g. tax collection services - -

h. management of multilateral trading facilities - -

i. keeping and management of current accounts 96 91
j. other services 3,566 3,561
TOTAL 21,619 22,260
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It should be noted that item j) Other services is detailed in the following table, and consists mainly of the fees and
commissions arising from the origination of salary- and pension-backed loan (CQS/CQP) products, as well as servicing
for third-party factoring transactions.

The aggregate of other fees and commissions is in any case residual.

2020 2019

Fees and commissions from servicing of third-party factoring transactions 1,148 1,417
CQ origination fees and commissions 2,353 1,859
Collateralised lending fees and commissions - -
Other fees and commissions (residual) 64 284
Total 3,566 3,560

2.2 Fee and commission income: distribution channels of products and services

2020 2019

A) at its branches: 110 82
1. asset management 10 10
2. placement of securities 100 72

3. third-party services and products - -

B) off-premises: - -

1. asset management - -

2. placement of securities - -

3. third-party services and products - -

C) other distribution channels: - .

1. asset management - -

2. placement of securities - -

3. third-party services and products - -
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2.3 Fee and commission expense: breakdown

a. guarantees received 41 -

b. credit derivatives - -

c. management and brokerage services: 6,122 5,923

1. trading in financial instruments 52 70

2. foreign currency transactions - -

3. asset management - -

3.1 own portfolio - -

3.2 third party portfolios - -

4. securities custody and administration - -

5. placement of financial instruments - -

6. off-premises distribution of securities, products and services 6,070 5,853
d. collection and payment services 199 222
e. other services 509 274
TOTAL 6,871 6,419

(SECTION 3 - DIVIDENDS AND SIMILAR INCOME - ITEM 70 )

3.1 Dividends and similar income: breakdown

( 2020 Y 2019 )
dividends | ™1 1 Gividends | Smiar
income income
A. Financial assets held for trading - - - -
B Other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value ) ) ) .
" through profit or loss
C. Financial as§ets_ measured at fair value through other 297 . 207 )
comprehensive income
D. Equity investments - - - -
TOTAL L 227 - A 227 -
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[SECTION 4 - NET TRADING INCOME (EXPENSE) - ITEM 80

4.1 Net trading income (expense): breakdown

Gains Trading Losses

(A) income ©)

Trading
losses
(D)

Y B \
Net trading

income
(expense)
[(A+B) -

(C+D)]

1. Financial assets held for trading - 57

(1)

56

1.1 Debt instruments - 57

1)

57

1.2 Equity instruments - -

1.3 OEIC units - -

1.4 Financing - -

1.5 Other - -

(1)

(1)

2. Financial liabilities held for trading - -

2.1 Debt instruments - -

2.2 Payables - -

2.3 Other - -

3. Other financial assets and liabilities:
exchange rate gains (losses)

4. Derivatives - -

4.1 Financial derivatives: - -

On debt instruments and interest rates - -

On equity instruments and equity indexes - -

On currencies and gold X X

Other - -

4.2 Credit derivatives - -

of which: natural hedges connected
to the fair value option

TOTAL - 57

(1)

56
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(SECTION 6 - GAIN FROM SALES OR REPURCHASES - ITEM 100

6.1 Gain from sales or repurchases: breakdown

Gain Loss gl\;?; Gain Loss glg\laei:]
A. Financial assets - - - - - -
1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 5,351 | (1,137) 4,214 1,106 - 1,106
1.1 Loans and receivables with banks - - - - - -
1.2 Loans and receivables with customers 5,351 (1,137) 4,214 1,106 - 1,106
e o | 7] @) san| asao a0 zewo
2.1 Debt instruments 5,327 (26) 5,301 4,140 (1,530) 2,610
2.2 Financing - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS| 10,678 | (1,163) 9,515 5,246 | (1,530) 3,716
B. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - - - - - -
1. Due to banks - - - - - -
2. Due to customers - - - - - -
3. Securities issued 16 - 16 - - _
TOTAL LIABILITIES { 16 A 16 | - -1 )
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[SECTION 8 - NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES/GAINS DUE TO CREDIT RISK - ITEM 130

8.1 Net impairment losses due to credit risk related to financial assets measured at amortised cost: breakdown

Impairment losses (1) Impairment gains (2)
First and Third stage Firstand | Thirg | 2020 2019
second }J————— second t
stage  [|write-offs| Other stage stage
A. Loans and receivables with banks - - (8) - (6) 17
- financing - - (8) - (6) 17
- debt instruments - - - - - - -
of which: purchased or originated credit- - - - - - - -
impaired loans and receivables
B. Loans and receivables with customers: 3,440 - | 9,034 (34) (5) 112,435 8,931
- financing 3,343 - 19,034 (34) (5) [12,338 8,881
- debt instruments 97 - - - - 97 50
of which: purchased or originated - - - - - - -
credit-impaired loans and receivables
C. Total 3,442 - 19,034 42) (5) |12,429 8,948
. L \ N\ A\, N J

8.1a Net impairment losses due to credit risk related to loans measured at amortised cost subject to Covid-19

support measures: breakdown

Net impairment losses
Fsiresctoarlllzjd Third\s(tage . T%tglzgjr T%tgllfgor
stage write-offs | Other
1. Forborne loans in compliance with the EBA Guidelines (27) - 483 456 -
2. Loans subject to other forbearance measures - - - - -
3. New loans 216 - - 216 -
Total (T) L 189) - A 483) 672) -

8.2 Net impairment losses due to credit risk related to financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income: breakdown

Impairment losses (1) Impairment gains (2)
First and Third stage First and Third | 2020 2019
second |, ——— second t
stage write-offs| Other stage stage
A. Debt instruments 52 - - - - 52 105
B. Financing - - - - - - -
- To customers - - - - - - -
- To banks - ) ) ) ) - -
Of which: purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets - - - - - - -
Total \ 52 A A A “_A “_A 52 A 105 J

-271-



(SECTION 10 - ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - ITEM 160

10.1 Personnel expense: breakdown

1) Employees 20,077 20,251
a) wages and salaries 11,530 11,280
b) social security charges 3,081 2,968
¢) post-employment benefits - -
d) pension costs - -
e) accrual for post-employment benefits 807 857
f) accrual for pension and similar provisions: - -

- defined contribution plans - -
- defined benefit plans - -
g) payments to external supplementary pension funds: 379 335
- defined contribution plans 379 335
- defined benefit plans - -
h) costs of share-based payment plans - -
i) other employee benefits 4,280 4,811

2) Other personnel 428 458

3) Directors and statutory auditors 1,107 1,098

4) Retired personnel - -

5) Recovery of costs for employees of the Bank seconded to other entities - -

6) Reimbursement of costs for employees of other entities seconded to the Bank 130 509

TOTAL 21,742 22,316

10.2 Average number of employees by category

Employees
a) Senior managers: 25
b) Managers: 42
¢) Remaining employees: 132
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10.5 Other administrative expenses: breakdown

2020 2019

Consultancy (4,672) (4,128)
IT expenses (5,020) (5,711)
Servicing and collection activities (2,951) (2,992)
Indirect taxes and duties (1,802) (2,108)
Insurance (468) (486)
Other (5623) (429)
Expenses related to management of the SPVs (537) (530)
Car hire and related fees (546) (635)
Advertising (310) (499)
Rent and related fees (945) (1,030)
Expense reimbursement and entertainment (302) (825)
Infoprovider expenses (514) (638)
Membership fees (288) (304)
Property management expenses (66) (101)
Audit fees (240) (329)
Telephone and postage expenses (139) (135)
Logistics expenses (61) (61)
Stationery and printing (41) (60)
Total operating expenses (19,425) (21,001)
Resolution Fund (2,007) (1,146)
Merger-related costs (138) (365)
Total (21,570) (22,512)

Administrative expenses decreased mainly as a result of
lower travel expenses due to the pandemic and lower IT
costs. The cost related to the contribution to the Resolution
Fund accounted for € 0.9 million of the increase in costs.
The increase in consulting expenses is mainly due to
the costs incurred for legal expenses related to pending

lawsuits and enforceable injunctions for the recovery of

receivables and default interest from debtors of the Public
Administration.

The 2020 merger-related costs refer to costs incurred
by the Parent in connection with the acquisition of the
collateralised lending business unit completed in July.
The 2019 merger-related costs include the costs for the

integration and merger of Atlantide into the Bank.
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(SECTION 11 - NET ACCRUALS TO PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES - ITEM 170

11.2 Net accruals for other commitments and other guarantees issued: breakdown

Net accruals for other commitments and other guarantees

2019

18

(36)

TOTAL

11.3 Net accruals to other provisions for risks and charges: breakdown

18]

(36)

2020 2019

Provisions for risks and charges - other provisions and risks (2,538) (1,960)
Release of provisions for risks and charges - -
TOTAL (2,538) (1,960)

(SECTION 12 - NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - ITEM 180

12.1 Net impairment losses on property and equipment: breakdown

- Y Y e \
Depreciation | Impairment losses |Impairment gains| Carrying amount
(a) (b) (c) (@+b-c)
A. Property and equipment
1. Operating assets 1,617 - 1,617
- Owned 119 - 119
- Right-of-use assets acquired under a lease 1,498 - 1,498
2. Investment property - - -
- Owned - - -
- Right-of-use assets acquired under a lease - - -
3. Inventories - - -
TOTAL 1,617 - 1,617
\ A A A J
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[SECTION 13 - NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON INTANGIBLE ASSETS - ITEM 190

13.1 Net impairment losses on intangible assets: breakdown

- ' ' Y \
Amortisation | Impairment |Impairment gains| Carrying amount
(a) losses (b) (c) (@+b-c)
A. Intangible assets

A.1 Owned 1 - - 1

= Developed internally - - - -

= Other 1 - - 1

A.2 Right-of-use assets acquired under a lease - - - -
TOTAL . 1 /\. ) J\. . \ 1 J/

(SECTION 14 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSE - ITEM 200

14.1 Other operating expense: breakdown

2020 2019

Amortisation of leasehold improvements 27 42
Other operating expense 1,409 1,857
TOTAL 1,436 1,899

14.2 Other operating income: breakdown

2020 2019

Recoveries of expenses on current accounts and deposits for sundry taxes 518 333
Recoveries of sundry expenses 157 155
Other income 994 615

TOTAL 1,669 1,103

“Recoveries of expenses on current accounts and deposits for sundry taxes” include the amounts recovered from

customers for the substitute tax on medium and long-term loans and for the stamp duty on current account and

security statements of account.
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(SECTION 19 - INCOME TAXES - ITEM 270 ]

19.1 Income taxes: breakdown

2020 2019

1. Current taxes (-) (12,739) (12,420)
2. Changes in current taxes of previous years (+/-) 125 852
3. Decrease in current taxes for the year (+) - -

3.bis Decrease in current taxes for the year due to tax assets pursuant - -

to Law no. 214/2011 (+)

4., Changes in deferred tax assets (+/-) 563 1,055
Changes in deferred tax liabilities (+/-) 285 (1,838)

6. Tax expense for the year (-) (-14/-2+3+/-4+/-5) (11,766) (12,351)

(SECTION 20 - POST-TAX PROFIT (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - ITEM 290 )

20.1 Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations: breakdown

1. Income B -

2. Expense - -

3. Result of the measurement of the group of assets and associated liabilities - -

4. Gains (losses) on sales - 179
5. Taxes and duties - (3)
Profit (loss) - 176
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20.2 Breakdown of income taxes from discontinued operations

1. Current taxes (-) - (3)

2. Changes in deferred tax assets (+/-) - -

3. Changes in deferred tax liabilities (-/+) - -

4. Income taxes for the year (-1+/-2+/-3) - (3)

(SECTION 21 - OTHER INFORMATION )

Nothing to report.

(SECTION 22 - EARNINGS PER SHARE )
Earnings per share (EPS) 2020
Profit for the year (thousands of Euro) 25,746
Average number of outstanding shares 80,252,383
Basic earnings per share (in Euro) 0.321
Diluted earnings per share (in Euro) 0.321

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares of Banca Sistema (numerator) by

the weighted average number of ordinary shares (denominator) outstanding during the year.
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PART D - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Breakdown of comprehensive income

2020

2019

10.

Profit for the year

25,746

29,956

Items, net of tax, that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

20.

Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income:

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) transfers to other equity items

30.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(changes in own credit rating):

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) transfers to other equity items

40.

Hedging of equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

a) fair value gains (losses) - hedged item

b) fair value gains (losses) - hedging instrument

50.

Property and equipment

60.

Intangible assets

70.

Defined benefit plans

80.

Non-current assets held for sale

90.

Share of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investments:

100.

Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Items, net of tax, that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

110.

Hedges of foreign investments:

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) reclassification to profit or loss

c) other changes

120.

Exchange rate gains (losses):

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) reclassification to profit or loss

c) other changes

130.

Cash flow hedges:

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) reclassification to profit or loss

c) other changes

of which: net position gains (losses)

140.

Hedging instruments (non-designated elements):

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) reclassification to profit or loss

c) other changes
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2020

2019

150.

Financial assets (other than equity instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income:

1,144

1,430

a) fair value gains

1,092

325

b) reclassification to profit or loss

- impairment losses due to credit risk

52

104

- gains on sales

1,001

c¢) other changes

160.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups:

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) reclassification to profit or loss

c) other changes

170.

Share of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investments:

a) fair value gains (losses)

b) reclassification to profit or loss

- impairment losses

- gains/losses on sales

¢) other changes

180.

Income taxes on items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

190.

Total other comprehensive income

1,107

1,410

200.

Comprehensive income (10+190)
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PART E - INFORMATION CONCERNING RISKS AND RELATED HEDGING POLICIES

( SECTION 1 - CREDIT RISK )

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. General aspects

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

2. Credit Risk Management Policies

2.1 Organisational aspects

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

2.2 Management, measurement and control systems

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

2.3 Methods of measuring expected losses

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

2.4 Credit Risk mitigation techniques

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

3. Impaired loans

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

3.1 Management strategies and policies

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

3.2 Write-offs

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

3.3 Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

4. Financial assets subject to commercial renegotiation
and forborne exposures

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here
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A.1.5 Financial assets, commitments to disburse funds and financial guarantees issued: transfers between different
credit risk stages (gross amount and nominal amount)

Transfers between the
first and second stage

Gross amount / Nominal amount

Y Transfers between the
second and third stage

(" Transfers between the
first and third stage

From the From the From the From the
first to the | secondto | second to | third to the From the Erom the
. . first to the | third to the
second the first the third second third stage | first stage
stage stage stage stage g g
1. Financial assets measured at 44,329 31,710 4,371 3,525 38,963 38,148
amortised cost
2. Financial assets measured - - - - - -
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
3. Financial assets held for sale - - - - - -
4. Commitments to disburse funds 10,590 3,786 - 11,931 4,387 11,159
and financial guarantees issued
TOTAL AT 31.12.2020 54,919 35,496 4,371 15,456 43,349 49,307
TOTAL AT 31.12.2019 48,967 10,557 31,604 4,056 73,083 43,174
\ AL N\ \ AN AL J
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A.1.5a Loans subject to Covid-19 support measures: transfers between different credit risk stages (gross amount

and nominal amount)

Transfers between the

Gross amount / Nominal amount
Y\ Transfers between the

Y Transfers be

tween the

first and second stage second and third stage first and third stage
From the From the From the From the
first to the | secondto | second to | third to the From the Erom the
) . first to the | third to the
second the first the third second third stage | first stage
stage stage stage stage g g
A. Loans measured at amortised cost - - - 2,507 135 -
A.1 forborne in compliance with - - - 2,507 135 -
the EBA Guidelines
A.2 subject to other forbearance - - - - - -
measures
A.3 new loans - - - - - -
B. Loans measured at fair value - - - - - -
through other comprehensive income
B.1 forborne in compliance with - - - - - -
the EBA Guidelines
B.2 subject to other forbearance ) ) ) ) ) )
measures
B.3 new loans - - - - - -
TOTAL AT 31.12.2020 - - - 2,507 135 -
TOTAL AT 31.12.2019 - - - - - -
\ L N J
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A.1.6 On- and off-statement of financial position loans and receivables with banks: gross amounts and carrying

amounts

5y g %) S ‘©
IS o = *
gl = 0.9 IS c L2
ko] o © © v © S
L = 2o = ) _9
‘T a EgS £ c 2
3 £ - oG > ST
E| £ |882| & 3 =
- > o é S ©
A. ON-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES -
a) Bad exposures - X - ; R
of which: forborne exposures - X - - -
b) Unlikely to pay - X - - _
of which: forborne exposures - X - - _
c¢) Impaired past due exposures - X - - _
of which: forborne exposures - X - . -
d) Unimpaired past due exposures X - - . -
of which: forborne exposures X - - - -
e) Other unimpaired exposures X | 90,453 20 90,433 -
of which: forborne exposures X
TOTAL A - 190,453 20 90,433 -
B. OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES | -
a) Impaired - X . ; R
b) Unimpaired X 2,446 - 2,445 -
TOTAL B - 2,446 - 2,445 -
TOTAL A+B - 192,899 20 | 92,878 -
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A.1.7a Loans subject to Covid-19 support measures: gross amount and carrying amount

C ®© -
gsg E S-
© o9 c &L
o o o] < Q%5
£ s £E23 ) =4
s = =©3 £ S
£ = Sg2 5 3*
) F o o
o
A. ON-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
a) Bad exposures 52,354 X 25,241 27,113 -
of which: forborne exposures 369 X 369 -
b) Unlikely to pay 147,431 X| 19,476 127,955 -
of which: forborne exposures 296 X 118 177 -
c¢) Impaired past due exposures 50,377 X 435 49,942 -
of which: forborne exposures X -
d) Unimpaired past due exposures X 548,786 2,560 546,226 -
of which: forborne exposures X -
e) Other unimpaired exposures X | 2,666,361 6,650 2,669,711 -
of which: forborne exposures X 1,062 7 1,055
TOTAL A 250,162 | 3,215,148 | 54,363 | 3,410,947 -
B. OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
a) Impaired 10,389 X 10,389 -
b) Unimpaired X 450,202 26 450,176 -
TOTAL B 10,389 450,202 26 460,565 -
TOTAL A+B 260,551 | 3,665,350 | 54,389 | 3,871,512 -
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A.1.7 On- and off-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers: gross amounts and carrying
amounts

s ' a
impg?rtﬁwlent ; Overall
amourt | Lsesend | SRR | patel
provisions
A. BAD LOANS - - - -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines - - - -
b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -
c) New loans - - - -
B. UNLIKELY-TO-PAY LOANS 5,761 846 4,915 -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines 5,761 846 4915 -
b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -
¢) New loans - - - -
C. IMPAIRED PAST DUE LOANS 135 4 130 -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines 135 4 130 -
b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -
c) New loans - - - -
D. PERFORMING LOANS - - - -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines - - - -
b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -
c) New loans - - - -
E. OTHER PERFORMING LOANS 71,796 324 71,473 -
a) Forborne in compliance with the EBA Guidelines 6,304 108 6,197 -
b) Subject to other forbearance measures - - - -
c) New loans 65,492 216 65,276 -
TOTAL (A+B+C+D+E) L 77,692 )Y 1,174 Je 76,518 Je -
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A. 1.9 On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers: gross impaired positions

Bad | Unlikel Impaired

exposures to payy past due

exposures
A. Opening gross balance 50,622 139,348 55,646
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised - - -
B. Increases 16,505 192,215 207,750
B.1 transfers from performing loans 2,630 11,636 119,325
B.2 transfers from purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets 821 13,175 20
B.3 transfers from other categories of impaired loans 998 4,781 -
B.4 contract amendments without derecognition - - -
B.5 other increases 12,056 162,622 88,405
C. Decreases 14,773 184,132 213,019
C.1 transfers to performing loans 1,564 595 86,399
C.2 write-offs 455 - -
C.3 collections 12,754 182,816 121,562
C.4 gains on sales - - -
C.5 losses on sales - - -
C.6 transfers to other categories of impaired loans - 722 5,058
C.7 contract amendments without derecognition - - -
C.8 other decreases - - -
D. Closing gross balance 52,354 147,431 50,377

- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised 8 L 718 | 3,875 )
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A.1.9bis On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers: breakdown of gross forborne

exposures by credit quality

( Non-performing Y )
exposures with Other forborne
forbearance exposures
measures
A. Opening gross balance 2,056 -
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised - -
B. Increases 2,392 2,124
B.1 transfers from performing exposures without forbearance measures - 1,062
B.2 transfers from forborne performing exposures - X
B.3 transfers from non-performing exposures with forbearance measures X 1,062
B.4 transfers from non-performing exposures without forbearance measures 1,662 -
B.5 other increases 731 -
C. Decreases 3,784 1,062
C.1 transfers to performing exposures without forbearance measures X -
C.2 transfers to forborne performing exposures - -
C.3 transfers to non-performing exposures with forbearance measures X 1,062
C.4 write-offs - -
C.5 collections 3,120 -
C.6 gains on sales - -
C.7 losses on sales - -
C.8 other decreases 664 -
D. Closing gross balance 664 1,062
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised L - L -

-291-



A.1.11 On-statement of financial position non-performing loans and receivables with customers: changes in impaired

positions
BAD UNLIKELY T DUE
EXPOSURES TO PAY EXPOSURES
_ | geg| _ |sef] _ |ggd
E |E8E| E |:83| % |88
= B3 = Tex = B %
A. Opening total impairment losses 20,078 - | 16,042 259 | 1,097 176
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised - - - - - -
B. Increases 6,770 369 | 12,026 118 362 -
B.1 impairment losses on purchased or originated 30 - 306 - - -
credit-impaired financial assets
B.2 other impairment losses 6,700 - 111,608 118 277 -
B.3 losses on sales - - - - - -
B.4 transfers from other categories of impaired loans 34 369 94 - - -
B.5 contract amendments without derecognition - - - - -
B.6 other increases 6 - 18 - 84 -
C. Decreases 1,607 - 8,592 259 (1,024 176
C.1 impairment gains 1,076 - 5,343 - 703 -
C.2 impairment gains due to collections 106 - 565 - 43 -
C.3 gains on sales - - - - - -
C.4 write-offs - - - - - -
C.5 transfers to other categories of impaired loans - - 30 259 99 -
C.6 contract amendments without derecognition - - - - - -
C.7 other decreases 425 - 2,654 - 179 176
D. Closing total impairment losses 25,241 369 | 19,476 118 435 -
- of which: positions transferred but not derecognised - - 66 - 27 -
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A.2 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS, COMMITMENTS TO DISBURSE FUNDS AND FINANCIAL GUARAN-

TEES ISSUED BASED ON EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL RATING

A.2.1 Breakdown of financial assets, commitments to disburse funds and financial guarantees issued by external

rating class (gross amounts)

The risk categories for the external rating indicated in this table refer to the creditworthiness classes of the debtors/

guarantors pursuant to prudential requirements (cf. Circular no. 285 of 2013 “Supervisory Provisions for Banks”

and subsequent updates).

The Bank uses the standardised approach in accordance with the risk mapping of the rating agencies:

= “DBRS Ratings Limited”, for exposures to: central authorities and central banks; supervised brokers; public

sector institutions; territorial entities.

External rating class
-

Class Class Class Class Class Class Without Total
1 2 3 4 5 6 rating
A. Financial assets measured 448,083 -| 2,679,773 | 3,127,856
at amortised cost
- First stage 448,083 -| 2,295,452 2,743,535
- Second stage - - 134,159 134,159
- Third stage - - 250,162 | 250,162
B. Financial assets measured 425,554 - - 425,554
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- First stage 425,554 - - 425,554
- Second stage - - - -
- Third stage - - - -
Total (A+B) 873,637 -| 2,679,773 |3,553,410
of which: purchased or originated - - 32,403 32,403
credit-impaired financial assets
C. Commitments to disburse funds - - 463,037 463,037
and financial guarantees issued
- First stage - - 427,883 427,883
- Second stage - - 24,765 24,765
- Third stage - - 10,389 10,389
Total C - - 463,037 | 463,037
Total (A + B + C) L ) 873,637 | - | 3,142,810 | 4,016,447
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of which long-term rating

Risk weighting factors n

.

J

.

Creditworthiness Cen’;ral Sgpervised.bro.kers, Multilateral | Companies DBRS
class authorities and | public segtor_lnstltgt_lons development| and o_ther Ratings Limited
central banks and territorial entities banks parties

1 0% 20% 20% 20% from AAA to AAL
2 20% 50% 50% 50% from AH to AL
3 50% 100% 50% 100% from BBBH to BBBL
4 100% 100% 100% 100% from BBH to BBL
5 100% 100% 100% 150% from BH to BL
6 150% 150% . 150% ) 150% CCC and lower

of which short-term rating (for exposures to companies)

Creditggrstshiness Risk weighting factors DBRS Ratings Limited
1 20% R-1 (high), R-1 (middle)
2 50% R-1 (low)
3 100% R-2; R-3
4 150% R-4, R-5,D
5 150%
6 150%

“Fitch Ratings”, for exposures to companies and other parties.

of which long-term rating

Risk weighting factors n

.

/\

J

.

Creditworthiness Cen’;ral Sgpervised.bro'kerg Multilateral | Companies ‘ o
class authorities and | public sec_tor_ |nst|tl_Jt_|ons development| and o_ther Ratings Limited
central banks and territorial entities banks parties

1 0% 20% 20% 20% from AAA to AA-
2 20% 50% 50% 50% from A+ to A-
3 50% 100% 50% 100% from BBB+ to BBB-
4 100% 100% 100% 100% from BB+ to BB-
5 100% 100% 100% 150% from B+ to B-
6 150% 150% . 150% ) 150% CCC+ and lower

of which short-term rating (for exposures to companies)

7

N\

Creditworthiness Risk weighting Fitch
class factors Ratings
1 20% Fl+
2 50% F1
3 100% F2, F3
from 4 to 6 150% less than F3
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B. BREAKDOWN AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURES

B.1 Breakdown by business segment of on- and off-statement of financial position loans and receivables with

customers
Public Financial Financial companies Non-financial Households
administrations companies (of which: insurance companies
companies)
IS = IS = € = IS = € =
© g © g © 8 © 8 © g
g E g E 2 E g E 2 E
> = > = > = > = > =
5 I 5 3 5 ] 5 ] 5 3
S ° 8 e 8 © 8 ° 3 ©
A. On-statement of financial position loans and receivables
Al. Bad exposures 17,811 1,143 9,147 23,501 155 597
- of which: forborne exposures 369
A.2 Unlikely to pay 98,323 7,255 27,167 10,947 2,465 1,274
- of which: forborne exposures 118
A.3 Impaired past due exposures 26,147 193 7 5 16,021 157 7,767 85
- of which: forborne exposures
A.4 Unimpaired exposures 1,866,533 4,099 90,207 1,538 9 298,562 1,768| 950,635 1,805
- of which: forborne exposures 7
TOTAL (A) 2,008,815 12,690| 90,213 1,538 14 350,896| 36,373 961,023 3,761
B. Off-statement of financial position loans and receivables - - - - -
B.1 Impaired exposures 3,250 - 10 7,139 - - -
B.2 Unimpaired exposures 220,610 -| 109,919 10 117,014 26 2,614 -
TOTAL (B) 223,860 109,919 20 124,152 26 2,614
TOTAL (A+B) AT 31.12.2020 2,232,675 12,690| 200,132 1,538 34 475,049| 36,399 963,637 3,761
TOTAL (A+B) AT 31.12.2019 2,409,171 9,903 | 193,380 571 12 -\ 388,287 29,923| 849,234) 3,338

B.2 Breakdown by geographical segment of on- and off-statement of financial position loans and receivables with

customers
OTHER
ITALY EUROPEAN [AMERICA
COUNTRIES

€ c y s € |c b= = e |c

> Q =} [ > 5} =1 [} S [0}
2 EE | 2 |EB| 2 |EE 2 g5 2|8

= = = = > |= > = -

- © f © f © e © = ©

8 e S ke S |& S |& | 8|k
A. On-statement of financial position loans and receivables - - - - - - - - - -
A.1 Bad exposures 27,113 25,161 - - - - - - - -
A.2 Unlikely to pay 127,955 19,476 - - - - - - - -
A.3 Impaired past due exposures 49,942 435 - - - - - - - -
A.4 Unimpaired exposures 3,139,414 7,452 62,974|1,816| 2,754| 17| 533 3| 261 2
Total (A) 3,344,425 52,524 62,974 (1,816| 2,754| 17 533 3| 261 2
B. Off-statement of financial position loans and receivables - - - - - - - - - -
B.1 Impaired exposures 10,389 - - - - - - - - -
B.2 Unimpaired exposures 436,503 10 11,172 - - -1 2,500| 16 - -
Total (B) 446,892 10 11,172 - - -1 2,500| 16 - -
Total (A+B) at 31.12.2020 3,791,317 52,534 74,147 |1,816| 2,754 17| 3,034 19| 261 2
Total (A+B) at 31.12.2019 3,779,986 43,019 58,947} 198) 1,094 4 - -, 46 -
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B.3 Breakdown by geographical segment of on- and off-statement of financial position loans and receivables with

OTHER
ITALY EUROPEAN |AMERICA ASIA
COUNTRIES

banks

€ t i = € | £ |t € |
= © = © = © S © <
8 2 3] e S |e S | | 8|8
A. On-statement of financial position loans and receivables
A.1 Bad exposures - - - - - - - - .
A.2 Unlikely to pay - - - - - - - - -
A.3 Impaired past due exposures - - - - - - - - .
A.4 Unimpaired exposures 90,434 20 - - - - - - .
Total (A) 90,434 20 - - - - - - -
B. Off-statement of financial position loans and receivables
B.1 Impaired exposures - - - - - - - - -
B.2 Unimpaired exposures 2,446 - - - - - - - -
Total (B) 2,446 - - . - - . . -
Total (A+B) at 31.12.2020 92,880 20 - - - - - - -
Total (A+B) at 31.12.2019 83,448 9 - - - - - - -
(& ANEEZAN NN\ ~— A A

B.4 Large exposures

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank’s large exposures are as follows:
a) Carrying amount € 1,851,717 (in thousands)
b) Weighted value € 156,036 (in thousands)

c¢) No. of positions 15.
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C. SECURITISATION TRANSACTIONS

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

For the qualitative aspects, please refer to the contents of the Directors’ Report herein.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE
The following table details the amounts of the junior and senior tranches issued by the special purpose vehicle and

repurchased by Banca Sistema, and the loan granted to the special purpose vehicle for € 14.4 million.

C.2 Exposures deriving from the main "third-party" securitisation transactions broken down by type of asset securitised

and by type of exposure

ON-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION GUARANTEES ISSUED m

+— +— — -+ +— — +— — +—
o oy oy o o c o o o
3 +— U > +— U > +— U ] +— U >3 +— >3 +— N ] +— N > +— U >3 +—
g S-S g S-S g S-S g S-S g S-S g S< g S g S-S g S-S
© © © © © © © © ©
© Eo| © |Eoo © Ew|l © |[Ew| © |[Ex| © |Eoo © Eo| © |[Eow| © |[Ewm
w =2 wl =% w =2 w|=2] w =3 w5 w |Sa| w =3 o =9
© © © © © © © © ©
; a3 ; a3 ; a3 ; a3 ; aQ ; sy ; ad ; a3 ; a3y
S |ES| £ |ES| £ |ES| £ |ES| £ |ES| £ |ES| © |ES| £ |ES| T |ES
© - © - © - © - © - © - © - © - © -
(@] (@] (@] (@] (@] (@] (@] (@] (@]
BS IVA SPV S.r.l. 1,213 | - - - | 2,353 - - - - - - - 14,427 - _ - - -
securitisation

D. TRANSFERS

A. Financial assets transferred and not derecognised

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

The financial assets transferred and not derecognised refer to Italian government securities used for repurchase
agreements. Said financial assets are classified in the financial statements among the available-for-sale financial
assets, while the repurchase agreement loan is predominantly presented in due to customers. As a last resort the

financial assets transferred and not derecognised comprise trade receivables used for loan transactions in the ECB
(Abaco).
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F. MODELS FOR THE MEASUREMENT OF CREDIT RISK

( SECTION 2 - MARKET RISK )

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Banca

Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully reported here.

2.1 Interest rate risk and price risk - regulatory trading

portfolio

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.

2.2 Interest rate risk and price risk - Banking Book

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A. General aspects, management procedures and methods

of measuring the interest rate risk and the price risk

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
the Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully

reported here.
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. Banking book: Breakdown by residual term (by repricing date) of financial assets and liabilities

Currency of denomination: Euro

Ve

N\

Ve

Y

Yfrom more Y from more Y from more Y from more Y
on demand | UP to3 than 3 than 6 [than 1 year| than5 |more than Open
months  |months up |months up upto |yearsupto | 10 years term
0 6 months| to 1 year 5 years 10 years
1. Assets 1,122,384 | 234,562 | 313,386 | 285,091 |1,172,041 | 373,878 38
1.1 Debt instruments - -| 275,892 | 193,779 | 406,671 | 403,542 -
- with early repayment option - - - - -
- other - -| 275,892 | 193,779 | 406,671 3,566 -
1.2 Financing to banks 46,997 | 40,303 1 3 1 - -
1.3 Financing to customers 1,075,387 | 194,259 37,493 91,309 | 765,369 | 370,312 38
- current accounts 62,705 - - - - - -
- other financing 1,012,682 | 194,259 37,493 91,309 | 765,369 | 370,310 38
- with early repayment option 122,613 91,058 37,053 90,739 | 592,586 | 334,907 38
- other 890,069 | 103,202 440 570 | 172,783 35,404 -
2. Liabilities 660,132 | 607,827 | 230,031 | 683,752 | 892,322 | 136,523 44
2.1 Due to customers 659,953 | 493,300 | 107,529 | 485,307 | 388,928 | 118,480 44
- current accounts 654,953 | 246,203 | 104,809 | 474,361 | 350,921 24,584 44
- other payables 5,000 | 247,097 2,720 10,946 38,006 93,896 -
- with early repayment option - - - - - - -
- other 5,000 | 247,097 2,720 10,946 38,006 93,896 -
2.2 Due to banks 178 95,000 | 30,000 | 198,446 | 495,377 - -
- current accounts - - - - - - -
- other payables 178 | 95,000 | 30,000 | 198,446 | 495,377 -
2.3 Debt instruments -| 19,527 | 92,502 - 8,018 | 18,043 -
- with early repayment option -| 19,527 | 92,502 - -| 18,043 -
- other - - - - 8,018 -
2.4 Other liabilities - - - - -
- with early repayment option - - - - -
- other - - - - -
3. Financial derivatives -| 27,996 2,113 3,536 | 19,767 1,279 102
3.1 With underlying security - - - - -
- Options - - - - -
+ long positions - - - - -
+ short positions - - - - -
- Other derivatives - - - - -
+ long positions - - - - -
+ short positions - - - - -
3.2 Without underlying security - 27,996 2,113 3,636 19,767 1,279 102
- Options - 27,996 2,113 3,636 19,767 1,279 102
+ long positions - 600 2,113 3,636 19,767 1,279 102
+ short positions -1 27,3% - - -
- Other derivatives -
+ long positions - - - - -
+ short positions - - - - -
4. Other off-statement of financial position transactions - - - -
+ long positions - - - - -
+ short positions S U\ ) S U\ ) U \
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2.3 Currency risk

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A. General aspects, management processes and methods of measuring the currency risk

All items are in Euro, except for the security in the HTCS portfolio. The currency risk is limited due to the size of the

investment.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. Breakdown of assets, liabilities and derivatives by currency of denomination

us
DOLLARS

UK
POUNDS

YEN

CANADIAN
DOLLARS

SWISS
FRANCS

OTHER
CURRENCIES

A. Financial assets

618

A.1 Debt instruments

A.2 Equity instruments

618

A.3 Financing to banks

A.4 Financing to customers

A.5 Other financial assets

B. Other assets

C. Financial liabilities

C.1 Due to banks

C.2 Due to customers

C.3 Debt instruments

C.4 Other financial liabilities

D. Other liabilities

E. Financial derivatives

- Options

+ long positions

+ short positions

- Other derivatives

+ long positions

+ short positions

Total assets

618

Total liabilities

Difference (+/-)

618

The amount refers to the Axactor shares held by the Bank partly in the Held to Collect and Sell (HTCS) portfolio. They

are listed securities traded in Norwegian krone.
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[ SECTION 3 - DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING POLICIES J

3.1 Derivatives held for trading

A. Financial derivatives

At 31 December 2020 no amount was recognised for this item.

B. Credit derivatives

At 31 December 2020 no amount was recognised for this item.

3.2 Hedge Accounting

The Bank did not perform any such transactions in 2020.

3.3 Other disclosure of derivatives (held for trading and hedging)

At 31 December 2020 there were no such cases.

( SECTION 4 - LIQUIDITY RISK )

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A. General aspects, management processes and methods of measuring the liquidity risk

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the

Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully reported here.
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. Breakdown of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual term

( Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \
from more | from more | from more | from more | from more | from more | from more
on demand than 1 day | than7 than 15 than 1 than 3 than 6 |than 1 year over Open
up to days up to | days up to | month up | months up | months up up to 5 years term
7 days 15 days 1 month |to 3 months |to 6 months| to 1 year 5 years
A. Assets 1,233,738 5,546 837 23,039 74,573 | 339,746 | 316,307 |1,054,511 | 328,767 40,269
A.1 Government securities - - 28 - 21| 265231 | 192961 | 415,192 - -
A.2 Other debt instruments - - - 64 - 64 128 3,129 2,609 -
A.3 OEIC units - - - - - - - - - -
A.4 Financing 1,233,738 5,546 809 22,975 74,552 74451 | 123,219 | 636,190 | 326,158 40,269
- banks 47,015 - - 34 1 1 3 1 - 40,269
- customers 1,186,723 5,546 809 22,941 74,551 74450 | 123,216 | 636,189 | 326,158 -
B. Liabilities 652,893 | 253,506 35,547 25,865 | 274,019 | 231,257 | 688,014 | 884,304 | 164,052 -
B.1 Deposits and current accounts 647,892 8,156 35,405 25807 | 272,081 | 135,090 | 477,307 | 350,921 24,628 -
- banks 178 30,000 15,000 50,000 | 30,000 - - - -
- customers 647,714 8,156 5,405 10,807 | 222,081 | 105,090 | 477,307 | 350,921 24,628 -
B.2 Debt instruments - - - - 390 93,447 1,316 - 45,500 -
B.3 Other liabilities 5,000 | 245,350 142 58 1,547 2,720 | 209,391 | 533,383 93,923 -
C. Off-statement of financial position
79,720 - 58 9 - 56 4,358 20 -
transactions
C.1 Financial derivatives with exchange
of principal ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.2 Financial derivatives without exchange
of principal _ _ _ _ _ _ — _ ) —
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.3 Deposits and financing to be received - - - - - - - - - -
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.4 Irrevocable commitments to disburse funds| 77,273 - - 58 - - 56 119 - -
- long positions 38,520 - - 58 - - 56 119 - -
- short positions 38,753 - - - - - - - - -
C.5 Financial guarantees issued 2,446 - - - - - - - - -
C.6 Financial guarantees received - - - - - - - - - -
C.7 Credit derivatives with exchange of principal - - - - - - - - - -
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions - - - - - - - - - -
C.8 Credit derivatives without exchange
of principal _ - _ _ ) _ ) ) _ _
- long positions - - - - - - - - - -
- short positions \ A A A A A A “A A } i}
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( SECTION 5 - OPERATIONAL RISKS )

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the

Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully reported here.

A. General aspects, management processes and methods of measuring operational risk
Reference should be made to the paragraph in Part E of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the

Banca Sistema Group, which is deemed to be fully reported here.

PART F - INFORMATION ON EQUITY

( SECTION 1 - BANK EQUITY j

A. QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

The objectives pursued in the Bank's equity management are inspired by the prudential supervisory provisions and are
oriented towards maintaining adequate levels of capitalisation to take on risks typical to credit positions.
The income allocation policy aims to strengthen the Bank's capital with special emphasis on common equity, to the

prudent distribution of the operating results, and to guaranteeing a correct balance of the financial position.
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B. QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE
B.1 Bank equity: breakdown

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

1 Share capital 9,651 9,651
2 Share premium 39,100 39,100
3 Reserves 123,800 100,873
- income-related 123,328 100,868

a) legal 1,930 1,930

b) established under the Articles of Association - -

c) treasury shares - ;

d) other 200 200
- other 121,198 98,738
3.bis Interim dividends (-) 471 5

4 Equity instruments - ,

5 (Treasury shares) (234) (234)
6 Valuation reserves 1,386 279
- Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 206 154

- Hedging of equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income - -

- Financial assets (other than equity instruments) measured at fair value through othed,416 324

comprehensive income

- Property and equipment - -

- Intangible assets - }

- Hedges of foreign investments - -

- Cash flow hedges - -

- Hedging instruments (non-designated elements) - -

- Exchange rate gains (losses) - -

- Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups - -

- Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (changes in own credit rating) - -

- Net actuarial losses on defined benefit pension plans (235) (199)

- Shares of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investees - -

- Special revaluation laws - -
7 Profit for the year 25,746 29,956
Total 199,448 179,625

-306-



B.2 Valuation reserves for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: breakdown

TOTAL AT TOTAL AT
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Positive | Negative | Positive | Negative
reserve | reserve | reserve | reserve
1. Debt instruments 1,771 467 -
2. Equity instruments - 11 -
3. Financing - - -
Total 1,771 478 -
. I\ I\, J

B.3 Valuation reserves for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: changes

. N
instrDuentzEents instEr?Jl;llﬂJgnts Financing
1. Opening balance 467 11 -
2. Increases 2,788 181 -
2.1 Fair value gains - - -
2.2 Impairment losses due to credit risk 206 X -
2.3 Reclassifications of negative reserves to profit or loss on sale - X -
2.4 Transfers to other equity items (equity instruments) - - -
2.5 Other increases 2,582 181 -
3. Decreases 1,278 547 -
3.1 Fair value losses - 547 -
3.2 Impairment gains due to credit risk - - -
3.3 Reclassifications of positive reserves to profit or loss: on sale 403 X
2.4 Transfers to other equity items (equity instruments - - -
2.5 Other decreases 875 - -
4. Closing balance . 1,977A (355)A -
B.4 Valuation reserves related to defined benefit plans: changes
POST-
EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS
A. Opening balance (199)
B. Increases 14
B.1 Actuarial gains -
B.2 Other increases 14
C. Decreases 50
C.1 Actuarial losses 50
C.2 Other decreases -
D. Closing balance (235)
Total (235)
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SECTION 2 - OWN FUNDS AND CAPITAL RATIOS )

2.1 Own funds
A. QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Own funds, risk-weighted assets and solvency ratios as at
31 December 2020 were determined based on the new
regulation, harmonised for Banks, contained in Directive
2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and in Regulation (EU) 575/2013
(CRR) of 26 June 2013, that transpose in the European
Union the standards defined by the Basel Committee on

Banking Supervision (the so-called Basel 3 framework),

Reconciliation of Bank equity and Own Funds

and based upon Bank of Italy Circulars no. 285 and no.
286 (enacted in 2013), and the update of Circular no. 154.
The Banca Sistema Group has not availed itself of the
option provided for by Article 473 bis of Regulation (EU)
575/2013 (CRR), which concerns the transitional measures
aimed at mitigating the impact of the introduction of IFRS
9.

(31.12.2020 |
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 199,448
Dividends distributed and other foreseeable expenses (6,434)
Equity assuming dividends are distributed to shareholders 193,015
Regulatory adjustments (4,648)
- Commitment to repurchase treasury shares (283)
- Deduction of intangible assets (3,932)
- Prudential filter for Prudent Valuation (1) (433)
- Other adjustments -
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 188,367
Security issued by Banca Sistema 8,000
Additional Tier 1 Capital 8,000
Securities issued by Banca Sistema (2) 37,500
Tier 2 Capital 37,500
Total Own Funds 233,867

(1) Regulatory filter for additional valuation adjustments (AVA) to the prudential valuation under the provisions of Regulation 2016/101.

(2) Included in the item “Financial liabilities at amortised cost”.
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A. QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

31.12.2020

A. Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) before application of prudential filters 192,299
of which CET 1 instruments covered by transitional measures -

B. CET1 prudential filters (+/-) -
C. CET1 including items to be deducted and the effects of the transitional regime (A+/-B) 192,299
D. Items to be deducted from CET1 3,932
E. Transitional regime - Impact on CET (+/-) -
F. Total Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) (C-D+/-E) 188,367
G. Additional Tier 1 (AT1) including items to be deducted and the effects of the transitional regime 8,000
of which AT1 instruments covered by transitional measures -

H. ltems to be deducted from AT1 -
|. Transitional regime - Impact on AT1 (+/-) -
L. Total Additional Tier 1 (AT1) (G-H+/-1) 8,000
M. Tier 2 (T2) including items to be deducted and the effects of the transitional regime 37,500
of which T2 instruments covered by transitional measures -

N. ltems to be deducted from T2 -
0. Transitional regime - Impact on T2 (+/-) -
P. Total Tier 2 (T2) (M-N+/-0) 37,500

Q. Total Own Funds (F+L+P)
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2.2 Capital adequacy

A. QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

The Own Funds totalled € 234 million, against risk-

weighted assets of € 1,289 million, derived almost

exclusively from credit risk.

B. QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

UNWEIGHTED AMOUNTS

As at 31 December 2020, Banca Sistema had a CET1
capital ratio equal to 14.6%, a Tier 1 capital ratio equal to

15.2% and a Total capital ratio of 18.1%.

WEIGHTED AMOUNTS/
REQUIREMENTS

31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019 | 31.12.2020 | 31.12.2019

A. EXPOSURES - - - -
A.1 Credit and counterparty risk 4,098,042 4,410,113 1,116,262 1,231,519
1. Standardised approach 4,098,042 | 4,410,113 1,116,262 1,231,519

2. Internal ratings based approach - - - -

2.1 Basic - - - -

2.2 Advanced - - - -

3. Securitisations - - - -
B. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS - -
B.1 Credit and counterparty risk 89,301 98,522
B.2 Credit assessment adjustment risk - 3
B.3 Settlement risk - -
B.4 Market risk - -
1. Standard approach - -

2. Internal models - -

3. Concentration risk - -

B.5 Operational risk 13,825 13,508
1. Basic indicator approach 13,825 13,508

2. Standardised approach - -

3. Advanced measurement approach - -

B.6 Other calculation elements - -
B.7 Total prudential requirements 103,126 112,030
C. EXPOSURES AND CAPITAL RATIOS 1,289,079 1,400,404
C.1 Risk-weighted assets 1,289,079 1,317,043
C.2 CET1 capital/risk-weighted assets (CET1 Capital Ratio) 14.6% 11.0%
C.3 Tier 1 capital/risk-weighted assets (Tier 1 Capital Ratio) 15.2% 12.5%
C.4 Total Own Funds/risk-weighted assets (Total Capital Ratio) 18.1% 15.2%
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PART G - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Section 1 - Transactions performed in the year

On 13 July 2020 the acquisition of the former Intesa Sanpaolo collateralised lending business unit was completed.

As this is a business unit, there are no income statement data for the months prior to the transaction.

Key information concerning this transaction is summarised below:

PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

In thousands of Euro

Purchase price 34,000
Price adjustment (991)
Final price (A) 33,009
Adjusted Business Unit “Equity” (B) 3,209
Residual value to be allocated (A+B) 29,800
Loans and receivables with customers (1,224)
Post-employment benefits (166)
Property and equipment 25
Allocation to goodwill 28,435

The final price amounted to € 33 million following the
change in the business unit’s imbalance (excess value)
between the closing date and the signing date of the
transaction, and an adjustment recognised by the
counterparty in relation to the valuation of the loans and

receivables. As required by IFRS 3, this excess value

was allocated to the financial statements items that had
a difference in fair value with respect to their carrying
amount and, in particular, to the item “Loans and
receivables with customers”, leaving the unallocated
balance under goodwill, which is subject to an annual

impairment test.

Section 2 - Transactions performed after the end of the year

No transactions to report.

Section 3 - Retrospective adjustments

No transactions to report.
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PART H - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions including the relevant
authorisation and disclosure procedures, are governed
by the “Procedure governing related party transactions”
approved by the Board of Directors and published on the
internet site of Banca Sistema S.p.A.

Transactions between Group companies and related
parties were carried out in the interests of the Bank,
including within the scope of ordinary operations;
these transactions were carried out in accordance with
market conditions and, in any event, on the basis of
mutual financial advantage and in compliance with all
procedures.

With respect to transactions with parties who exercise
management and control functions in accordance with

article 136 of the Consolidated Law on Banking, it should

be noted that they, where applicable, have been included

in the Board of Directors’ resolutions and received

approval from the Board of Statutory Auditors, subject

to compliance with the obligations provided under the

[talian Civil Code with respect to matters relating to the

conflict of interest of directors.

Pursuant to IAS 24, the related parties of Banca Sistema

include:

= shareholders with significant influence;

= companies belonging to the banking Group;

= companies subject to significant influence;

= key management personnel;

= the close relatives of key management personnel and
the companies controlled by (or connected with) such

personnel or their close relatives.

DISCLOSURE ON THE REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The following data show the remuneration of key management personnel, as per IAS 24 and Bank of Italy Circular no.

262 of 22 December 2005 as subsequently updated, which requires the inclusion of the members of the Board of

Statutory Auditors.

BOARD OF
In thousands of Euro DﬁgégTDo%Fs SATL'JABIUTTOORRSY
Remuneration to Board of Directors and Board of Statutory Auditors 2,089 166 - 2,255
Short-term benefits for employees 0 - 2,574 2,574
Post-employment benefits 85 - 213 298
Other long-term benefits 122 - 82 204
Termination benefits - - - -
Share-based payments 220 - 45 265
Total 2,516 166 2,914 5,596
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DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following table shows the assets, liabilities, guarantees and commitments as at 31 December 2020, differentiated

by type of related party with an indication of the impact on each individual caption.

DIRECTORS, BOARD OF

IRCTSUC AT SUBSIDIARIES 5 ATUTORY AUDITORS E%L?rfgslj CARTION
PERSONNEL
Loans and receivables with customers 31,599 404 981 1.1%
Due to customers - 1,511 10,840 0.6%
Other liabilities 115 - - 0.1%

The following table indicates the costs and income for 2020, differentiated by type of related party.

DIRECTORS, BOARD OF

OTHER

STATUTORY AUDITORS % OF

In thousands of Euro SUBSIDIARIES AND KEY MANAGEMENT RI;/EIF_%AFTESD CAPTION
PERSONNEL
Interest income 710 - - 0.7%
Interest expense 6 20 40 0.3%
Other administrative expenses 399 - - 1.6%
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The following tables set forth the details of each related party:

AMOUNT PERCENTAGE
(Thousands of Euro) (%)
ASSETS 31,599 0.85%
Loans and receivables with customers
ProntoPegno S.p.A. 17,033 0.46%
Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.1. 12,718 0.34%
Speciality Finance Trust Holdings Ltd 1,848 0.05%
LIABILITIES 9,834 0.26%
Due to customers
Shareholders - SGBS 600 0.03%
Shareholders - Fondazione CR Alessandria 7,801 0.36%
Shareholders - Fondazione Sicilia 1,318 0.06%
Other liabilities
Speciality Finance Trust Holdings Ltd
ProntoPegno S.p.A. 34 0.02%
Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.1. 81 0.06%
AMOUNT PERCENTAGE
(Thousands of Euro) (%)
INCOME 710 0.72%
Interest income
Speciality Finance Trust Holdings Ltd 78 0.08%
ProntoPegno S.p.A. 225 0.23%
Largo Augusto Servizi e Sviluppo S.r.I. 407 0.41%
COSTS 426 0.86%
Interest expense
Shareholders - SGBS 3 0.01%
Shareholders - Fondazione Sicilia 13 0.06%
Shareholders - Fondazione CR Alessandria 5 0.02%
ProntoPegno S.p.A. 6 0.03%
Other administrative expenses
ProntoPegno S.p.A. 399 1.56%
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PART | - SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

As indicated in the 2020 Policy Document, Banca
Sistema, having total assets of less than € 4 billion at both
separate and consolidated levels, could be considered to
be a “smaller bank”. However, in virtue of its status as a
listed company, and of the EBA guidelines, the Bank has
opted to apply the rules relating to “medium size” banks
under Circular 285, Title 1V, Chapter 2.

As a medium size bank, therefore, and in accordance
with the principle of proportionality, it shall apply
the provisions relating to key personnel subject to
percentages and to deferral and retention periods that
may be reduced to less than half of those set out in the
applicable legislation, but in doing so it shall weigh up
a prudential alignment criterion also in relation to the
provisions of the Code of Conduct, for longer deferral in
the case of members of the Board of Directors and key
management personnel, that are thus extended to all
Key Personnel.
The Bank also indicates 25% of average total
remuneration of Italian high earners, as indicated in the
latest EBA report published in 2019 and relating to data
processed at the end of 2017, as being a particularly
high level of variable remuneration. In 2020, the variable
component of remuneration for “key personnel” will be
paid as follows upon approval of the financial statements:
= for amounts equal to or lower than € 30,000,

variable remuneration shall be paid entirely up-

Disclosure of the fees paid to the independent auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Art. 149 duodecies of the

Consob Issuers’ Regulations, the information regarding

the fees paid to the independent auditors BDO ltalia

S.p.A. and to the companies included in the same

network is reported below for the following services:

= Audit services that include:

= The audit of the annual accounts, for the purpose of
expressing an opinion thereon.

* The audit of the interim accounts.

= Certification services that include tasks whereby
the auditor evaluates a specific element, the

determination of which is performed by another

front and in cash, subject to the necessary approval
of the Board of Directors and of the Shareholders’
Meeting provided for in these Policies;
= for amounts greater than € 30,000 and up to
€ 425,000, 70% of the variable remuneration shall
be paid up-front (50% in cash and 50% in shares
of the Bank), and the remaining 30% (50% in cash
and 50% in shares of the Bank) shall be deferred
and paid at the end of the three-year deferral period;
= for amounts greater than € 425,000, 60% of the
variable remuneration shall be paid up-front (50%
in cash and 50% in shares of the Bank) and the
remaining 40% (24% in cash and 76% in shares of
the Bank) shall be deferred and paid at the end of
the three-year deferral period.
The aforesaid limits and parameters are established by
the Bank, even though, in accordance with the principles
of proportionality set out in Paragraph 7 of Circular
285, Title 1V, Chapter 2 - General provisions, governing
medium-sized banks, more flexible, less complex terms
and proportions may be established in regard to the
deferral and balancing of shares and cash.
Please see Annex 3 “Bonus Payment Regulation”,
and insofar as it applies, the Information Document
published in the ‘Governance’ section of the website
www.bancasistema.it, regarding the calculation of the

Bank shares to be assigned and the applicable provisions.

party who is responsible thereof, through appropriate
criteria, in order to express a conclusion that provides
the recipient party with a degree of confidence
concerning said specific element.
= Tax advisory services.
= Other services.
The fees presented in the table, pertaining to 2020,
are those contracted, including any index-linking (but
do not include out-of-pocket expenses, any supervisory
contribution and VAT).
They do not include, in accordance with the cited
provision, the fees paid to any secondary auditors or to

parties of the respective networks.
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Type of services Entity prov.ldlng Entity rece.lvmg Remuneration
the service the service
Audit of the separate financial statements and interim reports | BDO ltalia S.p.A. Banca Sistema S.p.A. 180
Other certifications BDO Italia S.p.A. Banca Sistema S.p.A. 31
. /\ /\. J

PART L - SEGMENT REPORTING

For the purposes of segment reporting as per IFRS 8, the income statement is broken down by segment as follows.

Breakdown by segment: income statement for 2020

e - Y Y Y BANCA
Income statement (€,000) Fa_c t.°f'“g CQ Corporate SISTEMA
Division Division Centre
TOTAL
Net interest income 53,812 17,366 381 71,559
Net fee and commission income (expense) 15,456 (744) 36 14,747
Dividends 141 82 4 227
Net trading income 23 14 19 56
Gain from sales or repurchases of financial assets/liabilities 5,949 3,492 90 9,531
Total income 75,381 20,210 529 96,120
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables (9,748) (405) (2,328) (12,481)
Net financial income (expense) 65,633 19,805 (1,799) 83,639
|\ J\. J\. N J
Breakdown by segment: statement of financial position data as at 31 December 2020
e Y Y Y
; BANCA
Statement of Financial Position (€,000) Fa_ct_orlng CQ Corporate SISTEMA
Division Division Centre TOTAL
Financial assets (HTS and HTCS) 272,764 158,202 - 430,966
Loans and receivables with banks 35,999 54,434 - 90,434
Loans and receivables with customers 1,779,674 | 1,128,922 69,009 | 2,977,605
Loans and receivables with customers - loans 1,496,215 964,516 69,009 | 2,529,741
Loans and receivables with customers - debt instruments 283,459 164,405 - 447,864
Due to banks - - 816,727 816,727
Due to customers 71,654 - 12,091,299 | 2,162,953
|\ J\. J\. N J
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Following the review of the internal model which was =

completed at the end of the first quarter, this segment

reporting was amended to include the following divisions: ~ *®

=  Factoring Division, which includes the business
segment related to the origination of trade and
tax receivables with and without recourse and the
management and recovery of default interest. In
addition, the division includes the business segment
related to the origination of state-guaranteed loans
to SMEs disbursed to factoring customers and the
management and recovery of receivables on behalf
of third parties;

=  CQ Division, which includes the business segment

related to the purchase of salary- and pension-

Collateralised Lending Division, which includes the
business segment related to collateral-backed loans;
Corporate Division, which includes activities
related to the management of the Group’s financial
resources and costs/income in support of the
business activities. In particular, the cost of funding
managed in the central treasury pool is allocated to
the divisions via an internal transfer rate (“ITR”),
while income from the management of the securities
portfolio and income from liquidity management (the
result of asset and liability management activities) is
allocated entirely to the business divisions through a
pre-defined set of drivers. The division also includes

income from the management of SME loan run-offs.

backed loans (CQS/CQP) portfolios and salary- and  The secondary disclosure by geographical segment has

pension-backed loans disbursed through the direct been omitted as immaterial, since the customers are

channel; mainly concentrated in the domestic market.

-317-



PART M - LEASE DISCLOSURE

( SECTION 1 - LESSEE )

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

The Bank has contracts that fall within the scope of
IFRS 16 attributable to the following categories:

= Property used for business and personal purposes;
= Cars.

At 31 December 2020, there were 51 leases, 7 of which
were property leases for a total right of use value of € 4.4
million, while 44 were for cars, for a total right of use
value of € 0.7 million.

Property leases, which refer to lease payments for
buildings used for business purposes such as offices and
for personal use, have terms exceeding 12 months and

typically have renewal and termination options that may

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

be exercised by the lessor and the lessee as provided for
by law.

Contracts referring to other leases are long-term leases
for cars which are generally used exclusively by the
employees to whom they are assigned. These contracts
have a maximum term of 5 years with monthly lease
payments, no renewal option, and no option to purchase
the asset.

Contracts with a term of less than 12 months or those
for which the replacement value of the individual leased
asset is low, i.e. less than € 20 thousand, are excluded

from the application of the standard.

The following table provides a summary of the Statement of Financial Position items relating to leases; for further

information, please refer to Part B of the notes to the financial statements:

- 2V \
Type of contract Right(*o)f use IiaLbei?ii?es
Property lease payments 4,357,396 4,409,082
Long-term car lease 712,479 716,784
Total 5,069,875 | 5,125,866 )

(*) This is the right of use value net of accumulated depreciation.

The following table provides a summary of the Income Statement items relating to leases; for further information, please

refer to Part B of the notes to the financial statements:

Net impairment )
Type of contract é:tir::; losses on property
P and equipment
Property lease payments 57,080 1,152,209
Long-term car lease 8,655 345,562
Total 65,735 1,497,771
AN J
( SECTION 2 - LESSOR )

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

At the reporting date, the Bank does not engage in leases as a lessor.
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STATEMENTS ON THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 81-TER OF CONSOB REGULATION

NO. 11971 OF 14 MAY 1999 AS AMENDED AND SUPPLEMENTED

1. The undersigned, Gianluca Garbi, CEO, and
Alexander Muz, Manager in charge of financial

reporting of Banca Sistema S.p.A., hereby state,

having taken into account the provisions of Art. 3.

154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree
no. 58 of 24 February 1998:
= the suitability as regards the characteristics of the
bank and
= the effective application of the administrative
and accounting procedures for the drafting of the
separate financial statements during 2020.
2. Reference model
The suitability of the administrative and accounting
procedures for the drafting of the separate financial
statements at 31 December 2020 was assessed
based on an internal model defined by Banca Sistema
S.p.A. that was designed in a manner consistent
with the framework developed by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

(COSO0) and the Control Objectives for IT and Related

Milan, 29 March 2021

Gianluca Garbi

Chief Executive Officer
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Technology (COBIT) framework, which represent
the reference standards for the internal control system
generally accepted on an international level.

Moreover, the undersigned hereby state that:

3.1 the separate financial statements:

a) were drafted in accordance with the applicable
international accounting standards endorsed by
the European Union, pursuant to Regulation (EC)
no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 19 July 2002;

b) match the accounting books and records;

c) are suitable for providing a true and fair view of
the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the issuer.

3.2 The Directors’ report includes a reliable analysis
of business performance and results, as well as of
the position of the issuer, together with a
description of the main risks and uncertainties to

which it is exposed.

Alexander Muz

Manager in charge of financial
reporting
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RELAZIONE DEL COLLEGIO SINDACALE
ALL’ASSEMBLEA DEGLI AZIONISTI CONVOCATA PER L’APPROVAZIONE DEL
BILANCIO CHIUSO AL 31 DICEMBRE 2020

Al SENSI DELL’ART. 153 D.LGS. 58/1998 e 2429 CODICE CIVILE

Askok

Parte prima: introduzione
Signori Azionisti di Banca Sistema S.p.A. (“Banca”),

con la presente relazione Vi riferiamo, ai sensi dell’articolo 153 del D.Lgs. 58/1998 e
dell’articolo 2429 del Codice civile, in ordine all’attivita di vigilanza svolta nel corso dell’anno
solare (e, per completezza, sui fatti piu rilevanti successivi alla chiusura dell’esercizio),

formulando altresi proposte in ordine al bilancio e alla sua approvazione.

La presente relazione € stata approvata collegialmente ed in tempo utile per il suo deposito ai

sensi di legge.

Nel corso dell’esercizio 2020, in conformita alle disposizioni di legge e di Statuto, abbiamo
vigilato sull’osservanza della legge, dei regolamenti e dello Statuto, che Vi confermiamo essere
stati rispettati; sui principi di corretta amministrazione; sull’adeguatezza e funzionamento
dell’assetto organizzativo nonché sull’adeguatezza e funzionamento dell’assetto amministrativo

e contabile, cosi come sugli altri atti e fatti previsti dalla legge.

Abbiamo esaminato il progetto di bilancio d’esercizio di Banca Sistema S.p.A. al 31 dicembre
2020 (il “Bilancio”), composto dallo Stato Patrimoniale, dal Conto Economico, dal Prospetto
della Redditivita complessiva, dal Prospetto delle variazioni di Patrimonio Netto, dal
Rendiconto Finanziario ¢ dalla Nota Integrativa, corredato dalla Relazione sulla Gestione e dai

prospetti informativi complementari, portante un utile di esercizio di € 25.745.540,65.

I1 Consiglio di Amministrazione, ad esito dell’approvazione del progetto di bilancio avvenuta in
data 11 marzo 2021, ha messo a nostra disposizione il fascicolo nei termini di legge.
Successivamente, in data 29 marzo 2021 il Consiglio d’Amministrazione ha approvato una

riclassificazione tecnico-formale al progetto di bilancio, senza riflessi ai fini del risultato



d’esercizio e sui ratio patrimoniali. La riclassificazione ¢ unicamente volta a dare evidenza
contabile a crediti oggetto di operazioni di cessione - nella misura di euro 5,6 milioni su
complessivi euro 3,7 miliardi di attivo patrimoniale — che non risultano eliminabili
contabilmente. Cio determina un incremento di pari importo della voce “Attivita finanziarie
valutate al costo ammortizzato” e della voce “Passivita finanziarie valutate al costo
ammortizzato”. Le predette operazioni di cessione erano state qualificate, per i medesimi

importi, negli impegni fuori bilancio.

Tra la riunione dedicata alla stesura della relazione al bilancio precedente e fino alla data
odierna il Collegio Sindacale in carica ha tenuto 16 riunioni (inclusa quella relativa alla stesura
della presente relazione), ed ha partecipato a tutte le adunanze del Consiglio d’ Amministrazione
e del Comitato di Controllo Interno e di Gestione Rischi con almeno un componente, come si
puo evincere dalla documentazione a Vostra disposizione nel fascicolo predisposto per 1’odierna

assemblea.

Di tutte le attivita svolte Vi diamo dettagliata informativa nel seguito della presente relazione.

Parte seconda: vigilanza sul rispetto delle leggi e dello Statuto

Nel presente paragrafo vi riferiamo sull’attivita svolta da questo Collegio Sindacale ai sensi

dell’art. 2403 del codice civile.

Nel corso dell’esercizio il Collegio ha vigilato sull’osservanza della legge, dell’atto costitutivo e
sul rispetto dei principi di corretta amministrazione. L’attivita ¢ stata ispirata ai principi di
comportamento del Collegio Sindacale di societa quotate raccomandati dal Consiglio Nazionale

dei Dottori Commercialisti e degli Esperti Contabili.

Oltre alle riunioni sindacali di cui si ¢ scritto precedentemente, nel corso del 2020 il Collegio ha
partecipato alle riunioni degli organi sociali, svoltesi nel rispetto delle norme statutarie,
legislative e regolamentari che ne disciplinano il funzionamento e in virtu delle quali si puo
ragionevolmente assicurare che le deliberazioni adottate sono state conformi alla legge ed allo
Statuto sociale, non sono state manifestamente imprudenti, azzardate o in potenziale conflitto
d’interesse né in contrasto con quelle assunte dall’ Assemblea degli Azionisti o tali che abbiano

potuto compromettere 1’integrita del patrimonio sociale.

Nello svolgimento delle proprie attivita in seno alle riunioni sindacali, il Collegio si € riunito
periodicamente con i responsabili delle principali funzioni interne della Societa (rischio,

compliance, affari legali, affari societari, sistema di controllo interno e audit, underwriting); ha



esaminato i documenti forniti ed effettuato le proprie analisi e valutazioni, riepilogate nei propri
verbali e che non hanno portato all’emersione di elementi in grado di far dubitare del rispetto
della legge, dello Statuto sociale e dei principi di corretta amministrazione; ha analizzato le
operazioni di maggior rilievo economico, finanziario e patrimoniale, verificandone la
conformita alla legge e all’atto costitutivo, giudicandole non manifestamente imprudenti o
azzardate e/o in potenziale conflitto di interessi e/o in contrasto con le delibere assunte
dall’assemblea e/o pregiudizievoli per I’andamento economico, patrimoniale e finanziario della
Banca; ha partecipato a gruppi di lavoro su specifici temi tenendo altresi apposite sedute di
collegio sulle problematiche di maggior rilevanza. 11 Collegio Sindacale ha valutato

positivamente la rispondenza all’interesse sociale per tutte le operazioni esaminate.

Il Collegio Sindacale da atto che nel corso delle riunioni consiliari € nel bilancio sono state
esposte le principali informazioni inerenti i rapporti della Banca con parti correlate. Al riguardo,
il Collegio Sindacale ritiene opportuno richiamare 1’attenzione dei soci sulla lettura dei paragrafi

della Relazione sulla Gestione e della Nota Integrativa in cui tali accadimenti sono descritti.
Fra i fatti di rilievo verificatisi nel 2020, segnaliamo:

e la Banca ha partecipato alla quarta operazione del programma TLTRO III per un
importo pari a 382,99 min beneficiando del tasso ridotto pari a -50 bps nel periodo tra
giugno 2020 e giugno 2021. Le operazioni TLTRO III in essere al 31 dicembre 2020
ammontano a 491,24 min.

e la Banca ha partecipato al programma di aste aggiuntive LTRO per un importo
complessivo pari a 650 mIn al tasso medio pari a -50 bps rimborsato in data 24 giugno
2020.

e la Banca ai fini di contrastare gli effetti del COVID 19 e di adempiere alle norme
emanate dal Governo ha adottato le misure descritte nei Protocolli di Intesa in materia
di sicurezza dei luoghi di lavoro e piu sotto dettagliate (“Protocollo condiviso di
regolamentazione delle misure per il contrasto e il contenimento della diffusione del
virus Covid-19 negli ambienti di lavoro®, siglato il 14 marzo tra le Parti Sociali e il
“Protocollo Condiviso per le Misure di prevenzione, contrasto e contenimento della
diffusione del virus Covid-19 nel settore bancario” siglato il 16 marzo 2020 tra ABI e
le Organizzazioni Sindacali di settore e i loro successivi aggiornamenti).

e a partire dal 23 febbraio 2020 il Comitato di Crisi si € riunito 9 volte per ’esame della
situazione, della normativa di riferimento, per 1’applicazione delle misure di
precauzione e protezione e per garantire la continuita operativa. Inoltre, a partire dal 19

marzo, si sono svolte con frequenza pressoché settimanale apposite riunioni di



aggiornamento tra il Presidente del CdA, I’Amministratore Delegato, il Presidente del
CCIGR, il Presidente del Collegio Sindacale, il Direttore Rischi e il responsabile
ICT/Organizzazione.

con riferimento al diritto del lavoro la Banca ha dato seguito ai provvedimenti
governativi e alle indicazioni provenienti dalle varie autorita

applicazione adeguata e proporzionata del ricorso al Lavoro Agile / Smart Working
nell’ambito di un apposito Regolamento predisposto ad hoc comunicato a tutti
dipendenti, nell’ambito delle facolta sul lavoro agile / smart working (Legge n.
81/2017) concesse dal DPCM del 04.03.2020 e seguenti modificazioni;

agevolazione della fruizione delle ferie (arretrate ¢ non) e dei permessi di banca ore
quale misura di sostegno ai dipendenti;

interventi urgenti di sanificazione di tutte le sedi sul territorio nazionale e adozione di
tutte le misure di sicurezza sanitaria connesse, ivi compresi test epidemiologici
periodici;

in data 23 aprile 2020 ’assemblea straordinaria degli azionisti di Banca Sistema ha
deliberato le modifiche statutarie proposte dal Consiglio di Amministrazione, ovvero: —
la modifica dell’articolo 5 dello statuto sociale di Banca Sistema al fine
dell’introduzione del meccanismo del voto maggiorato in conformita all’art. 127-
quinquies del Testo Unico della Finanza che prevede I’attribuzione di un voto
maggiorato “fino a un massimo di due voti, per ciascuna azione appartenuta al
medesimo soggetto, per un periodo continuativo non inferiore a ventiquattro mesi a
decorrere dalla data di iscrizione” in un apposito elenco che deve essere tenuto
dall’emittente; - la modifica degli artt. §, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14 (13 nuova numerazione), 18
(17 nuova numerazione), ¢ 20 (19 nuova numerazione) dello Statuto Sociale;
abrogazione dell’art. 13 dello Statuto Sociale e conseguente nuova numerazione degli
artt. 14 a 24 dello Statuto Sociale; introduzione del nuovo art. 25 dello Statuto Sociale.
Tali interventi normativi riguardano: (i) 1’eliminazione di clausole riconducibili al
mutato assetto degli azionisti della Banca a seguito della sua quotazione; (ii) le
modifiche alla composizione del Consiglio di Amministrazione e al meccanismo del
voto di lista per 1’elezione sia dei membri del Consiglio di Amministrazione che dei
membri del Collegio Sindacale; (iii) I’adeguamento alle nuove disposizioni in materia
di “quote di genere”; (iv) l’eliminazione di clausole che costituiscono mere
riproposizioni testuali di disposizioni delle Istruzioni di Vigilanza bancaria; (v)
I’introduzione di modifiche di mero coordinamento, correttive di refusi e/o riferimenti,

anche incrociati, errati, nonché funzionali a una maggiore snellezza del testo;(vi) -



I’introduzione di una norma statutaria transitoria per quanto riguarda le disposizioni in
materia di composizione del Consiglio di Amministrazione.

in data 24 giugno 2020 il Gruppo Banca Sistema ha ricevuto 1’autorizzazione di Banca
d’Italia all’acquisizione del ramo d’azienda credito su pegno del Gruppo Intesa
Sanpaolo (di seguito anche il ramo d’azienda “pegno”).

in data 10 luglio 2020 la Banca ha perfezionato I’operazione straordinaria di
acquisizione del ramo di azienda dedicato al credito su pegno di Banca Intesa Sanpaolo
(o “ISP”). L’acquisizione ¢ stata effettuata dalla controllata Pronto Pegno S.p.a. ,
posseduta per il 75% da Banca Sistema e per il 25% dalla Fondazione Cassa di
Risparmio di Cuneo, dalla Fondazione Pisa e dalla Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di
Alessandria

in data 22 giugno 2020 il Parlamento Furopeo ha approvato le modifiche al
Regolamento UE 876/2019 (“CRR 2”), tra cui ’anticipo dell’entrata in vigore della
riduzione della ponderazione del capitale di rischio per i prestiti assistiti dalla cessione
del quinto dello stipendio e della pensione (CQS e CQP) dall’attuale 75% al 35%. La
riduzione della ponderazione, che permette al Gruppo di rafforzare la propria solidita
patrimoniale, ¢ entrata in vigore a partire dal 27 giugno 2020.

in data 29 giugno 2020 Banca Sistema ha reso noto che i soci Societa di Gestione delle
Partecipazioni in Banca Sistema S.r.I. (SGBS), Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di
Alessandria e Fondazione Sicilia hanno rinnovato il Patto Parasociale stipulato il 29
giugno 2018, successivamente modificato il 22 febbraio 2019, con scadenza il 1° luglio
2020. Al Patto Parasociale risultano conferite azioni corrispondenti al 38,41% del
capitale sociale di Banca Sistema. Il nuovo Patto Parasociale ¢ entrato in vigore a
partire dal 2 luglio 2020, con scadenza 1° luglio 2022.

in data 27 novembre 2020 1’assemblea straordinaria degli azionisti di Banca Sistema ha
approvato le ulteriori modifiche statutarie proposte dal Consiglio di Amministrazione,
ovvero: — la modifica dell’art. 5.7, eliminando la parte in cui subordina l'acquisto della
maggiorazione del diritto di voto del socio al ricorrere di una seconda comunicazione,
da parte dell'intermediario presso cui le azioni sono depositate, che attesti il possesso
continuativo delle azioni per il periodo di 24 mesi; — la modifica dell’art. 10.2, nella
parte che pone condizioni quantitative e qualitative con riguardo alla composizione
delle liste dei candidati alla carica di Amministratore, introducendo la possibilita di
eleggere, in particolari circostanze, due amministratori anziché uno dalla lista di
minoranza; — la modifica dell’art. 10.3, introducendo una ulteriore modalita di delibera

di nomina degli Amministratori indipendenti, qualora quelle gia presenti non assicurino



il numero previsto dalla normativa; — I’introduzione del nuovo art. 12.3 che indica, ai
sensi dell’art. 150, comma 1, del TUF, le modalita attraverso cui gli Amministratori e
piu in particolare gli organi delegati riferiscono al Collegio Sindacale sull’attivita
svolta e la conseguente modifica della numerazione degli attuali artt. 12.3 ¢ 12.4 in
12.4¢12.5.

e in data 29 dicembre 2020 la Banca ha sottoscritto il 50% del capitale della societa
spagnola EBNSISTEMA Finance S.L. per un ammontare pari ad Euro 1 milione, in
un’operazione di aumento del capitale della partecipata spagnola. L’altro azionista, con
una partecipazione paritetica del 50%, ¢ la banca spagnola EBN Banco de Negocios
S.A.. L’obiettivo della joint-venture ¢ di sviluppare ’attivita nel segmento factoring
Pubblica Amministrazione nella penisola iberica, con wuna specializzazione
nell’acquisto di crediti sanitari.

11 Collegio sindacale nel corso dell’esercizio ha inoltre svolto la seguente attivita:
e ¢li scambi di corrispondenza con le autoritda di vigilanza in merito ai chiarimenti
richiesti nell’ambito delle ordinarie attivita di controllo;
e iperiodici scambi di informazione con il revisore legale;
e J’incontro con I’Organismo di Vigilanza per lo scambio di informazioni;
e I’approvazione del Documento sulle Politiche di Remunerazione;
e analisi e monitoraggio delle attivita aziendali in coerenza con il Risk Appetite
Framework
e D’incontro con gli organi di governo e di controllo delle societa del gruppo bancario
e verifica adempimenti e procedure antiriciclaggio.
In materia di “fatti di rilievo avvenuti nel corso dell’esercizio” si rinvia comunque al contenuto

della relazione sulla gestione predisposta dagli amministratori.
11 Collegio Sindacale ha rilasciato 1 seguenti pareri ai sensi di legge:

e la proposta motivata per il conferimento dell’incarico di revisione legale dei conti ai
sensi dell’art. 13, co. 1, d.lgs. 27 gennaio 2010, n. 39;
e i pareri per I’approvazione servizi diversi dalla revisione contabile, richiesti dal revisore

legale;
11 Collegio inoltre ha formulato in data 23 giugno 2020 le proprie Considerazioni sul Piano di
Risanamento della Banca nonché in ordine alla relazione, redatta dalla funzione di revisione
interna, relativa ai controlli svolti sulle funzioni operative importanti esternalizzate, alle carenze

eventualmente riscontrate e alle conseguenti azioni correttive adottate.



Infine, ai sensi dell’art. 2408 del c.c. si dichiara che, nel corso del 2020, non € stata ricevuta
alcuna denunzia da parte dei Soci, né esposti di altro tipo, né sono stati riscontrati fatti
censurabili o comunque negativamente rilevanti segnalati dalla Societa di Revisione o da altri,

tali da richiedere la segnalazione alla Banca d’Italia.

Fatti di rilievo successivi alla chiusura dell’esercizio.

In merito ai fatti di rilievo verificatisi dopo la chiusura dell’esercizio, ¢ da segnalare che la
diffusione del virus Covid-19 tra la popolazione non ¢ ancora cessata, nonostante 1’avvio della
campagna vaccinale, ed il Governo italiano ha prorogato fino al 30 aprile 2021 le restrizioni

volte alla tutela della salute delle persone.
Parte terza: vigilanza sul bilancio di esercizio

Nella presente sezione diamo conto della nostra attivita di controllo inerente la composizione e
redazione del bilancio di esercizio di Banca Sistema S.p.A. per il periodo chiuso al 31 dicembre

2020.

I1 Bilancio ¢ stato redatto secondo i Principi Contabili Internazionali (IAS/IFRS), omologati
dalla Commissione Europea e recepiti in Italia dal Decreto Legislativo 28 febbraio 2005, n. 38
tenendo in considerazione le istruzioni della Banca d’Italia, emanate con Circolare n. 262 del 22

dicembre 2005 e ss.mm.ii.

In ottemperanza alle disposizioni del D.Lgs. 39/2010, spetta al soggetto incaricato del controllo
legale dei conti esprimere un giudizio sul bilancio che indichi che ¢ conforme alle norme che ne
disciplinano la redazione e se rappresenta in modo veritiero e corretto la situazione patrimoniale
e finanziaria, i flussi di cassa ed il risultato economico dell’esercizio; al riguardo si segnala che
BDO Italia S.p.A. (di seguito “BDO”), dal momento del subentro al precedente revisore, ha
scambiato ai sensi della disciplina in vigore le informazioni rilevanti con il Collegio Sindacale
ed ha rilasciato la propria relazione di revisione al bilancio al 31/12/2020 in data odierna, e tale

relazione non contiene rilievi o eccezioni o richiami di informativa.

Pertanto il Collegio Sindacale assume che i dati del bilancio corrispondano a quelli risultanti
dalla contabilita interna, tenuta regolarmente nel rispetto dei principi di cui alla normativa

vigente.

Cio posto, il Collegio Sindacale ha vigilato che il generale procedimento di composizione e

redazione del bilancio fosse compliant alla normativa vigente.



Parte quarta: rapporti con la societa di revisione

Nel corso dell’esercizio ¢ stato effettuato con i rappresentanti della societa di revisione legale lo
scambio di informazioni rilevanti per I’espletamento dei rispettivi compiti nel corso degli
incontri periodici ai sensi della disciplina in vigore, che non hanno dato luogo all’emersione di

aspetti critici e/o comunque rilevanti.

BDO ha attestato, ai sensi dell’art. 6, paragrafo 2), lett. a), del Regolamento Europeo 537/2014 ¢
ai sensi del paragrafo 17 del principio di revisione internazionale (ISA Italia) 260, che nel
periodo compreso tra il 1° gennaio 2020 e la data odierna non sono state riscontrate situazioni

che abbiano compromesso 1’indipendenza della societa di revisione o cause di incompatibilita.

Altresi, BDO ha informato il Collegio Sindacale che dalla revisione legale svolta al 31 dicembre
2020 non sono emerse significative carenze nel sistema di controllo interno in relazione al

processo di informativa finanziaria da portare all’attenzione del Collegio Sindacale.

Parte quinta: Adesione al Codice di Autodisciplina

La Banca aderisce al codice di autodisciplina del Comitato per la Corporate Governance delle

societa quotate. Nel seguito si fornisce informativa su alcuni elementi ritenuti essenziali.

Comitato per il controllo interno

In seno a Banca Sistema S.p.A. ¢ istituito un Comitato per il Controllo Interno e Gestione
Rischi, i cui membri in carica sono stati nominati dal CdA in data 24 maggio 2018. E stato
individuato e nominato il preposto al controllo interno nella persona del Dott. Franco Pozzi e i

rapporti tra Comitato e il preposto al controllo interno sono tenuti periodicamente.
Altri Comitati
Sono istituiti il Comitato per le Nomine, il Comitato per la Remunerazione ed il Comitato Etico.

Consiglio di Amministrazione

e Il CdA vigila sul generale andamento della gestione, con particolare attenzione alle
situazioni di conflitto di interessi, tenendo in considerazione, in particolare, le
informazioni ricevute dall’amministratore delegato e dal comitato per il controllo
interno e gestione rischi, confrontando periodicamente i risultati conseguiti con quelli

programmati.



e Il CdA esamina e approva le operazioni aventi un significativo rilievo economico,
patrimoniale e finanziario, con particolare riferimento alle operazioni con parti
correlate.

e Nella composizione del CdA sono presenti sette amministratori indipendenti.

e ]|l Presidente del Consiglio di’ Amministrazione soddisfa il requisito di indipendenza ai
sensi degli art. 147-ter, comma 4, ¢ 148, comma 3 del D.Lgs. 24 febbraio 1998, n. 58,
ma non anche delle previsioni di cui all’art. 3, criteri applicativi 3.c.1.b ¢ 3.c.2 del
Codice di Autodisciplina promosso da Borsa Italiana.

e [’amministratore delegato rende periodicamente conto al CdA delle attivita svolte
nell’esercizio delle deleghe.

e [’amministratore delegato fornisce adeguata informativa sulle operazioni con parti
correlate il cui esame non ¢ riservato al CdA.

L’indicazione del numero di riunioni del CdA, del Comitato per il Controllo Interno e di tutti i
comitati endoconsiliari, e la relativa partecipazione dei membri del Collegio Sindacale sono

indicati nel documento “Relazione sul Governo Societario”.

Parte sesta: informativa ai sensi della Comunicazione Consob 1025564 /2001

Nella presente sezione, si riportano le informazioni previste dalla Comunicazione Consob n.
1025564 del 6 aprile 2001 e successive modifiche e integrazioni, in alcuni casi gia riportate

anche in altri paragrafi della presente Relazione.

e La Societa non ha effettuato alcuna operazione atipica o inusuale con:
o Societa infragruppo;
o Parti correlate;
o Terzi.
Si veda anche pagina 322 del Bilancio per maggiori informazioni in merito.

e Sono state effettuate operazioni rilevanti sotto il profilo economico, finanziario e
patrimoniale, di cui si ¢ data illustrazione nei documenti di bilancio.

e Sono state effettuate operazioni con parti correlate aventi natura ordinaria / ricorrente,
descritte (e si rinvia alla lettura delle stesse) a pagina 322-324 del Bilancio; sul punto Vi
informiamo che le stesse sono sempre state congrue e rispondenti all’interesse della
Banca.

e Gli amministratori hanno esplicitato l’interesse della societa al compimento delle

operazioni nella relazione sulla gestione.



e La struttura organizzativa della banca ¢ stata rivisitata nel corso del 2020 e sono state
illustrate le azioni deliberate dal CdA e successivamente implementate per migliorare la
stessa.

e Le disposizioni impartite dalla societa alle societa controllate ex art. 114 comma 2 del
TUF si ritengono essere state adeguate.

e [l Collegio Sindacale ha scambiato le informazioni previste con gli organi delle
controllate L.A.S.S. s.r.l. , SF Trust e Pronto Pegno S.p.a. ¢ non sono emersi aspetti
rilevanti.

e Per gli aspetti di competenza del Collegio, la struttura organizzativa ¢ stata ritenuta
adeguata.

e [l sistema di controllo interno & stato ritenuto adeguato, cosi pure il sistema
amministrativo contabile, ritenuto anche affidabile a rappresentare correttamente i fatti
di gestione.

e Con riferimento ad altre valutazioni, osservazioni € commenti, si rinvia a quanto ¢ stato
scritto nella “Parte Seconda” della presente Relazione.

e Non sono state rilevate omissioni, fatti censurabili o irregolarita nel corso dell’attivita di
vigilanza.

e Non si ritiene necessario formulare all’assemblea proposte in ordine al bilancio ed alla
sua approvazione diverse da quelle approvate dal Consiglio di Amministrazione e
trascritte nelle “sintesi e conclusioni”.

e ]l Collegio Sindacale non ha avuto la necessita di avvalersi dei poteri di convocazione
dell’assemblea o del CdA.

e Ai sensi del par. 2 p.2 e sottopunti della Comunicazione Consob si precisa quanto
segue:

o operazioni indicate al par. 2 p. 2, al par. 2 p.2.1 e al par. 2 p.2.2 della
Comunicazione Consob n. 1025564 del 6 aprile 2001: non vi sono operazioni
atipiche e/o inusuali, comprese quelle infragruppo o con parti correlate,
conseguentemente non occorre fornire ulteriore descrittiva al riguardo;

o operazioni indicate al par. 2 p.2.3 della Comunicazione Consob: come gia

accennato, si rinvia alla lettura delle pagine 322, 323 e 324 del Bilancio.

Sintesi e conclusioni

Signori Azionisti di Banca Sistema S.p.A.,



sulla base di quanto sopra esposto e per quanto ¢ stato portato a conoscenza del Collegio
Sindacale ed ¢ stato riscontrato dai controlli periodici svolti, si ritiene non sussistano ragioni
ostative all’approvazione del progetto di bilancio di Banca Sistema per ’esercizio chiuso al 31
dicembre 2020 cosi come ¢ stato redatto e Vi ¢ proposto dall’organo amministrativo, ed alla

conseguente proposta di destinazione dell’utile di esercizio.

Altresi il Collegio Sindacale ha preso atto, e porta alla Vostra attenzione, sia il contenuto della
relazione al bilancio della societa di revisione legale BDO Italia, emessa ai sensi degli articoli
14 del D.Lgs. n. 39/2010 e 10 del Regolamento (UE) n. 537 del 16 aprile 2014, dalla quale si
evince che il bilancio ¢ redatto con chiarezza e rappresenta in modo veritiero e corretto il
risultato economico, la situazione patrimoniale e finanziaria ed i flussi di cassa della Banca, sia
la “relazione aggiuntiva” redatta ai sensi dell’art. 11 del Regolamento (UE) n. 537/2014, sia
’esito degli scambi di informazioni intercorsi con la medesima societa di revisione, la quale ha
confermato la propria indipendenza, non ha rilevato errori significativi, ritiene che la contabilita
sia regolarmente tenuta e non vi siano aspetti significativi che chiedano la segnalazione agli

organi di Governance.

Come conseguenza di tutto quanto precede, e fermi tutti i rinvii ai singoli paragrafi del Bilancio
effettuati in precedenza all’interno di questa Relazione, il Collegio Sindacale segnala che la
proposta del Consiglio di Amministrazione di Banca Sistema S.p.A. in merito alla destinazione

dell’utile d’esercizio ¢ la seguente:
“Signori Azionisti,

Vi sottoponiamo per [’approvazione il bilancio relativo all’esercizio chiuso al 31 dicembre

2019 che evidenzia un utile di periodo di Euro 25.745.540,84.
Quanto al riparto dell 'utile Vi proponiamo di destinare:

e a Dividendo Euro 6.433.684,16,
o q Utili portati a nuovo, il residuo pari a Euro 19.311.856,49.
Non viene effettuato alcun accantonamento alla Riserva Legale in quanto sono stati raggiunti i

limiti stabiliti dall articolo 2430 del c.c.”

Corre I’obbligo di segnalare che in data 27 marzo 2020 la Banca d’Italia, accogliendo 1’invito
della BCE, ha esteso alle banche meno significative sottoposte alla sua supervisione diretta la
Raccomandazione della Banca Centrale Europea (BCE) alle banche significative. La
Raccomandazione ha ’obiettivo di destinare gli utili al rafforzamento dei mezzi propri, e di

mettere il sistema finanziario nella condizione migliore per assorbire le perdite che si
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materializzeranno a causa dell’emergenza sanitaria da COVID 19 e per poter continuare a
sostenere l’economia. Questa raccomandazione rafforza la decisione, di permettere agli
intermediari di operare temporancamente al di sotto del livello della Componente target
assegnata a esito del processo SREP (Pillar 2 Guidance -P2G), del buffer di Conservazione del
capitale (CCB) e del Coefficiente di copertura della liquidita (LCR). La Banca d’Italia ha
raccomandato quindi a tutte le banche e gruppi bancari rientranti sotto la sua supervisione che

almeno fino al 1° ottobre 2020:

1. non paghino dividendi, ivi inclusa la distribuzione di riserve, e non assumano alcun impegno

irrevocabile per il pagamento dei dividendi per gli esercizi finanziari 2019 e 2020;
2. si astengano dai riacquisti di azioni miranti a remunerare gli azionisti.

Successivamente, tale raccomandazione ¢ stata ribadita dalla Banca d’Italia con un successivo
comunicato in data 28 luglio 2020 in cui I’Autorita di Vigilanza ha altresi precisato che “la
limitazione al pagamento dei dividendi va riferita solo ai pagamenti in contanti che hanno
I’effetto di ridurre il livello e la qualita del Common Tier 1.

In ragione di quanto precede, su proposta del Consiglio di Amministrazione della Banca,
I’Assemblea ordinaria degli azionisti del 27 novembre 2020, ha deliberato i) di confermare la
delibera gia adottata dall’assemblea ordinaria degli azionisti nella seduta del 23 aprile 2020
relativa alla destinazione dell’utile dell’esercizio chiuso al 2019 ovvero di destinare 1’utile di
esercizio 2019, pari a Euro 29.955.723,45, a dividendo, per Euro 7.479.157,84 ¢ a utili portati a
nuovo, per il residuo importo pari a Euro 22.476.565,61 e (ii) di rinviare la decisione in merito al
pagamento del dividendo relativo all’esercizio chiuso al 31 dicembre 2019 di Euro 7.479.157,84
e I’impegno ad essa conseguente a una nuova assemblea da convocarsi, da parte del Consiglio di
Amministrazione, prima possibile - in una data non anteriore al 1° gennaio 2021 e, in ogni caso,
entro il 31 marzo 2021 - nel rispetto delle disposizioni di vigilanza.

In data 16 dicembre 2020 la Banca d’Italia ha quindi pubblicato una nuova raccomandazione
sulla distribuzione di dividendi e sulle politiche di remunerazione variabile delle banche con cui
ha ribadito alle banche meno significative: i) di astenersi dal riconoscere o pagare dividendi o
limitarne I’importo a non piu del 15% degli utili cumulati del 2019-20 o di 20 punti base del
coefficiente di CET1 (in ogni caso il minore dei due); ii) di astenersi dal riconoscere o pagare
dividendi provvisori a valere sui profitti del 2021 e iii) di esercitare un'estrema prudenza nel
riconoscimento della remunerazione variabile. Anche tale raccomandazione precisa che “il
termine “dividendo” utilizzato nella presente raccomandazione si riferisce solo ai pagamenti in

contanti che hanno I’effetto di ridurre il livello e la qualita del Common Equity Tierl”.
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In data 25 marzo 2021 1’Assemblea degli Azionisti di Banca Sistema ha deliberato di rinviare la
decisione in merito al pagamento del dividendo relativo all’esercizio chiuso al 31 dicembre
2019 di Euro 7.479.157,84 per le n. 80.421.052 azioni ordinarie, pari a Euro 0,093 per ogni
azione, ¢ I’impegno ad essa conseguente, alla deliberazione dell’assemblea che sara convocata

per I’approvazione del bilancio al 31 dicembre 2020.

In tale contesto, il Collegio Sindacale evidenzia che Banca Sistema ha sempre adottato una
prudente politica di distribuzione dei dividendi, che ha portato benefici effetti in termini di
consistenza patrimoniale, anche in relazione ai coefficienti di vigilanza. La proposta di
distribuzione, formulata dal Consiglio d’Amministrazione 1’11 marzo 2021, mantiene la linea
prudenziale nel tempo adottata, con una distribuzione pari al 25% degli utili di bilancio

conseguiti.

Alla luce di quanto precede, il Collegio Sindacale invita ’assemblea ad approvare il bilancio al
31.12.2020 cosi come predisposto dal Consiglio d’Amministrazione ed a tenere nella dovuta
considerazione le raccomandazioni emanate dalla Banca d’Italia ai fini della delibera in merito

alla destinazione del risultato di esercizio.

eskosk

11 Collegio Sindacale

Massimo Conigliaro Lucia Abati Marziano Viozzi

Presidente Sindaco Effettivo Sindaco Effettivo

Wil 2ot ool
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Independent auditor’s Report
pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010 and article 10
of EU Regulation n. 537/2014

To the shareholders of Banca Sistema S.p.A.

Report on the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Banca Sistema S.p.A. (the Company), which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2020, the profit and loss account, the statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net equity, the cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes and comments to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at December 31, 2020 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, as well as
the regulation issued to implement article 9 of Legislative Decree NO. 38/05 as well and article 43 of
Legislative Decree NO. 136/15.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ethical and independence requirements applicable in Italy to the audit of financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters

Audit responses

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF LOANS AND
RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS BOOKED UNDER THE
FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

Notes: Part A) Accounting policies - paragraph A.2,
“Information on the main items of the separate
financial statements”: “Financial assets measured
at amortised cost”; Part B) Information on the
statement of financial position, Assets - Section 4
“Financial assets measured at amortised cost”; Part
C) Information on the income statement - Section
8.1 “Net impairment losses due to credit risk
related to financial assets measured at amortised
cost: breakdown”; Part E) Information concerning
risk and related hedging policies - Section 1 “Credit
risk”

Loans and receivables with customers, which are
booked under the financial assets measured at
amortised cost as of December 31, 2020, are equal
to Euro 2,983 million and represent the 83% of the
Bank’s total assets.

The acquisition by the Bank of non-impaired loans
claimed by companies supplying goods and services,
mainly towards the public administration (the
“factoring credits”) and origination of credits
relating to the sector of the transfers of salary or
pension backed loans (the “CQS/CQP credits”)
represent the Bank's main activities.

Factoring credits and CQS/CQP credits as of
December 31, 2020, are equal to, respectively,
Euro 1,437 million and Euro 934 million.

For classification purposes, the directors of the
Bank carry out analyses, sometimes complex, aimed
at identifying the positions which, after the
disbursement and / or acquisition, show evidence
of a possible loss of value, considering both internal
information related to the trend credit positions,
and external information related to the sector of
reference or to the overall exposure of such debtors
to the banking system.

The evaluation of loans and receivables with
customers is a complex estimation activity,
characterized by a high degree of uncertainty and
subjectivity, in which the Bank's directors use
evaluation models that take into consideration
numerous quantitative and qualitative elements
such as, among others, historical data relating to
collections, expected cash flows and related
recovery times, the existence of indicators of
possible impairment, the assessment of any
guarantee, the impact of macroeconomic variables,

Our main audit procedures carried out in response
to the key audit matter relating to the classification
and evaluation of loans and receivables with
customers, concerned the following activities:

= analysis of the procedures and processes
related to the item and verification of the
effectiveness of controls to monitor these
procedures and processes;

= analysis of the adequacy of the IT environment
related to IT applications that are relevant to
the process of evaluating loans to banks and
customers;

= procedures for reconciling data between
management systems and information reported
in the financial statements;

= comparative analysis procedures and analysis of
the results with the management involved;

= analysis of the criteria and methods for the
evaluation of credits (analytical and collective)
and verification on a sample basis of the
reasonableness of the assumptions and of the
components used for the assessment and the
relative results;

= examination on a sample basis of the
classification and valuation in the financial
statements in accordance with the IFRS
adopted by the European Union and the
provisions issued pursuant to Article 43 of
Legislative Decree 136/2015;

= examination of the disclosures provided in the
notes.

Banca Sistema S.p.A. | Independent auditor’s Report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27 2010 and article 10 of EU
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future scenarios and risks of the sectors in which
the Bank's customers operate.

For these reasons, we have considered the
classification and evaluation of loans and
receivables with customers booked under financial
assets valued at amortized cost, a significant key
matter in the context of the auditing activity.

DETECTION OF DEFAULT INTEREST PURSUANT TO
LEGISLATIVE DECREE NO. 231 OF 9 OCTOBER 2002
ON PERFORMING RECEIVABLES ACQUIRED WITHOUT
RECOURSE.

Notes: Part A) Accounting policies - paragraph A.2.,
“Information on the main items of the separate
financial statements”; Part C) Information on the
income statement - Section 1 “interest - item 10
and 20”; Part E) Information concerning risk and
related hedging policies - Section 1 “Credit risk”

The Bank’s directors account for accrued default
interest pursuant to legislative decree no. 231 of 9
october 2002 on performing receivables acquired
without recourse.

Default interest recognized on an accrual basis in
the year ended on 31 December 2019 amount to
Euro 10 million and represent the 10% of the Bank's
interest and similar income.

The default interest deemed recoverable by the
directors of the Bank is estimated by using models
based on the analysis of the time series concerning
the recovery percentages and actual collection
times observed internally.

These analyses are periodically updated following
the progressive consolidation of the time series.

The aforementioned estimate, characterized by a
high degree of uncertainty and subjectivity, feeds
analysis models that take into account numerous
quantitative and qualitative elements such as,
among others, the historical data relating to
collections, expected cash flows, the relative times
collection costs and the impact of the risks
associated with the geographical areas in which the
Bank's customers operate.

For these reasons, we have considered the
detection of default interest pursuant to legislative
decree no. 231 of 9 october 2002 on performing
receivables acquired without recourse a significant
key matter in the context of the auditing activity.

The main audit procedures carried out in response
to the key audit matter relating to the detection of
default interest pursuant to legislative decree no.
231 of 9 october 2002 on performing receivables
acquired without recourse, also carried out with
the support of our experts, concerned the following
activities:

= understanding of the business processes and the
related IT environment of the Bank with
reference to the estimation of default interest;

= examination of the configuration and
implementation of the controls and
performance of procedures to evaluate the
operational effectiveness of controls which are
considered relevant, with particular reference
to the estimation of default interest;

= analysis of the models used to estimate default
interest and examination of the reasonableness
of the main assumptions contained in them,
with the support of our experts;

= analysis of the adequacy of the information
provided in the explanatory notes.
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VALUATION OF EQUITY INVESTMENTS HELD IN THE
CONTROLLED COMPANY PRONTOPEGNO

Notes: Part A) Accounting policies - paragraph A.2,
“Information on the main items of the separate
financial statements”: “Equity investments”; Part
B) Information on the statement of financial
position, Assets - Section 7 “Equity investments”

The Bank recorded Euro 29 million as the value of
the equity investments held in the controlled
company ProntoPegno S.p.A. as of December 31,
2020. Such amount represents the 0,8% of the
Bank’s total assets.

We focused on this area due to the significance of
its amount and the significant judgement and
complexity of the evaluation process; the
impairment test is based on the realisation of the
assumptions of the plan, discount rates and
expected future growth rates and other subjective
assumptions.

Our main audit procedures performed, also with the
support of our specialists, in response to the key
audit matter regarding the valuation of equity
investments held in the controlled company
ProntoPegno, included the following:

=  We challenged the reasonableness of the key
underlying assumptions of the plan;

=  We assessed and challenged the adequacy of
the impairment model adopted;

=  We assessed the key underlying assumptions
for the impairment model, in particular the
ones related to cash flow projections, discount
rates, long term growth rates.

=  We verified the clerical accuracy of the
impairment model adopted.

=  We performed sensitivity analysis of the
control model of impairment when key
assumptions change;

= We verified the disclosures provided.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, as well as
the regulation issued to implement art. 9 of Legislative Decree NO. 38/05, as well as the regulation issued
to implement article 9 of Legislative Decree NO. 38/05 and article 43 of Legislative Decree NO. 136/15
and, within the terms provided by the law, for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISA Italia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA Italia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also have:

= |dentified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Concluded on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We have communicated with those charged with governance, as properly identified in accordance with ISA
Italia, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

= We have also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
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relevant ethical and independence requirements applicable in Italy, and communicated with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We described those matters in the auditor’s report.

Other information communicated pursuant to article 10 of Regulation (EU) 537/2014

We were initially engaged by the shareholders meeting of Banca Sistema S.p.A. on April 18, 2019 to
perform the audit of the separate and the consolidated financial statements of each fiscal year starting
from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2027.

We declare that we did not provide prohibited non audit services, referred to article 5, paragraph 1, of
Regulation (EU) 537/2014, and that we remained independent of the Company in conducting the audit.

We confirm that the opinion on the financial statements included in this audit report is consistent with the
content of the additional report prepared in accordance with article 11 of the EU Regulation n.537/2014,
submitted to those charged with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion pursuant to article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree n. 39/10 and of article
123-bis of Legislative Decree n. 58/98.

The directors of Banca Sistema S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the report on operations and
of the corporate governance report of Banca Sistema S.p.A. as at December 31, 2020, including their
consistency with the financial statements and their compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

We have performed the procedures required under audit standard (SA Italia) n. 720B in order to express an
opinion on the consistency of the report on operations and of specific information of the corporate
governance report as provided by article 123-bis, paragraph. 4, of Legislative Decree n. 58/98, with the
financial statements of Banca Sistema S.p.A. as at December 31, 2020 and on their compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations, and in order to assess whether they contain material misstatements.

In our opinion, the report on operations and the above mentioned specific information of the corporate
governance report are consistent with the financial statements of Banca Sistema S.p.A. as at December
31, 2020 and are compliant with applicable laws and regulations.

With reference to the assessment pursuant to article 14, paragraph. 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree n.
39/10 based on our knowledge and understanding of the entity and its environment obtained through our
audit, we have nothing to report.

Milan, March 30, 2021

BDO Italia S.p.A.

(signed in the original)
Rosanna Vicari
Partner
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